
 
 
Meeting Date:    April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Hershel Lee 

Travis County Fire Marshal 
      512-854-4621 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
RECEIVE COMMENTS REGARDING THE APPLICATION FOR A TEXAS MASS GATHERING ACT 
PERMIT UNDER CHAPTER 751 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE FROM THE ELECTRIC 
COMPANY FOR THE EUPHORIA MUSIC AND CAMPING FESTIVAL AND RELATED ISSUES, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING: 
 
A. EVENT: EUPHORIA MUSIC AND CAMPING FESTIVAL 
PLACE: CARSON CREEK RANCH 
9501 SHERMAN ROAD 
AUSTIN, TX 78742 
DATE: APRIL 25, 26 AND 27, 2014 
FROM 1:00 P.M. TO 1:00 A.M. EACH DAY; 
 
B. PROPOSED PUBLIC SAFETY PLAN, INCLUDING REPORTS FROM:  

i. AUSTIN/TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH AUTHORITY;  
ii. TRAVIS COUNTY FIRE MARSHAL; AND  
iii. TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF;  

 
C. PROPOSED TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN; AND  
 
D. OTHER RELATED ISSUES. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached application and documents. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 1

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

The Electric Company 
1901 E. 51st St Stage 4 

Austin, TX 78723 

C: 512-680-1050 

E-Mail: Jason@ElectricCompanyLive.com  Web: 

www.ElectricCompanyLive.com 

 

Mass Gathering Permit Application Details: 
 
Event: Euphoria Music Festival  

Dates: April 25 & 26th, 2014 

Tentative Times: 
FRI 4/25 
- camping check-in starts at 8am 
- general festival doors at 12pm 
- workshops/yoga/first band on river stage at 12pm 
- first band on tent stage at 1:00 pm  
- first main stage band on at 2:00 pm 
- last band river stage, sound off at 12:00am  
- last band main stage, sound off at 1:30am 
- last band tent stage, sound off at 1:30am 
- general grounds cleared at 2:00 am 
 
SAT 4/26 
- camping activities start at 10am 
- general festival doors at 12pm 
- workshops/yoga/first band on at 12:00 pm (river stage) 
- first tent stage band on at 1:00pm 
- first main stage band on at 1:00pm 
- last band river stage, sound off at 12:00am 
- last band main stage, sound off at 1:30am 
- last band tent stage, sound off at 1:30 am 
- general grounds cleared at 2:00 am 
 
SUN 
- camping grounds cleared at 12:00 pm 
 

Location: Carson Creek Ranch 
 
Address: 9501 Sherman Rd – Austin, 78742 
 
Description: A scenic 58 acre ranch nestled on the banks of the Colorado River.  Area is mostly industrial or 
agricultural as it is in the low flight path of Bergstrom Airport.  There is a small number of residences the 
nearest being more a half mile away from the directions of the event’s PA system.  We received no noise 
complaints over the course of the event last year. 
 
 
County Liason/ Security Director: Scott Davidson (The Electric Company) – 1901 E. 51st St – Stage 4 - Austin, 
78723 
512-656-2184 
Event Production Manager: Ryan Miller 512-659-0104 rmiller205@me.com 



2 

Promoter: Euphoria Partners 2014, GP : 706 Rolling Brook Ln, Cedar Park TX 78613 

Land Owner: Joan Havard – 8801 Willowick Dr – Austin, TX 78759 – 512-758-9076 
 
Expected attendance: 5,000 per day.  Max attendance 5,000.  While it is not expected, no more than 5,000 
tickets will be issued for the event and we will publicize that the event is sold out.  We anticipate 1000-
1500 guests to camp on site in a secured area- if it appears this number may be exceeded we will notify the 
county promptly and will adjust accordingly.  

 
Scheduled to perform:  Bassjackers, Beats Antique, Bonobo (DJ Set),  Boombox, Borgore, 
Bro Safari, Earphunk Plays Daft Phunk, The Floozies, Gareth Emery, The Motet Plays 
Jamiraquai, Keys N Krates, Koan Sound, Lotus, Opiuo, Simon Patterson, TJR, Zeds Dead  
 
Nature of performances:  All performers will be playing music on one of 3 stages , roughly 
45 mins to 60 min sets.  The original statue from 1989 requests names and addresses of of  
performers and their agents.  This information is not shared with the promoters and with 
over 60 bands from all over the world, acquiring this information would prove very 
difficult.   
 
Sanitation Health:   We are plan to supply a minimum of 80 Port-o-potties provided a local 
vendor on site at the event with 15 ADA units.  All units will be serviced and pumped 
nightly. Adequate pump sinks will be provided and maintained with water and paper 
towels.  There will also be several  restroom trailers on site, each with running water.  
 
For food service and bar will have required sinks for hand washing . All food vendors are 
self-contained food trucks and trailers wi th county and city permitting. We have also 
arranged for onsite gray water, and grease trap storage maintained by a sanitation vendor .  
Vendors have been notified that no external gas tanks will be allowed on site.  We are 
expecting 12-15 food vendors.  
 
Traffic Control:  See Map Attached… Traffic Control is a high priority for the event 
producers.   
We look forward to discussions with TXDOT on how to improve the traffic plan from last 
year’s events at the site.  Until those meetings we will present the traffic plan from 
last year.   
We will be very specific with instructions to our attendees.   After meeting with TXDot, 
County, and city ROW officials, we agreed that my suggestion to have patrons heading 
eastbound on 183 and 71 both merge onto 71 and exit Spirit of Texas Dr. then loop under 
Hwy 71 to go westbound to access a a safe merging right turn on Old Bastrop Hwy.  From 
here they will turn Right on Dalton and proceed to the festival entrance at Giraffe Pen Rd.  
If deemed necessary, we plan to utilize message boards to relay event traffic t he safest 
route into the site.  
 
Message Boards will read:  
From 183- Phase 1 –  
Event  
Traf Use  
SH71 E  
Phase 2-  
Exit  
Spirit  
of TX  



3 

From 71/Ben White – Phase 1  
Event  
Traf Use  
SH 71 E  
Phase 2  
Exit  
Spirit  
Of TX  
ON 71 approaching Exit: Phase 1-  
Event  
Exit Rt  
Sprit  
Phase 2  
Of TX  
And Uturn  
On W71  
Event  
Exit  
Next Rt  

Our event site will have 2 separate entrances, one for local traffic, production, and 
emergency use only (Sherman Road) and one for public use Giraffe Pen Rd.  Dalton Rd will 
be our main point of entry and we have secured parking on land owned by Jimmy Eva ns 
Construction next to the event site.  There is .42 mile of road  on Giraffe Pen Road to 
accommodate cars queuing into the parking lot  and more if we line up cars from the 
furthest point from the road.  If deemed necessary, we will work  with Travis County 
Sherriff’s office to hire staff in patrol cars to be a presence at these vital points of entry.   

Directions to the site will be detailed and specific and guests will be strongly encouraged 
to follow the agreed upon routes. We feel the presence of Travis Co Sheriffs will  assist 
this along with ample legible approved signage that will guide event goers safely to and 
out of the site to main arteries and keeping traffic out of neighborhoods.  Parking at the 
site will be done quickly and payment for parking wi ll be done after the car is parked to 
minimize delays.  
 
Egress from the site would require a right turn onto Dalton Ln from Giraffe Pen Road 
Sheriffs on site can assist to keep traffic flowing for the out at the end of the night to 
expedite exit off the property.  Patrons will process left on Hergotz and Left on Thompson 
to the light at US 183 led by visible signage in plain view out of the ROW with property 
owner’s permission.  From this point patrons can go left or r ight onto the highway.  I will 
work with Brian Craig with the city of Austin to time this l ight during mass exit times to 
minimize backups at this location.   
 
Once off major arteries 30x30 directional signs will be placed along Dalton Ln for Ingress 
to let patrons know where to turn.  For Egre ss 30x30 signs will guide patrons from the 
event back to the highway and will be placed at each turn on the exit strategy.  Finally, 
TXDot has asked that plastic drums be places in front of a service pole near the turn for 
Dalton Lane.  We will comply with  this safety request.  

Medical: To provide medical care for patrons at our event we are contracting event 
specialist EMT group, Capital Medical Services. We will staff a minimum of 1 EMT and 1 
Paramedic 24 hours a day when patrons are on site  from a highly visible medical station . 
This staffing number will increase based on programming and ticket sales numbe rs. Capital 



4 

Medical Service will  also provide a standby ambulance service and the additional 
personnel to staff it during hours the festiv al grounds are open. Capital Medical Service 
will also util ize a stretcher -bearing ATV vehicle to patrol and transport patients within the 
grounds.  

Security: We have contracted with Vigilant Security and Event Services as our private 
security provider. Working under the direction of our Public Safety Director, Vigilant 
security will provide licensed, uniformed level 1 guards for access control, loss prevention 
and public safety 24 hours a day while patrons are on site. The will be a minimum of 20 
security officers staffed during peak hours. All security and event staff will be equipped 
with 2-way radios with established communications protocols and chain of command. In 
addition to those officers working traffic and cash -room roles, two peace-officers 
dedicated to internal security and crowd management will be retained during hours of 
operation of the festival grounds. Level 1 Security officers will maintain a 24 -hour 
presence within the camping and festival grounds.    

 Minors in Attendance: A legal guardian who is attending the festival with them must 
accompany all persons under the age of 18 or they will not be admitted.  All attendees 
over 21 who have verifiable proof of their age and who choose to drink will be issued a 
wristband to clearly differentiate from those underage and to prevent underage drinking.   
 
Tents on Premise:  Per request of Travis County, we have notified all tent providers that 
Flame Retardant Certificates must be permanently attached to any tent on the premises  
and they have confirmed that our requests can be fil led with such tents. Only one tent 
will be used for cooking in the backstage area and will not be accessible by the public.  
Exit signs and extinguishers will be provided at any tent in which it is deemed necessary.   
 
Power:   Power for the event will mostly be from onsite Diesel Generators , you will find 
the locations of the generators.  These are:  
1. Behind the main stage (175 KVA)  
2. Behind the Large Tent Stage (125 KVA)  
3. Next to General Store and campgrounds (95KVA)  
4. Behind Sponsor Tent (95 KVA)  
5. Near tent #6 at entry way (95KVA)  
6. Existing power will be used via a code compliant subpanel and distro located at power 
pole next to the pavilion.   
 
Whenever possible generators are placed behind fences out of the public view.  In the 
case of example 4 and 5, those generators will be fenced and scrimmed to keep public 
out.  Generators will arrive to the site fully fueled with the estimated amount neede d for 
the weekend.  Should refueling be required we will bring in a fuel truck from off site 
after event hours to replenish supplies.  The fuel truck will leave the premises following 
this action.  

 

 
 
 

 
 















































C:\Users\salazad\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\UUMQ6QN0\WRF - Posting Public Notice Signs 04_15_2014.docx p. 1 of 4 

WORK REQUEST FORM 
 
    Routing & Checkoff  
  Responsible. Item DATE INIT. 

  Dispatch WRF 
Nos. 282282 4/8/14 NH 

       
       
       
  Greear WRF Delivered to SMS   
  Powers Work Completed   
  Arroyo Update Database   
      
      

 
 

Date: 4/8/14 

Staff Contact: David Greear (854-7650) 

Requestor Name  

Request Category: 4115 – Signs 
 

General Location (Pct #): 4 

Facility ID (Rd. Index No.) Dalton Lane (G09700) 

Priority / Requested 
completion date 

Normal 

Short Description (street 
name & work type): 

Dalton Lane – Public Notice Signage 

Detailed Description:  
• Install three ”Notice of Public Hearing” signs per following sketch. Signs must be in place 

by Thursday, April 10, 2014.  
• E-mail digital photos of signs in place to David Greear by Friday, April 11, 2014 
• FAX signed Affidavit of Posting (attached) to David Greear by Friday, April 11, 2014 
• Remove the signs after Event on April 28, 2014. 

 

    

Qty. Sign No. Size Description/Text 

3   Notice of Public Hearing 
 



 

 

 

NOTICE OF  
PUBLIC HEARING 

PUBLIC HEARING 
ON APRIL 15, 2014, AT 9:00 AM. 

 
REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF A 

MASS GATHERING PERMIT FOR THE 
EUPHORIA MUSIC FESTIVAL ON 

GIRAFFE PEN DRIVE OFF  
DALTON LANE  

ON  
APRIL 25-27, 2014 

 
AT THE TRAVIS COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM 
700 LAVACA STREET 

(FIRST FLOOR), AUSTIN 
 

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CALL 854-7650 
 



 

 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES    
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

700 Lavaca Street-5th Floor 
Travis County Administration Building 
P.O. Box 1748  
Austin, Texas 78767 
Phone: (512) 854-9383 
Fax: (512) 854-4697 
 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 
 
 
 
TO: County Judge 
 County Commissioners 
 Travis County, Texas 
 
Public notices of Public Hearing regarding issuance of a Mass Gathering Permit were posted on   
 
  , 2014 at    locations on   
 (date) (count) (road name) 
   , 
 
each location being as near as practical to the area being affected. 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED THIS THE   DAY OF     APRIL           2014. 
 (date) (month) 
 
 
 SIGNATURE:   
 
 NAME (print):   
 
 TITLE:   
 
 





 
 
 
Date:  April 7, 2014 
 
To:  Travis County Judge Sam Biscoe 
         
From:  Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
 
RE:  Report regarding Mass Gathering – Euphoria Music Festival 
 
Euphoria Contact Information 
 County Liaison/Security Director 

 Scott Davidson (The Electric Company) 512-656-2184 
1901 E. 51st Street, Stage 4 
Austin, Texas 78723 

 
 Event Production Manager 
  Ryan Miller 512-659-0104 
 
 Promoter 
  Euphoria Partners 2014, GP 
  706 Rolling Brook Lane 
  Cedar Park, Texas 78613 
 
 Land Owner 
  Joan Havard 512-758-9076 
  8801 Willowick Drive 
  Austin, Texas 78759 
 
The Euphoria Music Festival is proposed to be held at Carson Creek Ranch, 9501 Sherman Road, 
Austin, Texas in Pct. 4.  This is the site used in 2013 for the Psych Fest.  This event will attract up to 
5,000 people on three consecutive days.  The music will begin at 12:00 Noon on April 25 and continue 
until 01:30 am the following morning.  The music will begin again at 12:00 Noon on April 26 and 
continue until 01:30 am the following morning.  All attendees should leave the property by 12:00 
Noon on Sunday April 26.  More detail surrounding daily schedule is included in the back up 
documentation. 
 
Persons under age 18 will not be admitted unless they are accompanied by a legal guardian.  Attendees 
who choose to drink must present a valid proof of age. 
 
Food and Drink vendors will be on site. 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

        T R AVIS  C O UN T Y  FI R E  M AR S H AL’S  O F F I C E   
HERSHEL LEE, FIRE MARSHAL 

P. O. BOX 1748, AUSTIN, TEXAS  78767 
(512) 854-4621, FAX (512) 854-6471 

 

 



Overnight campers will begin arriving at 07:30am on April 25.  The event promoter expects up to 
1,400 people to camp overnight at the site. 
 
A fire watch will be provided by Travis County Fire Marshal at the expense of the applicant. 
 
Travis County Fire Marshal Office has reviewed information submitted regarding this proposed event.  
This event is capable of meeting all life safety requirements.  Final approval by Travis County Fire 
Marshal will be subject to an on-site inspection after the structures, generators and vendors are in 
place.  
 
 
 
Hershel Lee 
Travis County Fire Marshal 
 
 
 





TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES    
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

700 Lavaca Street-5th Floor 
Travis County Administration Building 
P.O. Box 1748  
Austin, Texas 78767 
Phone: (512) 854-9383 
Fax: (512) 854-4697 
 
 
Date: April 8, 2014 
 
To:  Travis County Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
From:   Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive - TNR 
 
RE:  Report regarding Mass Gathering – Euphoria Music Festival 
 
 
The Euphoria event coordinators have submitted their traffic plan for routing their patrons to and 
from the Euphoria Music Festival to be held April 25-27, 2014.  TNR staff has reviewed the 
proposed traffic plan as seen in the attached back up documentation and approves of the plan. 
 
This plan is similar to the traffic plan used for a similar event held last year at this same location.  
All traffic coming to the event will be directed to SH71 which will proceed to exit Spirit of 
Texas Drive then loop under SH71 head westbound and turn right on Dalton Lane.  From there 
they will proceed north on Dalton and turn right on Giraffe Pen Road which leads them to the 
festival entrance.  Once exiting the event, traffic will be directed to turn north on Dalton and 
routed to Hergotz Lane then Thompson Lane at the traffic light on US183. 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
County Executive - TNR 
 
DG:dg 
attachment 

 
   





Item 3







Item 6











Item 7



































Item 8











Item 9











Item 10











Item 11





Item 12





























































































Item 13

























Item 14























Item 15







Item 16





AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  April 15th, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Rachel Fishback, 512.854.9853  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for Transmission Repair 
Services, IFB No. 1401-007-RF, to sole bidder Alamar Austin, Inc. dba 
AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract requires for the vendor to provide Transmission Repair 
Services to the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 
Department.   

On February 28th, 2014, IFB No. 1401-007-RF was issued through 
BidSync. One (1) bid was received on March 24th, 2014. One non-
bidder, our current secondary contractor, did not submit a bid because 
they will not be able to meet our needs due to a recent contract awarded 
by the City of Austin.  Other non-bidders were contacted and are not 
interested in submitting a bid for this solicitation. 

The contract will include all line items except 02-27 and 02-28. These 
two items are not repairable and therefore should be excluded from the 
contract. 

The Purchasing Office concurs with Travis County Transportation and 
Natural Resources recommendation to award a contract to sole bidder 
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin.   
 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: estimated requirements   
Contract Type: Annual, unilateral  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 17

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Contract Period: May 19th, 2014 through May 18th, 2015 
  
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitation Viewed:  16  Responses Received:  1  
HUB Information:  N/A  % HUB Subcontractor:  N/A  

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):   budget cost centers are 140350001 and 

1490350145 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us




Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $29.00   1 / each $29.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1401-007-RF--03-19   DODGE/CHRYSLER: Dodge/Chrysler, 604, Rebuild
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $595.00   1 / each $595.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Five hundred ninety five dollars
Total Amount Text: Five hundred ninety five dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1401-007-RF--03-20   DODGE/CHRYSLER: Dodge/Chrysler, 604, Reseal
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $29.00   1 / each $29.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1401-007-RF--03-21   DODGE/CHRYSLER: Dodge/Chrysler, 670, Rebuild
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $295.00   1 / each $295.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Two hundred ninety five dollars
Total Amount Text: Two hundred ninety five dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1401-007-RF--03-22   DODGE/CHRYSLER: Dodge/Chrysler, 670, Reseal
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $29.00   1 / each $29.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1401-007-RF--04-01   TOYOTA: Toyota, A460E Prius, Rebuild
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $2,195.00   1 / each $2,195.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Two Thousand one hundred ninety five dollars
Total Amount Text: Two Thousand one hundred ninety five dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1401-007-RF--04-02   TOYOTA: Toyota, A460E Prius, Reseal
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North Austin First Offer -  $29.00   1 / each $29.00 Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty nine dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Supplier Totals
  Alamar Austin, Inc. dba AAMCO Transmissions of North 
Austin $130,550.00    (78/78 items) 

 Bid Contact Allan M. Nurenberg 
anurenberg@prodigy.net
Ph 512-458-6115
Fax 512-458-4165

 Address 8417 Burnet Rd.
Austin, TX 78757 

 Qualifications SB

Bid 1401-007-RFTravis County

BidSync3/24/2014 p. 11



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
Meeting Date:  April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB/854-9762; 
Marvin Brice, CPPB/854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Independent 
Representative/Compliance Architect  Services for the Design-Build 
Development of a New Travis County Civil and Family Court House, RFQ No. 
Q1309-006-JT, to the most highly qualified team, Hellmuth, Obata and 
Kassabaum, LP (HOK). 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the 
statutes. 

On December 10, 2013, the Court authorized the Purchasing Agent to 
issue an RFQ to procure an Independent Representative/Compliance 
Architect (IR/CA) Team to serve the County through the Design-Build (DB) 
development, procurement, design and construction of the new Travis 
County Civil and Family Court House (CFCH).  RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT 
was issued on December 11, 2013, and on February 18, 2014, the Court 
authorized the Purchasing Agent to commence negotiations with the 
highest ranked team recommended by the Evaluation Committee and 
approved by the Court:  Hellmuth Obata and Kassabaum, LP (HOK).   

HOK’s primary responsibilities as IR/CA, to be performed for the County 
under the supervision of the County’s Program Manager, URS Corporation 
(URS), include the creation of the technical requirements for the design 
criteria package to be developed for the CFCH Project in accordance with 
Subchapter G, Chapter 2269, Texas Government Code; providing 
consultation and advice to the County throughout the Project; ensuring the 
selected DB Team is compliant with the design criteria package; and other 
additional related tasks detailed in the attached contract scope of services. 

Over the past several weeks, County staff refined HOK’s scope of services 
through a collaborative process with HOK and URS.  The Purchasing 
Agent and her staff, along with representatives from the Planning and 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 18

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Budget Office, Facilities Management Department and the County 
Attorney’s Office, and with analysis and input from URS, have also been 
negotiating the terms and fees for a contract with HOK.   

HOK’s contract phasing was set up to align with the five (5) phases 
established for the CFCH Project during contract negotiations with URS:  
Phase I - Initiation Services; Phase II - Project Definition Development; 
Phase III - Procurement Document Preparation and Open Solicitation 
Period; Phase IV - Bid Evaluation, Selection and Negotiation Period; and, 
Phase V - Construction and Implementation.   

As with URS’ contract, it was determined that it would be prudent to delay 
fee negotiations for Phase V until the Project construction budget is 
established.  This will allow for HOK and URS to proceed with the work 
required to move toward placing an item in the May 2015 bond election.  
Completing fee negotiations for Phase V at that time will also allow for a 
more accurate fee proposal since all parties will have more certainty and 
clarity on the scope and cost of the Project. 

Contract negotiations for Phases I - IV were successfully completed on 
March 28, 2014 and the final contract is now presented for the Court’s 
review and approval.  County staff recommends that a contract be awarded 
to HOK in the amount of $2,920,790, consisting of the following per phase 
fee breakdown: Phase I - $61,930; Phase II - $2,311,510; Phase III - 
$300,370; Phase IV - $246,980.   

A budget transfer in the amount of $2,673,810 from the Civil and Family 
Justice Center Reserve to the Planning & Budget Office was placed on the 
Court’s April 8, 2014 agenda to fund the contract through Phase III.  
Phases IV and V are anticipated to be funded through bond proceeds from 
the May 2015 Bond Election with Notices to Proceed (NTP) for these 
phases anticipated to be issued after the successful completion of the bond 
election.  The contract has been negotiated to require the issuance of a 
NTP prior to commencement of each phase of the services.  Staff 
recommends that a NTP be issued for only Phases I & II at this time. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  $2,920,790.00    
Contract Type:  Professional Services   
Contract Period:  Through Project Completion  

  

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 90  Responses Received:  6  
HUB Information:  No  % HUB Subcontractor:  35.75  

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  10900200001 511890 
  Comments:  Funding for Phases I - III of this contract to be transferred 

from Civil and Family Court House Reserve to PBO account above prior to 
contract award. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us






 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

AND 
 

HELLMUTH, OBATA & KASSABAUM, LP 
 

FOR 
 

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

FOR 
 

INDEPENDENT REPRESENTATIVE/COMPLIANCE ARCHITECT SERVICES  
FOR THE DESIGN-BUILD DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW  
TRAVIS COUNTY CIVIL AND FAMILY COURT HOUSE 

 
CONTRACT NO. 4400001900 

   



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

1 

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA) 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS                  PAGE  
SECTION: 
 
 1  DEFINITIONS                  3 
 2  EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT            5 
 3  BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT            6 

4  CONSTRUCTION COST                7 
 5  COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE           8 
 6  PERIOD OF SERVICE                9 
 7  COORDINATION WITH COUNTY              9 
 8  WORK PRODUCT                 10 
 9  REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT              11 
 10  RESERVED                   11 
 11  SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION             12 

12  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY         14 
13  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS              16 

 14  MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS       16 
 15  MISCELLANEOUS:                 16 

  15.1 VENUE                  16 
  15.2 SEVERABILITY                17 
  15.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT          17 
  15.4 CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT           17 
  15.5 NOTICE                  17 
  15.6 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS            18 
  15.7 FORFEITURE OF AGREEMENT            18 
  15.8 PURCHASE ORDER               19 
  15.9 PAYMENTS                 19 
  15.10 DISBURSEMENTS TO PERSONS WITH OUTSTANDING DEBTS PROHIBITED 20
  15.11 INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS           20 
  15.12 PROPERTY TAXES               20 
  15.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION            20 
  15.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS             20 
   15.15 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) PROGRAM REPORTING 20
   15.16 FUNDING OUT                21 

15.17 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT             21 
15.18 MEDIATION                 21 
15.19 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT            22 

   15.20 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS            22 
15.21 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE           22 
15.22 GRATUITIES                22 
15.23 MONITORING                22 
15.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS       23 
15.25 ENTIRE AGREEMENT              23 
15.26 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT           23 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

2 

15.27 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY           23 
15.28 AMENDMENT                23 
15.29  ENTITY STATUS                23 
15.30 LEED REQUIREMENTS              23 

  
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND SIGNATURE PAGE             24 

 
EXHIBIT 1  COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES        25 

AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 
 EXHIBIT 2  HOURLY RATES                27 
 EXHIBIT 3  PROJECT SCHEDULE              31 
 EXHIBIT 4  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT          32 
 EXHIBIT 5  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS            34 
 EXHIBIT 6  ETHICS AFFIDAVIT               35 

     ATTACHMENT 1 KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS LIST       36 
 EXHIBIT 7  HUB DECLARATION AND LIST OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS  39 
 

APPENDIX A  SCOPE OF SERVICES              45 
APPENDIX B  ORGANIZATIONAL CHART             62 
APPENDIX C  CONSULTANT’S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT        63 
   
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

3 

DRAFT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA) 
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
        § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 

 
 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Travis County, Texas, a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas (the “County”) and Consultant (the “Consultant”) (this 
“Agreement”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the County desires to obtain professional architectural and engineering services from 
a firm to serve as the Independent Representative/Compliance Architect (“IR/CA”) for the design-
build development of a New Travis County Civil and Family Court House and Parking Facility on the 
site situated at 3rd and Guadalupe Streets in Austin, Texas (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Consultant has the professional ability and expertise to fulfill the requirements of 
the Project, and to counsel the County in the selection and analysis of cost-effective alternatives; 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement is exempted from the bidding requirements of the County Purchasing 
Act pursuant to Section 262.024(a) (4) of the Local Government Code as this is a contract for 
professional services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, 
the amount and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the County and the Consultant agree as 
follows: 
 

SECTION 1 
DEFINITIONS 

 
Advisors – Travis County Bond Counsel (Bracewell & Giuliani engaged under separate contract), 
County Financial Advisor (D. Ladd Pattillo & Associates, Inc. engaged under separate contract), 
Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor as appointed by the District Judges, Travis 
County Facilities Management Department, Travis County Information and Telecommunication 
Systems Department and any other individuals designated by County to provide advisory services 
in support of the Project. 
 
CFCH Project - The new Travis County Civil and Family Court House (“CFCH”), including secured 
judicial parking and any commercial facilities within the CFCH included at the direction of the 
Commissioners Court, swing space for other County functions. 
 
Parking Facilities Project – The employee and public parking structure situated on the site at 3rd 
and Guadalupe Streets in Austin, Texas that will support the CFCH.  
 
Consultant – The Consultant means the Independent Representative/Compliance Architect, the 
architect or engineer selected by County independent of the design-build firm who acts as 
County’s representative for the duration of the Project, in accordance with the requirements of 
Subchapter G, Chapter 2269, Tex. Gov’t Code. The terms “Independent Representative” and 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

4 

“Compliance Architect” are used interchangeably in this Agreement. 
 
County – Travis County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. County may also be referred 
to in this Agreement as “Owner.”  
 
County Project Manager – Belinda Powell, Strategic Planning Manager, Travis County Planning & 
Budget Office, or her successor as designated by the Project Executives. 
 
Court – Travis County Commissioners Court. 
 
Design-Build Team – A sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity or team 
that includes an architect or engineer and a construction contractor and that satisfies the 
requirements of Subchapter G, Chapter 2269, Tex. Gov’t Code. 

Design Criteria Package – Project information that will be included in the request for qualifications 
(“RFQ”) to be issued by County as part of the design-build project delivery method. The Design 
Criteria Package must include a set of documents that provides sufficient information, including 
criteria for selection, to permit a design-build firm to prepare a response to the RFQ and to 
provide any additional information requested. At a minimum, the Design Criteria Package must 
satisfy the requirements set forth in Subchapter G, Chapter 2269, Tex. Gov’t Code. The Design 
Criteria Package must specify criteria the governmental entity considers necessary to describe the 
Project and may include, as appropriate, the legal description of the site, survey information 
concerning the site, interior space requirements, special material requirements, material quality 
standards, conceptual criteria for the Project, special equipment requirements, cost or budget 
estimates, time schedules, quality assurance and quality control requirements, site development 
requirements, applicable codes and ordinances, provisions for utilities, parking requirements, and 
any other requirement. 

Facilities Management Department Director – Roger A. El Khoury, M.S, P.E., or his successor, as 
appointed by the County Executive of the Travis County Planning & Budget Office.   
 
Independent Representative / Compliance Architect – The Consultant, the architect or engineer 
selected by County independent of the design-build firm who acts as County’s representative for 
the duration of the Project, in accordance with the requirements of Subchapter G, Chapter 2269, 
Tex. Gov’t Code. The terms “Independent Representative” and “Compliance Architect” are used 
interchangeably in this Agreement. 

  
 Key Personnel – Those individuals designated by the Consultant who will manage the Project in 

accordance with the Organizational Chart attached to this PSA as Appendix B and made a part of 
this Agreement. 
 
Program Manager – URS Corporation, a Nevada corporation authorized to do and doing business 
in the State of Texas.  The project manager for URS Corporation is George A. Tapas, P.E., S.E., 
Vice President National Practice Manager Alternative Finance and Procurement & Public – Private 
– Partnerships, or his successor if granted County’s written consent.   
 
Project Executive(s) – County Executive of the Travis County Planning & Budget Office as 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

5 

designated by the Commissioners Court; and Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Travis County 
Justice & Public Safety, or his successor as appointed by the Commissioners Court. 
 
Purchasing Agent – Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Travis County Purchasing Agent, or her 
successor. 
 
Work Product –  Any reports, plans, specifications, studies, analyses, supporting documentation, 
and other information (including notes, drawings, diagrams, photographs, videotapes, draft 
appraisal reports, derived electronic data and/or files, and other materials of any kind) created, 
obtained, or assembled in connection with performance of this Agreement and with the services 
rendered in connection with the Project, including all deliverables for the Project as described in 
Appendix A, Scope of Services. 
 

SECTION 2 
EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT 

 
2.1 The County has engaged and designated a primary Project representative to act on behalf of 

County with respect to the work to be performed under this Agreement (the “Program 
Manager”). The Program Manager shall act on behalf of the County with respect to any and all 
services to be performed under this Agreement.  The Program Manager shall have complete 
authority to interpret and define the County’s policies and decisions with respect to the 
Consultant’s services. The Program Manager will supervise the performance of Consultant’s 
services under this Agreement. Consultant must cooperate fully with the Program Manager 
and County Project Manager in the performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant 
acknowledges and agrees that the Program Manager has authority to manage and resolve 
issues that arise between Consultant and third-party consultants and contractors engaged in 
connection with the Project.  

2.2 County is contracting with Consultant as an independent contractor. Consultant shall perform 
professional architectural/engineering services as described in this Agreement.  If any dispute 
arises under this Agreement, Consultant and the Program Manager, in coordination with the 
County Project Manager, specifically agree to make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute 
directly between them. If they are unable to resolve the matter to Consultant’s satisfaction, 
Consultant may appeal the dispute by following the procedures described in Paragraph 12.9 of 
this Agreement.  

2.3   County will provide Consultant convenient access to all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, 
field notes, statistics, computations, and other data in its possession relating to existing 
facilities and to the Project.  Consultant shall make copies of needed information and promptly 
return all originals.  Consultant shall return his copies of this material to County upon 
completion of the Project, if the Program Manager, in coordination with the County Project 
Manager, instructs the Consultant to do so. 

 
2.4  County cannot and does not warrant or guarantee the accuracy of all information that it 

provides to Consultant.  Consultant may rely on professional sealed documents to the extent 
that the original professional would have been held liable for the information contained in 
those documents, in accordance with industry standard practice.  Information provided in 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

6 

record or as-built documents that is critical to the current design work should be field-verified 
by Consultant in accordance with his professional judgment.  Consultant may rely on other 
Project information provided by County, such as program data or design criteria, in accordance 
with industry standards, unless this Agreement provides otherwise. 

 
2.5 If the Program Manager or County Project Manager observes or otherwise becomes aware of 

any fault or defect in the Work Product, as defined in Section 8, the Program Manager, will 
give prompt written notice of the fault or defect to Consultant.  Consultant shall correct any 
such fault or defect at no cost to County. 

 
2.6 The Travis County Commissioners Court orders this Agreement for professional 

engineering/architectural services exempt from the County Purchasing Act pursuant to Texas 
Local Government Code § 262.024(4) as an item for procurement of professional services. 

 
2.7 Project Management; Key Personnel.  Consultant shall provide management for the Project in 

accordance with the Organizational Chart set forth as Appendix B, attached hereto and made 
a part hereof. Personnel included in the Organizational Chart shall be considered “Key 
Personnel” for purposes of this Project.  Except in the event that the Key Personnel individual 
is no longer employed by (or otherwise under the direction and control of) Consultant, none of 
the Key Personnel may be withdrawn from the Project without County’s prior written approval; 
provided, however, Consultant shall have the right to change Key Personnel if Consultant 
complies with the following conditions: (1) Consultant provides County with at least fifteen 
(15) business days prior written notice that Consultant intends to replace a Key Personnel 
individual; (2) the notice is accompanied by a copy of the resume of any proposed 
replacement Key Personnel, together with documentation demonstrating that the proposed 
replacement has equal or greater experience and qualifications than the original Key Personnel 
individual; and (3) Consultant permits County to interview the proposed replacement Key 
Personnel individual for the purpose of satisfying itself that the proposed replacement is 
acceptable. County will notify Consultant within seven (7) days of conducting the interview of 
any objection to the proposed replacement, and will either request additional assurances 
regarding the proposed replacement or require Consultant to submit the name and 
qualifications of another replacement Key Personnel individual. Such process will continue until 
Consultant proposes a replacement Key Personnel individual acceptable to County. County 
agrees not to unreasonably withhold such acceptance.  In the event a Key Personnel individual 
leaves the employment of Consultant unexpectedly and without advance notice, Consultant 
will immediately notify County upon learning of the departure and will comply with the 
requirements of this section.  
 

SECTION 3 
BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT 

 
3.1 Consultant shall be responsible for the complete design and documentation of the work 

described or referenced in this Agreement, and shall prepare the Work Product which must be 
acceptable to the Program Manager and County Project Manager.  Consultant shall also serve 
as County’s professional Consultant during the Project phases to which this Agreement applies, 
and shall consult with and give advice to County during the performance of the Project. 

 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

7 

3.2 Consultant shall perform the “Basic Services,” which means: 
 

3.2.1 all elements of labor, materials and equipment required for the Project, which must be 
rendered to the satisfaction of the Program Manager, County Project Manager and the 
Commissioners Court and in accordance with the requirements, policies, and standard 
practices of Travis County; 
 

3.2.2 the detailed Scope of Services for the Project as specified in Appendix A, attached to 
and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes (the “Scope of Services”); 

 
3.2.3 all requirements stated in the Qualifications Statement submitted by the Consultant in 

response to RFQ#Q1309-006-JT, attached hereto as Appendix C and made a part 
hereof; 

 
3.2.4 the Work Product, as defined herein, which the Consultant shall submit to the County 

for review at regular intervals, as specified in the Project Schedule. 
 
3.3 The Consultant shall use all applicable codes in performing the Basic Services for the Project. 

The standards, codes, specifications, or other technical, design or professional requirements 
applying to this project shall be the latest edition in effect, in accordance with the Authority 
Having Jurisdiction (AHJ), on the date on which this PSA is executed, unless the Consultant 
and the County expressly agree otherwise.  The applicable codes for this project include but 
are not limited to the following, subject to the provisions for each as adopted by the AHJ: 
 

a. International Building Code with City of Austin amendments 
b. International Fire Code with City of Austin amendments 
c. Uniform Plumbing Code with City of Austin amendments 
d. Uniform Mechanical Code with City of Austin amendments 
e. International Energy Code with City of Austin amendments 
f. National Electrical Code with City of Austin amendments 
g. Texas Accessibility Standards 

 
SECTION 4 

CONSTRUCTION COST 
 

4.1 The construction cost is the total cost to the County of all elements of the Project designed or 
specified by the Consultant (the “Construction Cost”). 

 
4.2 The Construction Cost includes the cost at current market rates, including a reasonable 

allowance for overhead and profit, (i) of labor and materials and any equipment which has 
been designed, specified, selected, or specially provided for by the Consultant and (ii) of 
permitting fees and other fees and charges required by the City of Austin or other 
governmental authorities.  The Construction Cost does not include the compensation of the 
Consultant and other consultants. 

 
4.3 Detailed estimates of the CFCH Project and Parking Facilities Project costs prepared by 

Consultant represent Consultant’s best judgment as professionals familiar with the 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

8 

construction industry.  It is recognized, however, that neither Consultant nor County has 
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Design-Build Team’s 
methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding, market, or negotiating 
conditions.  
 
4.3.1 If the budget or fixed limit of Construction Cost of the CFCH Project and Parking 
Facilities Project are exceeded by the Design-Build Team, County may: 

(1) approve, in writing, an increase to the budget or fixed limit of the CFCH Project 
 and Parking Facilities Project; 
(2) revise the scope of the CFCH Project and Parking Facilities Project to reduce the 
 Construction Cost; 
(3)  require additional value engineering to reduce the Construction Cost; and/or  
(4)  terminate this Agreement.  

 
             4.3.2  Provided the budget or fixed limit of Construction Cost is exceeded as a result of 

Consultant’s failure to perform its services related to budget and construction cost estimating 
in accordance with the standard of care governing Consultant, and not due to forces beyond 
the control of Consultant, and County chooses to proceed under clause 4.3.1(2) and/or (3) 
above, Consultant, without additional compensation shall modify the documents that 
Consultant is responsible for preparing under the Basic Services portion of this Agreement in 
order to comply with the fixed limit. 

 
4.4 The Consultant may include contingencies, coordinated with the Program Manager, for 

design, bidding, and price escalation to determine what materials, equipment, component 
systems, and types of construction are to be included in the Work Product (as defined in 
Section 8), and may include in the Work Product alternate bids coordinated with and agreed 
to by the Program Manager to adjust the Construction Cost to the fixed limit.  

 
SECTION 5 

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 
5.1 In consideration of the Consultant’s performance of the Basic Services, the Consultant shall 

receive the Basic Services compensation described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and made a 
part hereof.  The Basic Services compensation shall be paid in accordance with the payment 
schedule set forth in Exhibit 1.  

 
5.2 For the performance of services not specifically described in the Basic Services (the 

“Additional Services”), the Consultant shall receive the Additional Services compensation 
described in Exhibit 1. 

 
5.3 The Program Manager will have authority to classify Consultant’s services as “Basic” or 

“Additional” services under this Agreement.  The Program Manager may make this 
classification in consultation with the County Project Manager and County Executives.  In the 
event Consultant disagrees with the classification designated by the Program Manager and, if 
applicable, the County Project Manager and/or County Executives, and those individuals are 
unable to resolve the disagreement directly, Consultant may defer the dispute to the 
Purchasing Agent, who will follow the procedures described in Paragraph 12.9. 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

9 

  
SECTION 6 

PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
6.1 The Consultant shall perform the professional services described herein, whether “Basic” or 

“Additional” services, in accordance with the Project Schedule.  Any such modification shall 
include an update to the Project. 

 
6.2 This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date, as defined herein, and shall 

remain in full force and effect for the period required for the complete design of, construction 
contract award for, and construction of the Project, including warranty periods and any 
extensions of time as provided herein (the “Project Completion Date”), unless sooner 
terminated as provided for herein.  

 
6.3 If the performance by Consultant or County of either Party’s obligations under this Agreement 

is interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not occasioned by its own conduct, whether such 
occurrence be an act of God or the result of war, riot, civil commotion, sovereign conduct, or 
the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party to this Agreement, then that Party will 
be excused from such performance for a period of time that is reasonably necessary after such 
occurrence to remedy the effects of the occurrence.  Upon the discovery of such an event, the 
Party whose performance is affected under this section shall notify the other Party, and the 
County Project Manager will call a special meeting to propose a program for resolution of the 
problem, and if necessary, to establish an estimated period of time of suspension or extension 
of the Project Completion Date.  If Consultant makes a written request for an extension of 
time, the Program Manager may grant the extension if the request is properly documented 
and justified by the circumstances. 

SECTION 7 
COORDINATION WITH COUNTY 

 
7.1 The Travis County Purchasing Agent (the “Purchasing Agent”) acts as County’s overall contract 

administrator. The Purchasing Agent may designate representatives to transmit and receive 
information. Consultant shall not commence work until the Program Manager, in coordination 
with the County Project Manager, has thoroughly briefed Consultant on the scope of the 
Project.  Consultant shall not commence work on the Project until receipt of a written notice to 
proceed issued by the Purchasing Agent upon the recommendation of the Program Manager 
(the “Notice to Proceed”).  Consultant shall not commence work on any subsequent phase of 
the Project, as such phases are described in the Scope of Services, until receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed, which will be issued by the Purchasing Agent.  

 
7.2 The Consultant shall familiarize himself adequately with the existing conditions at the project 

site. To the extent that the Consultant’s design work relates to, connects with, or is dependent 
upon an existing building or other structure, the Consultant shall familiarize himself with the 
existing built conditions to the extent necessary to produce a complete and accurate Work 
Product. If as-built documentation is available and provided to the Consultant, the Consultant 
shall not rely solely on the as-built documentation, but shall exercise professional due diligence 
in confirming critical dimensions and as-built conditions through actual on-site measurements 
or other reasonable means as required to produce a complete and accurate Work Product. 

 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

10 

7.3 At the beginning of each Project phase, and before written authorization to proceed with that 
phase is issued, Consultant shall submit to the Program Manager and County Project Manager 
the Project Schedule, as updated and adjusted as required for each phase.  In addition, 
Consultant shall make monthly progress reports with comparisons to the Project Schedule. 

 
7.4 In addition to Consultant’s obligations described in the Scope of Services pertaining to 

meetings, at intervals not to exceed thirty (30) days, Consultant shall arrange for and attend 
progress meetings with County representatives and, as applicable, representatives of any 
other governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project, to explain and receive 
feedback on the work-in-progress. 

 
7.5 Consultant shall furnish all available data and reasonable assistance necessary to comply with 

established application, review, and approval processes for any permits, grants, or planning 
advances required for the Project.  Consultant shall familiarize himself, and comply, with 
established application, review, and approval processes as necessary to ensure that 
reasonable compliance will cause no delay to the Project Schedule.   

 
7.6 For the duration of the Agreement term, Consultant shall be responsible for advising County 

whether in Consultant’s judgment it is feasible to proceed with the Project given any 
constraints affecting the Project. 

 
7.7 Consultant shall cooperate and coordinate with County’s staff and other Consultants and 

contractors as reasonable and necessary in performance of this Agreement and as required by 
the County Executives, the County Project Manager, the Program Manager and the Purchasing 
Agent, provided Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the County’s 
staff and other Consultants and contractors for whom Consultant is not legally responsible.   

   
SECTION 8 

WORK PRODUCT 
 
8.1 The term “Work Product” means any reports, drawings, plans, specifications and any other 

documents created, obtained or assembled in connection with performance of this 
Agreement and with the services rendered in connection with the Project, including but not 
limited to any and all deliverables for each phase of the Project as described in the Scope of 
Services. 

 
8.2 Consultant shall submit the Work Product for each phase of the Project on or before the 

dates specified in the Project Schedule. Upon receipt of the Work Product, County will check 
the submission for completion.  A “Complete” submission means that all items listed, 
referenced and otherwise described in this Agreement relating to that phase of the Project 
have been included. 

 
8.3 If the submission is Complete, County will notify Consultant and County’s Technical Review 

Process, as defined in this Section, will begin.  If the submission is incomplete, County will 
notify Consultant, who shall perform any professional services that are required to complete 
the Work Product for that phase. Consultant shall then resubmit the Work Product to County. 

 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

11 

8.4 County’s “Technical Review Process” means County’s review of the Complete Work Product for 
substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements included in the Basic 
Services.  If necessary, County will return the Complete Work Product to Consultant, who shall 
perform any professional services required for such compliance and resubmit the Complete 
Work Product to County. 

 
8.5 The process described in paragraph 8.3 and 8.4 will be repeated until the Work Product is 

accepted by County. “Acceptance” means that in the County Project Manager’s opinion, 
substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements has been achieved. 

 
8.6 After Acceptance, Consultant shall perform any required modifications, corrections, redesigns, 

and additional work as requested by County and any other governmental entities having 
jurisdiction over the Project and as necessary to receive final approval by the Program 
Manager, in coordination with the County Project Manager. “Approval” means formal written 
recognition by County that the Work Product for that phase is Complete and that compliance 
with the technical specifications and requirements has been fully achieved. 

 
8.7 The Program Manager, in coordination with the County Project Manager, will have authority to 

classify Consultant’s services as “Complete”, “Accepted”, or “Approved” under this Agreement. 
The Program Manager may make this classification in consultation with the County Project 
Manager and County Executives. In the event Consultant disagrees with the classification 
designated by the Program Manager (and, if applicable, the County Project Manager and 
County Executives), and those individuals are unable to resolve the disagreement directly, 
Consultant may refer the dispute to the Purchasing Agent, who will follow the procedures 
described in Paragraph 12.9.  

 
 

SECTION 9 
REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT 

 
9.1 After Approval by County of the Work Product for each Project phase, the Consultant shall, 

without additional compensation, perform any professional services required as a result of the 
Consultant’s development of the Work Product which are found to be in error or omission.  In 
addition, if it is necessary to revise the Work Product in order to make the Project 
Constructible, the Consultant shall do so without additional compensation.  However, after 
Approval by County, any revisions, additions, or other modifications made at the County’s 
request for the convenience of County, which involve extra services and expenses to the 
Consultant, shall entitle the Consultant to additional compensation for such extra services and 
expenses and shall be paid as Additional Services in accordance with Exhibits 1 and 2. Written 
authorization for Additional Services must be obtained in advance in accordance with Exhibit 1. 

 
SECTION 10 
RESERVED  

 
 
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

12 

SECTION 11 
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
11.1 SUSPENSION.  County may suspend performance of this Agreement at any time for any 

reason without terminating this Agreement by giving Consultant written Notice of Suspension 
(a “Notice of Suspension”).  The “Effective Date of Suspension” will be the date on which 
Consultant receives the Notice of Suspension, and the Suspension Period will begin on this 
date.  Performance may be reinstated and this Agreement resumed in full force and effect 
within sixty (60) days of Consultant’s receipt Consultant of written notice of reinstatement 
from County. Upon the Effective Date of Suspension, Consultant shall follow the procedures 
described below: 

 
11.1.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Suspension, Consultant shall, unless the Notice otherwise 

directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in connection with 
the performance of this Agreement and shall prepare a statement detailing the services 
performed under this Agreement prior to the Effective Date of Suspension. Consultant 
shall prepare copies of all completed or partially completed designs, plans, and 
specifications prepared under this Agreement prior to the Effective Date of Suspension, 
including but not limited to the Work Product, for possible delivery to County upon 
County’s request. 

 
11.1.2 During the Suspension Period, Consultant may submit the above-referenced statement 

to County for payment of the approved services actually performed under this 
Agreement, less previous payments. 

 
11.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.  County reserves the right to terminate this Agreement 

for reasons other than default by Consultant, including for any reason deemed by 
Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from any governmental law, 
ordinance, regulation, or court order, by delivering to Consultant a written notice (a “Notice of 
Termination for Convenience”), which will take effect on the tenth day following receipt by 
Consultant (“Termination for Convenience”). In the event of Termination for Convenience, 
County and its officials, agents and representatives will not be liable for loss of any profits.  

  
11.2.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination for Convenience and prior to the effective date 

of termination, Consultant shall, unless the Notice of Termination for Convenience 
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall proceed to promptly 
cancel all existing orders and contracts insofar as such orders and contracts are 
chargeable to this Agreement.  Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a Notice of 
Termination for Convenience, Consultant shall submit a statement showing in detail the 
services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
11.2.2 Consultant shall deliver to County copies of all completed or partially completed 

designs, plans, specifications and other Work Product prepared under this Agreement 
prior to the effective date of termination as a precondition to any final payment due 
under this Agreement.  

 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

13 

11.2.3 Upon satisfaction of the above conditions, County will pay Consultant for approved 
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous 
payments. 

 
11.2.4 Consultant’s failure to submit the required statement described in paragraph 11.2.1 and 

to comply with the above stated conditions will constitute a waiver by Consultant of any 
and all rights or claims to collect the fee to which Consultant may rightfully be entitled 
for services performed under this Agreement. 

 
11.3 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement for the failure of 

the other Party to perform any provisions of this Agreement, through no fault of the 
terminating Party (“Termination for Default”) by delivering written notice of termination (a 
“Notice of Termination for Default”) to the defaulting Party.  The Notice of Termination for 
Default shall take effect on the tenth day following receipt by the defaulting Party. In the 
event of Termination for Default, County and its officials, agents and representatives will not 
be liable for loss of any profits.  
 
Termination by Consultant: 

 
11.3.1 In the event Consultant exercises its right to terminate for default by County, within 

thirty (30) days after receipt by County of Consultant’s Notice of Termination for 
Default, Consultant shall submit a statement detailing the services performed under 
this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
11.3.2 Consultant shall deliver to County copies of all completed or partially completed 

designs, plans, specifications and other Work Product prepared under this Agreement 
prior to the effective date of termination as a precondition to any final payment due 
under this Agreement.  

 
11.3.3 Upon satisfaction of the above conditions, County will pay Consultant for approved 

services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous 
payments. 

 
11.3.4 Consultant’s failure to submit the required statement described in paragraph 11.3.1 

and to comply with the above stated conditions will constitute a waiver by Consultant 
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee to which Consultant may rightfully be 
entitled for services performed under this Agreement. 

 
Termination by County: 
 
11.3.5 Upon receipt by Consultant of a Notice of Termination for Default and prior to the 

effective date of termination, Consultant shall, unless the Notice of Termination 
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall proceed to promptly 
cancel all existing orders and contracts insofar as such orders and contracts are 
chargeable to this Agreement.  Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a Notice of 
Termination for Default, Consultant shall submit a statement showing in detail the 
services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

14 

11.3.6 Consultant shall deliver to County copies of all completed or partially completed 
designs, plans, specifications and other Work Product prepared under this Agreement 
prior to the effective date of termination as a precondition to any final payment due 
under this Agreement.  

 
11.3.7 Upon satisfaction of the above conditions, County will pay Consultant for approved 

services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous 
payments. 

 
11.3.8 Consultant’s failure to submit the required statement described in paragraph 11.3.5 

and to comply with the above stated conditions will constitute a waiver by Consultant 
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee to which Consultant may rightfully be 
entitled for services performed under this Agreement. 

 
11.4 All references to time in this Agreement will be measured in calendar days unless otherwise 

specified. 
 

SECTION 12 
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY 

 
12.1 Consultant covenants to undertake no task for which a professional license or certificate is 

required unless Consultant or someone under Consultant’s direction is appropriately licensed. 
In the event such licensed individual’s license expires, is revoked, or is canceled, Consultant 
shall inform County of such event within five (5) working days. 

 
12.2 Consultant shall be responsible for conformance with applicable federal and state laws, County 

permitting requirements, and city ordinances currently in effect. 
 
12.3 Acceptance and Approval of the Work Product by County will not release Consultant of any 

responsibility or liability for the accuracy and competency of Consultant’s designs, working 
drawings, specifications, or other documents or work performed under this Agreement. Neither 
Acceptance nor Approval by County will be an assumption of responsibility or liability by 
County for any defect, error, or omission in the designs, working drawings, specifications, or 
other documents prepared by Consultant. 

 
12.4 Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Consultant shall perform all 

services and responsibilities required of Consultant under this Agreement using at least that 
standard of care that a reasonably prudent Consultant in Travis County, Texas, would use in 
similar circumstances (“Standard of Care”).  Consultant shall perform the duties set forth in 
this Agreement in a professional manner and nothing in this Agreement will be construed to 
relieve Consultant of this duty.  

 
12.5 Upon County’s request, Consultant shall immediately remove from association with the Project 

any employee of Consultant who, in the opinion of County, is incompetent or whose conduct 
becomes detrimental to the work or coordination with County. 

 
12.6 Consultant shall place his Texas Professional Consultant’s seal of endorsement on all 

documents architectural data, and engineering data furnished to County, as required by law. 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

15 

12.7 Consultant is an independent contractor under this Agreement.  Neither Consultant nor any 
officer, agent, servant, or employee of Consultant will be classified as an employee or servant 
of County. 

 
12.8 INDEMNIFICATION.  CONSULTANT AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 

HARMLESS COUNTY AND ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, ACTIONS, SUITS, AND LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, 
WHETHER MERITORIOUS OR NOT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL EXPENSES OF 
LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND REASONABLE ATTORNEY’S FEES FOR INJURY TO OR 
DEATH OF ANY PERSON, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY ARISING IN WHOLE OR IN 
PART FROM ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, NEGLIGENT ERROR, OR NEGLIGENT OMISSION OF 
CONSULTANT OR ANY OF CONSULTANT’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, OR 
SUBCONTRACTORS ON ACCOUNT OF, ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM, DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY, THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.  

 
12.8.1 If any person, firm, corporation or other entity makes or brings any claim, or other 

action, against Consultant that relates to Consultant’s performance under this 
Agreement, including proceedings before an administrative agency, Consultant shall 
give written notice to County of the following information: 

 
(i) the existence of the claim, or other action, within ten (10) working days after 

being notified of it; 
 
(ii) the name and address of the person, firm, corporation, or other entity that made 

a claim, or that instituted any type of action or proceeding; 
 
(iii) the alleged basis of the claim, action or proceeding; 
 
(iv) the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding 

was instituted; and 
 
(v) the name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made. 
 

12.8.2 Except as otherwise directed, Consultant shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent 
papers received by Consultant with respect to these claims or actions and all court 
pleadings related to the defense of these claims or actions. 

 
12.9 DISPUTES AND APPEALS.  The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the 

issuance and administration of this Agreement in relation to disputes.  Any document, notice, 
or correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent in relation to disputes is void 
unless otherwise stated in this Agreement.  If the Consultant does not agree with any 
document, notice, or correspondence issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized 
County person, the Consultant must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten 
calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or correspondence outlining the exact 
point of disagreement in detail.  If the matter is not resolved to the Consultant’s satisfaction, 
the Consultant may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court, through the 
Purchasing Agent if the Notice is submitted within ten calendar days after receipt of the 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

16 

unsatisfactory reply.  The Consultant then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court.   
After the foregoing internal County remedies have been exhausted, Consultant, as a 
professional architectural/engineering firm entering into this Agreement with Travis County, 
has the right to exercise available legal remedies set forth in Section 262.007 of the Texas 
Local Government Code. 

 
SECTION 13 

OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 
13.1 Consultant shall furnish County with Work Product as requested, whether or not it is complete at 

the end of the Project, or upon suspension or termination of this Agreement, as provided in this 
Agreement. Consultant may retain copies of the Work Product for Consultant’s records. 

 
13.2 The Work Product, and any other documents, including estimates, computer files, graphics, 

calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, field notes, and data prepared by Consultant in 
performance of this Agreement, together with all intellectual property and proprietary rights in 
and to all such documents, will upon creation become the sole and exclusive property of 
County. Upon completion of the Project, Consultant shall deliver all such documents to County 
in an organized fashion. Consultant may retain a copy.  

 
13.3 Any reuse by Consultant of any such documents described in paragraphs 13.1 and 13.2 

without the specific and prior written consent of County will be at Consultant’s sole risk and 
without liability or legal exposure to County.   

 
13.4 Consultant will not be responsible for any use or any modifications to the documents described 

in paragraphs 13.1 and 13.2 made by any other entity, unless Consultant has given his specific 
written consent. 

 
SECTION 14 

MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 
14.1 Consultant agrees to maintain appropriate accounting records of costs, expenses, and payrolls 

of employees working on the Project, together with documentation of evaluations and study 
results for a period of five years after final payment for completed services and all other 
pending matters concerning this Agreement have been closed. 

 
14.2 Consultant further agrees that County and its duly authorized representatives will have access 

to any and all books, documents, papers and records of Consultant that are directly pertinent 
to the services performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. 

  
SECTION 15 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
15.1 VENUE.  This Agreement is governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of 

the United States of America and the State of Texas, and all obligations under this Agreement 
are performable in Travis County, Texas.  Venue for any dispute arising out of this Agreement 
will lie in the appropriate court of Travis County, Texas. 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

17 

15.2 SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction rules any portion or portions of this 
Agreement invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the remainder of it shall remain 
valid and binding. 

 
15.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT. Consultant agrees, during the performance of the 

services under this Agreement, to comply with the equal opportunity in employment provisions 
cited in Exhibit 4. 

 
15.4 CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT. Consultant certifies that neither Consultant nor any 

members of Consultant’s firm has: 
 

15.4.1 Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee, or 
other consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant) to solicit or secure the services provided by this Agreement. 

 
15.4.2 Agreed, as an expressed or implied condition for obtaining this Agreement, to employ 

or retain the services of any firm or person other than in connection with carrying out 
the services to be performed under this Agreement. 

 
15.4.3 Paid or agreed to pay to any firm, organization, or person (other than bona fide 

employees working solely for Consultant) any fee, contribution, donation, or 
consideration of any kind for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the 
services provided under this Agreement. 

 
Consultant agrees that County may furnish this certification to any local, state or 
federal governmental agencies in connection with this Agreement and with those 
portions of the Project involving participation of agency grant funds. Consultant 
agrees that this certification is subject to all applicable state and federal, criminal 
and civil laws. 

 
15.5 NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by one Party to 

the other must be in writing. The notice will be given and deemed to have been given 
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the Party to 
whom the notice is given. The notice will be given and deemed to have been given on the 
third day following mailing if placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered 
or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth 
in this section. 

 
The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is specifically 
directed otherwise, is: 

 
 County: Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or successor) 
  Travis County Purchasing Agent 

      P.O. Box 1748 
  Austin. Texas. 78767 
 
with copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

18 

Travis County Project Manager 
Belinda Powell (or her successor) 
Strategic Planning Manager 
Travis County Planning & Budget Office 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
The address of Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is 
specifically directed otherwise, is: 

 
   Hellmuth, Obata and Kassabaum, LP 
   2711 North Haskell Avenue 
   Ste. 2250, LB 26 
   Dallas, Texas 75204  

 
15.6 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  Consultant agrees during the performance of the services 

under this Agreement to comply with the insurance requirements specified in Exhibit 5. 
 
15.7 FORFEITURE OF AGREEMENT.  Consultant shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and 

County will retain all performance by Consultant and recover all consideration, or the value of 
all consideration, paid to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement if: 

 
(i) Consultant was doing business at the time of submitting its Qualifications Statement or 

had done business during the 365-day period immediately prior to the date on which its 
Qualifications Statement was due with one or more Key Contracting Persons; or 

 
(ii) Consultant does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on which the 

Qualifications Statement that resulted in this Agreement and prior to full performance of 
this Agreement. 

 
 15.7.1 “Was doing business” and “has done business” mean: 
 

(a) Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money valuable thing which is worth 
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase 
of any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or 
equitable; or 

 
(b) Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the 
aggregate in a calendar year; 

 
  but does not include: 
 

(c) any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 
posted, published, or marked price available to the general public; 

 
(d) any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, family, 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

19 

or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly 
situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Consultant in the ordinary 
course of its business; or 

(e) a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 
Consultant if Consultant is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, 
employee or other representative of Consultant who does not know and is not in a 
position that he or she should have known about this Agreement. 

 
15.7.2    “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in listed in Attachment 1 

to Exhibit 6. 
 
15.8 PURCHASE ORDER.  Consultant and its contractors, subcontractors and vendors shall provide 

goods and services using the purchase order method.  The designated representative of the 
Travis County Purchasing Office will assign a purchase order number.  Consultant and its 
contractors, subcontractors and vendors shall reference the Agreement number and the 
purchase order number on all invoices to the County Project Manager.  The terms and 
conditions contained elsewhere in this Agreement will prevail over different or contrary terms 
in any purchase order.  All invoices submitted by Consultant and its contractors, 
subcontractors, and vendors must reference the purchase order number on the invoice.  
County will not pay invoices that are in excess of the amount authorized by the purchase 
order. 

 
15.9 PAYMENTS.  County will make payment by check or warrant upon satisfactory delivery and 

acceptance of items and submission of a correct and complete invoice to the address below for 
orders placed by the Purchasing Agent, as indicated on Purchase Orders. 

 
Travis County Project Manager 
Belinda Powell (or her successor) 
Strategic Planning Manager 
Travis County Planning & Budget Office 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
In order to be considered “correct and complete,” an invoice must include at least the 
following information: 
15.9.1  name, address, and telephone number of Consultant and similar information in the 

event payment is to be made to a different address; 
15.9.2 County Agreement, Purchase Order, or Delivery Order number;  
15.9.3 identification of items or services as outlined in the Agreement; 
15.9.4 quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount, and 
15.9.5 any additional payment information that may be called for by this Agreement. 
 
Consultant shall also submit a statement with each invoice showing the percentage completion 
of the work to date, as well as any additional written information requested by County to 
document the progress of the work. 
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

20 

15.10 DISBURSEMENTS TO PERSONS WITH OUTSTANDING DEBTS PROHIBITED.  In accordance 
with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if notice of indebtedness has been filed 
with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the indebtedness of Consultant to the 
State, County or a salary fund, a warrant may not be drawn on a County fund in favor of 
Consultant, or an agent or assignee of Consultant until: 

                        
15.10.1 the County Treasurer notifies Consultant in writing that the debt is outstanding; and 
 
15.10.2  the debt is paid. 
 
15.10.3 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written 

agreements with County. 
 
15.10.4  County may apply any funds County owes Consultant to the outstanding balance of 

debt for which notice is made under section 15.10 above, if the notice includes a 
statement that the amount owed by County to Consultant may be applied to reduce the 
outstanding debt. 

 
15.11 INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS.  Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code will 

govern accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments. 
 
15.12 PROPERTY TAXES.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if Consultant 

is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of providing the services rendered 
under this Agreement, Consultant assigns any payments to be made for services rendered 
hereunder to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the delinquent 
taxes. 

 
15.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION.  Consultant shall provide County with an Internal Revenue Form 

W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of 
entity status in a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any funds are payable under 
this Agreement. 

 
15.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  This Agreement will be binding on and inure to the benefit of 

County and Consultant and their respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. 
Neither County nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in or obligations 
under this Agreement without the written consent of the other party.  IT IS EXPRESSLY 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED THAT NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO 
ASSIGN THIS AGREEMENT EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE 
GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

 
15.15 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB) PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. 
 

15.15.1 HUB Program Requirements 
 
15.15.1.1   In consideration of award of this Agreement to the CONSULTANT, the 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

21 

CONSULTANT agrees to maintain a subconsultant relationship with any HUB 
Subconsultants identified on the HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) 
SUBCONTRACTING DECLARATION Form provided with the CONSULTANT’s Qualifications 
Statement and attached hereto as Exhibit 7 and made a part hereof. The CONSULTANT will 
make good faith efforts to meet or exceed the HUB participation goals in the Professional 
Services category for an overall 15.8% for Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (MBE) and 
an Overall 15.8% for Woman-Owned Business Enterprises (WBE)  (Sub-goals:  1.9% 
African-American, 9.0% Hispanic-American, 4.9% Native/Asian-American). For purposes of 
this Agreement, all references to “HUB” shall mean “certified HUB.” To be considered as a 
“certified HUB,” the subcontractor must have been certified by, and hold a current and 
valid certification with, any of the following three agencies: (1) The State of Texas; (2) the 
City of Austin; or (3) the Texas Unified Certification Program.  
 
15.15.1.2   The Travis County Purchasing Office implemented an electronic reporting 
system (Vendor Tracking System) to eliminate standard forms, and streamline the current 
manual process of tracking payments to all first-tier subcontractors/subconsultants by 
performing all such tracking procedures electronically. 
 
The selected Respondent shall be responsible for the use of the system and require all 
subcontractors/subconsultants to be responsible for system reporting. 
 
Training and additional information regarding the use of this system will be provided to the 
Respondent by Travis County Purchasing Office HUB staff after contract award but prior to 
commencement of contract performance. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this system or difficulty in locating Certified HUB 
subconsultants contact the Travis County HUB staff at (512) 854-9700 for assistance. 

 
15.16 FUNDING OUT.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if, during budget 

planning and adoption, the Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this 
Agreement for the following fiscal year of Travis County, County may terminate this 
Agreement after giving Consultant thirty (30) days written notice that this Agreement is 
terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

 
15.17 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  No payment, act, or omission by County will constitute or be 

construed as a waiver of any breach or default of Consultant that then exists or that may 
subsequently exist.  All rights of County under this Agreement are specifically reserved and 
any payment, act or omission will not impair or prejudice any remedy or title to County 
under it.  Any right or remedy in this Agreement will not preclude the exercise of any other 
right or remedy under this Agreement or under any law, except as expressly provided in 
this Agreement, nor will any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed 
a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

 
  15.18 MEDIATION.  When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising 

under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or a 
person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, for mediation as described in 
Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code.  Unless both parties are 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

22 

satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and 
binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation 
shall remain confidential as described in Section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and 
Remedies Code, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality. 

 
15.19 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT.  If a member of the Commissioners Court belongs to a 

cooperative association, County may purchase equipment or supplies from the association 
only if no member of the Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the 
purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends distributed generally to 
members of the association. 

 
15.20 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS: 

15.20.1 Consultant certifies that Consultant (i) is a duly qualified, capable and otherwise 
bondable business entity; (ii) is not in receivership and does not contemplate 
same; (iii) has not filed for bankruptcy, and is not currently delinquent with 
respect to payment of property taxes within Travis County; and (iv) is duly 
licensed in the State of Texas to perform the work described in this Agreement. 

 
15.20.2 Consultant further represents and warrants that: (i) all applicable copyrights, 

patents and licenses that may exist on materials used in this Agreement have 
been adhered to; and (ii) County will not be liable for any infringement of those 
rights and any rights granted to County will apply for the duration of this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall indemnify County and its officers, agents and 
employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes of action and liability of 
every kind, including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees, for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or 
actual infringement of existing patents, licenses of copyrights applicable to 
materials used in this Agreement. 

 
15.21 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE.  Consultant shall provide all services and activities 

required in a manner that would comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the 
Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] as if Consultant were 
an entity bound to comply with these laws.  Consultant shall not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment based on race, religion, color, sex, national origin, 
age or handicapped condition. 

 
15.22 GRATUITIES.  County may terminate this Agreement if it is found that gratuities of any 

kind, including entertainment or gifts, were offered or given by Consultant, or any agent or 
representative of Consultant, to any County official or employee with a view toward 
securing favorable treatment with respect to this Agreement.  If this Agreement is 
terminated by County pursuant to this provision, County will be entitled, in addition to any 
other rights and remedies, to recover from Consultant at least three times the cost incurred 
by Consultant in providing the gratuities. 

 
15.23 MONITORING.  County reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of 

Consultant’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement and of the adequacy and 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

23 

timeliness of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement.  After each monitoring visit, 
County will provide Consultant with a written report of the monitor’s findings.  If the report 
notes deficiencies in Consultant’s performance under the terms of this Agreement, it will 
include requirements and deadlines for the correction of those deficiencies by Consultant.  
Consultant shall take action specified in the monitoring report prior to the deadlines 
specified. 

 
15.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS.  All of the exhibits, attachments, and 

appendices referred to in this Agreement are incorporated by reference as if set forth 
verbatim in this Agreement. 

 
15.25 ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between County and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either oral or written. 

 
15.26 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT.  Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to 

the contrary, disclosure of any information obtained by County or any of its officials, 
employees, agents or representatives in connection with this Agreement will be subject to 
the provisions of the Texas Public Information Act and all legal authorities relating to that 
Act, including but not limited to opinions, decisions and letter rulings issued by the Texas 
Attorney’s General Office.  

 
15.27 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY. This provision applies if the Total Agreement Sum 

specified in Exhibit 1 exceeds $25,000.  By submitting a Qualifications Statement in 
response to RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT, Consultant certifies that at the time of submission, 
Consultant was not on the federal government’s list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred 
contractors.  If Consultant has been placed on the list between the time of submission of 
its Qualifications Statement and contract award, Consultant shall notify the Purchasing 
Agent.  If Consultant fails to do so, County may terminate this Agreement for default. 

 
15.28 AMENDMENT. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by written instrument signed by 

both Parties.  CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, 
REPRESENTATIVE OR EMPLOYEE OF TRAVIS COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO MODIFY OR AMEND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT UNLESS 
THE COMMISSIONERS COURT HAS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY.  

 
15.29 ENTITY STATUS.  By my signature below, I certify that Consultant is a Texas corporation, 

duly incorporated under Texas law and doing business in the State of Texas. 
 

15.30 LEED REQUIREMENTS.  County acknowledges and understands that LEED requirements 
are subject to interpretation, and achieving levels of compliance involves factors beyond 
the control of the Independent Representative / Compliance Architect (IR/CA) due to their 
limited role relative to the Project design and to the fact that the IR/CA will not be the 
Architect-of-Record.  In addressing LEED requirements, the Consultant shall perform its 
Services in compliance with the Standard of Care; however, the Consultant does not 
warrant or represent that a Project will actually achieve LEED certification or realize any 
particular energy savings. 





Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

25 

EXHIBIT 1 
COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

 
SECTION 1 – COMPENSATION FOR BASIC SERVICES 
1.1 Unless this Agreement has been amended or modified as provided herein, the payments for 

the tasks described below will be: 
 
Phase I – Initiation Services           $       61,930.00   

 Phase II – Project Definition Development        $  2,311,510.00  
 Phase III – Procurement Documentation Preparation and     $     300,370.00  
  Open Solicitation Period   
 Phase IV – Bid Evaluation, Selection and Negotiation Period   $     246,980.00  
 Phase V – Design, Construction and Implementation     $   TBD*    
 Total Fixed Fee for Phases I through V         $ 2,920,790.00   
 *Phase V fees to be negotiated upon setting of PROJECT construction budget.   
   
1.2 PAYMENT DELIVERABLES 

Progress payments will be made on a monthly basis for work performed toward completion of 
the deliverables listed below, as described in detail in the Scope of Services, and as measured 
against the agreed upon detailed schedule of activities for services developed as a part of 
Phase I and adjusted from time to time by the Consultant, Program Manager and County 
Project Manager. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of a correct and 
complete invoice, as defined in paragraph 15.9: 

Phase I   
i. Project kickoff, baseline schedule information  $     36,650.00  
ii. Quality management plan  $     10,560.00  
iii. Safe work plan  $       7,680.00  
iv. Org. Chart, contact info. matrix, communication protocol  $       7,040.00  
PHASE I TOTAL  $     61,930.00  
 
Phase II 
Task 1 
i. and ii. Meetings, workshops, options development, presentation materials, 
charrette, three-dimensional visualizations, models, renderings, layouts  $   451,700.00  
iii. Summary report detailing info., analysis, cost estimate, executive summary  $     41,440.00  
iv. Revised and finalized space program and related documents  $   113,300.00  
v.  Sustainability report  $     61,110.00  
vi. Due diligence acknowledge memorandum  $   198,800.00  
vii. Project development profile report  $   329,600.00  
Task 2 
i. and ii. Concept design package and deliverables for design criteria package  $   704,590.00  
iii. Creation of design criteria package  $       7,200.00  
Task 3   
i. Cost estimates and risk analysis  $   331,450.00  
Task 4   
i. Public initiative drawings, renderings  $     41,920.00  
Task 5   
i. and ii. monthly status reports and updated project schedule information  $     30,400.00  
PHASE II TOTAL  $2,311,510.00  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

26 

Phase III 
Task 1 
i. Finalize Design Criteria Package and cost estimate, monthly status reports  $   204,570.00  
Task 2   
i. and ii. Respond to RFI's, provide technical addenda content  $     63,160.00  
iii. and iv. RFQ compliance memoranda, monthly status reports  $     32,640.00  
PHASE III TOTAL  $   300,370.00  

Phase IV   
Task 1   
i. Proposal compliance memoranda  $   125,380.00  
Task 2   
i. Report on compliance, technical reviews, analysis of innovations and cost 
estimates  $   121,600.00  
PHASE IV TOTAL 
 
Phase V** 
**Payment deliverables for this phase to be determined at a later date. 

 $   246,980.00 
 
 $   TBD 
 

 

SECTION 2 – FIXED FEE 

2.1 The Consultant and the County acknowledge the fact that the fixed fee, shown above, is the 
total cost of the Basic Services to be rendered under this Agreement.  This fixed fee is based 
upon the labor, non-labor costs, and all expenses required in the performance of the various 
phases of work provided for under this Agreement.  

 
2.2 In the event of any dispute over the classification of the Consultant's services as either “Basic” 

or “Additional” services, the decision of the Purchasing Agent shall be final and binding on the 
Consultant, subject to Consultant’s rights under the Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3 – COMPENSATION FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
3.1 For the performance of the Additional Services, the County shall pay the Consultant under a 

written amendment to this Agreement.  However, the Consultant must not perform any 
Additional Services until after receiving a written contract modification for those services from 
the Purchasing Agent.  

 
3.2 The basis of compensation for the services of principals and employees engaged in the 

performance of the Additional Services shall be the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit 2. 
 
3.3 Work made necessary by the Consultant’s errors or omissions does not constitute “Additional 

Service,” and the Consultant will receive no compensation for any such work. 
  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

27 

EXHIBIT 2 
HOURLY RATES 

 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

28 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

29 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

30 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

31 

EXHIBIT 3 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 
A. Consultant shall provide a detailed schedule of services, including a list of tasks and 

accompanying Work Product, to be performed for each phase described in the Scope of 
Services (the “Project Schedule”).  At the beginning of each phase, the Program Manager, in 
coordination with the County Project Manager, and Consultant will update and adjust the 
details of the Project Schedule and accompanying Work Product as may be required for each 
phase.  The Project Schedule must allow sufficient time for the development of the Work 
Product in each phase to a level of quality and standard of completeness consistent with 
normal architectural/engineering practice. The Project Schedule must also allow sufficient time 
for the County’s Technical Review Process. 

 
A.1 Consultant shall provide and maintain sufficient Project staffing levels necessary to 

produce the work in a timely and efficient manner consistent with the Project 
Schedule. 

 
A.2 The Project Schedule must be updated in the event that: 

1. any County approval or decision is not made within the time frame specified in 
the Project Schedule; 

2. County makes a written request for a revision in the Work Product that is 
inconsistent with written approval or instructions previously given by County and 
due to causes beyond the reasonable control of Consultant; 

3. a force majeure event has occurred; and 
4. Consultant has not performed in accordance with the latest Project Schedule. 

 
A.3 If Consultant falls behind the Project Schedule by two or more weeks, then 

Consultant shall present the Program Manager and the County Project Manager with 
a recovery plan that sets forth the remedial actions to be taken by Consultant.  At its 
sole option, the County may withhold all or part of any payment due to Consultant 
until the Project Schedule is recovered. 

 
B. This Agreement will become effective upon the Effective Date and will remain in full force and 

effect until the Project Completion Date.  
 

 
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

32 

EXHIBIT 4 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 

 
A. Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 

of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Consultant shall take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action must include, 
but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination 
clause. 

 
B. Consultant shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of 

Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

 
C. Consultant shall send to the labor union representative or workers with which he has a 

collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by 
the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or worker’s representatives of 
Consultant’s obligations under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

 
D. Consultant shall comply with the regulations of the United States Department of 

Transportation (49 CFR 21 and 23 CFR §710.405) and all provisions of Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, as amended, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, including 41 CFR Part 60. 

 
E. Consultant shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, as amended, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of 
Labor, or pursuant thereto; and shall permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
Department and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of Consultant’s non-compliance with the non-discrimination clauses of this 

Agreement or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be 
canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and Consultant may be declared 
ineligible for further government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive Order 11375 (41 
CFR 60) or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 
law. 

 
G. Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs (A.) through (F.) in every subcontract or 

purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor 
issued pursuant to Section 204 or Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, 
so that such provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. Consultant shall 
take such action with respect to any subcontractor purchase order as the Department may 
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for non-compliance; 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

33 

provided, however, that in the event Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by County or federal 
agency, Consultant may request County and United States to enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

34 

EXHIBIT 5 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
During the life of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to provide and maintain the following insurance: 
 
A. Worker’s Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and Property 

Damage limits of $400,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate, including 
coverage on the same for independent subcontractor(s). TRAVIS County MUST BE NAMED AS 
AN ADDITIONAL INSURED UNDER THIS COVERAGE. 

 
C. Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with combined 

minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $400,000 per occurrence and 
$1,000,000 in the aggregate. Consultant shall require any subcontractor(s) to provide 
Automobile Liability Insurance in the same minimum amounts. 

 
D. Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in an amount of $1,000,000 per claim 

with a $5,000,000 excess limit. 
 

If coverage is written on a claims-made policy, the retroactive date must be prior to the date 
services begin under this Agreement or the Effective Date of this Agreement, whichever comes 
first.   Coverage must include a three-(3) year extended reporting period from the date this 
Agreement expires or is terminated.  Certificate of Insurance must clarify coverage is claims-
made and must contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting 
period date. 
 
Consultant shall not commence any field work under this Agreement until Consultant has 
obtained all required insurance and such insurance has been approved by County. Consultant 
shall not allow any subcontractor(s) to commence work to be performed in connection with 
this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained. Approval of the insurance by 
County shall not relieve or decrease the liability of Consultant under this Agreement. 
 
The required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State of 
Texas at the time the policy is issued. Consultant shall furnish County with a certification of 
coverage issued by the insurer. The insurance company will be subject to County’s approval. 
Consultant must not cause any insurance to be canceled or permit any insurance to lapse. ALL 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES MUST INCLUDE A CLAUSE TO THE EFFECT THAT THE POLICY 
WILL NOT BE CANCELED OR REDUCED, RESTRICTED OR LIMITED UNTIL THIRTY (30) DAYS 
AFTER COUNTY HAS RECEIVED WRITTEN NOTICE AS EVIDENCED BY RETURN RECEIPT OF 
REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED LETTER.  

   





Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

36 

EXHIBIT 6, ATTACHMENT 1 
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

January 21, 2014 
 
CURRENT 
          Name of Individual   Name of Business 
Position Held        Holding Office/Position   Individual is Associated       
 
  County Judge ...................................................................... Samuel T. Biscoe 
  County Judge (Spouse) ....................................................... Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe  
  Executive Assistant ............................................................ Cheryl Brown 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Melissa Velasquez 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Josie Z. Zavala 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. David Salazar 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 ................................................... Ron Davis 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) .................................... Annie Davis    Seton Hospital 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Deone Wilhite 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Felicitas Chavez 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Sue Spears 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2  .................................................. Bruce Todd* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) .................................... Elizabeth Christian   Consultant 
  Executive Assistant ............................................................ Sara Krause* 
  Executive Assistant ............................................................ Joe Hon 
  Executive Assistant ............................................................ Peter Einhorn 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 ................................................... Gerald Daugherty* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) .................................... Charyln Daugherty   Consultant 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Bob Moore* 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Martin Zamzow* 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Madison A. Gessner* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 4 ................................................... Margaret Gomez 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Edith Moreida 
  Executive Assistant............................................................. Norma Guerra 
  County Treasurer ................................................................ Dolores Ortega-Carter  
  County Auditor  .................................................................. Nicki Riley 
  County Executive, Administrative ...................................... Vacant 
  County Executive, Planning & Budget ............................... Leslie Browder 
  County Executive, Emergency Services ............................. Danny Hobby 
  County Executive, Health/Human Services ........................ Sherri E. Fleming 
  County Executive, TNR ..................................................... Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
  County Executive, Justice & Public Safety ........................ Roger Jefferies 
  Director, Facilities Management ......................................... Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E. 
  Chief Information Officer ................................................... Tanya Acevedo 
  Director, Records Mgment & Communications ................. Steven Broberg 
  Travis County Attorney  ..................................................... David Escamilla 
  First Assistant County Attorney  ........................................ Steve Capelle 
  Executive Assistant, County Attorney ................................ James Collins 
  Director, Land Use Division ............................................... Tom Nuckols 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .............................................. Julie Joe 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .............................................. Christopher Gilmore  
  Director, Transactions Division  ......................................... John Hille 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ......................................... Daniel Bradford 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ......................................... Elizabeth Winn 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ......................................... Mary Etta Gerhardt  
  Attorney, Transactions Division ......................................... Barbara Wilson 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ......................................... Jim Connolly 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ......................................... Tenley Aldredge 
  Director, Health Services Division ..................................... Beth Devery 
  Attorney, Health Services Division .................................... Prema Gregerson 
  Purchasing Agent  ............................................................... Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent  ............................................... Marvin Brice, CPPB 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent ................................................ Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... CW Bruner, CTP 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Lee Perry  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Jason Walker 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

37 

  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Richard Villareal 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Patrick Strittmatter 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Scott Wilson, CPPB 
 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Loren Breland, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... John E. Pena, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Rosalinda Garcia   
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Angel Gomez 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ........................................... Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ........................................... Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ........................................... David Walch 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ........................................... Michael Long, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ........................................... Sydney Ceder 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ........................................... Ruena Victorino* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ........................................... Rachel Fishback* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II............................................. Vacant  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II............................................. L. Wade Laursen 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II............................................. Sam Francis 
  HUB Coordinator ............................................................... Sylvia Lopez 
  HUB Specialist ................................................................... Betty Chapa 
  HUB Specialist ................................................................... Jerome Guerrero 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .............................................. Scott Worthington 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .............................................. Vacant 
  250th Judicial District Civil Court .......  ...............  ............... Judge John K. Dietz 
  County Court at Law #2 ......  ..............  ...............  ............... Judge Eric Sheppard 
  261st Judicial District Civil Court .......  ...............  ............... Judge Lora Livingston 
  201st District Court ..............  ..............  ...............  ............... Judge Amy Clark Meachum 
  200th Judicial District Civil Court .......  ...............  ............... Judge Gisela D. Triana-Doyal 
  Strategic Planning Mgr., Planning & Budget .....  ............... Belinda Powell 
  Civil District and County Courts ........  ...............  ............... Peg Liedtke 
  Facilities Management Department ....  ...............  ............... Ken Gaede, AIA 
  Facilities Management Department ....  ...............  ............... Jim Barr, AIA, LEED AP 
   
FORMER EMPLOYEES 
 
     Name of Individual 
Position Held      Holding Office/Position   Date of Expiration  
Commissioner, Precinct 2  .....  ..............  ...............  ............... Sarah Eckhardt .......  ..............  ...............  ............... 05/31/14 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III .............  ...............  ............... Nancy Barchus, CPPB ..........  ...............  ............... 06/28/14 
Purchasing Business Analyst .  ..............  ...............  ............... Jennifer Francis ......  ..............  ...............  ............... 11/29/14 
Executive Assistant  ...............  ..............  ...............  ............... Barbara Smith ........  ..............  ...............  ............... 01/15/15 
 
 *  - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 
   
  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

38 

EXHIBIT  7 
HUB DECLARATION AND LIST OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

39 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

40 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

41 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

42 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

43 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

44 

APPENDIX A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
OVERVIEW 

The Travis County Civil and Family Court House (CFCH) Project (PROJECT) is comprised of the following: 

1. The new Travis County CFCH facing Republic Square and including commercial facilities; 
2. Parking facilities, located below ground across the entire site, including secured judicial parking, inmate 

sally port and transport, and court staging. 
 
The PROGRAM is to be delivered in phases as follows: 
Pre-Bond Referendum Phases 

 Phase I:  Initiation Services 
 Phase II:  PROJECT Definition Development 

Post-Bond Referendum Phases 
 Phase III:  Procurement Document Preparation and Open Solicitation Period 
 Phase IV:  Bid Evaluation, Selection and Negotiation Period 
 Phase V:  Design, Construction, and Implementation 

 
The CONSULTANT will serve as the INDEPENDENT REPRESENTATIVE/COMPLIANCE ARCHITECT 
(IR/CA) of the COUNTY for the duration of the PROJECT. All work shall be performed under the management 
direction, technical guidance, and in coordination with the PROGRAM MANAGER. 
 
The CONSULTANT has the primary responsibility for the development, revision, and finalization of the 
technical requirements for the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE for the PROJECT.  Deliverables for Phases I 
and II shall be compatible with the requirements for the Design-Build RFQ and suitable for inclusion in the 
DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.  The CONSULTANT also has the responsibility of ensuring that any WORK 
PRODUCT related to the PROJECT delivered by the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM is in compliance with the 
DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE. All IR/CA duties shall be subject to and performed in accordance with Texas 
Government Code Chapter 2269. 
 
In the performance of their services, the CONSULTANT shall give consultation and advice to the COUNTY 
during the development, procurement, design and construction of the PROJECT. All capitalized terms used but 
not defined in this Scope of Services have the meaning ascribed to them in the Professional Services Agreement 
(“PSA”). 
 
The Master Organizational Chart for the PROJECT is provided in Appendix A and provides a high-level 
graphical display of the relationships and communication channels between various entities and stakeholders 
that will be involved with the PROJECT.  All communication, deliverables, and any other information 
originating from the CONSULTANT will be delivered to the PROGRAM MANAGER for review prior to any 
coordination with the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER and other key stakeholders.    
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

45 

The CONSULTANT shall perform “Basic Services,” which include: all elements of labor, materials and 
equipment required for the PROJECT. Basic services shall be rendered to the satisfaction of the PROGRAM 
MANAGER, COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER and the COURT in accordance with the requirements, policies 
and standard practices of the COUNTY and the terms of this Agreement. The CONSULTANT shall submit the 
WORK PRODUCT, as defined herein, to the PROGRAM MANAGER and COUNTY for review and 
acceptance. 
 
The CONSULTANT shall participate, as required, in PROJECT team meetings to discuss progress, identify 
problems and action items, plan meetings, and develop and continuously monitor the scope, costs and schedule 
for the PROJECT.  PROJECT meetings will primarily be conducted at COUNTY facilities for interactive 
workshops and key meetings with multiple parties or the COURT. As appropriate for the meeting type, topic 
and timing, and as agreed to by the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER and PROGRAM MANAGER, some 
meetings may be held using available technology for video or teleconferencing for some or all participants.  
Meetings held at locations other than COUNTY offices shall be coordinated through the PROGRAM 
MANAGER and the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER.    

Phase I – Initiation Services 

Task 1:  PROJECT KICK-OFF MEETING 

The first meeting will be comprised of the PROGRAM MANAGER, COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, and 
other key COUNTY staff. This task will focus on the review of the Program Management and Governance Plan 
developed for the PROJECT and to specifically address the role of the CONSULTANT.  Additionally, an 
overview of committee make-up and structures will be provided to orient the CONSULTANT to the PROJECT 
and the stakeholder groups. 

Specific details and prior work efforts related to communication, governance structure, schedule, quality, and 
other pertinent topics will be presented to the CONSULTANT for further review and refinement, if necessary.   

The scheduling software required for the PROJECT is Primavera P6 (up to Version 7) by Oracle.  The baseline 
schedule, and all subsequent revisions, will be required to be cost and activity loaded and use the Critical Path 
Method (CPM) of network calculation.  The CONSULTANT shall review and discuss necessary revisions of 
the baseline schedule applicable to the activities of the CONSULTANT with the PROGRAM MANAGER and 
COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER.   

The CONSULTANT shall produce a performance based safe work plan appropriate for the site conditions 
during Phases I, II, III and IV, documenting the proposed worksite safety measures of the CONSULTANT and 
compatible with third-party contractors’ and consultants’ safety requirements. 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE I 

i. Baseline Schedule for the CONSULTANT’s WORK PRODUCT, including Sub-Task definition and 
milestones, articulating the services required to complete the requested services detailed herein provided 
to the PROGRAM MANAGER for incorporation into the PROJECT schedule. 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

46 

ii. Quality Management Plan of the CONSULTANT, documenting the proposed quality procedures of the 
CONSULTANT for determination of compliance with overall quality procedures specified by the 
Program Management and Governance Plan.  

iii. Performance Based Safe Work Plan of the CONSULTANT. 

iv. Organizational Chart and contact information matrix for the CONSULTANT. 

Phase II – PROJECT Definition Development 

TASK 1:  PROJECT Definition 

The work to define the PROJECT will be performed in a collaborative fashion, through a series of meetings and 
iterative analyses, with the PROGRAM MANAGER, COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, key advisors, 
stakeholder groups, and the COURT. All workshops and meetings held for the development of the DESIGN 
CRITERIA PACKAGE will be led and managed by the PROGRAM MANAGER in coordination with the 
CONSULTANT.  The CONSULTANT will provide the technical development and quality control for the 
DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.   

Sub-Task 1A: DUE DILIGENCE REVIEWS 

The CONSULTANT will perform due diligence reviews of data provided by the COUNTY or PROGRAM 
MANAGER and available on the PROJECT SharePoint site, and provide advice and assistance in the 
development of any additional information or work that should be included in the reference information to be 
provided in the RFQ and RFP documents for the PROJECT.  The CONSULTANT will highlight the need, if 
any, for additions, refinements and clarifications. Such refinements and additions will be completed by the 
CONSULTANT or by COUNTY designated consultants.  Due diligence reviews will include but not be limited 
to the following:  

a. Site survey and geotechnical data; 

b. Subsurface utility investigation; 

c. Phase I Environmental Analysis;  

d. Site utility needs study; 

e. Regulatory requirements governing the site; and, 

f. Adjacent developments, whether existing or planned, impacting the site. 

The due diligence reviews will also include review and analysis of the existing space program provided by the 
COUNTY, including any updates or revisions by the PROGRAM MANAGER.  This may include the review 
and analysis of the building size and the numbers and types of parking spaces; development of an understanding 
of current and future COUNTY needs based on forecasting information provided by the COUNTY; analysis of 
macro and micro level adjacencies; and finalization of the appropriate grossing factors from the existing space 
program as required.  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

47 

The CONSULTANT shall provide to the PROGRAM MANAGER and the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER 
memoranda acknowledging  that due diligence documents/information provided by the PROGRAM 
MANAGER and/or COUNTY have been received and reviewed by the CONSULTANT.  The intent of this 
work is to have the CONSULTANT perform an independent review and analysis of the information compiled 
and produced to date and to determine its strengths and weakness from the perspective of the CONSULTANT 
and of Proposers. 
 
Upon completion of the due diligence work in this subtask the CONSULTANT shall perform the necessary and 
highlighted needs, additions, refinements and clarifications as identified and agreed upon by the PROGRAM 
MANAGER and/or COUNTY.  This work shall include but may not be limited to the following: 
 

a. Identify and provide input for Phase II Environmental Analysis;  

b. Site utility needs study; 

c. Identify all permits, licenses and approvals, and obtain those that the COUNTY can acquire in advance 
of the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM; and,  

d. Identify and coordinate with the authorities having jurisdiction pertaining to regulatory requirements 
governing the site. 

e. Coordinate and review any required archaeological study and historical survey. 

Sub-Task 1B: PROJECT VERIFICATION and COMPLETION  

The CONSULTANT will support the effort to review and analyze the PROJECT.  Based upon any 
recommendations and guidance from the PROGRAM MANAGER and COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, 
analysis should also consider the impact of adding other tenants to the PROJECT and the development of the 
specific programming information associated with this option.  In addition, this analysis will be included in the 
procurement documentation that will be incorporated into the scope of the RFQ and RFP for the solicitation of 
the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM.  Such program considerations should include, at a minimum: 

a. Phased build-out approaches, as appropriate, including use of future expansion space for swing space for 
other court system uses not currently identified as Civil and Family; 

b. Other commercial (such as lease tenants, etc.) uses, including retail within the CFCH; 

c. The impact of additional uses (such as other commercial tenants, additional future site facilities, etc.) on 
the parking requirements for the site; and, 

d. Allowing for integration of additional future facilities on the site. 

Sub-Task 1C: DESIGN CHARRETTE 

The CONSULTANT shall plan, prepare, and conduct a design charrette process for the PROJECT.  The design 
charrette process shall be organized and conducted in a manner such that design scenarios are comprehensive 
and inclusive in order to support the viable and reasonable options available to the COUNTY in order to 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

48 

conclude with a functional and budgetary certain outcome.  In order to achieve this requirement, the 
CONSULTANT shall include the following meetings: 

a. Internal pre-charrette detailed workshops with stakeholders and appropriate COUNTY representatives to 
discuss opportunities, goals, priorities, objectives, and ideas evaluated in previous master planning 
processes and work undertaken in Sub-Task 1B which shall include but not be limited to the 
stakeholders representing the following topical areas: 

i. Lease space scenarios 

ii. Building systems and operations 

iii. Court operations 

iv. Courtroom layouts 

v. Security 

vi. Childrens’ space planning 

vii. Commissioners Court priorities 

viii. Technical Infrastructure priorities 

b. Design charrette with no less than three (3) design scenarios, as well as the variant cost ranges and 
differentials related to each scenario. 

c. Work session with the Commissioners Court to discuss preliminary options and objectives and outcomes 
from the design charrette of the PROJECT. 

d. Final scenario and corresponding cost estimate will be presented to the COURT. 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare all materials needed to conduct the design charrette, and ensure the inclusion 
of the key participants and stakeholders recommended or required by the PROGRAM MANAGER and 
COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER.  In addition, the CONSULTANT shall conduct the design charrette with a 
process that provides the COUNTY and the PROGRAM MANAGER with outcomes that include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

a. Understanding of the risks and impacts of the design strategies and options; 

b. Explore and drive to certainty the associated costs and time constraints, and mitigate impacts and 
potential cost overruns;  

c. Establish a consensus on the PROJECT design, functional, and budgetary priorities; 

d. Collaboratively engage key stakeholder and focus groups; and  

e. Develop expectations of quantifiable metrics for long term operations, maintenance, energy and 
environmental performance.  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

49 

The CONSULTANT shall conduct the design charrette in a manner such that the following items are presented 
to the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER and the PROGRAM MANAGER in advance of (items a – d), and 
during (items e – j) the design charrette, including but not limited to the following activities: 

a. Initiate and conduct a pre-design charrette planning meeting; 

b. Develop the design charrette agenda; 

c. Author and provide the presentation guidelines; 

d. Log and track participant input, responses and follow-on actions; 

e. Establish and finalize costing of design charrette outcomes; 

f. Assemble and distribute all required materials; 

g. Arrange for break-out sessions, as required, with technical or focus groups and committees; 

h. Hold a debriefing meeting; and 

i. Analyze and summarize the inputs and outcomes in a final report. 

Additionally, the CONSULTANT shall develop the design charrette to ensure that the following items are 
included as part of the process, outcome and report; 

a. 3-Dimensional visualizations; 

b. Working models and renderings; 

c. Functional isometric layouts that articulate public, staff and prisoner circulation; 

d. Technological interfaces (audio/visual, data services, etc.); 

e. Security protocols and requirements; 

f. Programming results and how they integrate into the PROJECT functional requirements;  

g. Sustainability objectives; and 

h. Cost and budgeting options for structural and architectural variants. 

The CONSULTANT shall consolidate the outcomes of the design charrette into one (1) design scenario, which 
will be used for further analysis and refinement in Sub-Tasks 1D and 1E.  Additionally, the CONSULTANT 
shall develop a cost estimate that reflects the consolidated design scenario.  The CONSULTANT shall submit 
the proposed design scenario and corresponding cost estimate to the PROGRAM MANAGER and COUNTY 
PROJECT MANAGER for review and comment.  Final scenario and corresponding cost estimate will be 
presented to the COURT for adoption or approval prior to beginning Sub-Tasks 1D and 1E. 

 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

50 

Sub-Task 1D: SUSTAINABILITY 

In order to comply with COUNTY policy, the CONSULTANT shall conduct its work such that the PROJECT 
includes ample parameters, flexibilities, and criteria to enable the PROJECT to attain a minimum U.S. Green 
Building Council Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Silver certification.  The 
CONSULTANT shall consider and emphasize in the sustainability work LEED objectives or credits that add 
the best value to the PROJECT, and focus on the following, at a minimum: 

a. Reduced operational utility costs; 

b. Reduced operational maintenance costs; 

c. Water conservation; 

d. Increased useful life of building systems and equipment; 

e. Increased user satisfaction; 

f. Community enhancement; 

g. Support of local industry and economy; 

h. Reduced global environmental impacts; and, 

i. Analysis of participation in the Austin Energy Central Energy Loop for HVAC for the PROJECT. 

The CONSULTANT shall also analyze the cost implications of any recommendations related to compliance 
with PROJECT LEED requirements and objectives.  The CONSULTANT shall submit the sustainability 
analysis and corresponding cost implication analysis of the scenario selected in Sub-Task 1C to the PROGRAM 
MANAGER and COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER for review and comment, prior to finalization.  

Additionally, the CONSULTANT shall provide the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER and the PROGRAM 
MANAGER a score-card of the sustainability program, measured and tested against the LEED certification 
evaluation criteria and process. 

Sub-Task 1E: PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE 

The configuration of the various elements of the PROGRAM shall include the size, orientation, and 
relationships between the CFCH, parking facilities, and other commercial uses (such as lease tenants, retail 
within the CFCH, etc.), which shall be defined as the PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE.  Based on the 
results of and information/data gathered from the design charrette and sustainability analysis  (as articulated in 
Sub-Tasks 1C and 1D) the CONSULTANT will develop, refine and finalize the PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 
PROFILE for the site, along with the corresponding cost analysis, and submit to the PROGRAM MANAGER 
and COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER for review and comment.  The PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE 
shall be subsequently revised and all comments shall be addressed by the CONSULTANT to the satisfaction of 
the PROGRAM MANAGER and the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER.  The CONSULTANT shall 
incorporate the PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE into all efforts leading to the development and 
finalization of the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.  All cost estimates developed as a part of the PROJECT 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

51 

DEVELOPMENT PROFILE shall be required to comply with timing considerations and deadlines of the bond 
referendum. 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE II TASK 1 

i. All meeting, workshop, and presentation materials/documents necessary to conduct the design charrette, 
as well as to then communicate and interact with the COURT and/or key stakeholder groups and 
advisors.  As a minimum, these materials/documents shall communicate clearly articulated goals and 
objectives for the PROJECT, including CFCH, parking facilities, swing space uses, retail facilities, and 
other potential commercial/lease uses in the CFCH, and integration of future facilities at the site. 

ii. 3-Dimensional visualizations, models and renderings required to articulate the form, function, layout 
and interface of the CFCH and the surrounding Austin downtown area, and that can be presented for 
public and COURT understanding of the concept and intent of the PROJECT. 

iii. A summary report detailing the information, analysis and outcomes that the CONSULTANT developed 
and refined during the design charrette, including the proposed scenario, options and corresponding cost 
analysis for the PROJECT that articulate the spirit, concept, theme and intent of the PROJECT.  The 
executive summary should be prepared in a manner suitable for use in the presentation to the COURT. 

iv. Revised and finalized space program and related/applicable PROJECT documents. The space program 
documents shall include vehicle and other special access requirements for each space. 

v. Sustainability report and recommendations including LEED credits analysis and objectives for the 
PROJECT. 

vi. Due diligence acknowledgement memorandum. 

vii. PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE Report. 

TASK 2: Development of Concept Design Elements 

The CONSULTANT will be responsible for all design elements needed to develop a complete DESIGN 
CRITERIA PACKAGE.  The CONSULTANT will develop, revise as required, and finalize the DESIGN 
CRITERIA PACKAGE for a design-build project in Texas that meets the requirements set forth in Texas 
Government Code Chapter 2269.  The design elements may include but not be limited to the development of the 
following: 

a. Concept design, including CFCH layout options and aesthetic alternatives for CFCH elements, including 
but not limited to courtroom layouts, public spaces, or other CFCH layout configurations; 

b. Performance outline specifications; 

c. Design narratives/method specifications, which are written descriptions that detail the attributes of a 
particular design element (e.g. material, product, approach)  required for that design element to meet the 
requirements of the PROJECT; 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

52 

d. Concept designs, including utilities, architectural and civil engineering requirements, MEP, Acoustic, 
Audio/Visual, Security, and Fire Protection; and, 

e. Supporting information, as required, to document resources used to arrive at decisions or conclusions. 

Concept design services will be provided for the following disciplines in Group A.  Design options (B) will 
be evaluated early in the design process.  The design developed from the below services will be 
consolidated into a Design Criteria Package. 
 
A. Concept Design 

1. Architecture 
2. Interior Design 
3. Civil Engineering 
4. Landscape Architecture 
5. Traffic Analysis 
6. Parking Design 
7. Structural Engineering 
8. Mechanical Engineering 
9. Plumbing & Fire Protection 
10. Electrical Engineering 
11. Program Validation and further Space Program Development 
12. Master Planning of the Civil and Family Courthouse site 
13. BIM Model 
14. LEED/Sustainability 
15. Visual Communication (Graphics) 
16. Elevator/Vertical Circulation 
17. IT/Data 
18. Physical and Electronic Security 
19. Acoustics 
20. Blast Resistance 
21. Cost Estimating 
22. AV systems 
23. Furniture 

 
B. Design Options 

 The objective of the concept design stage is to translate project requirements into space 
parameters, explore preliminary design options and analyze them against priorities and program 
objectives 

 The Design Team will compare options by working with the Project Team through the 
development of preliminary options 

 The Design Team will further develop a preferred design option to be developed for inclusion 
into the Design Criteria Package. 

 
Concept Design Process and Deliverables 
 

 An executive summary will provide a concise summary of the concept design report and outline 
recommendations for the project design. 

  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

53 

Regulatory analysis 
 

Provide preliminary code analysis on: 
1. Building classification, occupancy group(s), fire resistance requirements, construction 

type, occupant load calculations and general egress requirements that relate to the site and 
occupancy use 

2. Code statement/criteria to be reviewed by each discipline to the degree of detail 
necessary to assure that tasks accomplished in this phase meet the code requirements 

3. An investigation of various codes and authorities having jurisdiction (AHJ) criteria that 
will govern the design of the project.  

 
Preliminary site analysis: 

4. Include review, setback and other quantitative requirements, building height restrictions, 
density, parking requirements, servicing requirements, right-of-ways, etc. 

 
Fire and life safety strategy: 

5. Summary of preliminary meetings with AHJ 
 

Preliminary design standards analysis: 
6. Narrative description of preferred option 
7. For the preferred option, provide a summary of standards and potential impacts on design 

decisions, ADA/barrier-free design and security, that relate to the site and occupancy use. 
 

Program analysis 
 

Program/accommodation: 
8. Provide functional program analysis, include horizontal and vertical zoning diagrams  

 
Space program statement/reconciliation: 

9. Show in tabular form how the final concept meets the program requirements for each 
critical function, with qualifications where variances occur 

10. Provide Spatial relationship diagrams 
 

Site Analysis 
 

Address the following: 
11. Existing and new site features 
12. Design consideration relating to climatic conditions 
13. Design consideration relating to views, including building heights  
14. Existing and proposed topography and drainage patterns 
15. Any existing erosion conditions with remediation 
16. Site relationships with surrounding buildings (style, massing and scale) 
17. Proposed pedestrian and vehicular circulation with respect to existing surrounding 

circulation patterns (traffic patterns, public transportation, service roads, pedestrian, 
bicycle, etc) 

18. Proposed parking and site access 
19. Services strategy - Site services and utilities, delivery services and telecommunications 
20. Design considerations related to site master plan 
21. Noise/visual considerations 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

54 

22. Pollution and hazardous waste – work with previous reports prepared for Travis County, 
include evaluation of this information in the design process  

23. Include relationship of site issues to LEED checklist 
24. Preliminary consideration site furnishings and lighting 
25. Paving materials 
26. Design of courtyards etc. 
27. Utility distribution and collection systems 
28. New plantings  
29. Fire protection, water supplies, fire hydrants and fire apparatus access roads 
30. Accessibility and safety considerations 

 
Building analysis 

 
Address the following:  
 

31. Design philosophy and intent 
32. Organizational concept 
33. Relationship of interior space to exterior 
34. Continuity of internal circulation within overall site 
35. Interior finishes development 
36. Expansion potential 
37. Building floor efficiency – net and gross areas 
38. Energy considerations: establish preliminary “Energy Budget” 
39. Vertical transportation analysis (elevators and escalators – where applicable) 
40. Operations and maintenance goals 
41. Sustainable design considerations and LEED checklist review 

 
Structural description of structural systems, including: 

42. Description of structural system options to be provided to Design-Build Team 
43. Code compliance statement 
44. Identification of special requirements 

 
Mechanical description of potential HVAC system and baseline systems for each system, including: 

45. Qualitative general features, configuration, and special features of proposed HVAC and 
plumbing systems 

46. General description of mechanical requirements for each major functional space, of 
requirements listing all areas / rooms and identifying the mechanical building services to 
be provided 

47. Review of sustainable strategies and LEED checklist review 
48. Preliminary list of equipment which would be on emergency or UPS power 
49. Preliminary Commissioning Strategy  

 
Electrical description of potential electrical systems and baseline systems including: 

50. Special features of proposed electrical system, describing the design loads, feasibility, 
impacts on budget and schedule, sustainability 

51. Preliminary Commissioning Strategy 
 

Fire submission requirements: 
52. Description of the building’s proposed zoning and fire protection systems 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

55 

53. Code compliance statement (identification of special requirements, such as high-rise, 
atrium, grand stairways, etc.) 

 
Consultant shall review and include appropriate standard COUNTY specifications in the DESIGN 
CRITERIA PACKAGE. 

 
Drawing Requirements 

 
Site Drawings -  

 
1. Proposed site plans showing 

 Building location and massing 
 Connection to other local infrastructure 
 Future building expansion potential 
 Parking and service areas 
 Green spaces (hard & soft) 

 
Architectural –  

 
Floor plans showing: 
1. Entrances, lobbies, work areas, corridors, stairways, elevators, courtroom spaces, holding areas 

and service spaces with enough layout verifying that the integration between the approved 
program and the building concept is achievable  

2. Office areas with enough layout verifying that the integration between the approved program and 
the building concept is achievable 

3. Typical court floor layout 
4. Relationship of interior to exterior space, continuity of circulation to other buildings 

 
Building elevations and vertical sections, showing: 
1. Relationship of building to site 
2. Elevations of major building façades, showing potential fenestration and exterior materials 
3. Floor-to-floor heights and other critical dimensions 
4. Mechanical penthouses 

 
Models (where required): 
1. Provide a massing model with sufficient detail to convey the architectural intent and design 
2. Three-dimensional computer animation walk-through with sufficient detail to convey the 

architectural intent  
 

A/V plans showing: 
1. Equipment layouts and specifications for specific A/V equipment on a typical court floor and 

first floor. 
 

Specification Requirements 
 

Provide preliminary project description performance and method specifications for components, 
materials, products and equipment identified in the development of the concept design documents. 

 
 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

56 

Budget, Schedule and Risk Analysis 
 

Construction cost: 
 Verify that the design presented is within the project budget 

 
Life Cycle Cost Analysis: 
 Outline a Life Cycle Cost Analysis plan, showing potential advantages and disadvantages for 

major components including architectural, mechanical, electrical, structural (etc.) systems 
alternatives, which could be analyzed by Design/Build teams during design development. 

 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE II TASK 2 

i. Concept design package; 

ii. Design elements for inclusion in the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE; 

iii. Submission of all supplementary and supporting design information, such as documents, drawings, 
specifications or calculations, required for the complete DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE for inclusion 
in the RFQ to solicit the design-build firm for the PROJECT.   

TASK 3: Development of PROJECT Cost Estimates   

The CONSULTANT shall develop independent design and construction cost estimates and input into the risk 
analysis that are continually updated through Phase II.  The cost estimates shall include, but not be limited to, 
the following PROJECT design element cost categories:  foundations, substructure, superstructure, exterior 
closure, parking structure, roofing, interior construction and tenant improvements (TIs), conveying systems, 
mechanical (including HVAC, plumbing, and fire protection systems, electrical (including communications), 
equipment (FF&E), and general conditions.  For the development of the PROJECT budget, cost estimates shall 
match the potential phasing of the PROJECT as defined by the proposed scenario adopted or approved by the 
COURT.  

The costs estimates shall make provision for, and include, the analysis of the pricing of alternate structural and 
architectural variants, as well as anticipated costing methodologies submitted with proposals during the 
procurement of the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM beginning in Phase III.  Costing methodologies include, but are 
not limited to policies on subcontractor markup, definition of general conditions, range of cost for general 
conditions, policies on retainage, policies on contingencies, discount for prompt payment, and expected staffing 
for administrative duties. 

In addition to the design and construction costs estimates that are being produced in Phase II, Task 1, sub-tasks 
1C and 1E , the CONSULTANT shall consider all risks previously identified in the PROGRAM risk register, 
and shall participate in two risk meetings with the PROGRAM MANAGER and COUNTY PROJECT 
MANAGER to identify any previously unidentified risks. The CONSULTANT shall provide to the PROGRAM 
MANAGER cost and schedule evaluations of the unmitigated risks, the agreed mitigating actions and the 
residual risks with each design and construction cost estimate that is submitted.  

The CONSULTANT shall submit design and construction cost estimates at the key milestones listed below: 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

57 

1. Design charrette: Cost estimates shall be developed for each design scenario to be presented at the 
design charrette, including the impact of viable structural and architectural variants. 

2. Design charrette report: The cost estimates shall be updated for the outcomes of the design charrette. 

3. Post-Bond referendum: The cost estimates shall be updated no later than seven days after the bond 
referendum for the PROJECT. Each revision of the design and construction cost estimates will be 
reviewed and commented upon by the PROGRAM MANAGER and COUNTY and subsequently 
revised by the CONSULTANT to the satisfaction of the PROGRAM MANAGER and the COUNTY 
PROJECT MANAGER.  The cost estimates shall serve as the basis for the design-build cost and any 
other future budget estimates.   

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE II TASK 3 

i. Independent cost estimates and risk analyses. 

TASK 4: Public Information and Education Initiative for the PROJECT. 

In support of the public involvement effort, which is led by the PROGRAM MANAGER, the CONSULTANT 
will provide materials to the PROGRAM MANAGER for use in the development of a public information and 
education program for the PROJECT.  

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE II TASK 4 

i. Content Materials, including PROJECT renderings, design boards (at a minimum, one for each design 
scenario developed during design charrette task), 3-D computer models (at a minimum, one for each 
design scenario developed during design charrette task), and web site content.  Any presentations, data 
sheets or other content developed during Tasks 1 and 2 may also be requested for use in the Public 
Information and Education Initiative.  

TASK 5: Revision of PROJECT Schedule 

On a monthly basis throughout Phase II, the CONSULTANT shall submit their schedule status report that 
provides the following: 

 PROJECT schedule update (.xer or .pdf format); 

 PROJECT critical path; 

 PROJECT schedule differences report (relationship, duration, add/delete activities); and 

 PROJECT 3 week look-ahead schedule. 

The CONSULTANT shall revise their baseline schedule, as required, during the development and finalization 
of the PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE for inclusion in the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.  At the 
end of Phase II, a re-baselined schedule is contingent upon review, comment, and approval by the PROGRAM 
MANAGER and COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, the PROJECT schedule will based on final schedule 
revision submitted by the CONSULTANT.   



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

58 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE II TASK 5 

i. Monthly schedule status reports 

ii. Phase II re-baselined schedule  

Phase III – Procurement Documentation Preparation and Open Solicitation Period 

TASK 1: Procurement Documentation Preparation 

The CONSULTANT will assist the PROGRAM MANAGER, as required, in the finalization of a cohesive 
procurement package for use in securing the services of a DESIGN-BUILD TEAM to design, develop, and 
construct the PROJECT. 

On a monthly basis throughout Phase III, Task 1, the CONSULTANT shall submit a PROJECT schedule status 
report that provides items listed in Phase II, Task 5, and any additional schedule revisions, as required. 

Sub-Task 1A: Finalization of the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE 

The CONSULTANT shall assist the PROGRAM MANAGER in the development and finalization of RFQ 
documents, which includes a finalized version of the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.  The final version of the 
DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE must include a revised schedule, criteria for selection of the DESIGN-BUILD 
TEAM, and a final cost estimate.  The creation and subsequent finalization of the procurement documentation 
will be under the direction of the PROGRAM MANAGER and key COUNTY staff.  All procurement phase 
tasks will be developed and coordinated with the PURCHASING AGENT, the PROGRAM MANAGER and 
the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, and approved by the PURCHASING AGENT.  

Specific tasks will include, but are not limited to:  

a. To be included with the issuance of the RFQ, the CONSULTANT shall finalize the DESIGN 
CRITERIA PACKAGE. 

b. Prepare responses to Requests for Information (RFIs) related to the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE. 

Sub-Task 1B:  Finalization of the Cost Estimate for the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE 

The CONSULTANT shall finalize the cost estimate for use in the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.  The final 
version of the cost estimate shall be a risk-based design and construction cost estimate that considers the cost 
categories and approach detailed in Phase II, Task 3.  Additionally, the cost estimate shall make a final 
provision for anticipated costing methodologies.  Costing methodologies include, but are not limited to, policies 
on subcontractor markup, definition of general conditions, range of cost for general conditions, policies on 
retainage, policies on contingencies, discount for prompt payment, and expected staffing for administrative 
duties. 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE III TASK 1 

i. Finalized DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE, including criteria for selection of the DESIGN-BUILD 
TEAM and a final cost estimate coordinated with the PROGRAM MANAGER 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

59 

ii. Responses to RFIs 

iii. Monthly schedule status reports 

TASK 2: Open Solicitation Period 

The CONSULTANT will provide support, as required, to the PROGRAM MANAGER during the open 
solicitation period in coordination with the PURCHASING AGENT and COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER, 
including development of RFP documents, pre-submission meetings with potential proposers, RFIs, and the 
development and release of addenda related to the RFP. 

Specific tasks include, but are not limited to: 

a. Prepare responses to RFIs for inclusion in any addenda to be issued. 

b. Review and assess submitted RFQ documents for compliance. 

c. On a monthly basis throughout Phase III, Task 2, the CONSULTANT shall submit a PROJECT 
schedule status report that provides items listed in Phase II, Task 5, and revise the schedule based on 
needed revisions due to the timing of the bond referendum and corresponding open solicitation timing. 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE III TASK 2 

i. Responses to RFIs 

ii. RFP Technical Addenda content 

iii. RFQ Compliance Memoranda 

iv. Monthly schedule status reports and Phase III re-baselined schedule 

Phase IV – Bid Evaluation, Selection and Negotiation Period 
 
TASK 1:  Proposal Compliance Reports 
 
The PURCHASING AGENT will accept submissions and the CONSULTANT will conduct technical 
compliance checks on the proposals with respect to the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE.  Additionally, the 
CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit a compliance report for each proposal to the PROGRAM 
MANAGER. 
 
DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE IV TASK 1 

i. Proposal compliance memoranda 

TASK 2: Proposal Evaluation Support 

The CONSULTANT shall support the overall evaluation of all technical aspects of the offers, including 
demonstrated competence and qualifications, the long-term durability of the PROJECT as proposed, feasibility 
of implementing the PROJECT as proposed, ability of the offeror to meet schedules as proposed, and an 
assessment of any innovations offered.  A summary report of the assessment will be developed for discussion 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

60 

with the evaluation team established for the procurement. The CONSULTANT may be engaged by the 
PROGRAM MANAGER to support the presentation of findings in confidential meetings with the evaluation 
committee. 

Additionally, the CONSULTANT shall support the evaluation of the proposed costing methodologies of the 
offers.  At a minimum, the evaluation will consist of applying the costing methodologies of offers to the 
existing cost estimates provided as a part of the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE and developing a revised cost 
estimate for each offer.  The CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit an analysis of the preliminary and 
proposed cost estimates to the PROGRAM MANAGER and COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER for review and 
comment. 

On a monthly basis throughout Phase IV, Task 2, the CONSULTANT shall submit a schedule status report that 
provides items listed in Phase II, Task 5, and the CONSULTANT shall also revise the schedule based on the 
timing and proceedings of Phase IV activities. 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE IV TASK 2 

i. Report summarizing the results of the technical review, including analysis of any innovations offered. 

ii. Analysis of preliminary and proposed cost estimates based on costing methodologies proposed in offers. 

iii. Phase IV re-baselined schedule. 

iv. Monthly schedule status report. 

Phase V – Design, Construction, and Implementation 

The CONSULTANT will participate with the PROGRAM MANAGER in the oversight of the design, 
construction and implementation of the CFCH PROJECT. Under the guidance of the PROGRAM MANAGER, 
the CONSULTANT shall be primarily responsible for validating technical compliance of the DESIGN-BUILD 
TEAM deliverables during this phase.  Specific tasks include, but are not limited to: 

a. Participate in establishing, maintaining and operating construction communication protocols and the 
governance structure. The communication protocols will address the interface with the public and 
include the facilitation of a public consultation process for both internal and external stakeholders, the 
COURT and the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM.  

b. The CONSULTANT will meet weekly with the PROGRAM MANAGER, COUNTY PROJECT 
MANAGER, DESIGN-BUILD TEAM and others as needed during this phase. 

c. The CONSULTANT shall perform weekly site visits during construction to verify that the construction 
is proceeding in accordance with the requirements of the design-build documents. 

d. The CONSULTANT will perform compliance and deficiency reviews with the purpose of determining 
the technical and financial compliance with the design-build agreement. The CONSULTANT will 
coordinate with the PROGRAM MANAGER, COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER and other key 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

61 

stakeholders and advisors, including COUNTY technical staff for technical and financial review input 
and participation during design, construction and occupancy of the PROJECT.  

e. The CONSULTANT will provide information necessary for the PROGRAM MANAGER to maintain 
and operate a change management plan, which will include the process for identification of potential 
scope and other changes, PROJECT budget and schedule impact analysis, negotiation with DESIGN-
BUILD TEAM for technical compliance, participation in RFI responses, and recommendations for 
approval of any changes.   

f. The CONSULTANT will prepare summary status reports each month for the PROGRAM MANAGER 
to advise the COURT on the compliance of the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM, any recommendations made 
or corrective actions taken to bring the PROJECT into compliance, and the current status of the schedule 
and budget for the CFCH PROJECT.  The summary status reports will be an internal management tool 
and not intended for public distribution.  

g. The CONSULTANT will monitor and verify compliance for the LEED commissioning process for the 
PROJECT and provide any support necessary to the COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER during the 
LEED certification process.   

h. The CONSULTANT shall perform warranty period reviews of PROJECT components delivered by the 
DESIGN-BUILD TEAM.  Additionally, the CONSULTANT shall assist the PROGRAM MANAGER 
in compiling final documentation such as design information, as-built drawings, warranty information, 
or other pertinent information for hand-off to the COUNTY. 

i. The CONSULTANT shall produce a performance based safe work plan appropriate for the site 
conditions during this Phase, documenting the proposed worksite safety measures of the 
CONSULTANT and compatible with the safety plan of the DESIGN-BUILD TEAM. 

DELIVERABLES FOR PHASE V 

i. Perform, document, track, and resolve comments for compliance reviews; 

ii. Change management reports for individual change proposals, including technical and financial 
compliance assessments; 

iii. Summary status reports; 

iv. Coordination and documentation of LEED commissioning process; 

v. Review and verify RFI responses for compliance with the DESIGN CRITERIA PACKAGE; 

vi. Review and compliance verification of submittals; 

vii. Comment on the commissioning plan and commissioning reports;  

viii. Schedule of deliverables; and 

ix. Performance Based Safe Work Plan for the CONSULTANT 



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

62 

APPENDIX B 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART WITH KEY PERSONNEL IDENTIFIED 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Contract No. 4400001900, IR/CA Services for the DB Development of a New Travis County CFCH 
 

63 

APPENDIX C 
CONSULTANT’S QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT 

 



Tr avis CounT y
IR/CA SeRvICeS foR the deSIgn-buIld development of A 

new tRAvIS County CIvIl And fAmIly CouRt houSe

RfQ #Q1309-006-Jt

s u b m i T Ta l o f q ua l i f i C aT i o n s  |   15 Ja n ua ry 20 14



H O K     2711 N. Haskell Avenue, Suite 2250  |  Dallas, TX  75204 USA      t  +1 214 720 6000   f  +1 214 720 6005                                      www.hok.com

January 15, 2014

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
700 Lavaca, Suite 800
Austin, Texas 78701

Re:  Independent Representative/Compliance Architect (IR/CA) Services for the Design-Build Development for Travis County 
Civil and Family Court House, RFQ Number Q1309-006-JT 

Dear Ms. Grimes:

On behalf of the entire HOK team we are delighted to respond to your request for proposal and submit for your consideration our 
qualifications.  After carefully evaluating your request, we assembled a Courthouse design team with impeccable qualifications  to 
provide you with an outstanding design experience.  HOK is uniquely qualified for this project for a number of important reasons: 

“Urban HigHrise” CoUrtHoUse experienCe:  Upon close review of the resumes of Duncan Broyd, Bob Schwartz, Dan Wiley, 
and HOK you will see why they are considered among the very elite in urban high-rise County Courthouse Design, Courthouse 
Planning, and Courthouse Programming.  They are Courthouse industry trendsetters and leaders.   Currently, Duncan is participating 
on two very important urban highrise courts -the 14-story Judge Seymour Gelber & Judge William E. Gladstone Miami-Dade Children’s 
Courthouse in downtown Miami; and the 20-story Broward County Civil and Family Courthouse in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida in which 
HOK is acting as the owner’s representative. This experience gives us the ability to quickly identify the unique issues, considerations 
of a high rise and to apply our lessons learned to the Travis County effort.  

projeCt LeadersHip:  At HOK, the Principal-in-Charge and Project Manager are engaged through every phase of every project to 
ensure client objectives for the project are met.  Curt Parde and I are considered Texas’ leading Project Management Team for Texas 
Justice Projects.  We have worked closely together for 8 years on many successful Texas Courthouse projects including the Hays 
County Justice Center and Courthouse which was a very successful D/B project, Kauffman County’s recent Courthouse Master Plan, 
the Ellis County Courthouse, and Potter County’s Courthouse Master Plan and recent Justice Systemic Analysis.  Members of this 
proposal’s design team (Curt, Duncan, Dan, Steve, and I) are all presently working with Tarrant County on their new Master Plan for 
their Criminal Courts System.  As your Principal In Charge of this project, I happen to live close by in Round Rock, TX.  Donna Carter 
and I will be very accessible and available to meet with and respond to your project team.    

tHe overaLL team:  Wow.  This team is a unique entity as it includes many of Travis County’s very best and experienced Architects, 
Engineers, and specialty consultants - combined with HOKs premier Courthouse Master Planning and design team.  We will provide 
you with single source responsibility and accountability for the deliverables and performance of our team.  We understand the 
resulting documents from this effort will inform and support the approval process and will be used as the basis for this project 
moving forward.  We are skilled with the design build delivery model and are also very experienced with delivering the quality bridging 
documents essential to move forward.

History - travis CoUnty’s deL vaLLe jaiL and HoK:  The County and HOK already have a proven history of successfully 
working together on a large 2 phased project that included bridging documents with a design/build delivery model.  We provided 
thorough bridging documents for that successful project, and assisted through construction. 

Travis County and the URS team will be pleased to work with this team.  Additionally, for any holding cell areas that may be included, 
Curt and I have a very good relationship with Sheriff Hamilton and the leadership of your Sheriff’s Department as well as the Texas 
Commission on Jail Standards



Our understanding of emerging trends, LEAN delivery methodology, and our use of leading edge technology will help us serve the 
County well.  We plan to deliver the most efficient, cost effective, practical and buildable program for you.  We commit to provide you 
with outstanding communication, reliable and efficient service, along with clear forthright responses and proposals.  

Being local and having worked with many Texas County Governments on high profile Justice projects, we understand the significance 
and importance of this assignment to the Travis County Officials, the Department Leaders, and to the constituents.  We look forward 
to an opportunity to discuss our qualifications and project approach with you in more detail.  We are hopeful you will select our team.  
Thank you very much for your time and consideration.

Sincerely, 

JEFF BRADLEY
Vice President  |  Global Director Justice Practice 
Principal in Charge   
jeff.bradley@hok.com    
m +1 512 507 9142     

H O K     2711 N. Haskell Avenue, Suite 2250  |  Dallas, TX  75204 USA      t  +1 214 720 6000   f  +1 214 720 6005                                      www.hok.com



TA B 1 -  Professional services Questionnaire

TA B 2  -  J v statement

TA B 3  - critical Path method schedul e 

TA B 4  - or aganiz ational struct ure

TA B 5  -au thorized del egate 

TA B 6  - Qualifications of Prime consultant and te am 

TA B 7  -l itigation statement

TA B 8  -huB Progr am suBcontr acting decl ar ation , e thic s 
affidavit and statement information affidavit



ta b  1

p r o f es s i o n a l  s e r v i c es 

q u es t i o n n a i r e



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 4 

PRoFeSSIoNAl SeRvICeS 
QueSTIoNNAIRe 

1

SECTION I: TO BE COMPLETED BY RESPONDENT 

PROJECT NAME 
Independent Representative/Compliance Architect (IR/CA) Services for the Design-Build Development 

of a New Travis County Civil and Family Court House 

NAME OF 
RESPONDENT 

Hellmuth, Obata & Kassabaum, LP 

ADDRESS OF RESPONDENT’S HEADQUARTERS 
2711 N. Haskell Ave.  
Dallas, Texas 75204

DATE OF 
ORGANIZATION 10/1955 

      (Month/Year) 

NOTE:  Provide Names and Dates of Predecessor Organization(s): 
NAMES DATES 

N/A 

TYPE OF 
ORGANIZATION Limited Partnership 

   (e.g., sole proprietorship, partnership, association, Limited Liability Company, corporation) 

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NUMBER(S) 

OFFICE +1.214.720.6000 FAX +1.214.720.6005 

LIST OF PRINCIPALS (NAMES) TITLES DEGREES 
 
Jay Tatum, AIA Managing Principal Texas Tech University - Bachelor of Architecture 
 
Roger Soto, AIA Design Director Rice University – Bachelor of Arts, Architecture 
 
Dennis Peck, AIA Marketing Principal University of Texas - Bachelor of Architecture 

1)  RESPONDENT’S STAFF 

 A. LIST CURRENT NUMBER OF RESPONDENT’S FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES IN EACH CATEGORY, 
INCLUDING ALL STAFF WHEN A JOINT VENTURE:

  (Please designate the number of key staff registered/licensed in the State of Texas.) 

POSITIONS LOCAL OFFICE NATIONAL OFFICE(S) 
Architects, R.A. RA: 54;        RA in TX: 49 282 

Mechanical Engineers, P.E. ME: 12;       ME in TX: 7 20 

Structural Engineers, P.E. SE: 4;          SE in TX: 4 24 

Electrical Engineers, P.E. EE: 8:          EE in TX: 7 14 

OTHER PROFESSIONALS Professionals: 150 
 RID: 11; RID in TX: 11 
 LA: 2; LA in TX: 2 

Professionals: 602 
 RID: 270 
 LA: 35 

OTHER SUPPORT PERSONNEL 36 258 

TOTALS 201 1499



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 5 

B. LIST NAMES OF RESPONDENT’S CERTIFIED PROFESSIONALS AND OTHER LICENSED 
PERSONNEL EMPLOYED FULL-TIME IN A PROFESSIONAL POSITION.  INDICATE NUMBER OF 
YEARS OF EXPERIENCE MANAGING PROJECTS OF SIMILAR SIZE AND TYPE TO THE 
PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION. ATTACH PROJECT MANAGER’S RESUME(S) 
DESCRIBING SPECIFIC PROJECT-RELATED EXPERIENCE. 

(Please list the Project Manager for this specific project first on your list). 

NAME COLLEGE
DEGREE 

PROFESSIONAL 
REGISTRATION/LICENSE 

PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT 

EXP. 

TOTAL
YEARS. 

EXP 

Curt Parde, AIA, LEED BD+C  
Project Manager 

BA, Arch 
Registered Architect - TX, CO, 
NE 
LEED AP 

16 27 

Jeff Bradley 
Principal-in-Charge N/A N/A 9 23 

Stephen Brookover, AIA, LEED BD+C 
Project Architect 

BS. Arch 
Registered Architect – TX  
LEED AP BD + C 

6 20 

Roger Soto, AIA, LEED AP 
Director of Design 

BA. Arch 
M. Arch 

Registered Architect – TX  
LEED AP 

15 33 

Duncan Broyd, RIBA, LEED BD+C  
Court and Security Planner 

B. of Arts 
B. Arch 

Registered Architect - UK  
Chartered Architect - UK  
LEED AP BD + C 

20 35 

Robert Schwartz, FAIA, LEED BD+C  
Justice Planner + Security Advisor 

B. Arch 
M. Arch + Urban 
Design 

Registered Architect – IL 
LEED AP  BD + C  
NCARB  

30 38 

Deborah Fuller, IIDA, LEED BD+C, 
LEED ID+C 
Sustainable Design Leader 

BA. Interior 
Design 

Registered Interior Designer – TX 
 LEED AP BD + C, ID+C 
USGBC LEED Faculty 

15 30 

2)   RESPONDENT’S TEAM EXPERIENCE 

LIST BELOW (OR ON AN ATTACHMENT) ALL RELEVANT WORK PERFORMED BY THE MEMBERS OF 
THE RESPONDENT’S TEAM DURING THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS THAT RELATES TO AND WILL 
CONTRIBUTE TOWARD THE SUCCESS OF THE PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION.  (DO NOT 
INCLUDE SUBCONSULTANTS HERE.)  

Name and location of 
related projects within 

the last 5 years 
Services Provided Project Mgr. 

Name 
Construction 
Project Cost 

Client Contact Name and Phone 
No. 

Tarrant County  
Courthouse Master Plan 

Master planning 
 

Curt Parde Est. 
$90,000,000 

David Phillips 
Director, Tarrant County Facilities 
Management 
100 W. Weatherford 
Fort Worth, Texas  76196 
dphillips@tarrantcounty.com 
817 884-3344 – WORK 
(817) 991-1377 – CELL 
 

Tarrant County  
Civil Court Building  

Feasibility Study, 
Programming, Architecture, 
Interior Design, Landscape 
Architecture 

 

Steve 
Brookover 

$67 million David Phillips 
Director - Facilities Management 
817.884.3344 

Kaufman County Master Plan and Bond Curt Parde Est. County Judge 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 6 

Courthouse Planning + 
Bond Assistance 

Assistance $20,000,000 Bruce Wood 
Kaufman County Courthouse  
100 W. Mulberry  
Kaufman, TX 75142  
972-932-4331 

Douglas County  
Courthouse Master Plan 

Feasibility Study, 
Programming, Master 
Planning 
 

n/a Mr. Eric Linton 
County Administrator 
Douglas County Government 
8700 Hospital Drive 
Douglasville, GA 30134 
(770) 920-7209 
elinton@co.douglas.ga.us 

Miami-Dade County  
Children’s Courthouse 

Master Planning, Site 
Design, Program Verification 
& Conceptual Design, Full 
Design Services, Cost 
Control & Scheduling, LEED 
Consulting, On-Site Services 
during Construction 

Tim J. Blair $126 million 
 

Humberto Contreras 
Owner Project Manager 
GSA 
111 N.W. 1st Street, Suite 2420 
Miami, FL  33128 
United States of America 
hcontr@miamidade.gov 
(305) 375-3956 

Broward County  
Civil + Family Courthouse 

PM Services 
 

Tim J. Blair $328 million  
 Daniel Ayers  
Broward County  
115 S Andrews Avenue  
Room 212  
954.357.7350  
dayers@broward.org 

Hillsborough County  
East County Court 
Complex 

Feasibility Study, 
Programming, Architecture, 
Interior Design Planning, 
Site Planning, Architectural 
Design, Justice 
Programming and Planning, 
Interior Design, Cost 
Estimating 

Duncan Broyd $ 14,675,000 
 

Bill Hand  
County Center, 26th Floor 
Tampa, FL 33602 
813-272-5900 
 
 

Gloucester County  
Justice Complex 

Master Planning, Program 
Verification, Architectural 
Design, Courts Planning, 
Security Planning, Interior 
Design, Landscape 
Architecture 
 

Greg Smith $80 million 
 

Kelly Law, Assistant Trial Court 
Administrator 
County of Gloucester 
PO Box 246 
Woodbury, NJ 08096 
Tel: 856.686.7442 
Email: kelly.law@judiciary.state.nj.us 

Marion County 
Judicial Center Addition 

Site Design, Site 
Evaluations, Concept 
Design, Architectural 
Design, Space Needs 
Analysis,  
 

Duncan Broyd $38 million 
 

David M. Trammell 
State of FL 5th Judicial Circuit 
Office of the Court  Admin. 
Marion County Judicial Center 
110 NW First Avenue, Room 594 
Ocala, FL 34475 
(352)401-6701 
(352) 401-7883 (Fax) 
dtramme@jud5.flcourts.org 

Niagara Falls  
Municipal Complex Building 

Architectural Design, 
Landscape Architecture, 
Interior Design, Lighting 
Design 
 

Jeannette 
Segal 

$31.6 million 
 

Andrew Isenberg
Executive Assistant 
State of NY eighth Judicial District 
92 Franklin Street 
Buffalo, NY 14202 
716-845-2506 
aisenber@courts.state.ny.us 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 7 

or  
Gary J. Coscia 
President/Developer 
Largo Real Estate Advisors 
2420 North Forest Road 
Getzville, NY14068 
716-204-2211 
gcoscia@LargoCapital.com 

Union County Courthouse Site Planning, Court 
Programming/Planning, 
Architectural Design, 
Structural Engineering, 
Landscape Architecture 
 

Jason 
Wandersee 

$10 million 
 

Don Denny 
County Commissioner 
309 West Market Street, Room 100 
Jonesboro, IL 62952 
618-853-5913 

Wake County Justice 
Center 

Program Verification 
Services, Architectural 
Design, Planning and 
Landscape Design, Interior 
Design and FF&E, Graphic 
Design 

Jim Kessler
 

$145 million 
 

Phillip Stout 
Wake County 
Suite 1202, PO Box 550 
Raleigh, NC 27602 
919-856-6350 
pstout@co.wake.nc.us 

Kane County Traffic Court Court Programming and 
Planning 
 

Jason 
Wandersee 

$4 million 
 

 

Douglas Naughton
Court Administrator 
16th Judicial Court Circuit 
Kane County 
100 South Third Street 
Geneva, IL 60134 
630-232-3440 

3)  RESPONDENT’S LOCAL OFFICE FIRM EXPERIENCE  

FOR RESPONDENT’S LOCAL OFFICE OR ITS STAFF IN THE PAST THREE YEARS, INDICATE THE 
NUMBER OF RESPONDENT’S RELEVANT PROJECTS, PROJECT TYPE(S), AND A BRIEF 
SCOPE/DESCRIPTION AS TO WHY EACH LISTED PROJECT IS RELEVANT TO AND WILL CONTRIBUTE 
TOWARD THE SUCCESS OF THE PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION. 

NO. OF 
PROJECTS 

PROJECT TYPE BRIEF SCOPE AS TO RELEVANCY 

5 Courthouses/ Judicial Centers 

HOK’s history of more than 150 courthouses, including five in the past 
3 years by these team members, gives us a unique understanding of 
the specialized planning, programming, security considerations and 
design elements of these projects. 

4 High Rise Buildings  
Designing for high rise buildings requires special considerations of 
elements not considered in low and mid-rise buildings including fire 
safety, vertical transportation and structural design. 

1 Design Criteria/Bridging Document Packages

Design criteria are different. We understand that we need to vet the 
program fully, and communicate clearly with entities that will take the 
documents and turn them into a real facility. We will identify the 
elements of the project that must be very defined at this stage and 
parts that can and should be left to the design builders to define, giving 
the full benefit of this project delivery type. We are more concerned 
with predictable outcomes and performance, and understanding how 
design build teams go about proposing on these jobs, than defining 
architectural or engineering agendas of our own. 

14 Projects Located In Texas  
Our recently completed, full-service projects in Texas mean we 
understand the codes, how to work with the AHJs, the consultant and 
construction market in the state. 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 8 

2 Design/Build Projects 

Work on Design/Build projects allows our team to understand from the 
project delivery side how important a strong set of design criteria 
documents is. It reduces the number of RFIs and limits the time 
clarifications add to the schedule. 

3 
 

Projects with an Owner’s Representative or 

Program Manager  

Capital projects are major undertakings. By hiring a PM or an Owner’s 
Representative an owner can alleviate some of the “learning curve”. 
HOK has worked with and as an owner’s representative most recently 
on the Broward County Civil project where Duncan Broyd is the PIC.  

6 Projects with HUB Program requirements  

Our past work with HUB certified firms has given us great insight in 
how we are able to encourage, empower and mentor these firms. We 
strive to include underrepresented firms even when a goal is not 
included, but we welcome those projects that do include one.  

4)  TECHNICAL PLAN AND SCHEDULE 

ATTACH RESPONDENT’S PROPOSED TECHNICAL PLAN TO ACCOMPLISH THE EFFICIENT 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE WORK FOR THE PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION AND THE 
PROPOSED SCHEDULE FOR COMPLETION OF THE WORK.  (Note the scheduling requirements as stated in 
the Professional Service Agreement, Exhibit 3-Project Schedule, Attachment 1-Performance Schedule).

Please find the Technical Plan and CPM Schedule in Tab 3. 

5)  LOCAL OFFICE 

X__ YES, ALL OF THE WORK WILL BE PERFORMED BY PERSONS CURRENTLY EMPLOYED AT AND 
ASSIGNED TO THE LOCAL OFFICE(S), INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANT WORK AS SPECIFIED IN THE 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT CHART IN NUMBER 10 BELOW.   

____ NO. PLEASE DESCRIBE BELOW THE WORK AFFECTED AND THE EXPERIENCE OF AND 
CIRCUMSTANCES REGARDING SUCH OTHER NON-LOCAL PERSONS/OFFICES AS ARE PROPOSED TO 
BE UTILIZED. 

N/A 

6)  PRESENT WORKLOAD 

LIST RESPONDENT’S PRESENT WORKLOAD (IF JOINT VENTURE FIRM, INDICATE FOR EACH 
FIRM). 

NAME OF PROJECT 
EST. PERCENTAGE 
REMAINING FOR 

CONT. WORK 

STAGE OF ACTIVITY 
(PHASES) 

LIMITATIONS
REGARDING 

AVAILABILITY 

Tarrant County Civil Courts Final 
Design 

22% Construction 
Administration 

HOK’s current workload does not 
prohibit us from providing any 
services in relation to this project.

Tarrant County Master Plan 70% Design Development / 
Schematic Design 

HOK’s current workload does not 
prohibit us from providing any 
services in relation to this project.

Michaels Headquarters  
Corporate Restack 

30% Construction Documents 
HOK’s current workload does not 
prohibit us from providing any 
services in relation to this project.

Express Scripts  82% Design Development 
HOK’s current workload does not 
prohibit us from providing any 
services in relation to this project.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 9 

7)  PREVIOUS WORKLOAD WITH TRAVIS County 

LIST ALL TRAVIS COUNTY PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS AWARDED TO RESPONDENT’S 
FIRM IN THE LAST FIVE YEARS.  JOINT VENTURES SHOULD LIST ALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENTS FOR EACH FIRM. 

NAME OF PROJECT YEAR AWARDED STAGE & PERCENT COMPLETE 
N/A

8)  EEO PROGRAM 

PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING WORK FORCE REPORT FOR RESPONDENT’S LOCAL OFFICE 
CURRENT FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES: 

NOTE: USE MOST RECENT PERSONNEL INFORMATION.  

Full-Time 
Employees 

Total No. of 
Employees 
*M        *F

White 
*M        *F

Amer. Indian 
*M        *F

Black
*M        *F

Hispanic 
*M        *F

Other 
*M        *F

Professional 4             17 4             9 0             0 0              3 0             5 0           0 
Technical 112         68 86          39 0             0 6              3 13           9 7         17 

TOTALS 116         85 90          48 0             0 6              6 13          14 7         17 
* - Male or Female 

9)  FINANCIAL LIMITATIONS & CONSIDERATIONS 

A. IF SELECTED FOR A PROJECT, DOES RESPONDENT’S FIRM HAVE SUFFICIENT FINANCIAL 
RESOURCES TO ADEQUATELY STAFF THE PROJECT TO COMPLETE IT WITHIN THE TIME 
SPECIFIED OR REQUIRED BY THE COUNTY?  LIST BANKING OR OTHER FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS: 

YES X  NO    

INSTITUTION RELATIONSHIP 
 
Wells Fargo Bank Reference 
 
Syndicates of Lloyd of London's Insurance Carrier 

B. HAS RESPONDENT RECENTLY PERFORMED WORK IN CONNECTION WITH OR FOR A 
PUBLIC AGENCY GRANT PROJECT OR AN AGENCY OF THE FEDERAL OR STATE 
GOVERNMENT FOR WHICH AN AUDIT HAS BEEN CONDUCTED? 

  YES    NO  X

INDICATE BELOW THE AUDIT DATE AND THE AGENCY AND/OR PROJECT FOR WHICH THE 
AUDIT WAS CONDUCTED: 

DATE AGENCY PROJECT 
N/A 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 10 

10)  PROJECT MANAGEMENT CHART 

ATTACH RESPONDENT’S PROJECT MANAGEMENT CHART SHOWING THE PROJECT TEAM 
MEMBERS, THEIR AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY, AND THE PROJECT TEAM ORGANIZATIONAL 
STRUCTURE.  SHOW SUBCONSULTANTS ON CHART WHERE APPLICABLE, BUT DO NOT INCLUDE 
THEIR EXPERIENCE IN THIS SECTION.   

NOTE: BE SURE TO HAVE EACH SUBCONSULTANT AND TASK LEADER LISTED ON PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT CHART COMPLETE SECTION II. 

11) LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

A. DOES RESPONDENT HAVE AND GENERALLY CARRY PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
INSURANCE? 

YES X  NO    

IF LIMITED, PROVIDE LIMITS:  
   General Liability: 

 Each Occurrence -     $1,000,000 

 Damage to Rented Premises -   $1,000,000 
 Medical Expenses -    $10,000 

 Personal + Adv. Injury -     $1,000,000 

 General Aggregate -     $2,000,000 

 Products Comp/OP AGG -    $2,000,000 

  Automobile Liability 

 Combined Single Limit -     $1,000,000 

  Umbrella Liability 

 Each Occurrence -     $5,000,000 

 Aggregate -       $5,000,000 

  Professional Liability 

 Per Claim -       $2,000,000 

 Aggregate -       $2,000,000 

B. WITHIN THE PAST 3 YEARS HAS RESPONDENT’S FIRM OR ANY FIRM WITHIN THIS JOINT 
VENTURE BEEN INVOLVED IN A LAWSUIT INVOLVING THE PAYMENT OF FEES FOR 
COMPLETED WORK OR FOR DISAGREEMENT WITH OWNER/CONTRACTOR?  GIVE DETAILS 
AS REQUIRED TO EXPLAIN PROBLEMS AND FIRM’S POSITION. 

Information in relation to HOK’s claims history is a matter which HOK regards as private and confidential.  HOK is nonetheless 

committed to providing its clients with a level of quality and design excellence that meets or exceeds customary design industry 

standards.  Notwithstanding this commitment, problems invariably arise during the design and construction process.  HOK is 

sensitive to its clients’ desires that such problems be dealt with promptly and fairly.  As one of the largest architecture firms in the 

world, HOK is occasionally the subject of claims which allege negligence and/or breach of contract.  The number of such claims 

alleged during any given time period is consistent with industry standards, taking into account HOK’s presence in the market.  HOK 

works closely with its clients, consultants and other parties to resolve project-related issues without the need for litigation, 

arbitration or other formal dispute resolution proceedings.  HOK confirms that it is not aware of any pending or threatened claims 

which could affect its financial stability or continued existence.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 11 

12)  OBJECTIONS TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA) LANGUAGE 

WITH ITS SUBMITTAL, RESPONDENT MUST INDICATE ANY OBJECTIONS TO THE 
LANGUAGE AS STATED IN THE DRAFT PSA. 

SIGN AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING: 

SIGNATURE: __________________________________

TITLE: Senior Vice President        DATE: January 15, 2014

HOK’s objects to the language are included in the pages that directly follow this one. 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 12 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 13 

SECTION 7 COORDINATION WITH COUNTY 

7.1 The Travis County Purchasing Agent (the “Purchasing Agent”) acts as County’s overall contract administrator. The Purchasing Agent may designate representatives to transmit and receive information. Consultant shall not commence work until the Program Manager, in coordination with the County Project Manager, has thoroughly briefed Consultant on the scope of the Project.  Consultant shall not commence work on the Project until receipt of a written notice to proceed issued by the Purchasing Agent upon the recommendation of the Program Manager (the “Notice to Proceed”).  Consultant shall not commence work on any subsequent phase of the Project, as such phases are described in the Scope of Services, until receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, which will be issued by the Purchasing Agent.  

7.2 The Consultant shall familiarize himself adequately with the existing conditions at the project site. To the extent that the Consultant’s design work relates to, connects with, or is dependent upon an existing building or other structure, the Consultant shall familiarize himself with the existing built conditions to the extent necessary to produce a complete and accurate Work Product. If as-built documentation is available and provided to the Consultant, the Consultant shall not rely solely on the as-built documentation, but shall exercise professional due diligence in confirming critical dimensions and as-built conditions through actual on-site measurements or other reasonable means as required to produce a complete and accurate Work Product. 

7.3 At the beginning of each Project phase, and before written authorization to proceed with that phase is issued, Consultant shall submit to the Program Manager and County Project Manager the Project Schedule, as updated and adjusted as required for each phase.  In addition, Consultant shall make monthly progress reports with comparisons to the Project Schedule. 

7.4 In addition to Consultant’s obligations described in the Scope of Services pertaining to meetings, at intervals not to exceed thirty (30) days, Consultant shall arrange for and attend progress meetings with County representatives and, as applicable, representatives of any other governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project, to explain and receive feedback on the work-in-progress. 

7.5 Consultant shall furnish all available data and reasonable assistance necessary to comply with established application, review, and approval processes for any permits, grants, or planning advances required for the Project.  Consultant shall familiarize himself, and comply, with established application, review, and approval processes as necessary to ensure that reasonable compliance will cause no delay to the Project Schedule.   

7.6 For the duration of the Agreement term, Consultant shall be responsible for advising County whether in Consultant’s judgment it is feasible to proceed with the Project given any constraints affecting the Project.

7.7 Consultant shall cooperate and coordinate with County’s staff and other Consultants and contractors as reasonable and necessary in performance of this Agreement and as required by the County Executives, the County Project Manager, the Program Manager and the Purchasing Agent. 

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 45 of 131 Pages



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 14 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 15 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 16 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 17 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 18 

QuAlIFICATIoNS oF THe 
PRIme CoNSulTANT1

A R C H I T eC T u R e 

e N g I N e e R I N g

I N T e R I o RS

A DvA N C e C o N S u lT I N g

P l A N N I N g

l A N D S C A P e A R C H I T eC T u R e

u R B A N D eS I g N

v IS uA l C o m m u N I C AT I o N S

S E R V I C E SL O C AT I O N S ++ M A R k E T S

Av I AT I o N

C o m m e R CI A l

C o R P o R AT e

H E A LT H CA R E

J u S T I C E

SCIEN CE + T ECH N O LO GY

g ov e R N m e N T

ED U CAT IO N

ATLANTA

BEIJING

CALGARY

CHICAGO

DALLAS

DENVER

DUBAI

HONG KONG

HOuSTON

LONDON

LOS ANGELES

MIAMI

MUMBAI

NEW YORK

OTTAWA

SAN 
FRANCISCO

SEATTLE

SHANGHAI

SINGAPORE

ST. LOUIS

TAMPA

TORONTO

VANCOUVER
WASHINGTON, 
D.C.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 19 

P H I L O S O P H y A N D A P P R OAC H 
HOK people are committed to creating 
environments that make a profoundly 
positive impact on people’s lives. Each 
HOK project is approached individually, 
without preconceptions, and designed to 
serve the unique needs and aspirations 
of the specific client and its surrounding 
community.

The firm’s flexible work processes 
and advanced technology equip us to 
effectively deliver projects of any size, 
scale or location. Our diverse talent 
and highly collaborative culture enables 
us to assemble teams with specialized 
expertise from throughout the HOK office 
network.

We embrace our unique responsibility as 
one of the world’s most influential design 
firms to advance sustainable design 
awareness, proficiency and innovation 
for every building type, geographic region 
and budget level. By developing solutions 
to enhance aesthetic goals while limiting 
resource consumption, improving building 
performance and promoting occupant 
health and productivity, HOK is leading 
the way to an increasingly sustainable 
future.

C O M P R EH EN S I V E P L A N N I N g , 
D E S I g N A N D D EL I V ERy 
S ERV I C E S 
HOK leads the planning, design and 
delivery process for diverse assignments 
in every part of the world, with a track 

record of delivering projects on time 
and within budget. HOK professionals 
deliver a range of integrated or individual 
services including:
•	 Advance Strategies/Facility 

Consulting
•	 Architecture
•	 BIM/Animation
•	 Construction Services
•	 Cost Estimating
•	 Facility Management
•	 Interior Design
•	 Laboratory Design
•	 Landscape Architecture
•	 Lighting Design
•	 Mechanical/Electrical/Plumbing 

Engineering
•	 Onsite Workplace Services
•	 Project Management
•	 Site Planning 
•	 Structural Engineering
•	 Urban Design 
•	 Visual Communications

C O M M I T M EN T T O 
S u S TA I N A b I L I T y 
We embrace our opportunity and 
unique responsibility as one of the 
world’s most influential design firms to 
advance sustainable design awareness, 
proficiency and innovation for every 
building type, geographic region and 
budget level.

By developing solutions to enhance 
aesthetic goals while limiting resource 
consumption, improving building 
performance and promoting occupant 

o u R vA l u eS
We Create: HoK creates exceptional
environments that meet design challenges
while linking people and place. our ideas
emerge from the intersection of many active
minds and imaginations.

We Inspire: our work inspires people while
shaping the future. HoK projects transcend
their initial purposes to express timeless
cultural, organizational and personal values.

We Connect: HoK’s ability to connect 
across markets and disciplines in every 
part of the world allows us to see the “big 
picture” and gives us an unparalleled ability 
to innovate.

We Care: We care deeply about the human
experience. We understand that our work 
has a profound influence on the world. We 
use design to protect natural environments 
and enrich lives.

W E  A R E  H O K .
 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 20 

health and productivity, HOK is leading 
the way to an increasingly sustainable 
future.

H O k T E x A S
The HOK Houston and Dallas offices 
offer a talented team of design 
professionals focused on creating 
outstanding corporate designs for our 
clients. We are recognized experts in 
the planning and design of leading edge 
environments for a variety of industries. 
Our approach balances functional and 
aesthetic considerations to produce 
tailored design solutions that fully reflect 
our client’s vision and unique business 
models. 

The HOK Houston office has been based 
in Houston since 1958.  Over the last 
five years, the HOK Houston office has 
designed over 30 million square feet 
of corporate office facilities including 
USAA, Sysco Foods, Hewlett Packard, 
IBM / Tivoli Systems, Jacobs Engineering 
and Shell.

The HOK presence in Dallas and 
Fort Worth began in 1968, when 
architectural design work was started 

for the Dallas/Fort Worth International 
Airport terminals. In 1973, HOK opened 
a separate regional office in Dallas to 
serve HOK projects then underway. The 
history of the Dallas office is filled with 
major architectural, interior, and planning 
commissions that stretch across the 
Metroplex, as well as the Southwest. 

Our approach is program driven to 
support all identified functional and 
operational goals. Our process is highly 
collaborative and interactive, based first 
and foremost on achieving our client’s 
goals.  We ask the right questions, 
are insightful in our observations, and 
innovative in our design solutions.

Our project workload and approach 
allows us to staff each project with 
highly seasoned professionals. We focus 
on building long-term relationships not 
just single projects, and much of our 
work comes from ongoing relationships 
and repeat clients. Whatever the 
requirements of your assignment, HOK 
can provide the necessary resources, and 
design leadership to make your project a 
success. 

H O k F I R S T S
•	 First Leed gold juvenile detention 

Center

•	 HoK designed the first Leed-certified 
airport terminal

•	 First Leed-certified embassy

•	 First Leed gold project in Latin 
america

•	 First Leed-Ci certified project in 
singapore

•	 First Leed-nC platinum project in 
saudi arabia

•	 First Leed-Ci gold project in the UK

H O k D E S I g N E D
over 125 
LEED, BREEAM and Green Mark certi-
fied projects

The largest  
LEED-NC Platinum project in the world

W E  A R E  T E X A S .
 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 21 

Our justice planners and architects bring 
a wide range of experience from local, 
state and federal government clients. 
Combining this knowledge of trends, 
best practices and benchmarks with the 
resources and technology of HOK, we are 
uniquely organized to deliver exceptional 
client service through the integration of a 
tailored team of specialists. 

HOK brings award-winning design 
capabilities and a special focus on finding 
innovative new ways to create engaging, 
secure, functional, sustainable and cost-
effective facilities. Over the past half 
century, we have designed approximately 
350 major justice projects, and 113 of 
these projects – more than any other 
firm – have earned national recognition 
for design excellence from the American 
Institute of Architects.

Our Justice Group includes more than 
20  in-house programmers, planners, 
designers, technical architects and 
project managers who work exclusively 
on Justice projects. We work closely with 
our clients, giving them direct personal 
attention and making them active 
participants in the decision-making team. 

T H O u g H T L E A D ERS H I P
Our thought leaders understand the 
organizational and political challenges 
facing our clients. They combine this 
experience, expertise and practical 
judgment to create environments that 
have clarity and coherence. 

A portion of our group’s time is devoted 
to moving justice design forward through 
thought leadership, speaking at and 
leading conferences and seminars, 
publishing articles, and collecting 
benchmark data on design, construction, 
costs and trends. 

P R O J EC T T y P E E x P ER I EN C E
•	Justice Centers
•	Courthouses
•	Law Enforcement Centers
•	  Detention Facilities
•	Correctional Facilities
•	Correctional Healthcare Facilities
•	Emergency Operations Centers
•	Juvenile Homes and Detention Centers
•	Juvenile/Family Courts
•	Crime Labs 

J u S T I C E P R O g R A M M I N g A N D 
P L A N N I N g E x P ER I EN C E
Over the past 20 years, HOK has been 
responsible for the programming and 
planning of approximately 75 major 
court and related justice facilities. This 
programming  was completed by in-house 
judicial programming specialists and also 
in conjunction with some of the nation’s 
leading independent judicial program-
mers.  

Of special significance is our experi-
ence with the operational analysis of 
alternative development strategies. 
In our programming efforts, we apply 
life-cycle cost analysis to the staffing 
and operational expenditures inherent in 

H O K  J U S T I C E
 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 22 

each alternative. As a result, the long-
range operations costs are evaluated 
concurrent with construction costs. This 
ensures that physical solutions are both 
efficient and cost effective.

Our services extend beyond traditional 
operational and architectural 
programming. We also have experience 
with case load analysis, alternative 
delivery options, operational policy and 
procedures, standards, master planning, 
needs assessment, facility management 
and economic feasibility studies. 

S TAT IS T I C S
•				Over	45	years	of	court	experience	in	

the United States, Canada, England, 
Singapore and Venezuela

•			140	court	facility	assignments
•				Over	50	court	projects	between	10	

and 72 courtrooms each
•				Over	1,660	municipal,	superior,	appel-

late, states supreme, federal, juvenile 
and family courtrooms

•				Seven	major	United	States	Court-
houses

•				Projects	ranging	in	size	from	1	to	72	
courtrooms each

•				Extensive	and	in-depth	programming	
and needs assessment experience

•			The	nation’s	largest	courthouse
•				Over	18,600,000	sq.	ft.	of	judicial	and	

related facilities, exceeding $3 billion 
in value

J u S T I C E H O N O RS A N D 
R EC O g N I T I O N
Organizations representing architects, 
judges, attorneys, law enforcement, 
landscape architects and interior plan-
ners have repeatedly recognized HOK 
courthouses as examples of excellence. 
Working with the National Center for 
State Courts, HOK staff were also 
involved in the development of national 
state court planning guidelines in the 
Courthouse: a planning and design 
guide for Court Facilities. The handbook 
educates judges, court administrators 
and state and local governments on the 
generation, planning and design of court 
facilities. 

Key areas in which HOK was involved 
include judicial facility design issues, 
such as site selection, access, security, 
court technology, specific courthouse 
design components, courtroom elements 
including relationships and adjacencies, 
support functions, and techniques for 
cost control.

H O K  J U S T I C E
 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 23 

Security 
Security has changed dramatically in 
the past decade, affecting everything 
from how people travel to how we send 
e-mail. Governments must frequently 
reevaluate how security measures are 
enforced and can be readily adaptable. 
Constantly changing threats from 
naturally occurring phenomenon as well 
as potential terrorist activity must be 
addressed. Yet it is also important to 
create secure environments that do not 
inhibit the interaction of the public and  
personnel within the facility.

HOK uses a layered approach to 
security. Strategies include designing 
to thwart physical threats from outside 
the facility; designing a single point of 
public entry; separating public, inmate 
and judicial circulation paths; creating 
vehicle stand-off distances to deter 
blasts; incorporating ballistic protection 
in bench design; and providing duress 
alarms. This approach includes planning 
and design issues at the site, building, 
entry, screening and queuing areas, 
and courtroom levels. We offer clients 
practical, functional and cost effective 
solutions that meet evolving judicial 
environments, providing insight on how 
to attain the right security solutions for 
specific building requirements. 

During the project, we lead design 
teams through a Security Needs 
Assessment, which identifies risk, 

and we illustrate how specific design 
issues can be applied in different 
agency settings.  Security equipment 
is carefully integrated into the design, 
as are measures to facilitate future 
change.  We offer our clients practical, 
functional and cost effective solutions 
that meet evolving judicial environments, 
providing insight on how to attain the 
right security solutions for their specific 
building requirements. Additionally, we 
can address how we have struck the 
delicate balance between creating a safe 
environment without compromising the 
comfort and convenience of building 
users.  Our clients are reassured to know 
that HOK can assist them with what 
security decisions should be made and 
how they affect the building design, 
infrastructure, construction costs, and 
operational cost.

Court Technology
HOK is an expert in applying technology 
and trends that affect judicial procedure 
and function. We incorporate various 
technology features to improve the 
efficiency of the courts and easily adapt 
to change. On an ongoing basis we 
collaborate with different organizations 
including the GSA and the Administrative 
Office of the United States Courts to 
improve the advancement of technology 
in the justice system. We work with 
these partners to develop better, 
more economical approaches to court 
technology and construction at all levels. 

as an integral part of society and a component of contemporary life in our cities and states, the courthouse is 
a powerful symbol that serves to define the image of justice in every community. We focus on providing inno-
vation and design excellence in court design that confronts the demands of our time, looks into our common 
future and prepares for tomorrow.

D E S I G N I N G  T H E  C O U R T 
H O U S E  O F  T H E  F U T U R E
 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 24 

Technology will always change, and today that change is 
happening faster than ever.  We incorporate wire management 
systems that allow wiring to be hidden from view and easily 
modified.  Other design considerations include clean and spike-
free power sources with back-up uninterrupted power sources, 
emergency power and lightning protection. Other examples of 
court technology include: 
•	Voice over internet protocol telephone systems
•	Videoconferencing/arraignment
•	Multi-lingual information kiosks
•	Audiovisual systems for effective evidence presentations 
•	Real-time transcription systems for the court reporters and 

assisted listening devices for the hard of hearing 

Sightlines
When designing a courtroom, it’s important to provide clear 
sightlines between participants and within a distance that 
promotes visual acuity. We work with court participants 
including judges, court reporters, court clerks, prosecutors 
and the local bar to ensure that the courtroom functions as 
needed. We also recommend verifying sightlines with a full-size 
courtroom mock-up for court participants to test. This prevents 
the need to make costly modifications to courtrooms during 
construction.

universal Design and Accessibility
Through our history, HOK has participated in the evolution of 
universally accessible and useful buildings and places. The 
law now requires that courthouses be accessible to all and 
be compliant  with the Americans with Disabilities Act. HOK 
has unrivaled experience with integrating accessibility into 
courthouse projects. Our people have served on committees 
such as the Courthouse Access Advisory Committee to develop 
specific guidelines for the Access Board that are practical and 
economical to implement.

Cost Management
HOK has gained an industry-wide reputation as a leader in 
providing the management and cost control skills that are 
essential to reconciling the inherent conflict between limited 
public resources and overwhelming judicial needs. Our projects 
have been delivered at costs significantly less than comparable 
facilities nationwide while maintaining the highest levels of 
functional and architectural excellence. We have been involved 
with Design-Bid-Build, Design-Build, Design-Build-Operate and 
Finance and multiple versions of Construction Management 
with constructors from all areas of the country. We understand 
your options.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 25 

                       CASE STUDIES

H O K  A D D E D  VA L U E
 

D E S I g N C R I T E R I A A R E D I F F E R E N T

Many architects and programmers treat 
design criteria documents much like
traditional bid sets, where they are 
intent on designing the project, and get 
focused on how they would execute the 
design. Because HOK has done this more 
than anyone else, we understand that 
developing an effective set of design 
criteria is a much different exercise. 
We understand that we need to vet the 
program fully, and communicate clearly 
with entities that will take the documents 
and turn them into a real facility. What 
that means to you is that we will identify 
the elements of the project that must 
be very defined at this stage and parts 
that can and should be left to the design 
builders to define, giving the full benefit 
of this project delivery type. 

We are more concerned with predictable 
outcomes and performance, and 

understanding how design build teams 
go about proposing on these jobs, than 
defining architectural or engineering 
agendas of our own. When the project 
is fully built and operating, you should 
not experience any element of design, 
quality or operations that does not fully 
meet your expectations. 

I M P O R TA N T k E yS T O S u C C E S S

There are typically many important 
keys to the success of a project. The 
selected team should have credibility 
with the stakeholders based on personal 
backgrounds and project experience 
of the firm. There should be highly 
collaborative process. The team should 
also employ a highly analytical process 
to reach good conclusions, should remain 
focused and objective, and should seek 
to provide sound advice to the County 
and the Courts. For this particular 
project, specific keys to success are:

We have identified special capabilities that the HoK team brings to the 
travis County CFCH project.

Union County Justice Complex

jonesboro, illinois

For many years, the citizens of Union 
County viewed their courthouse as a 
community eye sore, which was not wel-
coming to the public or convenient to do 
government business. the dilapidated 
150-year-old structure was a patch-
work of renovations and mismatched 
additions over the years, which made 
government functions ineffective, cum-
bersome and unsafe. Working closely 
with the client, community outreach 
was critical throughout, as voters 
recently approved a sales tax increase 
to fund this project. 

HoK worked with the board and com-
munity leaders to ensure the process 
was inclusive and consensus was 
achieved to move the site selection 
and design process forward. outreach 
efforts were also given to local trades 
and contractors. at these meetings, 
companies had the opportunity to 
review the project and connect with the 
design team and client.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 26 

“There are not enough 
adjectives in the English 
language to describe the 
pleasure we have coming 
to work now, the entire 
process here has a more 
professional feel.”

City Court Judge Angelo Morinello 

describing the Niagara Falls 

Municipal Complex

“HOK was instrumental 
in developing the pro-
gram, completing the 
planning, the design 
concept and the build-
ing costs, which led to 
a successful sales tax 
referendum.”

Harold D. Gibson, 

Director of Public Works Operations

Douglas County Department of 

Public Works describing the Robert 

A. Christensen Justice Center

CONSIDERATION OF LONG TERM
GROWTH: The development of the 
new Courthouse will certainly help 
to consolidate court functions. It 
will be important to ensure that 
the new facility and its proposed 
occupancy, is consistent with a 
holistic and comprehensive strategy 
for the County’s long-term goals and 
operational growth.

INTELLIGENT CONSIDERATION
OF OPERATIONS: It will be important 
to ensure that the facilities support 
their function. This seems very 
simplistic, but often facilities, 
particularly additions and annexes, do 
not blend well with existing structures. 
Courthouses are very unique with 
their specialized zoning and circulation 
requirements. Care must be taken 
to ensure that the design of the 
space supports, rather than inhibits, 
appropriate operations.

S u S TA I N A b L E D E S I g N
The HOK Justice Group utilizes sustain-
ability concepts in every justice center 
we design. Over the past 20 years, since 
the start of the green building movement, 
we integrate sustainability with security 
and operational requirements to create 
unique facilities that respect and rein-
force each client’s goals. 

Inherent in our Project Approach is 
our commitment to preserving the 
environment for future generations 

through sustainable design. There 
are many practical and cost effective 
ways to improve the environmental 
performance of buildings while 
enhancing functionality, comfort 
and aesthetics. “Green” buildings 
minimize environmental impacts over 
the full life cycle of a building – from 
acquisition of natural resources, product 
manufacturers and construction, 
installation and use, to its ultimate 
salvage or reuse. Significant financial 
benefits are gained due to increased 
building durability, lower maintenance 
costs and energy and water 
conservation. In addition to decreasing 
operating costs, “green” buildings also 
improve employee productivity due to 
improvements in indoor environmental 
quality, as well as add to the overall 
organizational and economic benefit of 
building green. 

H O K  A D D E D  VA L U E

( C o n t i n U e d ) 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 27 

“The Regional Justice 
Center is the best facility 
ever built.”

ray Coleman, associate director,
department of adult detention 
describing the King County 
justice Center

H O K  A D D E D  VA L U E

( C o n t i n U e d ) 

S u S TA I N A b L E O P P O R T u N I T I E S

Daylighting
Incorporating natural light improves the 
work environment, reducing absentee-
ism, turnover and the resulting associ-
ated costs. 

Combining daylight harvesting with 
multi-level switching and photo sensors 
significantly reduces electrical loads and 
the cooling required counteracting the 
heat generated by the lamps.  

By utilizing alternate natural light sourc-
es and borrowed light, natural light can 
enter the building while still maintaining 
privacy and security.

Water Usage
Water usage is a two-fold cost, the 
County pays first for the potable water 
and again for its treatment as sewage. 
New technologies give us the means to 
reduce water consumption, decrease hot 
water use and improve the efficiency of 
hot water generation.  

Energy
Perhaps the largest single operational 
expense outside of staffing is energy. 
We take a holistic approach to energy 
reduction that ties daylight harvesting, 
reduced hot water use together with 
increasing the thermal efficiency of the 
building envelope, maximizing the ef-
ficiency of individual HVAC systems, heat 
recovery from exhaust air and utilizing 

monitoring and control equipment.  

For example, in 2008, HOK completed 
the second phase of the Johnson 
County Detention Center. Joe Waters, 
the Facilities Director reported that 
the first year operating results for the 
addition was 38% more efficient than 
the one it adjoins. The facility was 
designed sustainability but was not LEED 
Certified. This was achieved from HOK’s 
standard design approach addressing the 
building configuration, wall construction 
and some key mechanical components.  

An example of more advanced technology 
used on similar facilities we have 
designed include ground source heat 
pumps (geothermal), landfill gas, biomass 
along with active systems of photovoltaic 
panels and small scale windmills.

Material Selection
 A fourth opportunity exists in the 
selection of building materials and 
construction techniques. There is no one 
solution that is best for every region. 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 28 

Utilizing local materials helps the local economy and decreases 
the cost and emissions to transport materials.  We analyze the 
market in each location with the construction team to determine 
the best method for your facility.  

M E T H O D O L O gy 
Throughout the design process the HOK team utilizes advanced 
computer tools to analyze the solar impact, prevailing winds and 
temperatures of the site; test building orientation for impact on 
heating, cooling and daylighting opportunities.  

Each opportunity will be analyzed on a life cycle cost basis 
providing for an objective decision making process. Many of 
the sustainable recommendations will be of little or no cost, 
what we call “low-hanging fruit” but there are many other 
opportunities which may be particularly beneficial. It is our 
responsibility to you that any additional cost is weighed against 
their payback and maintenance requirements.  

A H IS TO Ry O F S u C C E S S F u L P R O J EC T S
With more than two decades of hands-on sustainable 
design experience, HOK has consistently and convincingly 
demonstrated that “green” projects can be delivered without 
compromising aesthetic goals, building performance or budget 
constraints.

HOK currently has dozens of LEED® certified justice projects, 
including the Alameda County Juvenile Justice Center, the first 
LEED-Gold Certified Juvenile Justice Center in the nation.  

HOK also worked with the GSA to create a model for 
sustainability in courthouse design that promotes technical 
innovation and leadership in environmentally sensitive building 
design. The Alfred A. Arraj U.S. District Courthouse in Denver 
incorporates sustainable strategies that were appropriate 
and cost effective for the project. First costs and life-cycle 
costs were considered, as well as intangible benefits such 
as improved workplace environment, productivity, flexibility, 
maintainability, and occupant health and safety.

H O K  A D D E D  VA L U E

( C o n t i n U e d ) 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 29 

M A N AT E E  C O U N T Y 
J U D I C I A L  C E N T E R
Bradenton, Florida

S IZ e
268,000 SF
9-story
26,000 SF Renovated
100,000 SF for Future Use

C o m P l e T I o N
2007

S e R v I C eS
Feasibility Study, Program Verification, 
Concept Design, Full Architectural and 
Interior Design, Graphics Design

HOK Florida in association with Bradenton 
architects Fawley Bryant Architects 
completed the new Manatee County Judicial 
Center.  

HOK was commissioned in 2002 to 
Program and Masterplan a solution for the 
existing overcrowded historic courthouse. 
Through an extensive evaluation process 
of multiple options, including community 
involvement this solution was selected and 
HOK proceeded with full design services. 
The resulting project is a nine story, 

268,000 SF building connected to the 
existing jail and Sheriff’s office building. 
The Judicial Center includes 19 courtrooms 
and 5 hearing rooms. Judges and court 
administration are housed on a collegial 
floor at the top of the building. Courtrooms 
are designed for specific functions and 
are “shared.” There are specific courts for 
Criminal and Civil , Family and Teen, Drug 
and Probate, 10 of which have direct access 
to in-custody holding.

The project was designed using sustainable principles. Daylight and energy ef-
ficiency were of prime concern. Durable, low maintenance materials were used 
throughout. Technology infrastructure and security systems were planned with 
the greatest amount of future flexibility in mind.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 30 

M A N AT E E  C O U N T Y  J U D I C I A L  C E N T E R
( C o n t i n U e d ) 

Also within the building are offices for the Clerk of Courts, Jury Assembly and a public Law 
Library. Spaces in the now vacated jail and Sheriff’s building have been either renovated and 
reused to support the courts or left as shell space to accommodate future growth.

The project was designed using sustainable principles. Daylight and energy efficiency were 
of prime concern. Durable, low maintenance materials were used throughout. Technology 
infrastructure and security systems were planned with the greatest amount of future 
flexibility in mind.

Issues that the complex project has addressed as part of the solution are listed below:
•	 Provide spaces for the courts and support agencies including future growth
•	 Restore the center of Bradenton (2 City blocks) to civic purpose
•	 Upgrade the appearance of the existing jail
•	 Re-energize the pedestrian experience throughout the complex
•	 Improve vehicle circulation and safety
•	 Create a public plaza respecting the Historic courthouse and new Judicial Center
•	 The project has received the 2008 Energy Star Rating.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 31 

D E N V E R  J U S T I C E  C E N T E R
M A S T E R P L A N
Denver, Colorado

The Denver Justice Center Master Plan 
addresses the court and detention facility 
requirements of the City of Denver. The final 
master plan utilizes a combination of existing 
and new facilities to cost effectively address 
shortfalls. 

A new Criminal Courthouse and Pre-Trial 
Detention Center will be located on two 
blocks within the City’s Government District. 
Locating the Criminal and Juvenile courts 
to the new facility will add future capacity, 
reduce security concerns within the existing 
building where all courts are currently located 
and allows space for expansion of office 
functions. The courthouse will contain 31 
courtrooms in 345,000 sq.ft. It will be tied by 
tunnel to the proposed pre-detention facility.

The new Pre-Trial Detention Center is one 
component of the City’s overall detention 
requirements. It will replace the existing 
downtown intake center, which will be 
converted to law enforcement offices. This 
abridges the existing Smith Road detention 
complex, and will be dedicated to sentenced 
housing. All in-custody defendants will be 
housed in the new Pre-Trial Detention Center. 
It will have a capacity of 1,500 inmates and 
include two arraignment courts and complete 
support facilities.

A new parking structure will be constructed 
south of the detention center with capacity 
for 600 vehicles. It incorporates a new Post 
Office on its ground floor relocated from the 
site of the future Criminal Courthouse.

S I Z E

750,000 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Master Planning

C O M P L E T I O N

2005



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 32 

S I Z E

340,000 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Feasibility Study, Programming, Master 
Planning

C O M P L E T I O N

2008

The HOK programming and planning ef-
fort for Douglas County provides options 
and recommendations to establish a 
courthouse utilization plan for short-term 
and long-term needs of the 220,000 sq. 
ft. Douglas County Courthouse, which 
houses the county’s judicial and govern-
ment services functions. 

The programming and redeployment plan 
is based on a 20-year planning horizon 
and recognizes short-term and long-term 
needs in order to maximize efficiency 
and minimize court and customer service 

disruptions associated with phased 
implementation. The overall plan provides 
for a long-term program where the entire 
facility can be utilized for court services 
with up to 14 courtrooms with govern-
ment services functions relocated into 
a new 120,000 sq. ft. Government Ad-
ministration Complex on adjacent county 
property. The programming and planning 
included review of projected population 
and court case growth, space and staff 
needs, and existing building utilization 
and limitations.

D O U G L A S  C O U N T Y
C O u R T A N D g OV E R N M E N T S E R V I C E S C O M P L E x 
P R O g R A M M I N g A N D M A S T E R P L A N N I N g
Douglasville, Georgia



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 33 
hok .com

The new housing replaces 572 “variance” 
beds with “design” beds, as well as 762 
existing beds that are in older, poorly 
functioning buildings. 

Bridging Documents, including schematic 
design level plans, life safety drawings 
elevations, building sections, interior 
elevations, door and frame elevations and 
civil site plans with survey information and 
Design Criteria were issued in June 2006 to 
Travis County to solicit final design schemes 
and pricing from design-build teams. Three 
teams submitted qualifications, and two of 
the three submitted design modifications and 
pricing.

Upon selection of the Design-Build team, 
HOK was asked to provide document 
review and on-site construction monitoring 
services for Travis County. HOK attended 
all design review meetings and assisted 
the Owner in the preparation of issues lists 
during the design phase. HOK provided 
on-site construction support with a full-time 
construction administrator who attended 
all construction meetings, prepared filed 
reports, maintained the Owner’s copies of 
the shop drawings throughout construction, 
and assisted in the preparation of Owner’s 
punch lists. The project will be complete 
September 30, 2009.

The facility houses both male and female 
inmates and provides for minimum, medium 
and maximum security inmates. The scope of 

work includes associated support facilities 
and various site improvements to the campus 
and infrastructure.

The project objective is to meet the current 
and future needs (for a minimum of 7 years) 
of the Travis County Correctional Complex 
and to remove inefficiencies in the jail’s 
organization so that any future jail expansion 
will occur under a more streamlined and cost 
effective operation.

T R AV I S  C O U N T Y
C O R R E C T I O N A L  C O M P L E X
Austin, Texas

S I Z E
233,000 sq. ft.
1,334 beds

S E R v I C E S
Master Planning, Programming, Bridging 
Documents, Design Review, Construction 
Administration Services

C O M P L E T I O N
September 2009

D E L I v E R Y M E T H O D
Design/Build

HOK was selected by Travis County in 2005 to provide Master 
Planning, Programming and Design-Build bridging document services 
for their new 1,334-bed housing expansion at the Travis County 
Correctional Complex.  



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 34 

S TAT E  O F  R H O D E  I S L A N D 
S U P R E M E  C O U R T
k E N T C O u N T y C O u R T H O u S E
L EI g H T O N J u D I C I A L C O M P L E x
Warwick, Rhode Island

S I Z E

191,000 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Program Verification, Site and Building. 
Feasibility, Concept Design, Full Service 
Architecture, Interior Design, Security/
Courts Planning, Construction Administra-
tion, Value Engineering

C O M P L E T I O N

2006

Four times larger than its predecessor, 
this courthouse embraces the challenges 
of providing security, accessibility and 
flexibility, while best serving the public 
and the judicial staff. The complex 
includes space for 16 court rooms 
and offices for the District, Family and 
Superior Courts with each division 
occupying its own floor. 

At the ground level are offices for the 
Attorney General, Public Defender, 
probation offices and the Capitol Police. 
The complex is also separated by a 
100-foot-wide restored wetland garden 
to a new five-level parking garage. 

Separate covered walkways for the 
public and staff create a formal courtyard 
to the Judicial Center.
The architects sought to create a 
modern design with a complete clarity 
of expression of its functions—courts 
and administration—for visitors. After 
passing security and entering the lobby 
of the courthouse, visitors discover the 
elevator bank and the public stair as a 
central reference point. From here, at 
each of the three upper floors, the public 
space is positioned between the courts, 
arrayed in a simple row to the south, 
and all other departments and support 
offices, located to the north and west. 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 35 

L O R A I N  C O U N T Y
J u S T I C E C E N T E R
Elyria, Ohio

The Lorain County Justice Center’s com-
mitment to downtown Elyria impacts the 
economic and social base of the county, 
and serves residents with services in one 
unified, secure and convenient location. 
The facility consolidates multiple courts, 
judges, clerks and court-related offices 
and support spaces, which simplifies the 
legal process and improves the opera-
tional efficiency of the county. 

The seven-story building contains high-
traffic functions on the lower floors. The 
secure lobby area, an inviting double-

height space, provides space for queuing 
visitors. Separate circulation is provided 
behind the courtrooms for judges, jurors, 
and court staff. A shared holding area 
for detainees is provided for each pair of 
courtrooms, and central holding facilities 
for adults and juveniles are located in the 
basement. The building also includes a 
separate parking area for judges, and a 
vehicle sally port for receiving prisoners.

The architecture and mass of the building 
complements the surrounding historic 
community. It interprets the scale of the 

town square and reflects the architecture 
through the primary building materials 
used. The steel structure includes a ma-
sonry veneer with sandstone and glass 
curtain wall. Similar materials are found 
on the historic courthouse, churches and 
other public buildings in Lorain County. 
Blending, patterning and texturing of the 
various tones of brick based on the hue of 
the stone create a unified look, reducing 
the building’s visual mass. 

S I Z E

225,900 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Architectural Design, Programming, 
Court Planning, Site Design, Landscape 
Architecture, Detention Equipment 
Design

C O M P L E T I O N

2004



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 36 

M A R I O N  C O U N T Y
J u D I C I A L C E N T E R A D D I T I O N
Ocala, Florida

S I Z E

150,000 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Site Design, Site Evaluations, Concept 
Design, Architectural Design, Space 
Needs Analysis, 

C O M P L E T I O N

2010

The five-story expansion of the Marion 
County Justice Center provides new 
court space for the Florida 5th Judicial 
Circuit. It include five courtrooms: a 
large high-volume courtroom on the 
ground floor and four new multi-purpose 
courtrooms on the second floor. The 
ground floor also houses a new, larger 
Jury Assembly suite, court support 
programs, inmate holding & circulation 
and operational space for the Clerk of the 
Court. The fifth floor is the new home for 
the Marion State Attorney’s Office, which 
relocated from its nearby building. An 
additional two floors will be used as shell 
space.

Architecturally the expansion continues 
the contemporary design of the existing 
building, matching the latter in its 
geometry, building massing and material 
palate. It will include a new main entrance 
and security checkpoint for the Justice 
Center via a 40-foot-high covered 
“porch” which offers views of downtown 
Ocala via floor-to-ceiling windows on 
three levels. The dramatic entry creates 
a dignified but inviting civic edifice, 
balancing the requirements of security 
and transparency inherent in a building 
“for the people” as it serves the needs of 
Marion County for years to come.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 37 

N I A G A R A  FA L L S
M u N I C I PA L C O M P L E x
Niagara Falls, New York

S I Z E

135,000 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Architectural Design, Landscape Archi-
tecture, Interior Design, Lighting Design

C O M P L E T I O N

2009

Situated in a once desolate area of Main 
Street, this new state-of-the-art court 
facility consolidates municipal functions 
into one complex. The facility aims to be 
a catalyst to attract new business and 
rejuvenate the business district corridor.
 
The complex is located on a two-acre 
brownfield site and is divided into a 
three-story city court wing and a two-
story police headquarters. The two 
separate building functions are joined by 
a shared two-story entrance lobby.

The building’s architecture is primarily 
brick construction to embody the rich 
Niagara Falls masonry history. The facil-
ity entrance includes a symbolic bridge 
structure reminiscent of the historic 
Roebling Suspension Bridge. Taking 
advantage of the site’s angular shape and 
concerns about the city’s maintenance 
cost, the landscaping is modest with a 
simple lawn serving as a public gathering 
space for special events.  

Other program spaces include security 
queuing, screening, secure judges en-
trance, four modern courtrooms, judge’s 
chambers, jury deliberation suites, hear-
ing room, spacious jury assembly space, 
children’s center, modern police dispatch, 
briefing/training conference room, CSI 
labs, emergency response spaces, 
vehicle sally port, holding cells, specialty 
vehicle garages, and a five-lane indoor 
firing range and staff and public parking. 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 38 

S I Z E

71,600 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Architectural Design, Interior Design, 
Landscape Architecture, Mechanical/
Electrical Engineering, Plumbing & Fire 
Protection, Sustainable Design

C O M P L E T I O N

2010

R I C H A R D  E .  A R N A S O N
J U S T I C E  C E N T E R
J u D I C I A L  C O u N C I L  O F  C A L I F O R N I A :  A D M I N I S T R A T I V E  O F F I C E  O F 
T H E  C O u R T S

Pittsburg, California

The Richard E. Arnason Justice Center 
is a highly advanced, full service regional 
courthouse that serves as catalyst for 
renewal of a modest suburban city. 
Located in the county’s civic center, it 
is situated at the gateway to the central 
business district serving those arriving 
from the nearby rapid transit center or 
the adjacent highway. The building faces 
a newly improved tree lined boulevard, 
which serves as a border on the east end 
of this courthouse.

The design incorporates all principles 
of advanced courthouse planning. The 
three-level, 71,600-square-foot facility 
is the pilot project for implementation 
of California’s new Trial Court Facilities 

Standards. The courthouse provides 
traffic, family, criminal trial, and 
arraignment courtrooms. Currently 
programmed with seven courtrooms, 
it is designed with for future expansion 
to 10. All courtrooms employ advanced 
technologies and receive abundant 
natural light from windows and/or light 
monitors.   

The jury assembly and entry lobby 
portion of the project is uniquely 
designed to remain secure from the other 
portions of the building by a series of 
roll down grilles. This allows flexibility of 
use after hours by various community 
organizations. Secure judges’ parking is 
separate from both public parking and 

secure staff parking.  The facility’s goal 
provides a contemporary, yet enduring, 
civic edifice that is easily recognizable 
as a courthouse. The courthouse 
square, which connects the entry with 
public areas, is landscaped with native 
plants and trees, decomposed granite, 
and gradual steps and ramps up to the 
elevated building entry. The primary 
building materials are limestone, pre-cast 
concrete and glass. 

The building also employs a green roof 
and a network of bioswales on the site to 
address storm water runoff.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 39 

T H O M A S  F.  E A G L E T O N  U S 
D I S T R I C T  C O U R T H O U S E
g E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S  A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

St. Louis, Missouri

As a major landmark for the city of St. 
Louis, the Thomas F. Eagleton United 
States Courthouse is the home of the 
Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals and the 
District Court of Eastern Missouri. As the 
largest single courthouse in the world, 
it rises 560 feet with 29 floors above 
grade and four floors of parking and 
support space below.  

The tower, which houses trial courts, 
uses a unique split-level stacking 
concept that maximizes adjacencies, 
provides natural light to all public areas 
including courtrooms and increases 
the volumetric building efficiency while 

decreasing its overall height. It allows 
the courtrooms to be expressed on the 
exterior, differentiating the courthouse 
from corporate and speculative office 
buildings in the downtown area. 

The courthouse is designed to expand 
internally from 25 courtrooms to as many 
as 38 by displacing other government 
agencies while retaining stringent 
security and circulation requirements.  
The courthouse sits in the middle of the 
block, maximizing stand-off distance 
from surrounding streets to decrease the 
impact of car bombs and providing site 
area for future expansion.

S I Z E

1,037,632 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Architectural Design, Feasibility Study, 
Programming, Graphic Design, Interior 
Design, Landscape Architecture, 
Lighting, Master Plan, Site Design

C O M P L E T I O N

2000



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 40 

WA K E  C O U N T Y
J u S T I C E  C E N T E R

Raleigh, North Carolina

S I Z E

562,000 sq. ft.

S E R V I C E S

Program Verification Services, Full 
Architectural and Interior Design, 
Planning and Landscape Design, Graphic 
Design

C O M P L E T I O N

2013

Challenged by one of the highest rates 
of population and case load growth in 
the nation, the new Wake County Justice 
Center will house two major functions 
serving the citizens of the County: 
the Wake County Criminal Courts 
and the Wake County Public Records 
Administration. The 11-story facility 
has the capacity for 22 new criminal 
courtrooms equipped with state-of-the-
art technology, as well as more space for 
court support such as the Clerk of Court 
and Public Defender. 

The new Center also includes a new 
County Commissioners’ Meeting Room 
and County administrative offices. The 
site is bordered by the existing Public 
Safety Center and the existing Civil 
Courthouse, which are all connected via 
a subterranean tunnel to the new Justice 
Center. 

As a result of combining the judicial 
and government functions into one 
unified structure, the building has 
two public entries, each leading to the 
five-story atrium that acts as a “main 
street” connecting the public areas and 

functional components of the program. 
The exterior character of the building 
conveys the dignity, permanence and 
significance of the justice system and 
relates to the Art-Deco character of 
neighboring buildings. The tower-and-
podium massing of the building supports 
the pedestrian-friendly character 
of Raleigh’s downtown streets and 
also creates a landmark building that 
contributes positively to the city’s 
evolving skyline.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 41 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 42 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 43 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 44 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 45 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 46 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 47 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 48 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 49 

SUBCONSULTANTS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES QUESTIONNAIRE 

SECTION II : SUBCONSULTANT 

NOTE: This questionnaire must be completed in its entirety.  No modification to the wording is permitted.  
Qualifications Statements submitted with Professional Services Questionnaires that are incomplete or incorrect, or 
that have been altered, are subject to rejection.  

PROJECT 

NAME OF FIRM 

FIRM
REGISTRATION 

NO. 

ADDRESS OF SUBCONSULTANT’S HEADQUARTERS 

DATE OF 
ORGANIZATION 

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NUMBER(S) 

OFFICE FAX

SUBCONSULTANT EXPERIENCE 

  A. SUBCONSULTANT FIRM EXPERIENCE 

LIST BELOW (OR ON AN ATTACHMENT) ALL RELEVANT WORK PERFORMED BY THE 
MEMBERS OF THE SUBCONSULTANT’S TEAM DURING THE PAST THREE YEARS THAT 
RELATES TO AND WILL CONTRIBUTE TOWARD THE SUCCESS OF THE PROJECT UNDER 
CONSIDERATION.   

Name and location of related 
projects within the last 3 years 

Services
Provided 

Project 
Mgr. Name 

Construction 
Project Cost 

Client Contact Name 
and Phone No. 

    

    

    

    

    

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 21 of 131 Pages

#Q1309-006-JT, Independent Rep/Compliance Architect, Services for Design-Build Development New Travis County Civil and Family Courthouse

Jose I. Guerra, Inc.
F-3

2401 S. IH-35, Suite 210
Austin, Texas 78741

January 1,1973

512-445-2090 512-445-2099

UT Austin Robert B. Rowling Hall Civil Engineering  Bryan Floth $119,000,000  Jacobs: (817) 347-5946

UT Austin - Dell Computer Science Hall Civil Engineering Robert Lambert $74,500,000  STG: (512)-899-3500

UT DKR North End Zone Expansion Civil Engineering Phillip Lough $164,000,000 Heery Intl: (404)-946-2289

UT Austin - LBJ Library Plaza Renov. Civil Engineering Rick Archer $35,000,000 Overland Prtnrs: (210)-829-7003



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 50 

B.   SUBCONSULTANT’S TEAM EXPERIENCE 

 LIST NAMES OF SUBCONSULTANT’S CERTIFIED PROFESSIONALS AND OTHER LICENSED 
PERSONNEL EMPLOYED FULL-TIME IN A PROFESSIONAL POSITION WHO WILL BE 
WORKING ON THIS PROJECT.  INDICATE NUMBER OF YEARS OF EXPERIENCE MANAGING 
PROJECTS OF SIMILAR SIZE AND TYPE TO THE PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION.  
ATTACH RESUME(S) DESCRIBING SPECIFIC PROJECT-RELATED EXPERIENCE. 

NAME COLLEGE
DEGREE 

PROFESSIONAL 
REGISTRATION/LICENSE 

PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT 

EXP. 

TOTAL
YEARS. EXP 

PROJECT MANAGER:   

    

    

    

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 22 of 131 Pages

Rick Guerra BS, MS  P.E.  28 31

Russell Davidson BS  P.E. 15  17

Cesar Calderon  BS  P.E., LEED AP  6  8 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 51 

SUBCONSULTANTS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES QUESTIONNAIRE 

SECTION II : SUBCONSULTANT 

NOTE: This questionnaire must be completed in its entirety.  No modification to the wording is permitted.  
Qualifications Statements submitted with Professional Services Questionnaires that are incomplete or incorrect, or 
that have been altered, are subject to rejection.  

PROJECT 

NAME OF FIRM 

FIRM
REGISTRATION 

NO. 

ADDRESS OF SUBCONSULTANT’S HEADQUARTERS 

DATE OF 
ORGANIZATION 

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NUMBER(S) 

OFFICE FAX

SUBCONSULTANT EXPERIENCE 

  A. SUBCONSULTANT FIRM EXPERIENCE 

LIST BELOW (OR ON AN ATTACHMENT) ALL RELEVANT WORK PERFORMED BY THE 
MEMBERS OF THE SUBCONSULTANT’S TEAM DURING THE PAST THREE YEARS THAT 
RELATES TO AND WILL CONTRIBUTE TOWARD THE SUCCESS OF THE PROJECT UNDER 
CONSIDERATION.   

Name and location of related 
projects within the last 3 years 

Services
Provided 

Project 
Mgr. Name 

Construction 
Project Cost 

Client Contact Name 
and Phone No. 

    

    

    

    

    

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 21 of 131 Pages

Independent Representative/Compliance Architect (IR/CA) Services for the Design-Build Development 

for Travis County Civil and Family Court House, RFQ Number Q1309-006-JT 

Dan L. Wiley & Associates, Inc. 

n/a

7000 SE Federal Hwy. Suite 305

Stuart, Florida 34997

1992

772-283-5217        772-283-5219



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 52 

B.   SUBCONSULTANT’S TEAM EXPERIENCE 

 LIST NAMES OF SUBCONSULTANT’S CERTIFIED PROFESSIONALS AND OTHER LICENSED 
PERSONNEL EMPLOYED FULL-TIME IN A PROFESSIONAL POSITION WHO WILL BE 
WORKING ON THIS PROJECT.  INDICATE NUMBER OF YEARS OF EXPERIENCE MANAGING 
PROJECTS OF SIMILAR SIZE AND TYPE TO THE PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION.  
ATTACH RESUME(S) DESCRIBING SPECIFIC PROJECT-RELATED EXPERIENCE. 

NAME COLLEGE
DEGREE 

PROFESSIONAL 
REGISTRATION/LICENSE 

PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT 

EXP. 

TOTAL
YEARS. EXP 

PROJECT MANAGER:   

    

    

    

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 22 of 131 Pages

Dan L. Wiley    B of Arts n/a        28                               35



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 53 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 54 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 55 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 56 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 57 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 58 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 59 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 60 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 61 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 62 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 63 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 64 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 65 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 66 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 67 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 68 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 69 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 70 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 71 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 72 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 73 



ta b  2

j v  s tat e m e n t



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 74 

JoINT veNTuRe STATemeNT 2

Hellmuth, Obata & Kassabaum, LP is submitting this qualifications statement as an 
individual firm. HOK acknowledges, understands and agrees that the County has 
retained a Program Manager in connection with the overall Project, and that the work 
undertaken by the successful Respondent will be overseen and coordinated through 
the Program Manager, as well as the County.



ta b  3

c r i t i c a l  pat h  m e t h o d 

s c h e d u l e



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 75 

TeCHNICAl WoRK PlAN 3

PRoJeCT SeT uP  
HoK Has done many projeCts WHere We Have provided serviCes on tHe Front end oF a projeCt WHen tHe 
projeCt sCope and bUdget are  estabLisHed.  We Understand WHen We do tHis on pUbLiC projeCts We need 
to vet any  program FULLy and deveLop enoUgH projeCt inFormation to deveLop a reaListiC bUdget For 
tHe projeCt to be properLy FUnded.  projeCts are sUCCessFUL iF tHey are pLanned properLy.  We intend to 
WorK CLoseLy WitH yoU tHroUgHoUt tHis projeCt to maKe sUre tHe sCope and bUdget meet yoUr needs, 
and tHe projeCt rUns smootHLy.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Kick-off & Orientation meetings to refine project understanding
Establish communication protocol for the project
Refine project schedule

DeTeRmININg PRoJeCT PARAmeTeRS
We WiLL provide a CompreHensive revieW and anaLysis oF existing programs, FUnCtions, adjaCenCies 
and site parameters.  We WiLL WorK CLoseLy WitH internaL staKeHoLders to ensUre We Understand 
tHeir needs and metHods oF operation.  it is important to expLore options tHat improve tHe deLivery oF 
serviCes to tHe pUbLiC, as WeLL as tHe eFFiCienCy and eFFeCtiveness oF staFF and resoUrCes. 

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Hold multiple meetings and workshops for discussion and review 
Review existing space and functional program information    HOK, Dan Wiley
Addressing functional and spatial relationships     HOK, Dan Wiley
Discuss aesthetic requirements       HOK, Dan Wiley
Discuss sustainability         HOK
Discuss City of Austin building code and Fire Marshal requirements   HOK, Carter Design
Evaluate structural requirements       Datum
Discuss MEP and Fire Protection alternatives      Goetting Rowe Engineering
Evaluate site requirements, traffic requirements     HOK, Jose Guerra Inc., Alliance
Evaluate blast concerns for public courthouse, how to resolve    Hinman Consulting
Evaluate site and building security requirements     Latta Technology
Discuss Geotechnical and Phase 1 Environmental     Owner
Site Civil Engineering parameters and Utilities study     Jose Guerra Inc., Cardno TBE
Review facility parking requirements, possibilities     HWA
Cost Estimating development       EudaCorpx
Evaluate elevator requirements for high volume needs in the building   Lerch Bates
Evaluate high volume communication lines, data needs     Combs



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 76 

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Discuss plaza/landscape development      Asakura Robinson
Develop Acoustic and Audio Visual goals for the project     BAI

PRoJeCT DeFINITIoN PHASe
tHe seLeCted team sHoULd Have CredibiLity WitH tHe staKeHoLders based on personaL baCKgroUnds and 
projeCt experienCe.  tHere sHoULd be a HigHLy CoLLaborative proCess WitH staKeHoLders WHiCH HeLps to 
bUiLd ConsensUs For reCommendations.  tHe team sHoULd empLoy a HigHLy anaLytiCaL proCess to reaCH 
good ConCLUsions, sHoULd remain FoCUsed and objeCtive, and sHoULd seeK to provide soUnd adviCe to 
tHe CoUnty and tHe CoUrts.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Hold multiple meetings and workshops for development of project 
Finalize project space program and adjacencies     HOK, Dan Wiley
Develop building layout options       HOK
Develop building aesthetic alternatives      HOK
Develop site layout, landscape, plaza alternatives     HOK, Asakura Robinson
Develop sustainability parameters       HOK
Develop site utility and civil engineering requirements     Jose Guerra Inc., Cardno TBE
Develop MEP and Fire Protection requirements     Goetting Rowe Engineering Inc.
Meet with City of Austin and Fire Marshal to discuss facility    HOK, Carter Design
Hold multiple meetings to decide on preferred solutions     Entire Team
Refine parameter development for the project      Entire Team
Continue development of Project Cost Estimates and Project Budget   EudaCorp

DeveloPmeNT oF ReNDeRINgS AND PuBlIC INFoRmATIoN
gaining ConsensUs amongst aLL team members is important to tHe deveLopment oF a sUCCessFUL 
projeCt.  in addition to team members, in tHis Case tHe pUbLiC aLso mUst FeeL tHat tHe projeCt team Has 
done tHeir HomeWorK and Has provided an oUtstanding soLUtion tHat WiLL meet tHe CoUnty’s needs For 
many years.  it WiLL be important tHat We prodUCe impressive renderings and projeCt inFormation tHat 
aCCUrateLy dispLays tHe need For tHis projeCt, as WeLL as a projeCt ConsitUents WiLL be proUd oF.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Preparation of Renderings and related materials       HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Assist as necessary in preparation for the bond referendum     HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects

TeCHNICAl WoRK PlAN, CoNTINueD3



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 77 

TeCHNICAl WoRK PlAN, CoNTINueD3

PRePARe RFQ To SHoRT lIST elIgIBle D/B TeAmS FoR THe PRoJeCT, PARTICIPATe IN evAluATIoN oF 
RePoNSeS To THe RFQ.
oUr team WiLL prepare an rFQ tHat properLy expLains tHe prospeCtive projeCt to d/b teams.  tHe rFQ WiLL 
asK For important inFormation tHat WiLL enabLe tHe revieW team to determine WHiCH QUaLiFied d/b teams 
We Want to move ForWard WitH For tHe design/bUiLd Competition pHase.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Develop RFQ         HOK
Assist in issuance of RFQ        HOK
Review RFQ’s         HOK
Possible attendance at Interview       HOK
Provide assistance in determining short list of D/B teams    HOK

FuRTHeRINg oF DeSIgN CoNCePTS To ASSIST IN THe evAluATIoN oF THe RFP AgAINST THe D/B 
ReSPoNSeS.
revieWing d/b proposaLs For CompLianCe WitH yoUr speCiFiC projeCt needs is an ardUoUs tasK.  tHere WiLL 
be a Large amoUnt oF inFormation to revieW From eaCH d/b team, and oUr team needs to estabLisH a Fair 
Way to grade tHe diFFerent proposaLs.  tHe best Way to do tHis is to prepare a ConCept tHe revieW team 
Can Use as a basis oF WHiCH to anaLyze tHe diFFerent design proposaLs.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Develop project concept to use as a go-by for reviewing D/B proposals   Entire Team

PRePARe RFP FoR THe PRoJeCT AND PARTICIPATe IN THe evAluATIoN oF PRoPoSAlS.
an organized rFp and design Criteria doCUment WiLL provide CLear direCtion to tHe d/b teams tHat are 
seLeCted to move ForWard WitH tHis pUrsUit.  oUr team Has experienCe in preparing rFp’s and design 
Criteria doCUments.  We Understand tHe steps and tHe type oF inFormation tHat needs to be inCLUded in 
tHe rFp so tHat We reCeive sUCCessFUL d/b proposaLs.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Develop D/B RFP and Statement of Requirements (SOR)     Entire Team
Assist in issuance D/B RFP        HOK
Provide interim D/B design review meetings      HOK
Respond to RFI’s during proposal phase      Entire Team
Evaluate Proposals        Entire Team
Attend interviews if necessary       HOK
Provide assistance in determining short list of D/B teams    HOK



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 78 

AFTeR CoNTRACT AWARD, ACT oN THe ClIeNT’S BeHAlF IN ReCommeNDINg ReFINemeNT THRougHouT 
DeSIgN AND DeTAIlINg AND CoNSTRuCTIoN DoCumeNTATIoN.
as arCHiteCts and engineers, We Have experienCe in tHe design proCess.  Having pUt togetHer tHe design 
Criteria doCUments, We WiLL aLso KnoW WHat to LooK For WHen revieWing design doCUments, and in 
attending d/b team meetings.

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Kick-off & Orientation meetings with D/B Team      HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Meet weekly with the design team       HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Provide oversight to design team during design phase     HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Respond to RFIs during design phase       Entire Team

PARTICIPATe IN evAluATIoN oF D/B TeAm DelIveRABleS, moNIToR D/B TeAm PeRFoRmANCe oN A 
moNTHly BASIS, SuBmIT moNTHly STATuS RePoRTS.
HoK WiLL provide montHLy progress reports WHiCH sUmmarize CritiCaL deCisions WHiCH Have been made.  
We WiLL identiFy Key meetings and miLestones WHiCH oCCUrred dUring tHe montH and WiLL aLso Compare 
progress to tHe projeCt sCHedULe.  tHese reports WiLL provide yoU a QUiCK reFerenCe as to tHe statUs 
oF tHe projeCt as a WHoLe, and aLso WiLL provide doCUmentation For WHen tHings Happened

TASK           TeAm memBeR   
Participate in compliance reviews for technical and financial compliance   HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Prepare summary status reports each month      HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Oversee LEED process and Commissioning process     HOK
Monitor and review RFI’s as necessary      HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Assist in management of invoices and payment recommendation    HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Perform deficiency reviews         HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Perform warranty period reviews       HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects
Assist in compiling final project documentation      HOK, Carter Design, TWG Architects

TeCHNICAl WoRK PlAN, CoNTINueD3



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 79 

3

ID Task Name Start Finish

1 Commissioners approve contractTue 3/18/14 Tue 3/18/14

2 Phase I Initiation
3 Kick‐off meeting Mon 3/24/14 Mon 3/24/14
4 Refine project understanding Wed 3/19/14 Wed 4/2/14

5 Develop/Refine schedule Wed 3/19/14 Wed 4/2/14
6 Phase II Definition 

Development
Wed 3/26/14 Thu 10/9/14

7 Task 1 Project Definition Wed 3/26/14 Thu 3/27/14
8 Workshops/Meetings Wed 3/26/14 Thu 3/27/14
9 Task 2A Development of site 

information
Mon 3/31/14 Mon 5/26/14

10 survey Mon 3/31/14 Mon 5/26/14
11 geotechnical data Mon 3/31/14 Mon 5/26/14
12 Phase 1 environmental Mon 3/31/14 Mon 5/26/14
13 utility study Mon 3/31/14 Mon 5/26/14
14 Task 2B Architectural 

Program Verification
Wed 3/26/14 Fri 5/30/14

15 Workshops/Meetings Wed 4/9/14 Thu 4/10/14
16 Workshops/Meetings Wed 4/23/14 Thu 4/24/14
17 review square footage 

needs
Wed 3/26/14 Thu 4/24/14

18 review parking needs Wed 3/26/14 Thu 4/24/14
19 review forecasting of needsWed 3/26/14 Thu 4/24/14

20 review grossing factors Wed 3/26/14 Thu 4/24/14
21 review adjacencies Wed 3/26/14 Thu 4/24/14
22 consider additional tenants Wed 3/26/14 Thu 4/24/14

23 Review meeting with 
stakeholders

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 4/25/14

24 Workshops/Meetings Wed 5/7/14 Thu 5/8/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 1 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

25 Workshops/Meetings and 
review meeting with 
stakeholders

Wed 5/21/14 Thu 5/22/14

26 commercial uses Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14
27 full build‐out vs. use of 

future expansion
Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14

28 how to separate additional 
tenants

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14

29 County Review Period Mon 5/26/14 Fri 5/30/14
30 Task 2C Project Development 

Profile
Fri 4/25/14 Mon 7/28/14

31 Develop, refine and 
finalize the space program,
develop functional 
concepts

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

32 civil and family court 
house

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

33 parking requirements Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14
34 additional potential uses

on this property
Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

35 Coordinate program with
site: size, orientations, 
relationships

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

36 Workshops and review 
meeting with stakeholders

Wed 6/25/14 Thu 6/26/14

37 Workshops and review 
meeting with stakeholders

Wed 7/23/14 Thu 7/24/14

38 County Review Period Mon 7/14/14 Mon 7/21/14
39 Finalize concept Tue 7/22/14 Mon 7/28/14
40 Task 2D Identify 

sustainability objectives of 
the project.  Review

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 2 HOK

CRITICAl PATH meTHoD 
SCHeDule 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 80 

ID Task Name Start Finish

25 Workshops/Meetings and 
review meeting with 
stakeholders

Wed 5/21/14 Thu 5/22/14

26 commercial uses Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14
27 full build‐out vs. use of 

future expansion
Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14

28 how to separate additional 
tenants

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14

29 County Review Period Mon 5/26/14 Fri 5/30/14
30 Task 2C Project Development 

Profile
Fri 4/25/14 Mon 7/28/14

31 Develop, refine and 
finalize the space program,
develop functional 
concepts

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

32 civil and family court 
house

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

33 parking requirements Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14
34 additional potential uses

on this property
Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

35 Coordinate program with
site: size, orientations, 
relationships

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

36 Workshops and review 
meeting with stakeholders

Wed 6/25/14 Thu 6/26/14

37 Workshops and review 
meeting with stakeholders

Wed 7/23/14 Thu 7/24/14

38 County Review Period Mon 7/14/14 Mon 7/21/14
39 Finalize concept Tue 7/22/14 Mon 7/28/14
40 Task 2D Identify 

sustainability objectives of 
the project.  Review

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 2 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

25 Workshops/Meetings and 
review meeting with 
stakeholders

Wed 5/21/14 Thu 5/22/14

26 commercial uses Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14
27 full build‐out vs. use of 

future expansion
Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14

28 how to separate additional 
tenants

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 5/23/14

29 County Review Period Mon 5/26/14 Fri 5/30/14
30 Task 2C Project Development 

Profile
Fri 4/25/14 Mon 7/28/14

31 Develop, refine and 
finalize the space program,
develop functional 
concepts

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

32 civil and family court 
house

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

33 parking requirements Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14
34 additional potential uses

on this property
Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

35 Coordinate program with
site: size, orientations, 
relationships

Fri 4/25/14 Fri 7/11/14

36 Workshops and review 
meeting with stakeholders

Wed 6/25/14 Thu 6/26/14

37 Workshops and review 
meeting with stakeholders

Wed 7/23/14 Thu 7/24/14

38 County Review Period Mon 7/14/14 Mon 7/21/14
39 Finalize concept Tue 7/22/14 Mon 7/28/14
40 Task 2D Identify 

sustainability objectives of 
the project.  Review

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 2 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

41 reduced operational utility 
costs

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

42 reduced maintenance costs Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

43 increased life of building 
systems and equip.

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

44 increased user satisfaction Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

45 community enhancement Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

46 support local industry and 
economy

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

47 reduce global 
environmental impacts

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

48 analysis of participation in 
the Austin Energy Central 
Energy Loop

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

49 Task 3 Develop, review and 
refine cost estimates

Thu 4/24/14 Tue 7/29/14

50 Task 3B develop risk‐based
cost estimate

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

51 consider project phasing 
and timeframe

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

52 develop cost estimates 
for design options

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

53 include appropriate 
contingencies

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

54 Task 3D Budget structure Thu 4/24/14 Tue 7/29/14
55 Coordinate budget 

formats with program 
manager

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 5/1/14

56 County review, refine 
overall project budget

Wed 7/9/14 Tue 7/29/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 3 HOK

CRITICAl PATH meTHoD 
SCHeDule, CoNTINueD

3



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 81 

ID Task Name Start Finish

41 reduced operational utility 
costs

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

42 reduced maintenance costs Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

43 increased life of building 
systems and equip.

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

44 increased user satisfaction Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

45 community enhancement Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

46 support local industry and 
economy

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

47 reduce global 
environmental impacts

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

48 analysis of participation in 
the Austin Energy Central 
Energy Loop

Mon 5/26/14 Thu 7/24/14

49 Task 3 Develop, review and 
refine cost estimates

Thu 4/24/14 Tue 7/29/14

50 Task 3B develop risk‐based
cost estimate

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

51 consider project phasing 
and timeframe

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

52 develop cost estimates 
for design options

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

53 include appropriate 
contingencies

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 7/24/14

54 Task 3D Budget structure Thu 4/24/14 Tue 7/29/14
55 Coordinate budget 

formats with program 
manager

Thu 4/24/14 Thu 5/1/14

56 County review, refine 
overall project budget

Wed 7/9/14 Tue 7/29/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 3 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

57 Task 4 Public Information and
Education Materials

Wed 7/30/14 Wed 8/20/14

58 Task 4A develop materials 
for public information and 
education program

Wed 7/30/14 Wed 8/20/14

59 Phase III Procurement 
Document Preparation

Wed 10/1/14 Mon 1/18/16

60 Task 1 Assist program 
manager in development of 
the procurement packages

Wed 10/1/14 Mon 1/18/16

61 create solicitation 
documents for a two‐step 
process, a RFQ and an RFP

Wed 10/1/14 Mon 1/19/15

62 Prepare RFQ documents Wed 10/1/14 Wed 10/22/14
63 County Review Period Thu 10/23/14 Thu 10/30/14
64 Pick up review comments Fri 10/31/14 Thu 11/6/14

65 Issue RFQ Wed 10/1/14 Wed 10/1/14
66 Review and assess RFQ 

responses
Fri 12/19/14 Fri 1/16/15

67 assemble, review and 
finalize the design criteria 
package

Fri 11/7/14 Mon 1/19/15

68 County Review Period Tue 1/20/15 Tue 1/27/15
69 Issue D/B Team RFP Mon 2/2/15 Mon 2/2/15
70 prepare responses for RFI's 

during the RFP phase
Mon 2/16/15 Thu 4/30/15

71 Phase IV Proposal Evaluation, 
selection and negotiation

Fri 5/1/15 Wed 5/20/15

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 4 HOK

CRITICAl PATH meTHoD 
SCHeDule, CoNTINueD

3



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 82 

ID Task Name Start Finish

57 Task 4 Public Information and
Education Materials

Wed 7/30/14 Wed 8/20/14

58 Task 4A develop materials 
for public information and 
education program

Wed 7/30/14 Wed 8/20/14

59 Phase III Procurement 
Document Preparation

Wed 10/1/14 Mon 1/18/16

60 Task 1 Assist program 
manager in development of 
the procurement packages

Wed 10/1/14 Mon 1/18/16

61 create solicitation 
documents for a two‐step 
process, a RFQ and an RFP

Wed 10/1/14 Mon 1/19/15

62 Prepare RFQ documents Wed 10/1/14 Wed 10/22/14
63 County Review Period Thu 10/23/14 Thu 10/30/14
64 Pick up review comments Fri 10/31/14 Thu 11/6/14

65 Issue RFQ Wed 10/1/14 Wed 10/1/14
66 Review and assess RFQ 

responses
Fri 12/19/14 Fri 1/16/15

67 assemble, review and 
finalize the design criteria 
package

Fri 11/7/14 Mon 1/19/15

68 County Review Period Tue 1/20/15 Tue 1/27/15
69 Issue D/B Team RFP Mon 2/2/15 Mon 2/2/15
70 prepare responses for RFI's 

during the RFP phase
Mon 2/16/15 Thu 4/30/15

71 Phase IV Proposal Evaluation, 
selection and negotiation

Fri 5/1/15 Wed 5/20/15

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 4 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

72 Task 1 conduct a technical 
compliance check on the 
proposals in conjunction with 
the program manager

Fri 5/1/15 Wed 5/6/15

73 Task 2 evaluate technical 
aspects of the proposals.  
Provide a summary 
assessment for discussion 
with the evaluation team

Thu 5/7/15 Wed 5/20/15

74 Phase V Construction and 
Implementation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

75 participate in oversight of the 
design, construction and 
implementation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

76 assist with communication 
protocols and governance

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

77 meet weekly with the team 
during the design phase

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

78 participate in compliance 
reviews for technical and 
financial compliance with the 
D/B agreement

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

79 produce information and 
identify potential scope 
changes, negotiate with D/B 
team

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

80 prepare summary status 
reports each month

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

81 oversee LEED commissioning 
process

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

82 tracking comment resolution 
process

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

83 summary status reports Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16
84 monitor and participate in 

review of RFI's
Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 5 HOK

CRITICAl PATH meTHoD 
SCHeDule, CoNTINueD

3



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 83 

ID Task Name Start Finish

72 Task 1 conduct a technical 
compliance check on the 
proposals in conjunction with 
the program manager

Fri 5/1/15 Wed 5/6/15

73 Task 2 evaluate technical 
aspects of the proposals.  
Provide a summary 
assessment for discussion 
with the evaluation team

Thu 5/7/15 Wed 5/20/15

74 Phase V Construction and 
Implementation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

75 participate in oversight of the 
design, construction and 
implementation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

76 assist with communication 
protocols and governance

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

77 meet weekly with the team 
during the design phase

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

78 participate in compliance 
reviews for technical and 
financial compliance with the 
D/B agreement

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

79 produce information and 
identify potential scope 
changes, negotiate with D/B 
team

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

80 prepare summary status 
reports each month

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

81 oversee LEED commissioning 
process

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

82 tracking comment resolution 
process

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

83 summary status reports Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16
84 monitor and participate in 

review of RFI's
Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 5 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

85 provide schedule of 
deliverables

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

86 assist in management of 
invoices and payment 
recommendation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 6 HOK

ID Task Name Start Finish

72 Task 1 conduct a technical 
compliance check on the 
proposals in conjunction with 
the program manager

Fri 5/1/15 Wed 5/6/15

73 Task 2 evaluate technical 
aspects of the proposals.  
Provide a summary 
assessment for discussion 
with the evaluation team

Thu 5/7/15 Wed 5/20/15

74 Phase V Construction and 
Implementation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

75 participate in oversight of the 
design, construction and 
implementation

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

76 assist with communication 
protocols and governance

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

77 meet weekly with the team 
during the design phase

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

78 participate in compliance 
reviews for technical and 
financial compliance with the 
D/B agreement

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

79 produce information and 
identify potential scope 
changes, negotiate with D/B 
team

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

80 prepare summary status 
reports each month

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

81 oversee LEED commissioning 
process

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

82 tracking comment resolution 
process

Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

83 summary status reports Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16
84 monitor and participate in 

review of RFI's
Mon 6/1/15 Fri 12/30/16

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1
2014 2015 2016 2017

Travis County CFCH Page 5 HOK

CRITICAl PATH meTHoD 
SCHeDule, CoNTINueD

3



ta b  4

o r g a n i z at i o n a l 

s t r u c t u r e



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 84 

oRgANIZATIoNAl CHART 
+PRoJeCT mANAgemeNT 4

In order for the new Travis County 
CFCH to be successful, the IR/CA team 
must interact very closely with the 
Program Manager and Travis County.  
Project leadership for this team will 
be provided by the project manager, 
Curt Parde, who will be responsible 
for ensuring clear and seamless 
communication with the County 
and the Program Manager. Curt has 
extensive experience managing large 
design projects of similar size and 
scope. He has a big picture mentality 
and the experience to know what needs 
to be accomplished, and when.  Team 
members will report to our project 
manager as the project moves through 
the different phases. Curt's involvement 
will begin with contract negotiation as 
we discuss the specifics of our services 
for this project, and he will stay involved 
through project completion.  

Members of our team have many 
successful years of experience working 
on similar courthouse projects together. 
That depth of joint experience results in 
improved levels of team communication 
as well as an understanding of project 
and performance expectations. Our 
court designer, court planner and court 
programmer each have significant 
experience in courthouse project 
development, and in providing planning 
and bridging document services for 
courthouse projects.  The experience 
they bring to Travis County cannot 
be matched in the industry. The 
in-depth courthouse experience of this 

entire team will provide Travis County 
outstanding expertise that will make this 
a successful project.  As you can see 
from the org chart, our team includes a 
comprehensive list of consultants that 
will be beneficial in our planning of this 
large new courthouse.  Many of the 
consultants are local, and these team 
members will provide valuable skills 
and information for each of their areas 
of expertise.  Our project team has a 
work plan that shows each individual’s 
activities and involvement during 
different phases of the project.  This 
workplan will ensure that the work we 
perform for Travis County will be well 
coordinated.
 
While we understand the importance of 
a robust team, we also understand the 
utmost importance of a single, reliable 
point of contact for the County. A single 
point of contact means that Travis 
County will have one person they know 
they can pick up the telephone and call if 
they need something.  Our single point 
of contact will be our project manager, 
Curt Parde.  He will provide the day to 
day contact for the county, and he will 
ensure our entire team is organized 
and is aware of what they need to do 
and when.  A single point of contact 
does not mean that everything needs 
to run through the project manager. 
It does mean that the project will be 
well coordinated with a work plan that 
ensures the project is organized at all 
times.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 85 

PRoJeCT mANAgeR
Curt Parde

Court Designer
Duncan Broyd

Court Planner
Bob Schwartz

Program validation
Dan Wiley

Project Architect
Steve Brookover

Director of Design
Roger Soto

local Partner, Design Input
Donna Carter

local Partner, Interiors
Laura Warren

landscape Design
Asakura Robinson

Sustainability
Deborah Fuller

ARCHITeCTuRe

Cost estimating
Euda (formerly Apex)

Parking
HWA

Blast Consultant
Hinman

Audio visual Acoustics
BAI

vertical
Lerch Bates

utilities locator
Cardo

SPeCIAlTy CoNSulTANTS

PRINCIPAl-IN-CHARge
Jeff Bradley

Structural
Datum Gozier

mechanical electrical Plumbing 
(meP)

Goetting Rowe

Civil
Jose Guerra, Inc.

Traffic
Alliance

Security electronic Controls
Latta Technology

Network Cabling
Combs

eNgINeeRINg

INDICATeS mBe/WBe TeAm-
mATeS



ta b  5

a u t h o r i z e d  d e l eg at e



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 86 

AuTHoRIZeD DelegATe  5

Hellmuth, Obata & Kassabaum, LP has selected Jay Tatum, managing principal for 
HOK’s Texas practice as the delegate authorized to negotiate contract terms and 
render binding decisions on contract matters. His contact information is:

Jay Tatum, AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Senior Vice President  |  Managing Principal
e: jay.tatum@hok.com
t: +1 713 407 7753  
m: +1 832 215 1767
a: 2711 North Haskell Avenue, Suite 2250, LB 26  |  Dallas, TX 75204 USA



ta b  6

q u a l i f i c at i o n s  o f  p r i m e 

c o n s u lta n t  a n d  t e a m



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 87 

M I A M I - D A D E  C O U N T Y
J u D g E  S E y M O u R  g E L b E R  &  J u D g E  W I L L I A M  E .  g L A D S T O N E  M I A M I -

D A D E  C H I L D R E N ’ S  C O u R T H O u S E

Miami, Florida

SCoPe oF THe PRoJeCT
Miami-Dade County’s new Judge Seymour Gelber & Judge 
William E. Gladstone Miami-Dade Children’s Courthouse, which 
will serve their Eleventh Judicial Circuit Juvenile Court.  The 
3.38 acre site is located adjacent to the ‘Government Center’ 
Metro Rail/ Metro mover station in downtown Miami.  The 
urban location along with an onsite bus stop will make the 
new courthouse extremely accessible to the community. The 
new 14-story courthouse is designed to house 371,500 sf 
including 18 courtrooms, administrative and support spaces, 
common area and mechanical spaces. The courthouse is 
designed as a “signature building” at the heart of downtown 
Miami. The unique and pioneering program combines juvenile 
courts with family courts. Within its walls, young people will see 
their fates debated and decided. Adults will see their children 
judged, or crucial family issues decided. Going to court for 

judicial resolution of criminal or family civil disputes is highly 
stressful for plaintiffs and defendants, for those accused and 
those victimized. The Family Court Division handles domestic 
relations, divorce, child custody and support, paternity, 
adoption and probate. The Juvenile Court Services handles 
delinquency and dependency matters. 

HoK’S DeSIgN SoluTIoN 
The design solution gave considerable attention to sustaining 
the multi-cultural values surrounding children in the justice 
system in Dade County and to carry that attention through all 
aspects of design, including the aim of achieving a Silver LEED 
certified courthouse.  Sustaining the environment extends 
to sustaining basic values regarding the care of children that 
find themselves participants in the justice system either as 
dependents or delinquents. The design of an environment that 

QuAlIFICATIoNS6



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 88 

is non-threatening, but judicial for children should be different 
from one for adults.  Sustaining family values through the 
complexity of proceedings in juvenile court is more than “lip 
service” and if properly considered impacts the size, type, and 
configuration of spaces as well as scale and choice of materials. 
The 378,000 sq. ft., 14-story building is designed to house 18 
courtrooms, administrative and support space, common areas 
and mechanical space. It will be a facility especially designed 
as a judicial environment for children. From early programming 
decisions to the choice of building materials, the process has 
been one that reflects the importance of value-driven justice 
and care. 

TImeFRAme oF THe DeSIgN eFFoRT AND SuBSeQueNT 
PHASeS oF THe ImPlemeNTATIoN(S)
Contract Award Date: 12/28/2005
Pre-Design: 8/29/2005-12/28/2005
Schematic Design: 1/23/2006-6/16/2006
Design Development: 7/28/2006-5/30/2008
Construction Documents: 6/3/2008-10/02/2009
Construction 8/1/2011-3/31/2014 (est.)

AmouNT oF SPACe INvolveD IN BoTH THe evAluATIoN 
AND THe PRoPoSeD SoluTIoN
14 stories, 18 courtrooms
o Public Lobbies  (all floors) 46,827 sq. ft. 
o Building Shared Spaces  79,654 sq. ft.
o Courts (Chambers + Courtrms.) 83,414 sq. ft., 
o Administrative Office of Courts 17,066 sq. ft.

o State Attorney   19,433 sq. ft.
o Public Defender  18,519 sq. ft.
o Court Security   19,760 sq. ft.
o Clerk of Courts   16,352 sq. ft.
o Court Support Agencies 44,004 sq. ft.
o Mech. / Elec. / Comm  26,471 sq. ft.
o grand total   371,500 sq. ft.

ToTAl PRoJeCT CoSTS, INCluDINg PRoFeSSIoNAl FeeS
$176,000,000

ACTuAl ReSulTS AND ouTComeS
o National Center for State Courts Retrospective of 
Courthouse Design 2001-2010, Citation Received, Published 
and Exhibited
o American Institute of Architects – Justice Facilities review 
2009, Citation Received, Published and Exhibited

LESSONS LEARNED
1. A significant logistical challenge is to combine the courts and 
ALL support agencies under one roof. Although this decision is 
highly beneficial to the children and families involved, it requires 
plan approval by 16 agencies as well as the Courts.

2. Maintaining a realistic project construction budget has 
tested the design team and client during the recent period of 
extremely high construction and material rate escalation.

3. Planning and design for children and families in a judicial 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 89 

environment were impacted by the complex international 
socioeconomic demographics of Miami Dade County, 
the unique range of legal issues, and security and spatial 
requirements.

IN ADDITIoN, IF THe “CASe STuDy” WAS A PRoJeCT 
uNDeRTAKeN IN ACCoRDANCe WITH SuBCHAPTeR 
g, CHAPTeR 2269, TexAS goveRNmeNT CoDe, THe 
ReSPoNDeNT SHoulD INDICATe HoW ITS WoRK 
ComPlIeD WITH AND CoNFoRmeD WITH THe CoDe, 
AS Well AS DeTAIlS THAT WeRe SPeCIFIC To THAT 
uNDeRTAKINg. 
N/A

ReFeReNCeS FRom THe ClIeNTS FoR THe SuBJeCT 
PRoJeCT(S) SHoulD Be INCluDeD AloNg WITH ANy 
STATemeNTS THAT mAy HAve BeeN oBTAINeD FRom THe 
ClIeNTS RegARDINg ACTuAl ReSulTS. 
Rick Martinez 
Miami-Dade County Director, Facilities and Security 
Management
11th Judicial Circuit
Dade County Courthouse
73 West Flagler Street

Miami, FL  33130 
Phone (305) 349-7425
Mobile (305) 726-40645
Email: Rmartinez@jud11.flcourts.org

THe WRITTeN SummARy muST AlSo INCluDe CleAR 
DeSIgNATIoN oF eACH TeAm memBeR’S Role AND THe 
SeRvICeS PRovIDeD oN THe SeleCTeD PRoJeCTS. 
Duncan Broyd –PIC, Courts Planner
Dan Wiley -Program Verification



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 90 

TA R R A N T  C O U N T Y 
C I V I L  C O u R T S  b u I L D I N g 

Fort Worth, Texas 

SCoPe oF THe PRoJeCT
HOK, in collaboration with HKS, was asked to provide space 
programming, site master planning, full design and engineering 
services for the new Tarrant County Civil Courthouse.  The 
project was developed as a CM@Risk project.  HOK worked 
closely with the construction manager throughout the design 
and construction phases.  As follow-up, HOK is now working 
with Tarrant County in developing a master plan for the 
Criminal Courts and related departments, for the next 20 years 
for Tarrant County. 

The County’s new Civil Courts Building is to be located in 
downtown Fort Worth two blocks east of the historic 1895 
Courthouse. The first phase of the project consisted of 
detailed programming, which included department profiles, 
caseload and personnel projections, space standards, and 
space projections.  The program calls for twelve civil district 
courts, a mega-courtroom for larger multi-litigant trials, Court 
of Appeals,  jury services assembly area, district clerk offices, 

secure underground parking for judges, and support/back-of-
house areas.

HoK’S DeSIgN SoluTIoN
On this tight urban site the Court floor plans dictate the 
overall layout of the Court building.  The size of column free 
spaces required by the courtooms dictates the structure.  The 
separate circulation requirements necessary for security, 
(public, inmate and judges) also dictate vertical circulation 
requirements that cannot cross, throughout the building. For 
this project, the new Tarrant County College ‘Trinity River Bluff’ 
campus sits on a site separating the new Civil Courts Building 
from the 1895 Historic Courthouse.  The new college building 
sits in a sunken plaza, therefore the Civil Courts Building has 
a view over the sunken plaza to the Historic Courthouse.  The 
Tarrant County Family Law Center is located southwest of the 
Civil Courts Building, and a public parking garage will also serve 
the campus.  The exterior design solution provides a plaza in 
front of the new Civil Court Building, with the building’s façade 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 91 

on axis with the east façade of the 1895 Historic Courthouse.  
The new Civil Courts Building closely matches the height and 
massing of the recently completed Family Law Center.  The 
architecture of the Family Law Center and the Civil Court 
Building complement each other and provide stately Courthouse 
facades that relate well with the 1895 Historic Courthouse. 

The building’s massing and height will closely match that of 
the Family Law Center. The exterior will utilize Texas and 
regional materials such as brick and natural stones. Vernacular 
downtown Fort Worth architectural forms and elements such as 
bay windows and ornamental metal work will be employed.

As a sustainable project, the facility is expected to achieve 
LEED Silver certification.

TImeFRAme oF THe DeSIgN eFFoRT AND SuBSeQueNT 
PHASeS oF THe ImPlemeNTATIoN(S)
Pre-design: November 2008 - March 2009.  
Schematic design/Design development were completed March 
2011.

Construction documents were completed February 2012.
The building is under construction and is scheduled to be com-
plete Fall of 2014.

AmouNT oF SPACe INvolveD IN BoTH THe evAluATIoN 
AND THe PRoPoSeD SoluTIoN
13 District Civil Courts
 231,934 sf

ToTAl PRoJeCT CoSTS, INCluDINg PRoFeSSIoNAl FeeS
$71,608,000

ACTuAl ReSulTS AND ouTComeS
The urban fabric of Fort Worth is complimented by this new Civil 
Courthouse.  Careful attention has been given to the Tarrant 
County buildings recently developed in this area, to ensure that 
the historic nature of this part of downtown connects to the 
adjacent, very successful Sundance Square area in downtown.  
Although historic in its persona, the new facility is a courthouse 
for the future.  Energy efficient HVAC systems and  lighting 
have been integrated into the design.   Durability of materials is 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 92 

important in Courthouses, since these facilities are planned to 
be utilized for 100 years.   

leSSoNS leARNeD 
1. On a tight urban site study surrounding uses and available 
parking that might serve this facility.  Availability of parking for 
building employees as well as the public, is important.

2. Courthouses are long-term public buildings that need to 
connect with the surrounding urban fabric of the area.  Pay 
special attention to surrounding plazas and feature buildings to 
ensure the facility creates a strong sense of place for important 
proceedings that take place in a Civil Courthouse.

3. Provide time at the end of each design phase to review 
project cost estimates against available budgets for the project.  
Resolve differences in cost before moving to the next phase.

IN ADDITIoN, IF THe “CASe STuDy” WAS A PRoJeCT 
uNDeRTAKeN IN ACCoRDANCe WITH SuBCHAPTeR 
g, CHAPTeR 2269, TexAS goveRNmeNT CoDe, THe 
ReSPoNDeNT SHoulD INDICATe HoW ITS WoRK 
ComPlIeD WITH AND CoNFoRmeD WITH THe CoDe, 
AS Well AS DeTAIlS THAT WeRe SPeCIFIC To THAT 
uNDeRTAKINg. 
This project was performed per Chapter 2269, Subchapter F, 
Construction Manager-At Risk Method, 2 step process.  The 

work that HOK provided was that of the Architect hired by the 
County to provide Architectural planning and design services 
for the project.

ReFeReNCeS FRom THe ClIeNTS FoR THe SuBJeCT 
PRoJeCT(S) SHoulD Be INCluDeD AloNg WITH ANy 
STATemeNTS THAT mAy HAve BeeN oBTAINeD FRom THe 
ClIeNTS RegARDINg ACTuAl ReSulTS. 
David Phillips
Director, Tarrant County Facilities Management
100 W. Weatherford
Fort Worth, Texas  76196
E; dphillips@tarrantcounty.com
T: 817 884-3344
C: (817) 991-1377

THe WRITTeN SummARy muST AlSo INCluDe CleAR 
DeSIgNATIoN oF eACH TeAm memBeR’S Role AND THe 
SeRvICeS PRovIDeD oN THe SeleCTeD PRoJeCTS. 
Duncan Broyd – PIC/ DESIGNER
Stephen Brookover – PROJECT ARCHITECT
Curt Parde – C.A. PHASE INVOLVEMENT AND COURT 
MASTER PLANNING
Dan Wiley- PROGRAMMER/MASTER PLANNER



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 93 

A L F R E D  A .  A R R A J 
U S  D I S T R I C T 
C O U R T H O U S E  A N N E X
g E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S  A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

Denver, Colorado

SCoPe oF THe PRoJeCT 
The Alfred A. Arraj U. S. District Courthouse Annex in Denver’s 
downtown conveys an image of respect and reflects the city’s 
rich architectural heritage. As design architect, HOK partnered 
with Anderson Mason Dale on this landmark structure. 

The GSA required this facility to be operational for 100 years, 
and also to be designed to a high level of sustainability.  GSA’s 
Public Building’s Service goal for the project was to provide a 
superior workplace for the Federal worker and superior value to 
the American taxpayer. HOK, in association with AMD, provided 
architectural design, court planning master planning and light-
ing design for the project.

HoK’S DeSIgN SoluTIoN 
The Alfred Arraj U.S. District Courthouse Annex in downtown 
Denver conveys an image of respect and reflects the city’s 
rich architectural heritage.  The 10-story courthouse contains 
10 District Courts, four Magistrate Courts and one Special 

Proceedings courtroom.  The building also provides space 
for the Clerk of the Court and the U.S. Marshal Service, and 
potential to expand on site for additional courtroom space 
when needed.  The building is connected by tunnel to the 
existing courthouse across the street, and completes a four-
block government district.  The design solution meets the 
latest security and functional requirements of the courts and 
presents an open and inviting image while demonstrating the 
owner’s commitment to environmental stewardship, creating 
a showcase for sustainable design.  First costs and life-cycle 
costs were considered as well as intangible benefits such 
as improved workplace environment, productivity, flexibility, 
maintainability, and occupant health and safety.  Materials were 
selected based on environmental and occupant impact, such as 
embodied energy, indoor air quality, and resource depletion.  

The ten-story courthouse contains 10 District, four Magistrate 
and one Special Proceedings courtrooms, the Clerk of the Court 
and the U.S. Marshal Service, with potential to expand on site 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 94 

for additional courtroom space. It is connected by tunnel to the 
existing courthouse across the street, and is part of a four-block 
government district. The courthouse meets the latest security 
and functional requirements of the courts, and presents an open 
and inviting image while demonstrating GSA’s commitment to 
environmental stewardship creating a showcase for sustainable 
design.   

The building is designed to remain effective for 100-years. 
Raised access floor systems provide wire management 
flexibility and air distribution. Materials were selected based 
on environmental and occupant impact, such as embodied 
energy, indoor air quality, and resource depletion. Low impact 
landscaping minimizes water use and reduces urban heat island 
effect.

TImeFRAme oF THe DeSIgN eFFoRT AND SuBSeQueNT 
PHASeS oF THe ImPlemeNTATIoN(S) 
 PRE DESIGN     01/01/1994 - 3/20/1996
SCHEMATIC /DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 05/01/1996 - 

12/01/1998   
 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS     01/01/1999 - 09/01/1999    
 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION     01/01/1999  11/01/2002

AmouNT oF SPACe INvolveD IN BoTH THe evAluATIoN 
AND THe PRoPoSeD SoluTIoN
10 stories
15 Courtrooms
318,000 sf

ToTAl PRoJeCT CoSTS, INCluDINg PRoFeSSIoNAl 
FeeS
$86,000,000 

leSSoNS leARNeD 
1. During the design phase it became apparent that all 
departments and users in the building need to agree on the 
design solutions.  Getting buy-in from everyone involved, in 
terms of functional relationships and adjacencies in the building 
is paramount to a successful project.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 95 

2. When designing courthouses, we are designing facilities that 
will be utilized for a very long time.  Designing for innovative use 
and flexibility are important. It is also important to have the ability 
to explain why a new way of doing things is going to be better for 
the project. 

IN ADDITIoN, IF THe “CASe STuDy” WAS A PRoJeCT 
uNDeRTAKeN IN ACCoRDANCe WITH SuBCHAPTeR 
g, CHAPTeR 2269, TexAS goveRNmeNT CoDe, THe 
ReSPoNDeNT SHoulD INDICATe HoW ITS WoRK ComPlIeD 
WITH AND CoNFoRmeD WITH THe CoDe, AS Well AS 
DeTAIlS THAT WeRe SPeCIFIC To THAT uNDeRTAKINg. 
N/A

ReFeReNCeS FRom THe ClIeNTS FoR THe SuBJeCT 
PRoJeCT(S) SHoulD Be INCluDeD AloNg WITH ANy 
STATemeNTS THAT mAy HAve BeeN oBTAINeD FRom THe 
ClIeNTS RegARDINg ACTuAl ReSulTS. 
Curtis Berg
GSA Project Manager
Denver Federal Center
Building 41, PO Box 25546
Denver Colorado  80225
t: 303-236-8000

THe WRITTeN SummARy muST AlSo INCluDe CleAR 
DeSIgNATIoN oF eACH TeAm memBeR’S Role AND THe 
SeRvICeS PRovIDeD oN THe SeleCTeD PRoJeCTS. 
Robert Schwartz, Courts Planner



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 96 

PRoJeCT PeRSoNNel6

the hoK team for the travis county civil and family court house ProJect rePresents the 

thought leadershiP, design excellence and ProJect delivery needed to deliver this imPor-

tant ProJect. We have augmented the hoK design team With consultants Whose exPertise in 

their disciPlines, exPerience on Justice ProJects and commitment to travis county are un-

matched. this grouP of Professionals Brings not only their design talents and Proven sKills, 

But also their exPertise in the Planning, Programming and managing of ProJects such as 

yours.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 97 

CURT PARDE , A I A ,  L E E D A P b D + C

PRoJeCT mANAgeR I  vICe PReSIDeNT

Curt is involved with projects from inception to completion. He works closely with the 
client in developing the scope of services and agreements, and ensuring that the project 
stays on track through completion.  During the design and document phases he works 
with the client to determine specific solutions to design criteria which minimize cost and 
expedite construction.  Through his previous experience, Curt has developed a thorough 
understanding of the importance of creating award-winning designs that are efficient and 
profitable and produce strong client relationships. 

Curt has managed several projects providing independent representative compliance 
architectural services, and has significant experience with D/B projects as well. Curt 
recently provided IR/CA services for the province of Alberta, Canada for a new law 
enforcement training center.

Hays County * 
Courthouse and government Center 
san marcos, texas

Tarrant County 
Courthouse masterplan

Fort Worth, texas

Kaufman County 
Courthouse Planning and Bond Assistance

Kaufman, texas

ellis County *
Courthouse and Parking Facility
Waxahachie, texas

Potter County 
Justice Center masterplan  
amarillo, texas

u.S. Federal Courthouse *
Laredo, texas

multnomah County * 
east County Justice Center 
gresham, oregon

4 Johnson County *
County Administration Building Program-
ming & RFP Development
olathe, Kansas

Johnson County *
County-wide master Plan
olathe, Kansas

Roman l. Hruska u.S. Federal Courthouse *
omaha, nebraska

larimer County * Courts Complex
Loveland, Colorado

Santa Fe County *
Courthouse Construction management 
Services
sante Fe, new mexico

Crosstown Center *
Court Facility Redevelopment
Kalamazoo, michigan

Denton County *
Administrative Complex master Planning
denton, texas

4 Denton County *
law enforcement Center
denton, texas

4Denton County *
Administrative Complex Phase I
denton, texas

Houston County * 
Criminal justice Complex 
perry, georgia

Colorado Federal Correctional Complex *
Florence, Colorado

1111 mockingbird lane *
mixed-use Facility
dallas, texas

e D u C AT I o N

University of Nebraska Lincoln
Bachelor of Arts, Architecture
Southeast Community College
Associates Degree, Architectural Studies

P R o F e S S I o N A l R eg I S T R AT I o N S

Registered Architect: Texas, Colorado, 
Nebraska
LEED Accredited Professional

m e m B e R S H I P S

American Institute of Architects (AIA)
Texas Society of Architects 
U.S. Green Building Council
Urban Land Institute

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 98 

DUNCAN BROYD ,  R I b A , L E E D A P b D + C

CouRT AND SeCuRIT y Pl ANNeR

Duncan has more than 30 years experience as an architect and for the past 25 years, 
has specialized in the planning and programming of justice facilities.  He has dealt with 
multi-faceted clients, extensive consultant coordination and the complex planning and 
construction process required for both large and small justice projects.

In his more than 20 years at HOK, Duncan has completed courts projects including two 
Federal Courthouses (Tampa & Miami) the Manatee County Judicial Center, Hialeah 
Branch Courthouse, Kent County, Rhode Island Courthouse, Brevard County Courthouse, 
Niagara Falls Public Safety Complex and the Pinellas County Criminal Courts. He has a 
number of other courts projects currently in design and construction. He has been involved 
as a courts’ and security planner on a number of other courts’ design efforts.  He brings 
experience in all types of project delivery-Design Build, Design Bid Build, Construction 
Management and Public Private Partnerships.  He has fulfilled the roles of program and 
concept development, feasibility studies, existing conditions analysis as well as detailed 
design and construction documents. 

4 miami-Dade County Children’s 
Courthouse 
miami, Florida

4 Tarrant County Civil Courts Facility
Fort Worth, texas

Tarrant County Criminal Courts 
masterplan and Building evaluation
Fort Worth, texas

Broward County Civil/Family Courthouse
Fort Lauderdale, Florida

Hillsborough County (Plant City) east 
County Court Complex
plant City, Florida

gloucester County Justice Complex
Woodbury, new jersey

marion County Judicial Center Addition
ocala, Florida

4 Niagara Courthouse & Police Station
niagara Falls, new york

4 manatee County Judicial Center
bradenton, Florida

4 Staten Island Courthouse
staten island, new york

Wilkie D. Ferguson, Jr. u.S. Courthouse
miami, Florida

Kent County Courthouse
Warwick, rhode island

Hialeah Branch Courthouse
Hialeah, Florida

Harry T. & Harriette v. moore Justice 
Center  
melbourne, Florida

Santa Rosa Courthouse
milton, Florida

Sam m. gibbons u.S. Courthouse
tampa, Florida

California Courts Consulting
Plant City County Court
plant City, Florida

moore Justice Center Addition
melbourne, Florida

Second District Court of Appeals
tampa, Florida

Pinellas County Criminal Courts Complex
Clearwater, Florida

greenville County Courthouse
greenville, south Carolina

e D u C AT I o N

Liverpool University School of Architec-
ture
Bachelor of Arts (honours), 1977
Bachelor of Architecture (honours), 1980

P R o F e S S I o N A l R eg I S T R AT I o N

Registered Architect UK (ARB)
Chartered Architect UK (RIBA)
LEED Accredited Professional BD + C

m e m B e R S H I P S

Tampa Downtown Partnership
Executive Committee and Board of 
Directors, 2005-current
Royal Institute of British Architects 
Associate AIA
Leadership Tampa, 1995
Earth Charter, U.S. Board Member 
2005-08
Alpha House Board of Directors 2000 
2012

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 99 

ROBERT SCHWARTz ,  N C A R b , FA I A ,  L E E D A P

gRouP vICe PReSIDeNT I JuSTICe Pl ANNeR AND SeCuRIT y ADvISoR

Robert, a programmer, planner and designer is a thought leader in HOK’s Justice Practice 
with over 35 years’ experience. With a thorough knowledge of planning, accessibility, 
sustainability, security and technology concepts and standards he has developed master 
plans and building concepts for courthouse, law enforcement, correctional and detention 
facilities that creatively fulfill his clients’ unique requirements, providing operationally 
efficient and secure facilities. He strives to develop innovative concepts and synergies 
between building users that increase operational and construction efficiencies.  Twenty-
two of his past projects have received awards from the American Institute of Architects for 
design excellence in their annual Justice Facilities Review.   

He is a nationally recognized leader in justice design and regularly lectures at national 
conferences. He was a major contributor to the National Center for State Courts 
publication, The Courthouse: A Planning and Design Guide for Court Facilities.  This 
landmark publication He also served on a federal panel of architects, engineers, contractors 
and developers to establish methods to reduce the cost of federal courthouse construction.  
His work has been published in several textbooks on Justice Design including Building 
Type Basics for Justice Facilities and Celebrating the Courthouse.  He was a member of 
the Courthouse Access Advisory Committee of the U.S.Access Board developing national 
standards for courthouse accessibility.  Most recently he developed Court Technology and 
IT Standards for Courthouse with Infocomm which will be published in August 2013.

Alfred A. Arraj uS District  
Courthouse Annex
denver, Colorado

Potter Stewart u.S. Courthouse and 
Federal Building Renovation Court 
Programming and Planning
Cincinnati, ohio

Indianapolis Justice Complex
indianapolis, indiana

union County Courthouse
jonesboro, illinois

Johnson County Courts master Plan
olathe, Kansas 

Wake County Justice Center
raleigh, north Carolina

Kane County Traffic Court
st. Charles, illinois

east multnomah County Courthouse
gresham, oregon

Washtenaw County District 14A 
Courthouse
ann arbor, michigan

Palm Beach County Courthouse and 
Detention Center expansions
West palm beach, Florida

Bronx Civil Courts Peer Review
new york, new york

Douglas County Courthouse master Plan
douglasville, georgia 

California Trial Court Standards
California

eastern Jackson County Courthouse
independence, missouri 

Kalamazoo County Justice System 
Facilites master Plan
Kalamazoo, michigan

lorain County Justice Center
elyria, ohio 

4 Washtenaw County District Court
ann arbor, michigan

Douglas County Court and government 
Services Complex Programming and 
master Planning
douglasville, georgia

e D u C AT I o N

Washington University
Master of Architecture and Urban Design, 

1978

University of Illinois-Chicago 
Bachelor of Architecture, 1975
Honors with Highest Distinction in Design 
AIA School Medal

P R o F e S S I o N A l R eg I S T R AT I o N S

Registered Architect: Illinois; NCARB
LEED Accredited Professional

m e m B e R S H I P S

American Institute of Architects
American Correctional Association
National Center for State Courts

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 100 

JEFF BR ADLEY
PRINCIPAl-IN-CHARge I Co-DIReCToR oF JuSTICe gRouP

Jeff resides in Round Rock, TX and is the co-director of HOK’s firm-wide Justice Practice.  
He has 23 years of Justice project experience in both the domestic and international 
markets.  His project expertise covers Courthouses (both County and Federal), Crime 
Labs, County Jails, Police Stations, and Prisons including 18 County Courthouses, 13 
Federal Courthouses, 81 County Jails, and 17 Police Stations.  Jeff’s in-depth operational 
knowledge of these facilities, his professionalism, and trusted reputation have paved the 
way to many successful projects.  

Jeff’s primary project role for the past 9 years has been as the Principal in Charge of 
many major justice projects throughout Texas and across the nation.  He makes sure 
the client, project team, and the project receive all the resources they need to deliver 
superior projects.  Jeff also is a certified Physical Security Professional - PSP.  Jeff’s 
duties also included; systemic analysis of entire County justice systems, facility system 
evaluations, providing system design for new facilities and retrofits of existing facilities, 
recommending alternative solutions, and evaluating the proposed system solutions of 
consultants, engineers, contractors, and end users.  His extensive security background 
and understanding of operations provide unique and valuable insight into his leadership of 
justice projects.  

Hays County * 
Courthouse and government Center 
san marcos, texas

Tarrant County 
Courthouse masterplan

Fort Worth, texas

Kaufman County 
Courthouse Planning and Bond Assistance

Kaufman, texas

ellis County *
Courthouse and Parking Facility
Waxahachie, texas

Potter County 
Justice Center masterplan  
amarillo, texas

4 Cobb County Superior Courthouse
marietta, georgia

Sante Fe County Courts -
sante Fe, new mexico

Ada County Courthouse
boise, idaho

Brunswick County Courthouse
brunswick, virginia

Caroline County Courthouse
bowling green, virginia

DeKalb County Courthouse
atlanta, georgia

Dinwiddie Courts Facility
dinwiddie, virginia

Fresno Dependency Court
Fresno, California

Ingham Court Facility
Lansing, michigan

los Angeles County Courthouse
Los angeles, California

multnomah County Justice Center
portland, orgeon

Sacramento County Courthouse
sacramento, California

united States Courthouse
denver, Colorado

united States Courthouse
Fort smith, arkansas

united States Courthouse
gulfport, mississippi

R eg I S T R AT I o N :
PSP – certified Physical Security Professional, 
by ASIS

P R o F e S S I o N A l AC T I v I T I e S :
Member of American Society for Industrial 
Security (ASIS) International: 
Appointed Board Member of the Physical 
Security Council – 7 years; 
Appointed Member - Physical Security 
Council’s Education Committee; 
Co-Chair Chapter Liaison PSC.
Associate Member of Texas Sheriff’s 
Association
Member of National Sheriff’s Association
Member of Former Texas Rangers
Association 
Member of National Association of Court 
Management
Former Williamson County Fern Bluff MUD 
District VP
Former Williamson County Emergency Services 
District President
American Jail Association
Member of American Correctional Association

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 101 

STEPHEN BROOKOVER ,  A I A ,  L E E D b D + C

PRoJeCT ARCHITeCT

Steve has over 20 years of related architectural experience, including the development 
of technical design solutions and leading BIM utilization efforts. As Project Architect, 
Steve manages the technical aspects of the project and is directly responsible for 
thorough, accurate and well-coordinated documentation that captures the intended 
design. His responsibilities include the development and review of production drawings 
and construction documents, managing in-house and consultant coordination efforts, 
interfacing with city and governmental agencies, and maintaining communications with 
the client and contractor.  

4  Tarrant County Civil Courts Building
Fort Worth, texas

South Texas Detention Complex
pearsall, texas

lea County Detention Facility
Lovington, new mexico

Arizona State Prison 
Florence West expansion
Florence, arizona

Federal Correctional Institution 
Phase II Proposal
pollock, Louisiana

1601 Wewatta office Building/garage
denver, Colorado

Kimberly-Clark Corporate Headquarters*
irving, texas

Harwood International*
dallas, texas

Transwestern Property Company*
dallas, texas

lakewood office Center*
austin, texas

City of Dallas Royal Park Pavilion
dallas, texas

Houston meTRo light Rail
Houston, texas

omni Fort Worth Hotel and Condominiums
Fort Worth, texas

e D u C AT I o N

University of Texas at Arlington
Master of Architecture, 1991
Bachelor of Science in Architecture, 
1988

P R o F e S S I o N A l R eg I S T R AT I o N S

Registered Architect: Texas, #18921 
LEED Accredited Professional

m e m B e R S H I P S

American Institute of Architects

AWA R D S

Trailblazer Urban Design Award, Omni 
Fort Worth Hotel and Condominiums, 
2009
Downtown Fort Worth, Inc.

Design Award, Houston METRO Light 
Rail, 2004
AIA, Houston Chapter

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 102 

ROGER SOTO , A I A ,  L E E D A P

DIReCToR oF DeSIgN

Roger has been with HOK for over 20 years. As the Design Director of the Gulf Coast 
Region, Roger is responsible for the quality and integrity of all architectural design 
delivered from the region. As a principal of the region, he assumes responsibility for 
client service and team performance. With a primary focus on the design of corporate 
facilities, Roger has a depth of experience in all building types including high-rise, mid-
rise, and corporate campus projects. 

4 uSAA Norterra Campus 
master Plan and  Phase I  
phoenix, arizona

4 uSAA Norterra Campus expansion
phoenix, arizona

Washington mutual 
Campus master Plan and expansion 
san antonio, texas

Capital one * 
Campus expansion 
richmond, virginia

4 Sysco 
Corporate Headquarters 
Houston, texas

4 IBm / Tivoli Systems 
Headquarters master Plan and Campus 
austin, texas

4 Hines/Shell oil Company 
Woodcreek master Plan and Phase I 
Houston, texas

4 Capital market Authority
Super High Rise office Building Design
riyadh, saudi arabia

4 Trammell Crow 
energy Center Phases I and II
Houston, texas

4 Sky view Corporate  office Complex 
gurgaon, india

4 King Abdullah university of Science and 
Technology (KAuST) 
master Plan and Campus
thuwal, saudi arabia

Research Forest 
lakeside  master Plan  and 
Buildings 2, 4, 5 and 9 
the Woodlands, texas

Cameron Corporation 
Corporate Headquarters 
Houston, texas

Chevron Phillips Chemical Co. 
Corporate Headquarters 
the Woodlands, texas

Chicago Bridge & Iron 
Corporate Headquarters 
the Woodlands, texas

Jacobs engineering 
office Building 
Houston, texas

HP / Compaq Computer Corp. 
Commons, visitor Center, CCA-14  office 
Building and CCm-7 
Houston, texas

Hines 
Calpine Tower / 717 Texas 
Houston, texas

mD Anderson Cancer Center 
master Plan 
Houston, texas

e D u C AT I o N

Rice University 
Master of Architecture, 1980 
Bachelor of Arts in Architecture, 1977 

P R o F e S S I o N A l R eg I S T R AT I o N

Registered Architect :  Texas 
LEED Accredited Professional 

m e m B e R S H I P S

American Institute of Architects
CTBUH

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 103 

4  Austin City Hall* 
FF&e Services
austin, texas

4  Chevron - 1400 louisiana
Houston, texas 

4  Chevron - 1500 Smith
Houston, texas 

4 encana Corporation 
Regional Headquarters
plano, texas

4 Parkland Hospital 
FF&e Services
dallas, texas

4 Constitution Square I & II 
Washington dC

gSA - DReS
Sustainable guidelines, 
multiple projects in various Locations

City of Dallas
green Building Standards & guidelines
dallas, texas

4  green mountain energy* 
Corporate Headquarters (CI 2.0 Silver)
austin, texas

4  uSAA*  
Buildings e&F Renovation
san antonio, texas

Whole Food market  
Corporate Headquarters*
austin, texas

Texas Instruments*  
Corporate office
dallas, texas

motion Computers*  
Corporate Headquarters
austin, texas

university of Texas at Austin* 
Blanton museum, FF&e Services
austin, texas

university of Texas at Austin* 
goldsmith Hall School of Architecture
austin, texas

4  Tarrant County Community College* 
Downtown Campus, FF&e Services 
Fort Worth, texas

e D u C AT I o N

Texas Tech University
Bachelor of Fine Arts in Interior Design, 
1979

P R o F e S S I o N A l R eg I S T R AT I o N S

Registered Interior Designer: Texas, 
3902
LEED Accredited Professional BD+C, 
ID+C
USGBC LEED Faculty

m e m B e R S H I P S

United States Green Building Council
Credentialing Task Force, 2012-2014
North Texas Chapter Board Director, 
2009-2011
Greenbuild Education Series Review 
Team, 2008-2011
LEED CI Exam Development Panel, 2006
LEED CI Exam Accreditation Committee,  
2006

International Interior Design Association
Director of Sustainability, 2008-2009
Women in the Environment, Memership 
Committee, 2013

Collin College Sustainable Design Advi-
sory,
2010-2013

Steering Committee for Central Texas 
Balcones Chapter, 2004-2006

Chair, National Workshops - North Texas, 
2008-2010

S e l eC T e D R e l e vA N T e x P e R I e N C e

4  Leed Certified or pending Certification
*experience prior to joining HoK.

DEBOR AH FULLER ,  R I D,  I I DA , L E E D A P b D + C , I D + C

SuSTAINABle DeSIgN leADeR

Deborah is HOK Dallas’ Sustainable Knowledge Leader, with extensive experience with 
sustainable design and LEED documentation.  She has over 30 years of experience in 
institutional, corporate and commercial interior design.  She consults both architectural 
and interior teams on sustainability, with her in-depth knowledge of sustainable 
strategies, materials and resources. Deborah’s key role in the design process is to 
encourage the evaluation and incorporation of sustainable design strategies, to ensure 
that the facility meets the sustainable goals as set by the client, and to manage all LEED 
documentation.



hok .com

BEN CR AWFORD, A I A ,  L E E D A P B D + C 

Vice President   |  Building Designer

Ben is a Senior Project Designer with more than 20 years of diverse architectural practice. 
His experience includes leadership of large corporate, commercial and urban mixed use 
development projects.

Ben’s active participation in the creative process begins with conceptualization and continues 
through design development. His ongoing responsibilities include leadership of design teams 
within the studio and interface with client and consultant team members.

Capital Market Authority Tower
Super High Rise Building Design
Riyadh, Saudi Arabia

Cisterra Partners
Downtown Tower
Houston, Texas

Vietsin D7 
Office Tower Phase I 
Singapore

4 Hines/Shell Oil Company 
Woodcreek Office Campus
Phase I/II/III + Parking Facilities 
Houston, Texas

Trammell Crow 
Energy Center Phase I/II + Parking Facilities 
Houston, Texas

4 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Southern Command Headquarters 
(SOUTHCOM) 
Patrick Air Force Base, Florida

Freeman State Office Building* 
St. Paul, Minnesota

4 The University of Texas 
Dell Pediatric Research Institute 
Austin, Texas

Chevron
NorthPark
New Orleans, Louisiana

The Michael E. DeBakey VA Medical Center  
Vertical Expansion/ Parking Facility
Houston, Texas

Stream Development 
Woodlands Site 
Houston, Texas

Paris Regional Medical Center
New Addition & Renovation
Paris, Texas

Rice University
Keck Hall Renovation and Expansion 
Houston, Texas

E D U C AT I O N
Rice University 
Master of Architecture, 1991 
Bachelor of Arts in Architecture, 1989 

P R O F E S S I O N A L R EG I S T R AT I O N
Registered Architect: Texas, #15666 
LEED Accredited Professional

M E M B E RS H I P S
American Institute of Architects

E X P E R I E N C E

4  LEED Certified or Pending Certification
*Experience prior to joining HOK.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 104 

1

C D A

DONNA D. CARTER, FAIA
CARTER • DESIGN ASSOCIATES
PRESIDENT

American University in Cairo, Egypt - Ford Foundation Scholar
Yale University - Bachelor of Arts - 1974
University of California at Berkeley - Master of Architecture - 1977

Texas Registered Architect  8207
Texas Registered Interior Designer  581
National Council of Architectural Registration Boards (NCARB)

Management and policy decisions including all fiscal operations and contract negotiations.  
Project contract administration using various contract scenarios with owners, contrac-
tors and other design professionals - practices regularly as prime and consultant to 
prime.  Development of the firm’s philosophy, policies, procedures and management. Di-
rect involvement to ensure all projects undertaken by the firm meet established criteria.

Multi-disciplinary projects requiring planning, architectural, programming, feasibility anal-
ysis, and historical expertise for a variety of project types.   Consultation to owners for 
establishing large and multi-contract development plans.  Individual project types include 
educational facilities, clinics, museums, fire stations, maintenance facilities, theaters, of-
fices, restaurants and community centers.  

Provides technical information and sketch capabilities for public participation, meetings, 
workshops, and presentation to Boards and Commissions for regulatory review.

Responsible for all aspects of management and professional services.  Project assign-
ments include principal-in-charge, project manager, architect and planner of commercial, 
institutional, medical, educational, residential and office facilities.  Other projects include 
feasibility and  programming. Existing facilities reviews including code compliance, historic 
consultation, and urban design components.

Partner responsible for all aspects of management and professional services offered 
by the firm. Projects included historical restorations, remodeling and new construction.  
Building types included fire stations, community centers, office, retail and residential facili-
ties.  Services provided included graphic design, urban design and tenant layout.

Designer with 3D/International, Inc.  Projects included programming, feasibility studies 
and construction documents for education and institutional projects. Other projects 
included land planning for new communities. Planning experience was with new mixed 
used land plans and urban design projects. Historical work done for the national register 
nominations and preservation plan reports. Architectural projects included educational, 
hotel and office buildings.

John V. Nyfeler, FAIA Community Service Award - AIA Austin Chapter
James Pfluger Award - Texas Society of Architects
T&P Main Waiting Room Restoration:

Design Award - Texas Society of Architects 
Preservation Honor Award - Historic Fort Worth 
Honor Award - Fort Worth AIA Chapter 
Preservation Texas  - Preservation Design Award

Haehnel Grocery Store Restoration, Austin TX  
AGC Outstanding Construction Award - C.P. Snider, Inc.

 Heritage Society of Austin - Preservation Award
Juniper Historic District, Austin, TX:  

Heritage Society of Austin - Preservation Award
City of Austin Aquatics - Deep Eddy Facility - AGC Speciality Construction

EDUCATION

REGISTRATION/
 CERTIFICATION

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

PROFESSIONAL 
QUALIFICATIONS

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Carter Design Associates

1985 - Present
President

Carter + Parshall Associates
Managing Partner

1982-1985

Graeber Simmons & Cowan, Inc
Project Designer

1978-1981

AWARDS & HONORS



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 105 

       LAURA NASSRI WARREN, AIA
         Principal

PROFILE: 
Laura Nassri Warren, AIA, the founder and principal owner 
of The Warren Group Architects, Inc. is responsible for the overall 
operation of the firm. With over twenty eight years of award-winning experience in the 
design and construction industry, in US, Mexico and South America, she offers a unique 
design and planning solutions for a wide variety of clients. Her measure of success is 
demonstrated by her record of repeat business and referrals. She will guide our team
organization, structure and communication protocol.

EDUCATION: 
UACJ – Graduate in Architecture and Building Science – Top honors
Auburn studios in Birmingham, AL - Professional Practice, Urbanism
UAB – Contemporary Art studies, all mediums
AIA accredited courses for LEED design
Contemporary Art and Painting – National Belle Arts Institute – Mexico

CERTIFICATIONS AND AFFILIATIONS: 
Licensed Architect Texas Registration No. 30112289
American Institute of Architects
American Association for Airport Executives 
Mexico Colegio de Arquitectos (Mexican Institute of Architects)
Certified Construction Expert – Mexico, Perito en Construccion.
American Planning Association
Texas Society of Architects
LEED certification in progress.
Past President – McAllen South Rotary Club
UACJ President Student Council 1989-1991

LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY: 
English and Spanish

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS:
• Jefferson County Courthouse, Birmingham, Alabama 
• Juan Diego Academy Catholic Regional High School, Mission, TX 
• Juan Diego Academy Gymnasium, Mission, TX
• Edinburg Medical Conference Center
• Doctor’s Hospital at Renaissance Master Plan
• Rio Grande Regional Hospital Emergency Room Renovations Master Plan
• 100,000 S.F. Regional Hospital at Lancaster
• 300,000 S.F. General Hospital at Grand Prairie, TX
• General Hospital in Grand Prairie Master Plan
• 80,000 S.F. DHR Behavioral Medicine
• 45,000 S.F. Cancer Center at DHR, McAllen, TX
• 40 acre Medical Research Campus, McAllen, TX
• 6,000 acre Master Plan, Sharyland Plantation.  McAllen, TX
• 17,000 acre Master Plan, Villa Florida Master Plan.  Reynosa, Tamps. Mexico
• 350 acre Master Plan Capote International Business Park, Pharr TX 
• Children Hospital at Alabama Master Plan
• P1 through P4 Medical Research Facilities at UAB, Birmingham AL.
• Cardiac Research Laboratory at Volker Hall, UAB, Birmingham AL.
• Various Projects for Children’s Hospital of Alabama, Birmingham AL.
• McAllen Miller International Airport Renovations and Additions 

TWG

■         team



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 106 

AWARDS AND PUBLICATIONS:

• 2013 McAllen Chamber of Commerce Woman of the Year
• 2013 McAllen Chamber of Commerce, McAllen’s Top 5 Small Business Award
• 2013 Chamber of Commerce, McAllen News Publication. People you should know.
• 2012 Cover story, City Magazine- Covered Laura’s Projects and successful career.
• PANACHE Publications dedicated eight pages on their new hardbound book 

publication on the Warren’s Group recent projects in the Rio Grande Valley
• Texas Border Business Magazine – Cover Story – July 2009 – 4 page interview of Laura 

Warren’s career path and current projects.
• 1991 received a Solidaridad award by Carlos Salinas de Gortari former President of 

Mexico for her design contribution for Youth developing and family Centers in 
Cd. Juarez Chih.  

• Industrial Community 2004 August issue, front cover featured interview and coverage 
of the opening of the Warren Group Architects, Inc. 

• Industrial Community 2005 May issue featured an interview with the accomplishment of 
The Warren Group on both sides of the border after only one year of opening its 
doors.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 107 

EDUCATION
Bachelor of Science, Electrical Engineering, 

University of Texas at Arlington, 1994

REGISTRATIONS
Professional Engineer, TX #87678

OK #24217

AZ #42213

SC #23786

NM #16825

Charles Culbertson, P.E.
Project Manager

BIO

Mr. Culbertson has over 20 years of professional experience. He is experienced in 

operations management, sales, budget development, staffing, and cost control. Mr. 

Culbertson has been involved with numerous project types and for various market 

sectors such as higher education, K-12, industrial, commercial, and healthcare. His 

technical expertise includes critical and power quality systems.

EXPERIENCE

Midland Pretrial Building, Midland, TX

Val Verde County, Val Verd, TX

 Library Expansion

Dallas County Community College District, Dallas, TX

 Headquarters/Board Room/Chancellor’s Office 

Bell Helicopter, Fort Worth TX

 Bell Helicopter Headquarters Building 

 Building 27 

Boland Office Building, Fort Worth, TX 

Lone Star Communications Office Remodel, Grand Prairie, TX

American Airlines Headquarters, Fort Worth, TX

 15KV Load Bank

 Fire Alarm Renovation

Aviall, Dallas, TX

 Office Renovation and Expansion

Inn of the Mountain Gods, Mescalero, NM

 Design-Assist/Design-Build of New Casino

Fidelity Investments, Grapevine, TX

 Warehouse Facility to Multidepartment Facility

Charles Schwab and Associates, Coppell, TX

 New Automated Printing Facility

Southwest Airlines, Dallas, TX

 New Aircraft Hangar

UPS System Analysis and Replacement

 Data Center Expansion

 Gate Area Remodel

 Interim Baggage Handling System

Newark International Airport-Continental Airlines, Newark,NJ

 Mechanics/Appearance Tech Renovations



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 108 

Datum Gojer enGineers, L.L.C.

Austin City Hall

G a l e n  S c h r o e d e r ,  P. E .  Project Manager of Datum Gojer Engineers, LLC

Education Bachelor of Science in Architectural Engineering with Honors
 University of Texas at Austin 1974

Professional Registration
 Texas 1979

Years of Experience 
 With Datum Gojer Engineers 13 Years 
 With Datum Engineers 33 Years

Professional Affiliations
 National Society of Professional Engineers
 Texas Society of Professional Engineers
 Structural Engineers Association of Texas
 American Concrete Institute

Civic Organizations
 Pflugerville Education Foundation
 Board of Directors 2005-2009

Professional Experience 
 Galen Schroeder, P.E., joined Datum Engineers in 1981, after spending seven years with another 

firm.  In 1997, he was promoted to Vice President in recognition of his contributions to Datum's 
success, particularly in the areas of project management and detailing.  Galen has served as project 
manager on a wide variety of projects, from high-rise office buildings to parking garages and the 
Austin City Hall.  



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 109 

Datum Gojer enGineers, L.L.C.

Representative Projects

G a l e n  S c h r o e d e r ,  P. E .

Travis County New Commissioner's Court
Austin, Texas

Travis County Central Campus Master Plan
Austin, Texas

Travis County ESD #2
Pflugerville, Texas

Austin City Hall, Underground 
Garage and Tunnels
Austin, Texas
LEED Gold

McConico Municipal Building
Round Rock, Texas

Pflugerville Justice Center
Pflugerville, Texas

Texas State Capitol 
Restoration and Expansion
Austin, Texas

Williamson County
Juvenile Detention Center
Georgetown, Texas

State Capitol Visitor’s Garage
Austin, Texas

City of Austin New Central Library
Austin, Texas

Veterans Administration Annex
Austin, Texas

IRS/VA/Treasury Building 
Renovations
Austin, Texas

Department of Public Safety
Additions & Renovations
Austin, Texas

Disaster Recovery Operations Center
Department of Human Services
Austin, Texas

Lakeway City Hall
Lakeway, Texas

Cedar Park Fire Station
Cedar Park, Texas



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 110 

 

Jose I. Guerra, Inc.  www.guerra.com 

Professional Profile 

Mr. Guerra is President and CEO of Jose I. Guerra, Inc.  His engineering expertise 
spans a wide range of project types, including commercial, industrial, municipal, in-
stitutional and health care.  With over 30 years of engineering design and project 
management experience, he has a proven ability to lead multi-discipline engineering 
teams successfully through the design and construction administration process.  Dur-
ing his career, Rick has served as a Professional Engineer, Project Manager, and 
Managing Principal on numerous complex building projects.   

Rick Guerra, P.E. 

Project Principal E. 

Project Experience: 
 Travis County Correctional Complex Bridging Documents - Del Valley, Texas 
 Travis County North Campus Masterplan - Austin, Texas 
 Travis County Commissioners Courtroom and Office Building Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 Travis County Precinct 4 Office Building - Austin, Texas 
 Travis County North Central Community Care Clinic - Austin, Texas 
 Travis County Medical Examiners Building Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 City of Austin Central Library - Austin, Texas 
 Mexican American Cultural Center - Austin, Texas 
 Asian American Resource Center - Austin, Texas 
 Austin Museum of Art - Austin, Texas 
 San Angelo Museum of Fine Art - San Angelo, Texas 
 Caldwell County Courthouse Restoration - Lockhart, Texas 
 University of Texas - Jack S. Blanton Museum of Art - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - BELO Center for New Media - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Robert B. Rowling Hall - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Dell Computer Science Hall & Bill and Melinda Gates Computer 

Science Complex - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Darrell K. Royal Memorial Stadium North End Zone Expansion 

and Utility Relocations - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - LBJ Plaza Renovation/Lady Bird Johnson Center  - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Jones Hall  Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Garrison Hall Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Flawn Academic Center 3rd and 4th Floor Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Harry Ransom Center Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 University of Texas - Nursing School Addition and Renovation - Austin, Texas 
 Texas Tech University - Murray Hall - Lubbock, Texas 
 Midwestern State University - Student Health & Wellness Facility - Wichita Falls, Texas 
 Texas State University San Marcos - Student Health Center - San Marcos, Texas 
 Texas State University San Marcos - Strahan Coliseum Administrative Addition - 

San Marcos, Texas 

Professional Experience:  
 

31 Years 

Registration:  
 

Professional Engineer 
State of Texas #65224 

 
Mechanical Engineer  

State of California #26017 

Education:  
 

B.S. Mechanical Engineering 
University of Texas at Austin, 

1982 
M.S. Engineering 

University of Texas at Austin, 
1988 

Professional Affiliations:  
 

National Society of Professional 
Engineers 

Past Texas PEPP Governor 
 

Texas Society of Professional 
Engineers 

Past Vice-President Region III 
 

Texas State Board of Plumbing 
Examiners - Board Member 

 
ACEC | ASHRAE | CSI  

Location:  
 

Resides in Austin, Texas 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 111 

Court Operations and Facility Planning

Dan L. Wiley & Associates, Inc. 7000 SE Federal Highway, Suite 305 Stuart, FL 34997
Ph:772-283-5217 Fax: 772-283-5219 E-mail: dwa@danwileyassociates.com

Resume
Dan L. Wiley, President

Related Project Experience

Seminole County, FL
Criminal Courthouse Program

Charlotte County, FL
Judicial Master Plan Update
Courthouse Program and Technical Design

City of Jacksonville, FL
Courthouse Master Plan and Program
Juvenile Court Renovation Program

Thurston Co. WA
Regional Justice Center Program

Clark County, NV
Family Court Operations Analysis
Courthouse Program
Justice Court Master Plan

Austin, TX Federal Courthouse
Courthouse Program Refinement

Dade County, FL
Courthouse Center Renovation
Metro Justice Courthouse Program
Family Court Needs Assessment

Fairfax County, VA
Courthouse Program, Technical Assistance
and Design Review

Loudoun County, VA
Courthouse Master Plan and Program

State of Hawaii
Judicial System Master Plan
Family Court Operations Analysis

Volusia County, FL
Westside Courthouse Program
County Master Plan

Washoe County, NV
Juvenile and Family Court Organization 
Analysis
Courthouse Program

Personal Profile

Dan L. Wiley is president of Dan L. Wiley & 
Associates, Inc. and has been involved with court 
management and planning for 35 years.  Since 1986, 
he has led court facility planning and court operations 
analysis projects throughout the United States.
Recently he has completed a major international 
project for the State of Kuwait.

Mr. Wiley formed DWA in 1992 and has successfully 
completed consulting engagements in the areas of 
judicial facility evaluation and master planning, 
courthouse space programming, organization analysis 
and operational assessment.  He has provided 
technical assistance in strategic planning, service 
delivery pattern analysis, design review, security 
planning, long range forecasting and project 
coordination and management.

Mr. Wiley is a well-known presenter on judicial facility 
planning  topics and has been a participant at the first, 
second and fourth International Conferences on Court 
Design, as well as a contributor to various 
conferences of the A.I.A. Committee on Architecture 
for Justice. For several years he was a senior
presenter at professional education seminars at the 
Univ. of Wis. at Madison on Family Court Planning.

Mr. Wiley previously served as Trial Court 
Administrator for the 15th Judicial Circuit of Florida 
where he was responsible for court operations, 
facilities, services, planning, personnel and budget 
preparation for a 35-judge jurisdiction in one of the 
fastest growing areas of the country.

While serving as assistant to the administrator for 
Juvenile court in Palm Beach County, Florida, he 
developed and implemented a number of innovative 
administrative improvements in the operation of the 
court.  They included streamlined case flow 
management, clerking staff cross training procedures 
and microfilm records retention and retrieval systems.

Mr. Wiley holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Psychology from Florida Atlantic University and has 
done graduate work in Public Administration.  He is an 
associate member of the National Center for State 
Courts, the American Bar Association and the 
National Association for Court Management.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 112 

 

 
 
Michael Smith, P.E. – C.E.O. 
Michael has over 20 years of experience in the engineering field and has been responsible for the design 
of MEP systems and electronic security systems for numerous criminal justice, institutional, commercial 
and industrial facilities.  Michael’s responsibilities include all business development and business 
management as well as engineering supervision of the company’s projects.  As a Registered Professional 
Engineer, Michael is experienced in both design and construction engineering.  
 
After graduation in 1994, Michael worked for a mechanical contractor as a project manager for plan and 
specification projects, and mechanical designer for design/build projects, which gives valuable practical 
experience in the building industry. In 2003, Michael created MD Engineering to provide Mechanical, 
Electrical, and Plumbing (MEP) design services to architects and public and private sector clients. In 
2013, MD Engineering and Igor Abadzic bought Latta Technical Services from Alan Latta to continue 
providing Security Services to long standing client of Latta Technical Services.   
 
Education: Bachelor of Science Mechanical Engineering, Mississippi State University - 1994 
Registrations: Texas, Alabama, Arkansas, Arizona, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Nebraska, 
New Mexico, Oklahoma, and Virginia. 
Professional Certifications:  NCEES Record Holder, LEED AP 

 
Igor Abadzic - President 
Igor has over 15 years of experience in the electrical engineering field with Latta Technical Services and 
has been responsible for the design of electronic security systems for numerous criminal justice 
facilities. Igor’s current responsibilities include daily management of the firm and is lead designer on 
projects and provides oversight and training of technical support staff, as well as working with other 
team members on engineering of all projects and managing the work flow, scheduling and technology 
applications. His designs include multiple technologies for numerous types of security systems.  He is 
recognized for his broad technical expertise, and ability to implement responsive designs. His knowledge 
of product and processes play a key role in the design and construction of these systems. His 
relationship and familiarity with security systems integrators serves to foster better means and methods 
to implement systems, installation, service and maintenance in order to assure the client of high quality 
installation and service after the sale. 
Education: University of Sarajevo, Sarajevo, Bosnia & Herzegovina, Bachelor of Science, Electrical 
Engineering, 1990 
Professional Certifications: CSNA, Part I (Cisco Networks Certification), 2012, BOSCH Networks Bases 
Certification, 2011, PELCO Network Bases Certification, 2011, Sensor Security, Outdoor Perimeter 
Security Certification, 2001, Programmable Logic Controllers – Certificate of Training 2001 
 

  



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 113 

RICHARD E. BONER
             Austin, Texas
            Vice President

Education:
Bachelor of Science in Physics with Highest Honors, University of Texas 
at Austin, 1968

Professional:
Principal Consultant and Vice-President, BAi, LLC, 1971 to present.
Communications Officer, U.S. Navy, 1968 -1971.
Consultant, C.P. Boner & Associates, Consultants in Acoustics, 1964 -1968

Qualifications:
Richard has extensive experience in design of acoustical systems, sound reinforcement 
and noise control. Much of his work has been with auditoriums of all sizes, exhibit halls 
and meeting rooms. He also has acoustical experience in building noise abatement and 
HVAC noise abatement.

Memberships:
Acoustical Society of America
Audio Engineering Society
National Council of Acoustical Consultants
United States Institute of Theatre Technology
Associate Member - ASHRAE

Projects:
Bexar County Courthouse (1892) Restoration, San Antonio, TX
Texas County Courthouse Acoustical Studies for Hopkins County, Lampasas County, 
Goliad County, Jourdanton County, Bee County, Red River County, Shackelford County,
and Gray County, State of TX
Harris County Courthouse Restoration (Circa 1910), Houston, TX
Denton County Courthouse, Denton, TX
Rockwall County Courthouse, Rockwell, TX
Cameron County Courthouse Dancy Building Restoration, Brownsville, TX
Kendall County Courthouse, Boerne, TX
Menard County Courthouse, Menard, TX
San Patricio County Courthouse, Sinton, TX
Gray County Courthouse – Pampa,
Franklin County Courthouse Restoration, Mount Vernon, TX
Austin Convention Center Phase I and II, Austin, TX
Georgia World Congress Center, Phases II, III & IV, Atlanta, GA
Nueces County Courthouse, Corpus Christi, TX
San Augustine County Courthouse, San Augustine, TX
Union County Courthouse Restoration, Marysville, OH
Val Verde County Courthouse, Del Rio, TX
McClennon County Courthouse Renovation, Waco, TX
Palm Beach County Convention Center, West Palm Beach, FL
Ocean City Convention Center, Ocean City, MD
Charlotte Convention Center, Charlotte, NC
American Bank Center Convention Center, Corpus Christi, TX
Georgia International Convention Center, College Park, GA
Austin ISD Districtwide Performing Arts Center, Austin, TX



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 114 

8200 IH-10 West, Suite 103 • San Antonio, Texas 78230 • Voice: 210-698-7887
901 South Mopac, Building 3, Suite 400 • Austin, Texas 78746 • Voice: 512-433-2696 • Fax: 512-476-2252

Brian K. Combs, RCDD, Vice President
Principal-in-Charge 

Office Location:
San Antonio, Texas

Year Joined Firm:
January 2004

Education:
Community College of the Air 
Force, Telecommunications 
Management/Information 
Technology, 1996 

Registrations:  
Registered Communications 
Distribution Designer (RCDD) 
– Registration No. 12520

Affiliations:
Member of American Society 
for Industrial Security (ASIS)

Member of Building Industry 
Consulting Services 
International (BICSI)

Member of Council of 
Educational Facility Planners 
International (CEFPI) – Board 
Member of Central Texas 
South Chapter

Member of Society of 
Telecommunications 
Consultants (STC)

Member of International 
CPTED Association (ICA)

Summary of Experience:

Mr. Combs is the Vice President of COMBS Consulting Group, LP and is 
responsible for all consulting services provided by COMBS Consulting Group,
LP.  Mr. Combs has over twenty years of experience in the technology 
industry where he has held various positions including Consultant, Project 
Manager, Regional Director and Vice President of Consulting Services.     

Prior to founding COMBS Consulting Group, LP, Mr. Combs spent six years 
with a large independent technology consulting firm, where he developed the 
South Texas market and served as Regional Director for four years before 
being promoted to Vice President of Consulting Services.  As Vice President 
of Consulting Services Mr. Combs was directly responsible for managing all 
consulting services throughout the organization.  

Before joining the private sector, Mr. Combs was a member of the United 
States Air Force and served as a Communications - Computer Systems 
Project Manager where his responsibilities included managing the 
development, planning and integration of Communications - Computer 
Systems (C-CS), assisting system personnel in developing requirements and 
serving as an advisor for facility designs, construction planning and military 
construction programs.  Mr. Combs evaluated master C-CS plans to 
determine impacts and shortfalls and managed the development of C-CS 
statements of work and service contracts.  Mr. Combs served as the Project 
Manager for the Base Communications Systems Blueprint, a five year 
communications plan for the United States Air Force which enabled the Air 
Force to plan and budget for future communications-computer requirements.

Partial List of Relevant Project Experience:

Department of Homeland Security US Border Patrol Complex  
Comstock, Texas

City of Georgetown, IT Department/Network Operations Center/
Emergency Operations Center/Police Dispatch  
Georgetown, Texas

Williamson Central Appraisal District, Headquarters Building  
Austin, Texas  

City of San Antonio, Henry B. Gonzalez Convention Center Expansion
San Antonio, Texas

City of San Antonio, North West Service Center
San Antonio, Texas

City of Georgetown, Main Public Library
Georgetown, Texas



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 115 

planning 
design 
studies 

program management 

 Resumes 

Matt Strickland, IPI, TPA 
Principal 
 
Matt Strickland is a Principal of the firm and a highly accomplished designer and project manager with 
over 10 years of experience in the field of architecture and project management and over 5 years 
dedicated solely to parking. 
 
Mr. Strickland has extensive parking design experience that includes large commercial projects in Dallas, 
Houston, the East Coast and Internationally. His expertise resides in parking studies and providing 
effective and cost saving solutions for parking facility projects. Mr. Strickland has direct responsibility for 
firm management, which includes: design, project management, project profitability, sales and marketing.  
Mr. Strickland’s strengths include a diverse background in commercial, residential, historic preservation 
and planning projects. 
 

Education 
Austin Community College 
 
Contra Costa College 
School of Architecture 
 
California State University 
School of Business 
 

Professional Affiliations 
International Parking Institute 
 
Texas Parking Association 
 
National Council of Architectural 
Registration Boards 
 
Austin Community College 
A/E CADD Advisory Committee 

Troy Jamail, IPI, TPA 
Principal 
 
Troy Jamail, a highly accomplished designer and project manager, is a Principal of the firm with over 
fifteen years of experience in architecture and construction management, six of which have been 
dedicated solely to parking projects. 
 
Mr. Jamail has extensive parking design experience that includes projects across the United States.  His 
unique understanding of parking services contributes directly to providing effective and cost saving 
solutions for parking facility projects while protecting the integrity of innovative designs and practical 
function. 
 
Mr. Jamail has direct responsibility for firm management, which includes:  design, project management, 
project profitability, sales and marketing.  Mr. Jamail’s responsibilities also included directing and 
scheduling the company’s production staff and the day to day firm operations. 

Education 
The University of Texas at San Antonio 
School of Architecture 
 
Blinn College 
 

Professional Affiliations 
International Parking Institute 
 
Texas Parking Association 
 
National Council of Architectural 
Registration Boards 
 
Texas Board Architectural Examiners 

City of San Antonio Public Safety 
Administration Headquarters 
650 Space Functional Design & PARCS 
San Antonio, Texas 

 Seaholm Power Plant Redevelopment 
1,500 Space Functional Design & PARCS 
Austin, Texas 
 

Champions Office Parking Facility  
650 Space Functional Design  
Austin, Texas  

 Block 51 Office Tower  
550 Space Functional Design & PARCS  
Austin, Texas  

East Block Office Development  
1,250 Space Functional Design / PARCS  
Austin, Texas  

 Rollingwood Office Parking Facility  
800 Space Functional Design  
Endeavor Real Estate Group  
Austin, Texas 

Memorial Lakes 
2,400 Space Functional Design 
Houston, Texas 

 Wells Fargo 
1,100 & 1,600  Space Functional Design 
Houston, Texas 

EnCana Office  
1,200 Space Functional Design  
Legacy, Texas  

 2200 Post Oak Blvd Office  
1,200 Space Functional Design  
Houston, Texas  

Woodcreek Phase 3 Office 
1,450 Space Functional Design 
Houston, Texas 

 Five Oaks Office Development 
1,800 Space Functional Design 
Houston, Texas 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 116 

 
 

  J. Michael Heath, P.E.  Page 1 
 

J. MICHAEL HEATH, P.E. 
Principal-in-Charge 

Mr. Michael (Mike) Heath, P.E., is a transportation planning and analysis professional with over 25 years of 
experience as a traffic engineer and transportation planner.  His skill set covers most areas of transportation 
modeling and engineering with special emphasis on transportation corridor studies and the design of alternative 
analyses for a large variety of city, state and federal governmental agencies, and other consultants.  Mike began 
his career in traffic demand modeling with the Texas Transportation Institute, and with a national firm where he 
provided traffic modeling and analysis expertise to a broad range of clients.  During those years he developed a 
vision for providing quality traffic engineering and related services to help clients manage their transportation 
resources in a timely and effective manner.   

Project Experience 

Travis County Downtown Campus Study | Austin, Texas | 2011 Senior Traffic Engineer - Alliance  served as the 
transportation consultant on the project team that worked on the strategic needs analysis and facilities master 
plan for the Travis County Central Campus in downtown Austin.  Alliance performed a traffic analysis of existing 
conditions and completed a review of current studies. Client: Stephen Coulston, Broadus & Associates, 
512.329.8822, scoulston@broaddusassociates.com 

University of Texas Medical Campus Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) | Austin, Texas | 2013 Project Manager – 
Alliance under contract to the University of Texas System conducted a traffic impact analysis for Phase I of the 
proposed University of Texas Medical Campus. This TIA valuated proposed operations associated with the 
construction of academic medical and parking facilities within the area bounded by 15th Street, Trinity Street, 
MKL Blvd. and I-35. The Study included an evaluation of the realignment of Red River Street through the Medical 
Campus between 15th Street and MLK. Client: Stephen Harris Director,  University of Texas Office of Planning 
and Construction - 512.499.4351,  sharris@utsystem.edu 

Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) Urban Circulator  | Dallas, Texas | 2013 Project Manager - As part of the DART 
GPC contract, Alliance provided services related to the proposed extension of the McKinney Avenue Trolley on St. 
Paul Street from Ross Avenue to Federal Street and along Federal Street to Olive Street.  Alliance’s services 
included preparation of plans for temporary traffic control for the construction of the rail line and paving 
operations; preparation of traffic signal construction plans for the intersection of Federal Street and Olive Street, 
and proposed modifications to the traffic signal at St. Paul Street and Federal Street; evaluation of alternate 
detour plans related to the potential closure of St. Paul Street between San Jacinto Street and Federal Street; and 
preparation of permanent signing and striping for the project.  The detour evaluation included an assessment of 
intersection operations at the signalized intersections along the proposed detour route.  Client: Jay Kline, Dallas 
Area Rapid Transit (DART), 214.749.3539, jkline@dart.org 

 
Years of Experience: 25, with Alliance: 15 
Registration 
Professional Engineer, Texas No. 78133, 1993 
TxDOT ESN 4346, Precertified Categories 
1.1.1, 1.2.1, 1.3.1, 1.4.1, 1.5.1, 1.6.1, 7.1.1, 7.3.1, 8.1.1, 9.1.1 

 
 

Education 
M.B.A., Business Administration 
Texas A&M University, 1990 
B.S., Civil Engineering, Texas A&M 
University, 1986 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 117 

 
 

  J. Michael Heath, P.E.  Page 2 
 

Hotel Indigo Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) | Austin, Texas | 2013 Project Manager – Alliance evaluated  traffic 
impacts of the proposed 300 room Hotel Indigo project located in downtown Austin.  This study assessed traffic 
operations on the adjacent roadway network and identified proposed multi-modal access enhancements 
facilitating movement to and from the proposed site. Existing and proposed operations were evaluated 
intersections for motor vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians.  Client: Robert Gallup, Journeyman Group - 
512.247.7000 

IH 35 Rider 42 Corridor Development Program | Austin, Texas | 2011-ongoing  Project Manager – The City of 
Austin is analyzing a section of the IH 35 corridor – from William Cannon to US 183 – to identify effective 
strategies to improve mobility and connectivity for all modes of transportation.  As a subconsultant, Alliance is 
providing data collection and coordination efforts.  Alliance has interfaced with TxDOT, the City of Austin, and 
others to gather information on traffic volumes, crash data, and signal operations.  In addition, Alliance has 
performed traffic modeling.  Client: Gary W. Schatz, P.E. PTOE, City of Austin, gary.schatz@ci.austin.tx.us, 
512.974.7189  
 
IH 35 CAIP Travis County Implementation Plan | Travis County, Texas | 2012-2013   Travel Demanding Modeling 
and Traffic Simulation Leader – Mike guided the team developing traffic forecasts and CORSIM networks for the 
traffic operations study and infrastructure improvements for the IH 35 corridor from SH 45 North to SH 45 South.  
These efforts incorporate multiple out year options for freeway lanes, auxiliary lanes, cross-street traffic, and 
intersection configurations to evaluate and prioritize the transportation improvements.  Analysis includes 
potential tolled main lanes as part of the funding considerations.  He coordinated the development and analysis of 
roadway operations and alternative evaluations and provided quality assurance reviews.  He was instrumental in 
the development of operational improvements that significantly improved regional mobility.  In particular the 
development of a hybrid smart street concept that uses existing frontage roads and provides progression along 
the frontage roads throughout the corridor.  Mike led the effort to evaluate other innovative solutions including 
roundabouts, diverging diamond interchanges, and median u-turn intersections.  In addition, he led the 
development of VISSIM models to support public involvement efforts.  Client: Steve Miller, HNTB, 512.447.5590, 
sjmiller@hntb.com 
 
TxDOT South IH-35 from IH-410 to US 90  | Texas | 2012-2013  Principal-in-Charge – Alliance in association with 
Kennedy Consulting, Ltd., is performing an operational analysis for IH-35 from IH-410 North to US 90, as part of an 
overall corridor improvement project on IH-35 within the San Antonio District of the Texas Department of 
Transportation.  For this study, Alliance developed a CORSIM network for the 14-mile segment of IH 35.  The long-
range travel demand model was executed incorporating planned developments and roadways, including new 
bridges and ramp modifications, in the region.  Freeway, auxiliary lanes, and cross-street traffic were incorporated 
into the CORSIM network to evaluate and prioritize the proposed transportation improvements in the corridor.  
Client: Kevin Kennedy, P.E., Kennedy Consulting, Ltd, 512.864.2833, kkennedy@kci-ltd.com 
 
IH-45/IH-610 in Houston, TxDOT-Houston District | Houston, Texas | 2011-ongoing  Principal-in-Charge – 
Alliance provided engineering services for the preparation of PS&E for the 2.013 Mi. direct connector between IH 
610 EB to IH 45 NB, 0.275 Mi. SH 35 North Connector and bridge widening at IH-610 Eastbound at Telephone Road 
and IH 45 Northbound at Griggs Road.  The existing traffic capacity and main lanes had to be maintained at all 
times during construction.  Alliance is responsible for signal modifications at three intersections to support the 
construction of a new direct connector at IH-45/IH-610 in Houston, for the TxDOT-Houston District.  These 
locations include warrant analysis and signal system modifications to accommodate new construction, including 
modifications to existing controllers and mast arms while maximizing re-use of existing equipment to the extent 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 118 

Margaret Robinson, RLA, LEED AP, Landscape Architect

Ms. Robinson holds over 28 years of Planning, Urban Design 

and Landscape Architecture experience in Texas, California 

and abroad. Ms. Robinson's particular expertise is in 

large-scale Project Management, Land Planning and 

Development Processing. Prior to founding Asakura 

Robinson Company, Ms. Robinson served as Planning 

Director for Richfield Investment Corp.'s 10,000 Acre area 

holdings. Ms. Robinson also held a Principal position at M2L 

Associates, was a Senior Associate at SLA Studio Land Inc. in 

Houston and an Associate at EDAW in Irvine, California.

 

In 2004, Margaret and Keij i Asakura created Asakura 

Robinson Company which has quickly grown in reputation 

for notable civic and development commissions.  Ms. 

Robinson held leadership roles for the Gene Green Regional 

Park project for Harris County Precinct Two as well as the 

Urban Corridor Planning pedestrian realm recommendations 

for six METRO Guided Rail Transit Lines. 

The firm excels at providing sustainable and “green” design 

guidance to many civic and private Clients with Ms. Robinson 

serving as the firm’s first LEED Accredited Professional.  The 

firm is currently providing LEED consulting on numerous 

office, library, school, park and other projects.

Representative Projects:
Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas, Houston Branch 
Improvements
West Fort Bend Management District Corridor 
    Master Plan p

North Main Street Reconstruction Project, Houston G

Almeda Reconstruction Project, Houston G

Bagby Streetscape Enhancements, Houston G

Westside Senior Education Center, Harris County, 
    Precinct 3 G

Kendall Library and Community Center, Houston GP

Meador Library, Harris County Precinct 2 G

Brays Bayou Park Framework Plan, Houston Parks 
Board/UofH/SW

Gene Green Beltway 8 Regional Park, Harris County 
Precinct 2 GAP

Gannoway Lake Park Master Plan, City of Sugar LandGA

City of Houston Subregional Detention Halls Site G

Representative Projects Continued:

Brazoria County Follet’s Island Park G

Houston Parks & Recreation Dept. Headquarters Master Plan GA

Avenue Place Community Master Plan, Avenue CDC G

Avenue Place Parks & Trail, Houston

Urban Corridor Planning Study, City of Houston Planning Dept. AP

Mandell Park, Houston
                                                                                                  G Green Infrastructure or LEED Projects
                                                                                                                                A Award Winning Projects
                                                                                                                                                P Public Engagement
                                                              
Boards/Committees/Membership:
The Cultural Landscape Foundation Stewardship Council
Mercer Arboretum and Botanic Garden Advisory Board
Houston Clean City Commissioner
City of Houston Green Building Resource Center Advisory Committee
American Society of Landscape Architects-Texas Chapter Past President
Municipal Utility District 287 Director
LSU-Robert Reich School of Landscape Architecture Advisory Committee
Houston Land/Water Sustainability Forum Steering Committee
H-GAC NRAC - Parks and Natural Areas Subcommittee 
WonderWorks Board Member 
US Green Building Council

Speaking & Teaching Engagements:

2013 Fall Semester - University of Houston Architecture Dept. Teacher
2012 Gulf Coast Green Conference Speaker
2010 Asian Voice Radio AM900 “Green Home” Co-Host
2009 EPA Regional MS4 Conference Tour Speaker
2009 HLWSF LID Case Studies Speaker
2008 Center for Houstons Future - Business/Civic Leadership Forum
2008 Bayou Preservation Assoc.- Symposium Speaker
2008 The Houston Guide to Green Building Contributor
2008 CEC Low Impact Development Review Committee
2008 Gulf Coast Green Conference Speaker

Registration:
Registered Landscape Architect State of Texas #1899
LEED Accredited Professional, 2006

Education:  
Bachelor of Landscape Architecture, Louisiana State University
Masters Studies in Computer Science, Univ. of LA at Lafayette
Applied Fluvial Geomorphology, Wildland Hydrology, Inc.

asakura robinson company LLC



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 119 

Professional Qualifications: 

Jerome Stock, LEED AP 
Director of Pre-Construction & Construction Phase Services 

Mr. Stock’s thirty years in construction encompasses all levels of Design and Project Delivery 
Methods including: guaranteed maximum proposals, design-build, CMR and competitive bidding. 
During Mr. Stock’s career, he has served in senior positions as vice president and director roles for 
large GC and CMR firms. His unique expertise allows him to collaborate with teams from 
conceptual design through final project completion. His experience with owner/architect interface, 
directing estimating staff, guaranteed maximum price proposals, design-build coordination and bid 
acquisition, will bring added value to the team. 

EDUCATION: B.S. Building Construction, Texas A&M University, 1983 REGISTRATIONS: LEED AP, September 2004 YEARS EXPERIENCE: 30

Maria Gatela, (CCP) Certified Cost Professional  
Senior Cost Engineer 

Ms. Gatela has more than sixteen years of experience in Cost Engineering and Management for government clients 
throughout the United States. Ms. Gatela has a Cost Engineer Certification from AACE International, an internationally 
recognized professional organization that encompasses specialties in cost estimating, project controls, planning and 
scheduling, and other related cost management disciplines. Ms. Gatela’s expertise also includes: estimating renewable 
energy costs, planning/design costs and renewable energy technology costs. 
EDUCATION: B.S. Civil Engineering Masters in Business 
Administration 1984 

REGISTRATIONS: Certified Cost Professional 
CCP,  2007 YEARS EXPERIENCE: 16 

Key Disciplines: #
 We have Multi-Discipline Professionals under the same management team. 

 We work on multiple assignments at any time while meeting schedule 
requirements. 

 The EudaCorp team uses Primavera, MS Project, and other PM software to 
aid in defining schedules and tracking key deliverable dates. 

 We use automated man-hour projection tools to forecast workload and 
allocate resources for six months into the future. 

 This enables us to align resources with projects by discipline, and to shift 
workload within offices before project assignments are made. 

Project Manager 2 

Certified Cost Professional  (CCP) 1 

Senior Cost Estimator  4 

Senior Scheduler (PMP) 2 

LEED AP 1 

Associate Value Specialist 1 

Certified  Value Specialist 1 

BIM Specialist 2 

Computer Programmer 1 

Public Relations, Ph.D.  1 

Total 16 

Capacity: Reach-Back Resources (200+ Project Controls Personnel) 

8(a) Mentor-Protégé Joint Venture – EudaCorp/Faithful+Gould, JV  
with over200+ Project Controls Personnel 

The healthcare and research industry is at the heart of Faithful+Gould’s core business streams. They have 
overseen construction and renovation projects at healthcare facilities in multiple states and have been involved 
in some of the nation’s most prestigious healthcare projects. As developers of the original UNIFORMAT for the 
U.S. General Services Administration, They have continued helping the industry establish best practices for
cost and value management with UNIFORMAT II. www.fgould.com/americas/

EudaCorp Subject Matter Experts (Leadership) 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 120 

  

1420 Valwood Pkwy, Suite 172, Carrollton, TX 75006 
T 972.294.5221   F 469.574.5422   www.lerchbates.com 

 

    

Joseph Bledsoe, Sr. Project Manager began working for Lerch Bates in 2001.  He is currently working in 
the Lerch Bates Dallas office providing vertical transportation analysis and design.  Previously, Joe 
Bledsoe worked for Otis Elevator for 29 years as Service and New Equipment Sales Associate, Branch 
manager, Regional Modernization Sales Manager in their Southern Region and as Otis North American 
Modernization Sales and Product Manager in Farmington, CT. 

PROJECT RESPONSIBILITIES 
As Sr. Project Manager, Mr. Joseph Bledsoe is responsible for the following functions: 

 Vertical Transportation System Studies 
 Design, Contract Documents, and Construction Services for the Vertical Transportation Equipment 
 Vertical Transportation Maintenance Evaluations 
 Due Diligence Studies 

RELATED EXPERIENCE  
 Energy Center Phase I, Houston, TX  ExxonMobile  Campus, Houston, TX 
 MGM City Center- Hotel/Casino/Theater & 

Conv. Center, Las Vegas, NV  
 Children’s Medical Center, Dallas, TX 

 George W. Bush Presidential Cntr - Dallas, TX  Baton Rouge Arts District , Baton Rouge, LA 
 Atlantis III Hotel/Condos, Nassau, Bahamas   TX Children’s Hosp. Research Bldg.-Houston, TX 
 Deloitte Training Center, Southlake, TX  Mary Kay Ofc Bldg. & Parking Garage – Dallas, TX 
 Joule Hotel, Dallas, TX (Historical Project)  JW Marriott Resort, San Antonio, TX 
 Santander Office Tower, Monterrey, Mexico  Austin Federal Courthouse, Austin TX 
 DFW Internat’l Airport, Terminal D - Dallas, TX  19th Judicial Dist. Courthouse, Baton Rouge, LA 
 San Antonio Children’s Museum, TX  Bexar County Courthouse, San Antonio, TX 
 CMA Tower, Riyadh, Saudi Arabia  Dallas Cowboy Stadium, Arlington TX  
 LSU Stadium Expansion – Baton Rouge, LA  San Antonio Federal Cthse – San Antonio TX 
 First Baptist Church Dallas, TX  
 VA Spinal Cord Injury Facility – Dallas, TX 

 JW Marriott Hotel/Conv Cntr – Austin, TX 
 VA Chemical & Mental Health Facility – Dallas, TX 

 BVD Parking Garage – Lake Buena Vista FL  Greenfield Ofc/Manuf Campus – Houston, TX 

EDUCATION 
Texas A & M University, College Station, Texas, Bachelor’s Degree - Engineering Technology 

AFFILIATIONS 
C.E.I. Certified Inspector, QEI # - C-2083 

NAESA - National Association of Elevator Safety Authorities 
 

 
JOSEPH V. BLEDSOE 

Senior Project Manager 
 

Elevator Consulting Group 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 121 

r
e

s
u

m
e

www.hce.com | p 415.621.4423 | marketing@hce.com

Eve Hinman, Eng.Sc.D., P.E. | Blast Security Consultant 
Principal Engineer 

education Columbia University, School of Engineering & Applied Science, New York, New York 
Doctor of Engineering Science, Engineering Mechanics (1994) 
M.S., Structural Engineering (1983) 
B.S., Civil Engineering (1982) 

registration Professional Civil Engineer, (C54993) California (1996) 
Professional Engineer, (063764-1) New York (1987) 
Professional Engineer, (0402 045389) Virginia (2008) 
Professional Engineer, (3744663) Maryland (2008) 
Building Security Certified Professional (2008)

Relative projects located in Texas, include: 
 County Courthouse, El Paso, TX 
 Federal Courthouse, Austin, TX 
 Plano Courthouse, TX 
 U.S. Courthouse, San Antonio, TX 
 Austin City Hall, TX 

Relative project experience 
Blast Security Consulting for County Courthouses: 

 Sonoma County Criminal Courthouse, CA 
 Riverside County Courthouse, CA 
 Fresno County Courthouse, CA 
 East Contra Costa County Courthouse, CA 
 Stockton Courthouse, CA 
 Bakersfield Courthouse, CA 
 Santa Clara County Courthouse, San Jose, CA 

 Susanville Courthouse, CA 
 Old Solano County Courthouse, CA 
 Jefferson City Courthouse, MO 
 Kansas City Courthouse, MO 
 Snohomish County Courthouse, Everett, WA 

Relative project experience 
Blast Security Consulting for Federal Courthouses: 

 Los Angeles Courthouse, CA 
 San Diego Federal Courthouse, CA 
 Phillip Burton Federal Building, San Francisco, CA 
 Schwartz Federal Courthouse, San Diego, CA 
 Fort Pierce Federal Courthouse, FL 
 Jacksonville Courthouse, GL 
 PJKK Federal Courthouse, HI 
 Atlanta Federal Courthouse, GA 

 Cedar Rapids Federal Courthouse, IA 
 Coeur D’Alene Courthouse, ID 
 Rockford Federal Courthouse, IL 
 Billings Courthouse, MO 
 Las Cruces Federal Courthouse, NM 
 Moynihan Federal Courthouse, NY 
 Toledo Courthouse, OH 
 Nakamura Federal Courthouse, Seattle, WA 

Born in Dallas, Texas, Eve Hinman, Eng.Sc.D., P.E. , is the President and Principal 
Engineer of Hinman bringing more than 30 years experience in protective design for a 
broad range of federal agencies including the General Service Administration, 
Department of State, Department of Defense and the Department of Veteran Affairs. 
As a Blast Consultant working on projects including county, state and federal 
courthouses, embassies, federal buildings, and mission critical facilities, Eve has 
experience in implementing the appropriate security design criteria to provide a 
specified level of protection. Eve is also an expert in providing the overall site planning 
and layout to ensure standoffs are met and a protected perimeter is provided when 
required. In all of her applications Eve works with her clients from the earliest design 
stages, which best maximizes protection to building occupants while minimizing the 
impact on cost and aesthetics.  



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 122 www.cardno.com TRAVIS S. ISAACSON, PE Page 1 of 2

Current Position
Project Director

Profession
Professional Engineer

Years' Experience
11

Joined Cardno
September 2002

Education
BS / Civil Engineering /
Texas A&M University / 
2002

Professional 
Registrations
PE / TX / #100094
PE / AZ / #54735
PE / NM / #21607

TxDOT ESN #
16703
18.2.1

Affiliations
ASCE, ACEA, APWA, 
SAME

Summary of Experience

Mr. Isaacson is responsible for managing Cardno TBE’s professional services throughout 
Texas. He has over 11 years experience in the civil engineering and construction fields 
working as a utility coordinator, utility engineer and project manager.

Mr. Isaacson has served as the Project Manager/Engineer on numerous Subsurface 
Utility Engineering projects for both public and private clients, with project types ranging 
from design-build toll roads, roadway expansions, railroads, utility installations, oil & gas, 
electric production & transmission, hospitals, schools and other commercial buildings. 
Mr. Isaacson is highly experienced in providing professional Utility Coordination and 
Subsurface Utility Engineering services to the Texas Department of Transportation 
(TxDOT), as he has served as the Project Manager/Engineer on District evergreen 
contracts for the Austin, Dallas and Fort Worth Districts. Mr. Isaacson also has extensive 
experience managing utility relocations on design-build projects, as he worked for three 
years as a Utility Design Coordinator on the SH 130 Segments 5&6 Toll project, 
preparing reimbursable utility agreement assemblies and overseeing the relocation of 
utilities. In addition, Mr. Isaacson has served as the Project Manager on Cardno TBE’s 
Subsurface Utility Engineering Rotation List contract with the City of Austin since 2009.

A registered Professional Engineer (PE), Mr. Isaacson received his BS degree in Civil 
Engineering from Texas A&M University. Mr. Isaacson is committed to a high level of 
integrity and excellence on every project, resulting in delivery of a quality product and 
overall client satisfaction. His project-related computer skills include Primavera, 
AutoCAD, Microstation and Geopak. 

Significant Projects

United States Federal Courthouse, Austin, TX

Client: White Construction. Project Manager responsible for providing Subsurface Utility 
Engineering services for White Construction under their construction contract with the US 
General Services Administration. Cardno TBE’s services included a comprehensive SUE 
investigation (ASCE Quality Level B) of all existing underground utilities on the new 
courthouse project site and surrounding streets, which covered an entire downtown block 
between 4th and 5th Streets and San Antonio and Nueces Streets. Cardno TBE 
excavated 88 test holes (ASCE Quality Level A) on various underground utilities to 
identify conflicts with a proposed communications duct bank designed to be installed in 
the city streets around the perimeter of the building. Cardno TBE’s extensive efforts in 
utilizing flexible fiberglass rodders and remote TV cameras allowed us to locate aged 
storm drain pipes under the city streets and provide the client with the data required for 
design of the new building drainage. The new courthouse will be seven stories, 135 feet 
tall, and will be approximately 212,000 gross square feet in size. Total construction costs 
for the building are estimated at $63 million.

Travis S. Isaacson, PE

www.CardnoTBE.com



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 123 www.cardno.com TRAVIS S. ISAACSON, PE Page 2 of 2

Temple VA Hospital, Temple, TX

Client: Veterans Administration. Project Manager responsible for providing Subsurface 
Utility Engineering services on the Temple VA Campus in Central Texas. Completed a full 
investigation of existing utilities on the 135 acre campus which included over 147,000 
linear feet of designating (ASCE Quality Level B) and 20 test holes (ASCE Quality Level 
A). The information provided the VA Engineering Department with existing utility data to be 
used in the conflict analysis for various building improvements and additions planned for 
the campus site.

IH 35 to Plaza Saltillo Realignment, Austin, TX

Client: Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority. Project Manager responsible for 
providing Subsurface Utility Engineering services to Capital Metro for use in the design of 
rail realignment from IH-35 to Plaza Saltillo Station in downtown Austin, TX. Cardno TBE 
completed approximately 10,000 feet of designating (ASCE Quality Level B) on existing 
utilities within 4th Street, 5th Street and all major cross roads along the alignment.  Existing 
utilities included City of Austin, Texas Gas, AT&T and a number of other fiber optic 
communications companies. Cardno TBE provided Capital Metro with a signed and sealed 
subsurface utility engineering deliverable.

Group 21 Residential & Collector Streets, Austin, TX

Client: City of Austin. Project Manager responsible for providing Subsurface Utility 
Engineering services to the City of Austin under the SUE Rotation Contract for the design 
of street reconstruction and drainage improvements in the Cherrywood neighbourhood in 
east downtown Austin, TX. Cardno TBE completed designating (ASCE Quality Level B) of 
approximately 37,000 feet of designating on existing utilities throughout over two miles of 
city streets and provided the city with a signed and sealed subsurface utility engineering
deliverable. 

MLK Blvd (Loop 547), Waco, TX

Client: Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT). Project Manager responsible for 
providing Subsurface Utility Engineering services for TxDOT. Cardno TBE provided 
designating (ASCE Quality Level B) SUE services to map existing utilities along MLK Blvd 
(Loop 574) and US 77 for use in conflict analysis and design of TxDOT’s roadway 
improvements in the area to accommodate the new Baylor University football stadium 
along the Brazos River. Cardno TBE mapped over 45,000 linear feet of existing utilities on 
the project and TxDOT was provided a signed and sealed subsurface utility engineering 
plan deliverable.

Mays Street Widening, Round Rock, TX

Client: City of Round Rock. Project Manager responsible for providing Subsurface Utility 
Engineering services to the City of Round Rock. Cardno TBE provided Subsurface Utility 
Engineering services which included mapping existing utilities along Mays Street through 
downtown Round Rock from Fannin Avenue to Bagdad Avenue. Cardno TBE provided 
records research and completed over 20,000 linear feet of designating (ASCE Quality 
Level B) and provided the City with a signed and sealed subsurface utility engineering
deliverable for the use in planning roadway and drainage improvements.



ta b  7

l i t i g at i o n  s tat e m e n t



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 124 

lITIgATIoN DISCloSuRe   7

Information in relation to HOK’s claims history is a matter which HOK regards as 
private and confidential. HOK is nonetheless committed to providing its clients with 
a level of quality and design excellence that meets or exceeds customary design 
industry standards. Notwithstanding this commitment, problems invariably arise 
during the design and construction process. 

HOK is sensitive to its clients’ desires that such problems be dealt with promptly and 
fairly. As one of the largest architecture firms in the world, HOK is occasionally the 
subject of claims which allege negligence and/or breach of contract. The number 
of such claims alleged during any given time period is consistent with industry 
standards, taking into account HOK’s presence in the market. 

HOK works closely with its clients, consultants and other parties to resolve project-
related issues without the need for litigation, arbitration or other formal dispute 
resolution proceedings. HOK confirms that it is not aware of any pending or 
threatened claims which could affect its financial stability or continued existence.



ta b  8

h u b  p r o g r a m  s u b c o n t r ac t i n g 

d ec l a r at i o n ,  e t h i c s  a f f i dav i t 

a n d  s tat e m e n t 

i n f o r m at i o n  a f f i dav i t



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 125 

ATTACHMENT 2  

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 23 of 131 Pages

Hellmuth, Obata and Kassabaum, LP 364334264

2711 N. Haskell Avenue, Ste 2250, LB 26              Dallas    TX                 75204

Curt Parde, AIA, LEED BD +C        214.231.5851   214.620.6005         curt.parde@hok.com

IR/CA Services for the Design-Build 
Development of a New Travis County Civil 
and Family Court House

TBD Q1309-006-JT

x

x

35.75%

TBD 15.5% TBD 20.25%



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 126 

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 24 of 131 Pages

Alliance Transportation Group 1742851432100

11599 Metric Blvd., Bldg. M-1, 
Suite 150

Austin TX 78758

Gayle L. Heath 512.821.2081
512.821.2085 gheath@emailatg.com

TBD Traffic Engineering

x
Female, Caucasian

x x x

Carter Design Associates 1743022575900

817 W. 11th Street Austin TX 78701

Donna D. Carter
512.476.1812 512.476.1819 admin@carterdesign.net

TBD 7.0% Local Associate Architect

x
Female, African American

x x x

0.75%

Datum Gojer Engineers, LLC 1752961791600

5929 Balcones Dr., Ste. 100 Austin TX 78731

Erika Passailaigue
512.469.9490 512.469.2924 erika@ datumengineers.

com
TBD 5.0% Structural Engineering

Male, Hispanic

x x

x

The Warren Group Architects, Inc. 1200844731500

2313 Lake Austin Drive Austin TX 78703

Laura Nassri Warren
512.481.1700 956.994.1900 lwarren@twgarch.com

TBD 3.0% Interior Design

Female, Hispanic

x x

x

x



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 127 

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 24 of 131 Pages

Goetting Rowe Engineering 1455284058000

12042 Blanco Road, Suite 301 San Antonio TX 78216

Brenda Kelly Rowe, PE 210.530.7800
210.530.7895 bkellyrowe@goettingrowe.com

TBD MEP Engineering

x
Female, Caucasian

x

12%

Eudacorp, Inc. 1752810595400

307 West 7th Street Fort Worth TX 76102

Claude Eudaric
214.641.1961 214.242.2585 ceudaric@eudacorp.com

TBD 3.0% Cost Estimating

Male, African American

x

x

Jose I. Guerra, Inc.  1742049988500

2401 S. IH-35, Suite 210 Austin TX 78741

Rick Guerra, P.E.
512.445.2090 512.445.2099 rguerra@guerra.com

TBD 3.0% Civil Engineering

Male, Hispanic

x x

x

x

Combs Consulting Group, LP 1205367315300

8200 IH-10, #103 San Antonio TX 78230

Carrie Combs 
210.698.7887 n/a carrie.combs@combs-group.com

TBD Technology Consulting

x
Female, Caucasian

x

0.5%



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 128 

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 25 of 131 Pages

HWA Parking 271584277

5113 Southwest Pkwy, Ste 295 Austin TX 78735

Troy Jamail
512.306.8722 512.306.9779 troy.jamail@hwaparking.com

TBD 1.0% Parking Consulting
Dan L. Wiley & Associates, Inc. n/a

7000 SE Federal Hwy. Ste. 305 Stuart FL 34997

Dan Wiley
772.283.5217 772.283.5219 dwa@danwileyassociates.com

TBD 1.5% Program Verification

x

x
TBE Group, Inc. dba Cardno TBE 1592367433500

2590 Oakmont Drive, Ste.410 Round Rock TX 78665

Travis Isaacson, PE 512.459.6300 512.520.2571 Travis.Isaacson@Cardno.com

TBD 0.25% Subsurface Utility Engineering

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 25 of 131 Pages

BAi, LLC 17430082614

4006 Speedway Austin TX 78751

Richard E. Boner
512.476.3464 512.476.9442 rboner@baiaustin.com

TBD 0.75% A/V, acoustics consulting 
Lerch Bates, Inc. 32024138995

1420 Valwood Pkwy, #172 Carrollton TX 75006

Joe Bledsoe
972.294.5221 469.574.5422 joe.bledsoe@lerchbates.com

TBD 0.75% Vertical Transportation Consulting

x

x
Latta Technical Services, Inc. 75-2219330

500 N. Central Expy., Ste. 310 Plano TX 75023

Igor Abadzic 972.633.5850 469.467.0300 iabadzic@lattatech.com

TBD 0.75% Security Electronics

Hinman Consulting Engineers, Inc. n/a

One Bush Street, Suite 510 San Francisco CA 94104

Eve Hinman 
415.621.4423 415.621.4447 ehinman@hce.com

TBD 1.0% Protective Design Consulting

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 24 of 131 Pages

Asakura Robinson Company, LLC  1200948652800

1902 Washington Ave., Ste A Houston TX 77007

Hayley Pallister
713.337.5830 832.201.7198

                hayley@asakurarobinson.com

TBD 1.5% Landscape Architecture

Male, Asian

x x

x

x



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 129 

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 25 of 131 Pages

RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT Page 25 of 131 Pages

x

x Asian/Native 
American



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 130 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 131 

HuB CeRTIFICATeS   8

CARTeR DeSIgN ASSoCIATeS 

Texas Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Certificate 
Certificate/VID Number: 1743022575900
File/Vendor Number: 10014
Approval Date: 21-NOV-2013
Scheduled Expiration Date: 21-NOV-2017

The Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA), hereby certifies that 

CARTER DESIGN ASSOCIATES, INC 
has successfully met the established requirements of the State of Texas Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 
Program to be recognized as a HUB. This certificate printed 20-DEC-2013, supersedes any registration and certificate 
previously issued by the HUB Program. If there are any changes regarding the information (i.e., business structure, 
ownership, day-to-day management, operational control, business location) provided in the submission of the business’ 
application for registration/certification as a HUB, you must immediately (within 30 days of such changes) notify the HUB 
Program in writing. The CPA reserves the right to conduct a compliance review at any time to confirm HUB eligibility. HUB 
certification may be suspended or revoked upon findings of ineligibility. 

Paul Gibson, Statewide HUB Program Manager 
Texas Procurement and Support Services

Note: In order for State agencies and institutions of higher education (universities) to be credited for utilizing this business as a HUB, they must award 
payment under the Certificate/VID Number identified above. Agencies and universities are encouraged to validate HUB certification prior to issuing a 
notice of award by accessing the Internet (http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/cmbl/cmblhub.html) or by contacting the HUB Program at  
1-888-863-5881 or 512- 463-5872. Rev.	09/12



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 132 

goeTTINg RoWe eNgINeeRINg 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 133 

ASAKuRA RoBINSoN



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 134 

AllIANCe TRANSPoRTATIoN gRouP



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 135 

DATum goJeR eNgINeeRS, llC

euDACoRP, INC.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 136 

THe WARReN gRouP ARCHITeCTS, INC. 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 137 

JoSe I. gueRRA, INC.



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 138 



RFQ No. Q1309-006-JT   |  January 15, 2014     Page 139 



27 11 N .  H a s k e l l av e N u e

s u i t e 2 2 5 0

Da l l a s , t e x a s 7520 4

t e l :  2 14 .720.6 0 0 0

W W W. H O k .C O M



 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  John Pena, CTPM; Marvin Brice, CPPB, 
Purchasing Office, 512-854-9700    
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Purchasing Agent 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge, Samuel T. Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES, DEER CREEK 
SUBSTANDARD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, RFQ NO.: 
Q110243-LP, TO THE HIGHEST QUALIFIED RESPONDENT, DOUCET & 
ASSOCIATES, INC.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 On October 25, 2011, the Commissioners Court approved a pre-
qualified list of Professional Architectural/Engineering Services for Small 
Projects in Travis County, through the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
No. Q110243-LP.  The pre-qualified list has since been utilized for 
various small projects county wide. 

 The Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) currently requires 
professional Engineering Services to develop design recommendations 
for roadway improvements in the Deer Creek Subdivision in 
southwestern Travis County, Precinct Three.  While actual construction 
will be phased at a later date, the design work will be completed upfront. 

 TNR has negotiated the terms and fees of a Professional Service 
Agreement (PSA) with one of the pre-qualified professional A/E firms 
(Doucet & Associates, Inc.) with expertise in these types of services, 
and proven to be the most highly qualified firm.  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 19

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 TNR is recommending with the Purchasing Office concurrence, contract 
award to Doucet & Associates, Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of 
$72,690.00.  TNR has deemed the price as fair and reasonable.   

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $72,690.00 
Contract Type: Professional Services 
Contract Period: 120 Calendar Days 

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information:   
Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received: 
HUB Information: 1  % HUB Subcontractor:  4% 

 
 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information:   

  Funds Reservations No.: 30000867, Fund 4083 
  Funding Account(s): 1490190000, GL Account 522040 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

DOUCET & ASSOCIATES, INC.

FOR

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

FOR THE

DEER CREEK SUBSTANDARD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

CONTRACT NO. 4400001904
(TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES)



Contract No.: 4400001904

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (PSA)

SECTION TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE

1 EMPLOYMENT OFTHE CONSULTANT 4
2 BASIC SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT 5
3 CONSTRUCTION COST 7
4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 8
5 PERIOD OF SERVICE 8
6 COORDINATION WiTH COUNTY 9
7 WORK PRODUCT 10
8 REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT 11
9 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 11
10 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 11
11 CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILiTY AND LIABILITY 14
12 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 15
13 MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS 16
14 MISCELLANEOUS: 16

14.1 VENUE
14.2 SEVERABILITY
14.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT
14.4 CERTIFICATE OF CONSULTANT
14.5 BIDDING EXEMPTION
14.6 NOTICE
14.7 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
14.8 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT
14.9 PURCHASE ORDER
14.10 PAYMENTS
14.11 INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS
14.12 PROPERTY TAXES
14.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION
14.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
14.15 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS
14.16 FUNDING OUT
14.17 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT
14.18 MEDIATION
14.19 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT
14.20 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS
14.21 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE
14.22 GRATUITIES
14.23 MONITORING
14.24 INCORPORATION OF ATTACHMENTS
14.25 ENTIRE AGREEMENT
14.26 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT
14.27 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILiTY
14.28 ENTITY STATUS

Page 2 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

SECTION TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND SIGNATURE PAGE 26

EXHIBIT 1 COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND
SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 27

EXHIBIT 2 HOURLY RATES 29

EXHIBIT 3 PROJECT SCHEDULE 34
ATTACHMENT 1 — PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE
ATTACHMENT 2 — UTILITY RELOCATION SERVICES
ATTACHMENT 3 — CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

EXHIBIT 4 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT 35

EXHIBIT 5 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 36

EXHIBIT 6 ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 37
ATTACHMENT 1 LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

EXHIBIT 7 HUB DECLARATION AND LIST OF
CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS 40

APPENDIX A SCOPE OF SERVICES 45

APPENDIX B ORGANIZATION CHART WITH KEY PERSONNEL IDENTIFIED 48

Page 3 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“PSA”)

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

This Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between Travis County,
Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“County”) and Doucet & Associates, Inc.
(“Consultant”) (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

County desires to obtain professional engineering services for the design of the Deer Creek
Substandard Road Improvements (the “Project”);

Consultant has the professional ability and expertise to fulfill the requirements of the Project,
and to counsel County in the selection and analysis of cost-effective alternatives.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement, the
amount and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, County and Consultant agree as follows:

SECTION 1
EMPLOYMENT OF THE CONSULTANT

1.1 The County Executive of the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department
(“TNR”) (the “County Executive”) has designated a primary Project representative to act on
behalf of County with respect to the work to be performed under this Agreement (the “County
Project Manager”). The County Project Manager, in consultation with the County Executive,
has the authority to interpret and define County’s policies and decisions with respect to
Consultant’s services. The County Project Manager may designate representatives to transmit
instructions and receive information. The County Project Manager will supervise the
performance of Consultant’s services under this Agreement. Consultant must cooperate fully
with the County Project Manager in the performance of services under this Agreement.

1.2 County is contracting with Consultant as an independent contractor. Consultant shall perform
professional engineering services as described in this Agreement. If any dispute arises under
this Agreement, Consultant and the County Project Manager specifically agree to make a good
faith effort to resolve the dispute directly between them. If they are unable to resolve the
matter to Consultant’s satisfaction, Consultant may appeal the dispute by following the
procedures described in Paragraph 11.9 of this Agreement.

1.3 County will provide Consultant convenient access to all existing plans, maps, studies, reports,
field notes, statistics, computations, and other data in its possession relating to existing
facilities and to the Project. Consultant shall make copies of needed information and promptly
return all originals. The cost of such copies will be a reimbursable expense. Consultant shall
return his copies of this material to County upon completion of the Project, if the County
Project Manager instructs the Consultant to do so.

1.4 County cannot and does not warrant or guarantee the accuracy of all information that it
provides to Consultant. Consultant may rely on professional sealed documents to the extent

Page 4 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

that the original professional would have been held liable for the information contained in
those documents, in accordance with industry standard practice. Information provided in
record or an as-built document that is critical to the current design work should be field-
verified by Consultant in accordance with his professional judgment. Consultant may rely on
other Project information provided by County, such as program data or design criteria, in
accordance with industry standards, unless this Agreement provides otherwise.

1.5 If the County Project Manager observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in
the Work Product, as defined in Section 7, the County Project Manager will give prompt
written notice of the fault or defect to Consultant. Consultant shall correct any such fault or
defect at no cost to County.

1.6 The Travis County Commissioners Court orders this Agreement for professional engineering
services exempt from the County Purchasing Act pursuant to Texas Local Government Code §
262.024(4) as an item for procurement of professional services.

1.7 Project Management; Key Personnel. Consultant shall provide management for the Project in
accordance with the Organizational Chart set forth as Appendix B, attached hereto and made
a part hereof. Personnel included in the Organizational Chart shall be considered “Key
Personnel” for purposes of this Project. Project Manager must be a Professional Engineer
registered in the State of Texas. Except in the event that the Key Personnel individual is no
longer employed by (or otherwise under the direction and control of) Consultant, none of the
Key Personnel may be withdrawn from the Project without County’s prior written approval;
provided, however, Consultant shall have the right to change Key Personnel if Consultant
complies with the following conditions: (1) Consultant provides County with at least fifteen
(15) business days prior written notice that Consultant intends to replace a Key Personnel
individual; (2) the notice is accompanied by a copy of the resume of any proposed
replacement Key Personnel, together with documentation demonstrating that the proposed
replacement has equal or greater experience and qualifications than the original Key Personnel
individual; and (3) Consultant permits County to interview the proposed replacement Key
Personnel individual for the purpose of satisfying itself that the proposed replacement is
acceptable. County will notify Consultant within seven (7) days of conducting the interview of
any objection to the proposed replacement, and will either request additional assurances
regarding the proposed replacement or require Consultant to submit the name and
qualifications of another replacement Key Personnel individual. Such process will continue until
Consultant proposes a replacement Key Personnel individual acceptable to County. County
agrees not to unreasonably withhold such acceptance. In the event a Key Personnel individual
leaves the employment of Consultant unexpectedly and without advance notice, Consultant
will immediately notify County upon learning of the departure and will comply with the
requirements of this section.

SECTION 2
BASIC SERVICES OF CONSULTANT

2.1 Consultant shall be responsible for the complete design and documentation of the work
described or referenced in this Agreement, and shall prepare the Work Product, , which must
be acceptable to the County Project Manager. Consultant shall also serve as County’s

Page 5 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

professional consultant during the Project phases to which this Agreement applies, and shall
consult with and give advice to County during the performance of the Project.

2.2 Consultant shall perform the “Basic Services,” which means:

2.2.1 all elements of labor, materials and equipment required for the Project, which must be
rendered to the satisfaction of the County Project Manager and the Commissioners
Court and in accordance with the requirements, policies, and standard practices of
Travis County;

2.2.2 the detailed Scope of Services for the Project as specified in Appendix A, attached to
and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes (the “Scope of Services”);

2.2.3 all Project technical and management expertise stated in the Qualifications Statement
submitted by Consultant in response to the RFQ attached to this Agreement as
Appendix C and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes;

2.2.4 the Work Product, as defined herein, which Consultant shall submit to County for review
at regular intervals, as specified in the Project Schedule to be provided by Consultant.
The requirements applicable to the Project Schedule are specified in Exhibit 3.

2.3 Consultant shall use all applicable codes in performing the Basic Services for the Project. The
standards, codes, specifications, or other technical, design or professional requirements that
apply to this Project are the latest edition in effect on the date on which this PSA is executed,
unless Consultant and County expressly agree otherwise. The applicable codes for this Project
include, but are not limited to:

For TNR (non-building) projects:

a. International Building Code
b. National Fire Code
c. National Plumbing Code
d. National Mechanical Code
e. City of Austin Energy Guidelines/Codes, or applicable electric service provider’s

guidelines/codes
f. Travis County Design Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in

Subdivisions
g. AASHTO A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets
h. Texas Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways

(current edition and revisions)
i. Texas Department of Transportation Construction Manual
j. City of Austin Drainage Criteria Manual (current version and updates)
k. Texas Department of Transportation’s Standard Specifications for Construction of

Highways, Streets and Bridges, 2004
I. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
m. Architectural Barriers, Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation
n. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Regulations
o. Army Corps of Engineers Regulations

Page 6 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

p. Edwards Aquifer Regulations
q. Texas Commission on Environmental Quality applicable regulations

2.4 As part of the Basic Services, Consultant shall report to the County any suspected hazardous
materials in the areas of proposed construction. Hazardous materials assessment and
abatement work will be provided by County under separate contract.

SECTION 3
CONSTRUCTION COST

3.1 The construction cost is the total cost to County of all elements of the Project designed or
specified by Consultant (the “Construction Cost”).

3.2 The Construction Cost includes the cost, at current market rates, including a reasonable
allowance for overhead and profit: (i) of labor, materials and any equipment that the
Consultant has designed, specified, selected, or specially provided for Consultant; and (ii) of
permitting fees and other fees and charges required by the City of Austin or other
governmental authorities. The Construction Cost does not include the compensation of
Consultant or other consultants.

3.3 Detailed estimates of the Construction Cost prepared by Consultant represent Consultant’s
best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. It is
recognized, however, that neither Consultant nor County has control over the cost of labor,
materials, or equipment; over the contractor’s methods of determining bid prices; or over
competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions.

3.4 Consultant may include contingencies for design, bidding, and price escalation to determine
what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of construction are to be included
in the Work Product, and may include in the Work Product alternate bids to adjust the
Construction Cost to the fixed limit.

3.5 If the Bidding Phase (as described in the Scope of Services) has not commenced within one
(1) month after Consultant submits the Work Product for that phase to County, Consultant
shall adjust any Project budget or fixed limit of Construction Cost, if directed by County. This
adjustment work will be considered an Additional Service, as defined in Section 4, if the delay
was not caused by Consultant. The adjusted Project budget or fixed limit will reflect any
change in the general level of prices in the construction industry between the date of
submission of the Work Product and the date on which bids are sought.

3.6 If the Project budget or fixed limit of Construction Cost is exceeded by the lowest responsible
bid, County may:

(1) approve, in writing, an increase in the Project budget or fixed limit;
(2) authorize rebidding of the Project within a reasonable time;
(3) terminate this Agreement and abandon the Project; or
(4) revise the scope of the Project to reduce the Construction Cost.

Page 7 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

3.7 If County chooses to proceed under clause 3.6(4), above, Consultant, without additional
compensation, shall modify the documents that Consultant is responsible for preparing under
the Basic Services portion of this Agreement, as necessary to comply with the fixed limit.

3.8 Consultant shall estimate the total Project budget, including reimbursables, contingencies,
permit fees, and agency fees. The budget may not include: (1) hazardous material testing
and removal, if any is required; or (ii) any costs for furniture, fixtures and equipment, unless
otherwise provided in this Agreement. As part of the Basic Services, Consultant shall report
to the County any suspected occurrence of hazardous materials in the areas of proposed
remodeling or other construction work. Hazardous materials abatement work will be
provided by County under separate contract.

SECTION 4
COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

4.1 In consideration of Consultant’s performance of the Basic Services, Consultant will receive
the Basic Services compensation described in Exhibit 1. County will pay the Basic Services
compensation in accordance with the payment schedule specified in Exhibit 1.

4.2 For the performance of services not specifically described in the Basic Services (the
“Additional Services”), Consultant will receive the Additional Services compensation described
in Exhibit 1.

4.3 The County Project Manager will have authority to classify Consultant’s services as “Basic or
“Additional” services under this Agreement. The Project Manager may make this classification
in consultation with the County Executive. In the event Consultant disagrees with the
classification designated by the County Project Manager (and, if applicable, the County
Executive), and those individuals are unable to resolve the disagreement directly, Consultant
may refer the dispute to the Purchasing Agent, who will follow the procedures described in
Paragraph 11.9.

SECTION 5
PERIOD OF SERVICE

5.1 Consultant shall perform the professional services described herein, whether “Basic” or
“Additional” services, in accordance with the Project Schedule, attached to this Agreement as
Exhibit 3. Consultant shall obtain County approval for any proposed modification to the
Project Schedule.

5.2 This Agreement will become effective on the Effective Date, as defined on the signature page
of this Agreement, and will remain in full force and effect for the period required for the
complete design of, construction contract award for, and construction of the Project, including
warranty periods and any extensions of time as provided in this Agreement (the “Project
Completion Date”), unless sooner terminated as provided for in this Agreement.

5.3 If the performance by Consultant or County of either Party’s obligations under this Agreement
is interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not occasioned by its own conduct, whether such
occurrence be an act of God or the result of war, riot, civil commotion, sovereign conduct, or

Page 8 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party to this Agreement, then that Party will
be excused from such performance for a period of time that is reasonably necessary after such
occurrence to remedy the effects of the occurrence. Upon the discovery of such an event, the
Party whose performance is affected under this section shall notify the other Party, and the
County Project Manager will call a special meeting to propose a program for resolution of the
problem, and if necessary, to establish an estimated period of time of suspension or extension
of the Project Completion Date. If Consultant makes a written request for an extension of
time, the County Project Manager may grant the extension if the request is properly
documented and justified by the circumstances.

SECTION 6
COORDINATION WITH COUNTY

6.1 The Travis County Purchasing Agent (the “Purchasing Agent”) acts as County’s overall contract
administrator. The Purchasing Agent may designate representatives to transmit and receive
information. Consultant shall not commence work until the County Project Manager has
thoroughly briefed Consultant on the scope of the Project. Consultant shall not commence
work on the Project until receipt of a written notice to proceed issued by the Purchasing Agent
upon the recommendation of the County Executive (the “Notice to Proceed”). Consultant shall
not commence work on any subsequent phase of the Project, as such phases are described in
the Scope of Services, until receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, which will be issued by the
County Executive. The County Executive will copy the Purchasing Agent on all Notices to
Proceed issued for subsequent Project phases.

6.2 At the beginning of each Project phase, and before written authorization to proceed with that
phase is issued, Consultant shall submit to the County Project Manager the Project Schedule,
as updated and adjusted as required for each phase. In addition, Consultant shall make
monthly progrs reports with comparisons to the Project Schedule.

6.3 In addition to Consultant’s obligations described in the Scope of Services pertaining to
meetings, at intervals not to exceed thirty (30) days, Consultant shall arrange for and attend
progress meetings with County representatives and, as applicable, representatives of any
other governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project, to explain and receive
feedback on the work-in-progress.

6.4 Consultant shall furnish all available data and reasonable assistance necessary to comply with
established application, review, and approval processes for any permits, grants, or planning
advances required for the Project. Consultant shall familiarize himself, and comply, with
established application, review, and approval processes as necessary to ensure that
reasonable compliance will cause no delay to the Project Schedule.

6.5 For the duration of the Agreement term, Consultant shall be responsible for advising County
whether in Consultant’s judgment it is feasible to proceed with the Project given any
constraints affecting the Project.

6.6 Consultant shall cooperate and coordinate with County’s staff and other consultants and
contractors as reasonable and necessary in performance of this Agreement and as required by
the County Executive, the County Project Manager, and the Purchasing Agent.

Page 9 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

SECTION 7
WORK PRODUCT

7.1 The term “Work Product” means any reports, drawings, plans, specifications and any other
documents created, obtained or assembled in connection with performance of this Agreement
and with the services rendered in connection with the Project, including but not limited to any
and all deliverables for each phase of the Project as described in the Scope of Services.

7.2 Consultant shall submit the Work Product for each phase of the Project on or before the dates
specified in the Project Schedule. Upon receipt of the Work Product, County will check the
submission for completion. A “Complete” submission means that all items listed, referenced
and otherwise described in this Agreement relating to that phase of the Project have been
included.

7.3 If the submission is Complete, County will notify Consultant and County’s Technical Review
Process, as defined in this Section, will begin. If the submission is incomplete, County will
notify Consultant, who shall perform any professional services that are required to complete
the Work Product for that phase. Consultant shall then resubmit the Work Product to County.

7.4 County’s “Technical Review Process” means County’s review of the Complete Work Product for
substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements included in the Basic
Services. If necessary, County will return the Complete Work Product to Consultant, who
shall perform any professional services required for such compliance and resubmit the
Complete Work Product to County.

7.5 The process described in paragraph 7.3 and 7.4 will be repeated until the Work Product is
accepted by County. “Acceptance” means that in the County Project Manager’s opinion,
substantial compliance with the technical specifications and requirements has been achieved.

7.6 After Acceptance, Consultant shall perform any required modifications, corrections, redesigns,
and additional work as requested by County and any other governmental entities having
jurisdiction over the Project and as necessary to receive final approval by the County Project
Manager. “Approval” means formal written recognition by County that the Work Product for
that phase is Complete and that compliance with the technical specifications and requirements
has been fully achieved.

7.7 The County Project Manager will have authority to classify Consultant’s services as “Complete”,
“Accepted”, or “Approved” under this Agreement. The Project Manager may make this
classification in consultation with the County Executive. In the event Consultant disagrees with
the classification designated by the County Project Manager (and, if applicable, the County
Executive), and those individuals are unable to resolve the disagreement directly, Consultant
may refer the dispute to the Purchasing Agent, who will follow the procedures described in
Paragraph 11.9.

Page 10 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

SECTION 8
REVISION TO WORK PRODUCT

8.1 After Approval by County of the Work Product for each Project phase, Consultant shall, without
additional compensation, perform any professional services required as a result of Consultant’s
development of the Work Product that County has found to be in error or omission. In
addition, if it is necessary to revise the Work Product in order to make the Project
constructible, Consultant shall do so without additional compensation. However, after
Approval by County, any revisions, additions, or other modifications made at County’s request
for the convenience of County that require Consultant to perform extra services and incur
additional expenses will entitle Consultant to additional compensation for such extra services
and expenses. This compensation will be paid as Additional Services in accordance with
Exhibits 1 and 2. Consultant must obtain County’s written authorization for Additional Services
in advance in accordance with Exhibit 1.

SECTION 9
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

9.1 “Reimbursable Expenses” means expenses in addition to the compensation for Basic Services
or Additional Services specified in Exhibits 1 and 2. Reimbursable Expenses includes actual
expenditures made by Consultant in the interest of the Project for the expenses listed below:

9.1.1 Expense of reproductions, plotting of drawings, and/or other documents for other than
the in-house use of Consultant. Postage, delivery expenses, and mileage for the Work
Product(s) are also allowable as Reimbursable Expenses;

9.1.2 Expense of review and permitting fees as required by governmental authorities having
jurisdiction over the Project.

9.2 Unless this Agreement has been amended or modified as provided in this Agreement, the
payments made for each of the above-listed categories of Reimbursable Expenses may not
exceed the amount shown in Exhibit 1.

9.3 County will pay Reimbursable Expenses monthly upon presentation of Consultant’s statement
of services rendered or expenses incurred. Consultant shall submit receipts for all reimbursable
expenses with each invoice. County does not reimburse for sales taxes paid by Consultant.
Consultant may obtain a Tax Exempt Certificate from the Travis County Purchasing Office.

SECTION 10
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

10.1 SUSPENSION. County may suspend performance of this Agreement at any time for any
reason without terminating this Agreement by giving Consultant written Notice of Suspension
(a “Notice of Suspension”). The “Effective Date of Suspension” will be the date on which
Consultant receives the Notice of Suspension, and the Suspension Period will begin on this
date. Performance may be reinstated and this Agreement resumed in full force and effect
within sixty (60) days of Consultant’s receipt Consultant of written notice of reinstatement

Page 11 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

from County. Upon the Effective Date of Suspension, Consultant shall follow the procedures
described below:

10.1.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Suspension, Consultant shall, unless the Notice
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in
connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall prepare a
statement detailing the services performed under this Agreement prior to the
Effective Date of Suspension. Consultant shall prepare copies of all completed or
partially completed designs, plans, and specifications prepared under this
Agreement prior to the Effective Date of Suspension, including but not limited to
the Work Product, for possible delivery to County upon County’s request.

10.1.2 During the Suspension Period, Consultant may submit the above-referenced
statement to County for payment of the approved services actually performed
under this Agreement, less previous payments.

10.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE. County reserves the right to terminate this Agreement
for reasons other than default by Consultant, including for any reason deemed by
Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from any governmental law,
ordinance, regulation, or court order, by delivering to Consultant a written notice (a “Notice of
Termination for Convenience”), which will take effect on the tenth day following receipt by
Consultant (“Termination for Convenience”). In the event of Termination for Convenience,
County and its officials, agents and representatives will not be liable for loss of any profits.

10.2.1 Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination for Convenience and prior to the effective date
of termination, Consultant shall, unless the Notice of Termination for Convenience
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in
connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall proceed to promptly
cancel all existing orders and contracts insofar as such orders and contracts are
chargeable to this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a Notice of
Termination for Convenience, Consultant shall submit a statement showing in detail the
services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

10.2.2 Consultant shall deliver to County copies of all completed or partially completed
designs, plans, specifications and other Work Product prepared under this Agreement
prior to the effective date of termination as a precondition to any final payment due
under this Agreement.

10.2.3 Upon satisfaction of the above conditions, County will pay Consultant for approved
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous
payments.

10.2.4 Consultant’s failure to submit the required statement described in paragraph 10.2.1 and
to comply with the above stated conditions will constitute a waiver by Consultant of any
and all rights or claims to collect the fee to which Consultant may rightfully be entitled
for services performed under this Agreement.

Page 12 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

10.3 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for the failure of
the other Party to perform any provisions of this Agreement, through no fault of the
terminating Party (“Termination for Default”) by delivering written notice of termination (a
“Notice of Termination for Default”) to the defaulting Party. The Notice of Termination for
Default shall take effect on the tenth day following receipt by the defaulting Party. In the
event of Termination for Default, County and its officials, agents and representatives will not
be liable for loss of any profits.

Termination by Consultant:

10.3.1 In the event Consultant exercises its right to terminate for default by County, within
thirty (30) days after receipt by County of Consultant’s Notice of Termination for
Default, Consultant shall submit a statement detailing the services performed under
this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

10.3.2 Consultant shall deliver to County copies of all completed or partially completed
designs, plans, specifications and other Work Product prepared under this Agreement
prior to the effective date of termination as a precondition to any final payment due
under this Agreement.

10.3.3 Upon satisfaction of the above conditions, County will pay Consultant for approved
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous
payments.

10.3.4 Consultant’s failure to submit the required statement described in paragraph 10.3.1
and to comply with the above stated conditions will constitute a waiver by Consultant
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee to which Consultant may rightfully be
entitled for services performed under this Agreement.

Termination by County:

10.3.5 Upon receipt by Consultant of a Notice of Termination for Default and prior to the
effective date of termination, Consultant shall, unless the Notice of Termination
otherwise directs, immediately begin to phase out and discontinue all services in
connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall proceed to promptly
cancel all existing orders and contracts insofar as such orders and contracts are
chargeable to this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a Notice of
Termination for Default, Consultant shall submit a statement showing in detail the
services performed under this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

10.3.6 Consultant shall deliver to County copies of all completed or partially completed
designs, plans, specifications and other Work Product prepared under this Agreement
prior to the effective date of termination as a precondition to any final payment due
under this Agreement.

10.3.7 Upon satisfaction of the above conditions, County will pay Consultant for approved
services actually performed under this Agreement prior to termination, less previous
payments.

Page 13 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

10.3.8 Consultant’s failure to submit the required statement described in paragraph 10.3.5
and to comply with the above stated conditions will constitute a waiver by Consultant
of any and all rights or claims to collect the fee to which Consultant may rightfully be
entitled for services performed under this Agreement.

10.4 All references to time in this Agreement will be measured in calendar days unless otherwise
specified.

SECTION ii.
CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY

11.1 Consultant covenants to undertake no task for which a professional license or certificate is
required unless Consultant or someone under Consultant’s direction is appropriately licensed.
In the event such licensed individual’s license expires, is revoked, or is canceled, Consultant
shall inform County of such event within five (5) working days.

11.2 Consultant shall be responsible for conformance with applicable federal and state laws, County
permitting requirements, and city ordinances currently in effect.

11.3 Acceptance and Approval of the Work Product by County will not release Consultant of any
responsibility or liability for the accuracy and competency of Consultant’s designs, working
drawings, specifications, or other documents or work performed under this Agreement. Neither
Acceptance nor Approval by County will be an assumption of responsibility or liability by
County for any defect, error, or omission in the designs, working drawings, specifications, or
other documents prepared by Consultant.

11.4 Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Consultant shall perform all
services and responsibilities required of Consultant under this Agreement using at least that
standard of care that a reasonably prudent Consultant in Travis County, Texas, would use in
similar circumstances. Consultant shall perform the duties set forth in this Agreement in a
professional manner and nothing in this Agreement will be construed to relieve Consultant of
this duty.

11.5 Upon County’s request, Consultant shall immediately remove from association with the Project
any employee of Consultant who, in the opinion of County, is incompetent or whose conduct
becomes detrimental to the work or coordination with County.

11.6 Consultant shall place his Texas Professional Consultant’s seal of endorsement on all
documents and engineering data furnished to County, as required by law.

11.7 Consultant is an independent contractor under this Agreement. Neither Consultant nor any
officer, agent, servant, or employee of Consultant will be classified as an employee or servant
of County.

11.8 INDEMNIFICATION. CONSULTANT AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY AND ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, ACTIONS, SUITS, AND UABILITY OF ANY KIND,

Page 14 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

WHETHER MERITORIOUS OR NOT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL EXPENSES OF
LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY
PERSON, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY ARISING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY
NEGLIGENT ACT, NEGLIGENT ERROR, OR NEGLIGENT OMISSION OF CONSULTANT OR ANY
OF CONSULTANT’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, OR SUBCONTRACTORS ON
ACCOUNT OF, ARISING OR RESULTING FROM, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, THE
PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

11.8.1 If any person, firm, corporation or other entity makes or brings any claim, or other
action, against Consultant that relates to Consultant’s performance under this
Agreement, including proceedings before an administrative agency, Consultant shall
give written notice to County of the following information:

(i) the existence of the claim, or other action, within ten (10) working days
after being notified of it;

(ii) the name and address of the person, firm, corporation, or other entity
that made a claim, or that instituted any type of action or proceeding;

(iii) the alleged basis of the claim, action or proceeding;

(iv) the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or
proceeding was instituted; and

(v) the name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made.

11.8.2 Except as otherwise directed, Consultant shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent
papers received by Consultant with respect to these claims or actions and all court
pleadings related to the defense of these claims or actions.

11.9 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION; UNRESOLVED DISPUTES. The Purchasing Agent acts as the
County representative in the administration of this Agreement. In case of an unresolved
dispute, any document, notice, or correspondence not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent, or
other authorized County person, is void unless otherwise stated in this Agreement. If
Consultant does not agree with any document, notice, or correspondence issued by the
Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, relating to the unresolved dispute,
Consultant must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County
person, within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or
correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. Consultant may finally
appeal the decision of the Purchasing Agent, in writing, to the Travis County Commissioners
Court, whose decision shall be final and binding.

SECTION 12
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

12.1 Consultant shall furnish County with Work Product as requested, whether or not it is complete at
the end of the Project, or upon suspension or termination of this Agreement, as provided in this

Page 15 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

Agreement. Consultant may retain copies of the Work Product for Consultant’s records.

12.2 The Work Product, and any other documents, including estimates, computer tapes, graphic
files, tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, field notes, and data prepared by
Consultant in performance of this Agreement, together with all intellectual property and
proprietary rights in and to all such documents, will upon creation become the sole and
exclusive property of County. Upon completion of the Project, Consultant shall deliver all such
documents to County in an organized fashion. Consultant may retain a copy.

12.3 Any reuse by Consultant of any such documents described in paragraphs 12.1 and 12.2
without the specific and prior written consent of County will be at Consultant’s sole risk and
without liability or legal exposure to County.

12.4 Consultant will not be responsible for any use or any modifications to the documents described
in paragraphs 12.1 and 12.2 made by any other entity, unless Consultant has given his specific
written consent.

SECTION 13
MAINTENANCE OF AND RIGHT OF ACCESS TO RECORDS

13.1 Consultant agrees to maintain appropriate accounting records of costs, expenses, and payrolls
of employees working on the Project, together with documentation of evaluations and study
results for a period of five years after final payment for completed services and all other
pending matters concerning this Agreement have been closed.

13.2 Consultant further agrees that County and its duly authorized representatives will have access
to any and all books, documents, papers and records of Consultant that are directly pertinent
to the services performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

SECTION 14
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1 VENUE. This Agreement is governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of
the United States of America and the State of Texas, and all obligations under this Agreement
are performable in Travis County, Texas. Venue for any dispute arising out of this Agreement
will lie in the appropriate court of Travis County, Texas.

14.2 SEVERABILITY. If a court of competent jurisdiction rules any portion or portions of this
Agreement invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the remainder of it shall remain
valid and binding.

14.3 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT. Consultant agrees, during the performance of the
services under this Agreement, to comply with the equal opportunity in employment provisions
cited in Exhibit 4.

14.4 CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT. Consultant certifies that neither Consultant nor any
members of Consultant’s firm has:

Page 16 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

14.4.1 Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee, or
other consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Consultant) to solicit or secure the services provided by this Agreement.

14.4.2 Agreed, as an expressed or implied condition for obtaining this Agreement, to employ
or retain the services of any firm or person other than in connection with carrying out
the services to be performed under this Agreement.

14.4.3 Paid or agreed to pay to any firm, organization, or person (other than bona fide
employees working solely for Consultant) any fee, contribution, donation, or
consideration of any kind for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the
services provided under this Agreement.

Consultant agrees that County may furnish this certification to any local, state or
federal governmental agencies in connection with this Agreement and with those
portions of the Project involving participation of agency grant funds. Consultant
agrees that this certification is subject to all applicable state and federal, criminal
and civil laws.

14.5 NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by one Party to
the other must be in writing. The notice will be given and deemed to have been given
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the Party to
whom the notice is given. The notice will be given and deemed to have been given on the
third day following mailing if placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered
or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth
in this section.

The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is specifically
directed otherwise, is:

COUNTY: Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin. Texas. 78767

with copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Steven M. Manilla, P.E. (or successor)
County Executive
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

Page 17 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

The address of Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement, unless such notice is
specifically directed otherwise, is:

Doucet & Associates, Inc.

7401B Hwy. 71 West. Suite 160

Austin, TX 78735

14.6 INSURANCE. Consultant agrees during the performance of the services under this Agreement
to comply with the insurance requirements specified in Exhibit 5.

14.7 FORFEiTURE OF AGREEMENT. Consultant shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and
County will retain all performance by Consultant and recover all consideration, or the value of
all consideration, paid to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement if:

(I) Consultant was doing business at the time of submitting its Qualifications
Statement or had done business during the 365-day period immediately prior to
the date on which its Qualifications Statement was due with one or more Key
Contracting Persons; or

(ii) Consultant does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on which
the Qualifications Statement that resulted in this Agreement and prior to full
performance of this Agreement.

14.7.1 “Was doing business” and “has done business” mean:

(a) Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for
purchase of any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal
or equitable; or

(b) Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the
aggregate in a calendar year;

but does not include:

(c) any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the general public;

(d) any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family, or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Consultant in the
ordinary course of its business; or

(e) a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Consultant if Consultant is a national or multinational corporation by an agent,

Page 18 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

employee or other representative of Consultant who does not know and is not in a
position that he or she should have known about this Agreement.

14.7.2 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in listed in
Attachment 1 to Exhibit 6.

14.8 PURCHASE ORDER. Consultant and its contractors, subcontractors and vendors shall provide
goods and services using the purchase order method. The designated representative of the
Travis County Purchasing Office will assign a purchase order number. Consultant and its
contractors, subcontractors and vendors shall reference the Agreement number and the
purchase order number on all invoices to the Travis County Transportation and Natural
Resources Department. The terms and conditions contained elsewhere in this Agreement will
prevail over different or contrary terms in any purchase order. All invoices submitted by
Consultant and its contractors, subcontractors, and vendors must reference the purchase order
number on the invoice. County will not pay invoices that are in excess of the amount
authorized by the purchase order.

14.9 PAYMENTS. County will make payment by check or warrant upon satisfactory delivery and
acceptance of items and submission of a correct and complete invoice to the address below for
orders placed by the Purchasing Agent, as indicated on Purchase Orders.

Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

In order to be considered “correct and complete,” an invoice must include at least the
following information:

14.9.1 name, address, and telephone number of Consultant and similar information in
the event payment is to be made to a different address;

14.9.2 County Agreement, Purchase Order, or Delivery Order number;
14.9.3 identification of items or services as outlined in the Agreement;
14.9.4 quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount, and
14.9.5 any additional payment information that may be called for by this Agreement.

Consultant shall also submit a statement with each invoice showing the percentage
completion of the work to date, as well as any additional written information requested
by County to document the progress of the work.

14.10 DISBURSEMENTS TO PERSONS WITH OUTSTANDING DEBTS PROHIBiTED. In accordance
with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if notice of indebtedness has been filed
with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the indebtedness of Consultant to the
State, County or a salary fund, a warrant may not be drawn on a County fund in favor of
Consultant, or an agent or assignee of Consultant until:

14.10.1 the County Treasurer notifies Consultant in writing that the debt is outstanding;
and

Page 19 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

14.10.2 the debt is paid.

14. 10.3 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from
written agreements with County.

14. 10.4 County may apply any funds County owes Consultant to the outstanding
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 14.10 above, if the notice
includes a statement that the amount owed by County to Consultant may be
applied to reduce the outstanding debt.

14.11 INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS. Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code will
govern accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments.

14.12 PROPERTY TAXES. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if Consultant
is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of providing the services rendered
under this Agreement, Consultant assigns any payments to be made for services rendered
hereunder to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the delinquent
taxes.

14.13 TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION. Consultant shall provide County with an Internal Revenue Form
W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of
entity status in a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any funds are payable under
this Agreement.

14.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement will be binding on and inure to the benefit of
County and Consultant and their respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns.
Neither County nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in or obligations
under this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. IT IS EXPRESSLY
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED THAT NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO
ASSIGN THIS AGREEMENT EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE
GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT.

14.15 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB’) PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.

14.15.1 HUB Program Requirements.

14.15.1.1 In consideration of award of this Agreement to Consultant, Consultant
agrees to maintain a subconsultant relationship with any HUB Subconsultants identified
on the HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) DECLARATION Form provided
with Consultant’s Qualifications Statement and attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 7.
Consultant shall make good faith efforts to meet or exceed the HUB participation goals
in the Professional Services category for an overall 15.8% of the Agreement Sum for
Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (MBE) and an Overall 15.8% of the Agreement
Sum for Woman-Owned Business Enterprises (WBE) (Sub-goals.’ 1.9% African
American, 9.0% Hispanic-American, 4.9% Native/Asian-American). For purposes of this

Page 20 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

Agreement, all references to “HUB” mean “certified HUB.” To be considered as a
“certified HUB,” the subconsultant must have been certified by, and hold a current and
valid certification with, any of the following three agencies: (1) The State of Texas; (2)
the City of Austin; or (3) the Texas Unified Certification Program. Minimum good faith
efforts include, to the extent practical and consistent with standard and prudent
industry practices, the following:

(a) dividing the Work into the smallest feasible portions, to allow for maximum HUB
subconsultant participation;
(b) providing to HUBs that exhibited genuine interest in bidding on a subcontract
adequate information regarding the Project (i.e. plans, specifications, scope of work,
bonding and insurance requirements and a point of contact within Consultant’s
organization);
(C) notifying, in writing, three or more HUBs for each scope of work, allowing no less
than five working days prior to bid submission, of the planned work to be
subcontracted;
(d) providing notice of opportunities to minority or women trade organizations or
development centers to assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the
information to their members/participants.

14.15.1.2 Consultant may go beyond the good faith efforts listed above when
soliciting HUB subconsultants.

14.15.2 Subcontractor/Subconsultant Tracking Software System.

14.15.2.1 The Travis County Purchasing Office has implemented an electronic
subcontracting/subconsulti ng reporting system (the “Subcontractor Tracking Software
System” or the “System”) to assist the Travis County Purchasing Office in monitoring,
tracking and reporting payments to Subcontractors/subconsultants. County understands
and believes, based on discussions with representatives of the System vendor and
review of documentation accompanying the System, that: (i) the System provides a
paperless environment in which transactions are electronically stored and routed;
“Payment” and “Payment Verification” alerts are provided by e-mail and fax; (ii) the
System will facilitate electronic Subcontractor/subconsultant diversity management,
which in turn will improve auditing while cutting costs and shortening the audit cycle
from months to hours; (iii) the System will eliminate standard forms and streamline the
current manual process of tracking payments to all first-tier
Subcontractors/subconsultants by performing all such tracking procedures
electronically; and (iv) the System will serve as a tool to improve efficiency,
accountability, data accuracy, transparency, and overall communication.

14.15.2.2 Consultant shall designate, and shall require all
Subcontractors/subconsultants to designate, a liaison responsible for handling all
Subcontractor Tracking Software System reporting. On a monthly basis, Consultant
shall record and submit electronically payments made to all
Subcontractors/subconsultants for work completed through the end of the previous pay
period; such electronic recording and submission must be completed no later than the

Page 21 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

l5’’ day after such payments are made. Consultant shall contractually require all
Subcontractors/subconsultants to verify payments by entering such payment data in the
System no later than 10 days following the day on which Consultant enters the
Subcontractor/subconsultant payment information as required in this Agreement.
Consultant shall attempt to resolve any payment discrepancies or disputes in good faith.
Consultant shall not receive credit towards the HUB, M/WBE and DBE participation goals
until reported payments have been verified by entering the payment data into the
System as described in this Agreement or by providing to County payment
documentation satisfactory to County.

14.15.2.3 Consultant shall report payment information pertaining to each
Subcontractor/subconsultant that includes, but is not limited to, business name,
certification status, work assignment, original subcontract sum, payment number,
percentage and dollars paid during the reporting period. A “Comment” field is available
for entering additional information and comments and includes the ability to attach
documenl:s.

14. 15.2.4 Failure by Consultant to furnish the information required of it described in
this paragraph 14.15.2 may result in cancellation of the contract award and Agreement
termination in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Agreement. Additionally,
if County determines that Consultant is in default of these mandatory reporting
requirements, County may consider such conduct against Consultant in the evaluation
of future contracts between Consultant and County.

14.15.2.5 Consultant shall register, and shall contractually require all
Subcontractors/subconsultants to register, with a username and password. Training on
how to use the System will be provided by Travis County Purchasing Office HUB staff.

14.15.2.6 County understands and believes that the Subcontractor Tracking
Software System will assist County in ensuring compliance with the County’s HUB
Program, and that the System will allow County staff to closely monitor Consultant and
all Subcontractors/subconsultants performing work on the Project. Travis County
Purchasing Office HUB staff will conduct periodic post-award compliance reviews to
verify that Subcontractors/subconsultants listed by Consultant performed the work and
received payment.

14. 15.2.7 During the term of this Agreement, Consultant is encouraged to inform
County of any problems anticipated or encountered, and of any other concerns,
regarding the utilization of HUBs, M/WBEs and DBE5.

14.15.2.8 Other information tracked by the System includes increases or decreases
in Subcontractor/subconsultant work assignments, percentage of HUB goal achieved,
and substitutions. When substituting a Subcontractor/subconsultant, Consultant is
highly encouraged to utilize HUBs, M/WBEs and DBEs. Consultant shall notify County of
any substitutions or changes to Subcontractors/subconsultants in accordance with the
procedures described in the System. Such notice shall be sent electronically to the
Purchasing Agent or HUB Program Coordinator. County may request Consultant to

Page 22 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

provide evidence that it made a good faith effort to substitute another HUB, M/WBE or
DBE Subcontractor/subconsultant but was unable to do so. Approval turnaround time
will be within 24 — 48 hours. If Consultant has difficulty in locating HUB, M/WBE or DBE
Subcontractors/subconsultants, it should contact the Travis County Purchasing Office
HUB staff at (512) 854-4561 or (512) 854-4852.

14. 15.2.9 County understands and believes that other notifications automatically
generated by the Subcontractor Tracking Software System include the following: User
Registration/Password, Contract Award Notifications, Audit Reminders, Unresponsive
HUB Subcontractors, Discrepancy Notifications, HUB Subcontractor Change Requests,
Payment Verifications, Vendor Information Verification Notices, Not Meeting the Goals
Notification and Contract Closeout. Some notifications listed may include response
deadlines.

14.16 FUNDING OUT. Despite anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if, during budget
planning and adoption, the Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this
Agreement for the following fiscal year of Travis County, County may terminate this
Agreement after giving Consultant thirty (30) days written notice that this Agreement is
terminated due to the failure to fund it.

14.17 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT. No payment, act, or omission by County will constitute or be
construed as a waiver of any breach or default of Consultant that then exists or that may
subsequently exist. All rights of County under this Agreement are specifically reserved and
any payment, act or omission will not impair or prejudice any remedy or title to County
under it. Any right or remedy in this Agreement will not preclude the exercise of any other
right or remedy under this Agreement or under any law, except as expressly provided in
this Agreement, nor will any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed
a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

14.18 MEDIATION. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising
under this Agreement, the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or a
person appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, for mediation as described in
Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. Unless both parties are
satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and
binding resolution of the dispute. All communications within the scope of the mediation
shall remain confidential as described in Section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and
Remedies Code, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.

14.19 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFiT. If a member of the Commissioners Court belongs to a
cooperative association, County may purchase equipment or supplies from the association
only if no member of the Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the
purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends distributed generally to
members of the association.

14.20 CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS:

14.20.1 Consultant certifies that Consultant (I) is a duly qualified, capable and otherwise
bondable business entity; (ii) is not in receivership and does not contemplate

Page 23 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

same; (iii) has not filed for bankruptcy, and is not currently delinquent with
respect to payment of property taxes within Travis County; and (iv) is duly
licensed in the State of Texas to perform the work described in this Agreement.

14.20.2 Consultant further represents and warrants that: (i) all applicable copyrights,
patents and licenses that may exist on materials used in this Agreement have
been adhered to; and (ii) County will not be liable for any infringement of those
rights and any rights granted to County will apply for the duration of this
Agreement. Consultant shall indemnify County and its officers, agents and
employees from all claims, losses, damages, causes of action and liability of
every kind, including expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney fees, for
damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or
actual infringement of existing patents, licenses of copyrights applicable to
materials used in this Agreement.

14.21 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE. Consultant shall provide all services and activities
required in a manner that would comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the
Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 10 1-336 [S.933j as if Consultant were
an entity bound to comply with these laws. Consultant shall not discriminate against any
employee or applicant for employment based on race, religion, color, sex, national origin,
age or handicapped condition.

14.22 GRATUITIES. County may terminate this Agreement if it is found that gratuities of any
kind, including entertainment or gifts, were offered or given by Consultant, or any agent or
representative of Consultant, to any County official or employee with a view toward
securing favorable treatment with respect to this Agreement. If this Agreement is
terminated by County pursuant to this provision, County will be entitled, in addition to any
other rights and remedies, to recover from Consultant at least three times the cost incurred
by Consultant in providing the gratuities.

14.23 MONITORING. County reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of
Consultant’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement and of the adequacy and
timeliness of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. After each monitoring visit,
County will provide Consultant with a written report of the monitor’s findings. If the report
notes deficiencies in Consultant’s performance under the terms of this Agreement, it will
include requirements and deadlines for the correction of those deficiencies by Consultant.
Consultant shall take action specified in the monitoring report prior to the deadlines
specified.

14.24 INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS. All of the exhibits, attachments, and
appendices referred to in this Agreement are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim in this Agreement.

14.25 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement
between County and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either oral or written.

Page 24 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

14.26 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to
the contrary, disclosure of any information obtained by County or any of its officials,
employees, agents or representatives in connection with this Agreement will be subject to
the provisions of the Texas Public Information Act and all legal authorities relating to that
Act, including but not limited to opinions, decisions and letter rulings issued by the Texas
Attorney’s General Office.

14.27 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILiTY. This provision applies if the Total Agreement Sum
specified in Exhibit 1 exceeds $25,000. By submitting a Qualifications Statement in
response to RFQ# Q110243-LP, Consultant certifies that at the time of submission,
Consultant was not on the federal government’s list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred
contractors. If Consultant has been placed on the list between the time of submission of
its Qualifications Statement and contract award, Consultant shall notify the Purchasing
Agent. If Consultant fails to do so, County may terminate this Agreement for default.

14.28 AMENDMENT. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by written instrument signed by
both Parties. CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT,
REPRESENTATIVE OR EMPLOYEE OF TRAVIS COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EiTHER
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO MODIFY OR AMEND THE TERMS OF ThIS AGREEMENT UNLESS
ThE COMMISSIONERS COURT HAS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY.

14.29 ENTITY STATUS. By my signature below, I certify that Consultant is a Texas corporation,
duly incorporated under Texas law and doing business in the State of Texas.

Page 25 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

As a duly authorized representative of Consultant, I acknowledge by my signature below that I
have read and understand the above paragraphs and that Consultant has the obligation to
ensure compliance with its provisions by itself and its employees, agents, and representatives.

The parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the later date set forth below (the
“Effective Date”).

CONSULTANT:

By:

Printed

Title:
Authorized Representative

Date: 03/28/2014

The Texas Board of Professional Engineers, 1917 South IH -35 South, Austin, Texas 78741,
phone: (512) 440-7723, has jurisdiction over individuals licensed under the Texas Engineering
Practice Act, Chapter 1001 of the Occupations Code.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS:

By:

Date:

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

APPROV AS TO PROUREMENT COMPLIANCE:

By: /f 11( %LL4
j Cyd VGrimes, C.P.M., CPPO

t4Travis County Purchasing Agent

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CO MED:

By:__________
Nicki Riley
Travis County Auditor

By:

& Associates, Inc.

ime: ioe Grasso. P.E. CPESC

Vir Prcidnt

APPROVED

Page 26 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 1
COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

SECTION 1— COMPENSATION FOR BASIC SERVICES

1.1 The fixed fee for the performance of the Basic Services will be the sum of $69,450.00.

1.1.1 Unless the Parties have amended or modified this Agreement as provided in this
Agreement, the payments for the phases described below will be:

(i) Design Phase: includes:

Work Product 1 - 50% Design $33,080.00

Work Product 2 - 90% Design $28,740.00

(ii) Construction Phase: includes Construction Contract
Administration Phase and Documents and Drawings

Work Product 3 — 100% Complete Design $7630.00

TOTAL: $69,450.00

SECTION 2- FIXED FEE

2.1 Consultant and County acknowledge the fact that the fixed fee is the total cost of the Basic
Services to be rendered under this Agreement. This fixed fee is based upon the labor and non-
labor costs, set forth in Exhibit 2 and described above, required in the performance of the
various phases of work provided for under this Agreement.

SECTION 3 —COMPENSATION FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES

3.1 “Additional Services” are defined as any services performed by Consultant not specifically
described in the Basic Services (Section 2 of this Agreement).

3.2 For the performance of the Additional Services, County will pay Consultant under a written
amendment to this Agreement; provided, however, that the performance of any Additional
Services must be authorized in advance in writing by the Purchasing Agent upon the
recommendation of the County Project Manager.

3.3 The basis of compensation for the services of principals and employees engaged in the
performance of the Additional Services will be the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit 2.

3.4. County will compensate Consultant for the Additional Services unless the work comprising the
Additional Services was made necessary by Consultant’s errors or omissions, in which case
County will not compensate Consultant.

Page 27 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

SECTION 4— REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

4.1 County will reimburse Consultant for non-labor expenses and a subcontract management fee
incurred in the performance of the Basic Services under this Agreement, both of which are at
invoice cost plus a zero percent (0%) fee. Detailed requirements for Reimbursable Expenses
are outlined in Section 9, Reimbursable Expenses.

Non-Labor reimbursable expenses: $3,240.00 x 0.00 = $3,240.00

Sub-Contract Management Fee: $0 x 0% = $0.00

REIMBURSABLES TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED: $3,240.00

SECTION 5—TOTAL AGREEMENT SUM

5.1 The Total Professional Services Agreement Sum, consisting of the Compensation for Basic
Services fixed fee of $$69,450.00, plus the Not-to-Exceed Reimbursable Expenses Total
specified in paragraph 4.1, above, of $3,240.00, will not exceed $72,690.00.

SECTION 6—SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

6.1 Payments will be made on a monthly basis for work performed, as described in detail in the
Scope of Services, within thirty (30) days of receipt of a correct and complete invoice, as
defined in paragraph 14.10, by the Transportation and Natural Resources Department.

Page 28 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 2
HOURLY RATES

BASIC SERVICES and ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Schedule of Rates (Hourly):

Principal Engineer (PE) $195.00
Senior Project Manager I $180.00
Senior Project Manager II $165.00
Project Manager $165.00
Senior Project Engineer (PE) $150.00
Project Engineer (PE) $125.00
Staff Engineer (PE) $110.00
Engineer Associate $ 90.00
Senior Planner (AICP) $140.00
Sr. Mapping/GIS Specialist $125.00
Project Planner $125.00
Staff Planner $100.00
Planning Technician $ 90.00
Senior Civil Technician $125.00
Civil Technician $110.00
Assistant Civil Technician $100.00
CADD Operator $ 90.00
Survey (RPLS) $150.00
Senior Survey Technician $ 90.00
Survey Technician $ 85.00
Three-Person Field Crew $180.00
Two-Person Field Crew $145.00
One-Person Field Crew $ 90.00
Sr. Construction Technician $125.00
Senior Operations Assistant $ 75.00
Operations Assistant $ 70.00
Administrative Assistant $ 50.00
Expert Witness (research,
depositions, testimony, with a 4-hour
minimum for court appearances) $250.00
Mileage Current IRS rate as of

March 1, 2014.

Page 29 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 3
PROJECT SCHEDULE

A. Consultant shall provide a detailed schedule of services, including a list of tasks and
accompanying Work Product, to be performed for each phase described in the Scope of
Services (the “Project Schedule”). At the beginning of each phase, the County Project
Manager and Consultant will update and adjust the details of the Project Schedule and
accompanying Work Product as may be required for each phase. The Project Schedule must
allow sufficient time for the development of the Work Product in each phase to a level of
quality and standard of completeness consistent with normal engineering practice. The Project
Schedule must also allow sufficient time for the COUNTY’s Technical Review Process.

A.1 Consultant shall provide and maintain sufficient Project staffing levels necessary to
produce the work in a timely and efficient manner consistent with the Project
Schedule.

A.2 The Project Schedule must be updated in the event that:

1. any County approval or decision is not made within the time frame specified in
the Project Schedule;

2. County makes a written request for a revision in the Work Product that is
inconsistent with written approval or instructions previously given by County and
due to causes beyond the reasonable control of Consultant;

3. a force majeure event has occurred; and
4. Consultant has not performed in accordance with the latest Project Schedule.

A.3 If Consultant falls behind the Project Schedule by two or more weeks, then
Consultant shall present the County Project Manager with a recovery plan that sets
forth the remedial actions to be taken by Consultant. At its sole option, the COUNTY
may withhold all or part of any payment due to Consultant until the Project Schedule
is recovered.

B. This Agreement will become effective upon the Effective Date and will remain in full force and
effect until the Project Completion Date.

C. Consultant shall complete all design work described in this Agreement, and shall submit its
Work Product for all phases as described in the Scope of Services, except for Bid Phase
Services, within 120 calendar days from the date of receipt by Consultant of County’s
written Notice to Proceed.

Calculation of the j2Q days specified in paragraph C, above, does not include any time period
during which County maintains control of the Work Product or any other documents to be
submitted under this Agreement for purposes that include but are not limited to performing
the Technical Review Process described in Section 7 of this Agreement.

Page 30 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

ATTACHMENT 1 to EXHIBIT 3
PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE TO BE SUBMITTED UPON ISSUANCE OF NOTICE TO PROCEED

Page 31 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

ATTACHMENT 2 to EXHIBIT 3
UTILITY RELOCATION SERVICES

I. Research records of properties within Project limits of construction

a) identify all utility companies that serve the properties

b) identify easements on the property and obtain descriptions and copies of any dedication
instruments and plats

c) identify owners of utilities and their contact information

II. Obtain existing conditions and proposed improvement information from utility companies

a) determine type, size, and approximate location of existing utilities
1) interview appropriate utility company representatives
2) obtain as-built drawings, if available

b) determine future plans for utility work within the limits of construction

1) interview appropriate utility company representatives

2) if available, obtain preliminary utility engineering plans and schedule for future
improvements

3) if no engineering plans are available, obtain description of proposed improvements,
including design criteria that will be used, including but not limited to:

i) utility assignment
ii) depth requirements
iii) design requirements for separation from other utilities, structures, or activities

III. Review Project design information for existing and potential conflicts

a) plan sheets showing existing and proposed conditions for roadways, bridges, buildings,
utilities, topography, fences, walls, storm sewer systems, etc.

b) profile sheets showing existing and proposed conditions

c) detail sheets for foundations showing size and depth requirements

d) cross sections showing existing ground and proposed improvements, including excavations,
embankments, drainage channels, etc.

IV. Coordinate the relocation, protection, upgrading, or abandonment of utilities

Page 32 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

a) identify for the County Project Manager any apparent conflicts between existing or proposed
utilities and the Project improvements shown in the design documents

b) provide copies of design documents to all utility service providers along with a list of conflicts
identified:

i) maintain database of utility companies provided with design information, contact
persons and numbers, information transmittals, written and verbal communications,
and any other pertinent information showing who was involved in the coordination,
the decisions made, and the time taken to complete the process,

ii) meet with utility company representatives to determine their proposed method for
reconciling conflicts and communicate the information to TNR,

iii) meet with TNR and County Attorney’s Office and/or the utility company
representatives and other public entities as needed to assist with reconciling conflicts
between utilities and the proposed improvements, and record and distribute minutes
of such meetings,

iv) prepare draft of elements to be included in any utility agreements or memoranda of
understanding to be developed between TNR and utility service providers, including
responsibilities for relocation, upgrading, or protection; specifics related to costs,
scheduling, sizes and types, vertical and horizontal locations; and any special
construction and/or protection requirements,

v) provide documentation of correspondence and coordination efforts to TNR upon
completion of assignment.

V. Additional Services

a) field check locations of above-ground utilities and visible components of below-ground utilities
and mark locations relative to existing topographic features on mapping to be provided by
TNR,

a) provide, or contract with companies that can provide, underground utility locating service,

b) hand excavate to verify location of utilities,

C) represent TNR at Austin Area Utility Coordinating Committee meetings,

d) attend pre-construction and construction meetings,

e) provide documentation and testimony as needed to help resolve claims related to utility work
or property condemnation cases.

Page 33 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

ATTACHMENT 3 TO EXHIBIT 3
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

Construction services are not included in the agreement at this time. A decision about Consultants
scope of construction services will be determined during the bidding process and negotiated as an
amendment to this Agreement if it is determined it is needed.

F

Page 34 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 4
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT

A. Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Consultant shall take affirmative action to
ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment,
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action must include,
but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer;
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination
clause.

B. Consultant shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of
Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without
regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

C. Consultant shall send to the labor union representative or workers with which he has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by
the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or worker’s representatives of
Consultant’s obligations under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous
places available to employees and applicants for employment.

D. Consultant shall comply with the regulations of the United States Department of
Transportation (49 CFR 21 and 23 CFR §710.405) and all provisions of Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, as amended, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor, including 41 CFR Part 60.

E. Consultant shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, as amended, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of
Labor, or pursuant thereto; and shall permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the
Department and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance
with such rules, regulations and orders.

F. In the event of Consultant’s non-compliance with the non-discrimination clauses of this
Agreement or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be
canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and Consultant may be declared
ineligible for further government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended by Executive Order 11375 (41
CFR 60) or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by
law.

G. Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs (A.) through (F.) in every subcontract or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor
issued pursuant to Section 204 or Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended,
so that such provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. Consultant shall
take such action with respect to any subcontractor purchase order as the Department may
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for non-compliance;
provided, however, that in the event Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with,
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by County or federal
agency, Consultant may request County and United States to enter into such litigation to
protect the interests of the United States.

Page 35 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 5
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

During the life of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to provide and maintain the following insurance:

A. Worker’s Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements.

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and Property
Damage limits of $400,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate, including
coverage on the same for independent subcontractor(s). TRAVIS COUNTY MUST BE NAMED
AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED UNDER THIS COVERAGE.

C. Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with combined
minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $400,000 per occurrence and
$1,000,000 in the aggregate. Consultant shall require any subcontractor(s) to provide
Automobile Liability Insurance in the same minimum amounts.

D. Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.

Consultant shall not commence any field work under this Agreement until Consultant has
obtained all required insurance and such insurance has been approved by County.
CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor(s) to commence work to be performed in
connection with this Agreement until all required insurance has been obtained. Approval of the
insurance by COUNTY shall not relieve or decrease the liability of Consultant under this
Agreement.

The required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State of
Texas at the time the policy is issued. Consultant shall furnish County with a certification of
coverage issued by the insurer. The insurance company will be subject to County’s approval.
Consultant must not cause any insurance to be canceled or permit any insurance to lapse. ALL
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES MUST INCLUDE A CLAUSE TO THE EFFECT THAT THE POLICY
WILL NOT BE CANCELED OR REDUCED, RESTRICTED OR LIMITED UNTIL TEN (10) DAYS
AFTER COUNTY HAS RECEIVED WRITTEN NOTICE AS EVIDENCED BY RETURN RECEIPT OF
REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED LETTER.

Page 36 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

STATE OF TEXAS
COUTNY OF TRAVIS

Date: 03/28/2014
Name of Affiant: Joe Grasso, P.E.. CPESC
Title of Affiant: Vice President
Business Name of CONSULTANT: Doucet & Associates. Inc.
County of CONSULTANT: Travis

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by CONSULTANT to make this affidavit for CONSULTANT.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. CONSULTANT has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this Agreement,
which is attached to this affidavit as Attachment 1.

5. Affiant has personally read Attachment 1 to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Attachment 1 with whom
CONSULTANT is doing business or has done business during the 365-day period immediately
before the datef this affidavit.

of Affiant

740 lB Hwy. 71 West, Suite 160, Austin, TX 78735
Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me byJo ik1?.c5o

____

iA4&a4_S P?
Notary Public, State of Texas

S iS

Typed or printed name of notary
My commission expires: ‘/N(i f14

}
}

EXHIBIT 6

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

on/1,ck&’ 2OliL.

, I MERANDA S. PERKINS
Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires
August 06, 20)6

Page 37 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 6. ATFACHMENT 1
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

January 21, 2014

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Executive Assistant Sue Spears
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd*
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause*
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty*
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyln Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore*
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow*
Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner*
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications .. Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge

Page 38 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant
TNR Public Works Steve Sun, P.E.
TNR Public Works Lee Turner, P.E.
TNR Public Financial Donna Williams-Jones
TNR Public Financial Isabelle Lopez
TNR Public Financial TawanaGardner

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of ExDiration
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/ 31/14
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/15

* Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

Page 39 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

EXHIBIT 7
HUB DECLARATION AND LIST OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS

RFQu QI 10243-Lp

ATFACHMENT 2
ifiSTORICALLY UNBVRUTLTJZED BUSINESS (HUBI DEClARATION

It i-c the policy of the travis County Purchasing Office to ensure a good faith effort is made to assist Certified HU
vendors and contractors in receiving contracts in accordance wish the NUB Program policies and the Minority aixt
Woman-Owned Busmcss (M,WF1E) goals adopted by the Travis County Cnatmissiotwrs Cowl.

The following goals for HUB contragtoztvcndnr participation, as well as HUB subcontractor participation, have been
assigned for this particu]ar prtect and designated with an ‘X in the ho,t provided.

Note: To be cwssgkred ‘cenfied wish lAw &tue of Tesgs, City qfAnsths or 11w Jitras Ur,ffledCenifleatkm Pwgrarn please
attach aciureut and ixikicrrtttIca Sub-goats we inclrdedto ars&su hr dlv sfr5thzgyrnesubccmtraciort

Qv*il WE Suba
Gad: 14.1% Z5i fl1r-Anercar

&StlHpac
, tilt
OrardIWSE

Gaat

Prime Contractor Douca&Associaln. Inc.

Proecc title; rofessional ArchitecturaLlEnpineerinci Sei*es For Small Pmiects
HUB; U Yes No Indicate Gender & Ethnicity:

CertiI4ng Agency tuiecic ill applirnhlcj; LI State ofiexas (RUB) J City of Austin (M’WBE) I] Tx. Unified C-en Progrun (D!lfl

Address;

_________ ____
________

FaxNg.;( )_
(‘Arc: Yin:

E-mail:

—________ We are able to fblfihl all, or most, oldie potential subcontracting opportunities with out own resources.

._........ lfcircums*ances necessitate the use of any subs, I agree to seek the timely authori2atiou by the County and
adhere to the stbm Lesion of any required documentation, including a RUB Dectaratiun, GEE Checklist and
subcontractor payment information.

What percentage of the Bid or Proposal is to be subcontracted with Certified HUB sourcesz Z

(List all subcontractor information below). Total Project Amount: JINX

TOTALMIIE:$______ % 16 TOTAL WilE: S %6

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL INFORMATiON IN ITS ENTIRETY.
Name and libe (punt ortypa);...... Rick Cnney, Vie esilant

hctconewav64oxet-auinmm SnWtira:

Contact parson that will be In chugs of lnvolchigforthis project?

- C.IFIdII duuIaD Jdciw’-wcvuvuucraIoaIrwJI

boucEr S ASSOCIATES. INC. ENSINEERINC PaNSeIP4C SURv&YlNn

DCCWIOCTnES ØPROFESSICNAI. SERViCES
Ovaril $56 &tjcsls:
Gad; 3.5% 113% AMesi-Artita G* 15.8% 1 £% Afiiia-Airtlvaa

25%lIsparIe ao%fwlbc

______

P7% Asiatlathe-Pwneiwi 4.9%N*øs4au lenecican
OvwiIWBE
50*62% Ga 51%

HNO ot

Emil address

Name end title: Davood Salek. PmIsct Manner

Ptrone: 512.583-2543 r .....lI J....... .J-...,...A .,,.I..I,SIAa.,a....d

Page 40 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

RFQ# QI 10243-li

?ART 1: LIST OF (!ERTWIP RUB SEUcOnRACTORS (Duplicate as nneSsSl7)

HUB Stheoeurackw Name: AIJIJ[Af4CF. Tk4NSPORTfiJIONjp !c
HUB: I Yes] No Ce%ing Agency (Check alt ajpbcaNe): I State ofTaxes QI1JB) Indicate Gendcr* Ethnicity: F/W

I City of Austin (WWIW) I Tx Ur fled Cct. Program (DRE)

Addressjj99 Mgtrlc BKØ., WIdt M-ljte. (Sit sky: Austin &ateTX Zip: 76758

coat Peszaer_GIfl. RCØ__ —.. Th]t Chief Ezeattive Officer Phone N& (512) Si 2.2981

Fax No,: (512) 821-2055 E-mail: ahaatbiee4JJLcn -.- -

IJL____Percentage of P,iaw Contract. 1W) 34Siibcaoflct Amocint; $______

Descdptton of Woxtc to be Perfunoedp inn n

HUB S4thcancractor Name: .. CARTER DESIGN MLSOCJATES. [NC

HUB: IYes J No C ifyiogAgtncy(Checkailapflable): I$lateof’texas(HIJB) indcaleGcndcr&Ethi:icitv:________

I City of Austin (M/WBE) I Ix. Unified CoiL Ptügram (FIRE)

AddreSs’ 517 Writ It’ Street City: Austin State: TX Zipaflfl1

Ccmtsctl’eesoct Donna Cefler ‘title: Fjnkknt flmneNu.:c512)4%-I812 -

FaxNo:(512)J!óJJt_ E-mail: adfl(Atarterdeskant .

Stoectract Amount: LJBD Percentage ofPrime Contract — TED

Di iWc.clctobeperfonned: .Architc4nnlSenlcea

HUB Subcoob’actor Namc; COLEMAN & ASSOCIATF3

HUH • Yes C Nc Cnlifyiog Agency (Checlc alt applicable): I Slate of Texas (HUB) Indicate Gender & Ethnicity: F/W

I City of Austin (M/WBE) I Tx. Unified Cat. Program (DDE)

Address:.. 9*94) Silvet Mountain Drive City; Austin Shifr TX Zip: -- 78737 -

Contact Penon:, Sara Web Title: Office Mairnjer/MubetinCacrdjii Pitone No.: (sill 47&2lt9tJ

Fax No,: (512k4762fl93ica1111n1) E-nmlLianjiesitmsniidnsoe.ernn

Subcuntact Ainuwt fl,_____Pncnge of Prime CctTB1L

LkQCFIpLiLIn itt Work toW Purli rant: ._Jj,*uwe 4rchilalure

HUB Sabcontaetoi Name: £F4COTECH ENGINEERING CONSULTANTSI INC.

HUB: I Yet. Q No Certifying Agency (Check at] appUcab[c): • State of Texas (NUB) lodkaee Gender & Echridcy: WA

I City ofAustin (MN/RE) I Ta. tliiifled Ccii. Pmjti (DDE)

Address: 8500 BluiBtone Cove. Suite MOL.City:.fiustim Stacc. TX Zp: 7*759

•.__jitleJrusidtut&CEO _PhoneNo.(5t2)33*-tI01ConteSt Prflow_Sfl.bw

Fax No.: (fil2 335-11611

Xubcotitntei Amount: $ Till)

Detctiociezi oI Wctk Lit he Perfumed

F.-retil’ La:.. L...4 tita.ai.aL. .i. —

PetageuiPrimeCcntact:.. THU ..%

M El’ Enireerino. Strntunl Eaninerim,. & Lint Fstñettni,

DDL.JCET& ASSOCIATES, INC ENGINEERiNG I PLANNING i SURVEYiNG .

Page 41 of48



Contract No.: 4400001904

kPQ (41 10243.LP

HUB SubconThcIorNnne: HORIZON ENVIRONMENTAL $ERVICESJNC,
iliIW Yes 12 No Cenif9ka Agency (fleck jj applicable): I State of Texas (HUB) Indicate Gender & EIIInKIty.

__________

I City of Austin (MWBE) 0 fl. Unified Ccrt. Program (DBE)
Addiess: 1507 Sojgb 9135 Mace: TX Zip-flH74t
oncaciPaSbaas.Dog, - Tidc;

__________________PhcaeNo;

(512) 32$S434L
FaxNo.: (512)jZ&j804 - E-nil. abapiaa&dortyjbojjzoo-czist
Subcontrac4AinuuntS 1111) PecetdsgeotPñnieCoent ZIDI
Description of Wntic to be Petfwmed:_ Eavirnagental Asseasaents; Pnmktln -

NUB Subcoitnetor Nanw_ JAVTEX ENCINEERJNGAND TESTING. INC
HUH; I Yes LI No Cttufyiag Agency (Cbck cLil applicable): I State oflexas (HUB) Indicate Gendcr& Ethnicity. F/ill

I City ofAustin (M:Wi3E) LI Tx. Unified Cert, Program (ODE)
Ad&rss 3989 Hkhwai2O Last City: DripohmE Sorings 1aie; TX Zip: 786W
Contact Person: Mnhisocd Tahmorresl Title: P,esjderni Ptione Np,: (512) $5$3fl3
Fsc No: (512) 8*2921 E-maiLzLilnvetes.enrn

-

Mthcnr.trpct Anoint S 111) - Percentage c’fPrimeContracL: Till) %
Dc’scxiptioit 01 Work to be Performed: Gplcakal Enflteeing

HUB Subconflclor Name:_______

mrb.aYesO No CcnibiAgency(Cbecka11apphicahie): LI State of Texas(11U13) Indicate Gcnder&Etlinic.ity:

I] City or Austin (M’WIHi) LI Ts. Unified (Deer. Procm (ORE)
Address:____________________ _Staze: Zip*
Coatauipenoa:_____________________ jkoneNo..(

)________________

FaxNu.;( )____- E-maiL
Subcontrw. Arnunat: S_. _Percenia t’tPrirne Conflct ¾
DtlpiionofWntktpbePerforinecL_______

--

WBSnbcnüact&Nain
- -

U Yes 0 No Crrtiftsng Agency (Check au a kaNe): 0 State of Texas (HUB) indicate Cienikr & Ethnicity:
O City cit Austin (MfWLIE) LI Tx. Unified Cert, Program (ORE)

Address; City: __Stste;.. Zip:
CitaotPoim: Title:

_____________

PLoneNo;( 1

________

FaxNo.:( ) E-meit__.

Subwnbac4 Amount: $ _Percenaage ofPrime Ccntract: -

llescriptionofWorktuhePerfosmed:

DOLJCE1 & ASSOCIATES, tNC. L?ç]1 Et4C3INEEH1NG I PLANNING I SUvYING

_______________

Page 42 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

RFQ# 0) 10243-LP

FART II:
m bidder ehn1 use üiis setio to provide a listlag of sil Nin.HuB Mhc ro,s ,idig ppher. that will ptrfvei wrek ott
this projeet. A list ofNon.HUB’ subcit acWr e[ece1 fier caatr4ct award must be provided IMMEDIArn.Y alter selectiest.

bcoriactor Naaie; - -

Address: CiIy

Contact Persor Title;.

Fui,c No.: ( )
Subcon1ra Mwmt; S_________________

Lcscrip[ion of W(,k to be Perfbrmed:

Stat

_______ _____________

Phune No,; ( )

/ip:

PioneNo.;(
)_________

_______

P of Prime Conxt______

SntracirNin&

-

Addresa: /ip:

Contact Person; Tk__________________ Phone No: {
)________________

Jt Nit.: ( ) -

E-mail:_______________________________________________________

Siibcauwact Amoant
$_______________ Percentage of Prime Costtr4t;

Decrip4ien of Work to ie Performed.

SubcontrwtuieNajiw:
-

-

Address: City; Stsft Zip; -- -

Contact Person:_ Title: PlwneNo.:( ) --

FaNo.i ) E-mail:_______________________________________________

SubcontratArncaint: $ Peruentac i,fl’riurieCargi-tri

DpofWorktbPeefortaad:

- - -

&‘ttiutmeLl?r Name;

Contac1Person
-

Fax No: ( - E-mail:
- -

Subcontmci Amount: S - -. —- Peruen1ae nfFrimeConact:

__________

[)ucrpI ion ofWork to be Performed:

___________________________________

- -

PART III: NON-CQ[PLlAff FOR MEETING SET HVB GoALS CHECKLIST
If you weir uiiable to meet the se o6 for this project, place ii check ni& hy the re pooac( that heat lbs yiur simalion
Sepporthg documentaticet to dniuistr.titt your good faith efurIs in uulili2lng suhs unity be uattect at any ttmc.

Uur lirm wa unable to neot the IIL1B goals for thia project for the toliuwmg rea.n(s);

-

- All subs to be utilized arc

______HUBs

se(iitcd did not respotid.

______HiTs

s1icitd were not competitive.
HUBs were unavailable for the folLowing lradeN._,. -

Ret. I1I

_________________

DIIUCET & ASSOI4TE, INC. ENG1NERING I PLANNING I SURVEYING

_____________

Page 43 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

RFQ 9110243-Il

ATT4C HMEfl 3
DETERMINATION 0 “GOOD FAITH EFFORr (CITE) CHECKLIST

INSTRUCUONS: The following checklist shall be completed by the Respondent and returned with the response,
This list contains the mlalum efforts that should be put forth by the Respondent when attempting to achieve or exceed the
goals of HUB Sub participation Respondents may go beyond the efforts listed below, If additional information is needed,
the Respondent Will be contacted in n% Place a checkmark by the efforts that were executed.

q
- To theta practical and consistent with standard and prudent industry practices, divide the coat
work into the smallest feasible portions, to allow for maximum HUB Sub participation?

C Notify in writing three or more HUBS for each scope of work. allowing no less than five working days prior to
proposal submission, of the planned work to be subcontracted? (attach copy of correspoadeace)

q Provide HUBs that wcrc genuinely interested in bidding on a subcontract, adequate information regarding the
project (ft pkrns. specflcaIiorr& scope jwork bonding arid iniwance nquirenierue, andapoim ofcontact
within the respondent r organization?)

c Negotiate in good faith with interested HUBs and not reject bids from HUBs that quaii as lowest and
responsive respondents?

L - Document reasons HUBs were rejected? Was a written rejection notice, including the reason kr rqtction,
provIded to the rejected HIJBs? (attach correspondence)

C Provide notices ofopportunities to minority or women tra$e organizations or development ca’atets to assist in
identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the information to their memberslparticipants? (attach
correspondence)

If Rnpondeit has rare (0) HUB participation, alease calMs the ressona why hdow or may other
informlioa rsted to good faith efforts,

I

a RItk Caiwn

SUGGESTED RESOURCES WHEN SOLICITING SUBS-

Primed Name ofAuthorized Representative

Vice President
rule

_______________

DDUtET & INC ENSINEENG I PNNING I 5URYENG

____________

TRADEASSOCIATIONS PHONE 012)
Asian Cansunction Trade 926-5400 926.5410 aciaaustln corn
Maim Black Contractors 467.6894 467 9808 www abcacoWmdexr

:tc s3.asp
Austin Metropolitan United 784-1891 255 1451 uwanilàlsbcalobal.net

Black Coritiactors
476-5534 476.8337

NatL Assoc. of Women in
Construction

IfS Nspanic Coot Assoc, de 922-0507 374-142l ssww.ushca4ustin,cotn
Austin
CU1TIFYING AGENCIES CERTIFYING AGENCIES
THAVIS COUNTY VENDOR DATABASE
RECOGNIZES WEBSITES

State efTexas Centralizad w.cpaWestusdbusàssirtml CMBL includes certified
MaBidders List lIVEs.

City ofAustin Minority Vendor www4austiau&smbr Certified Vendors
Database —- Directory

Texas Unified Certification www,doutate.tx,uWbusiness TUCP DEE Directory
,,

- r

-
Auaiat25201l

Daie

Page 44 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

APPENDIX A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

SCOPE OF SERVICES
D&A (the “Consultant”) will provide the following Work Product (50% complete design) in connection
with the engineering services to be performed by D&A under this Agreement upon receipt of County’s
written “Notice to Proceed” with this phase of services:

D&A will perform site reconnaissance to identify field conditions and constraints. D& A will attend a
Project kick-off meeting with the Travis County Project Manager, contract administration staff and
HUB Program Staff.

D&A will calculate the current 2-year, 10-year, 25-year and 100-year (Q2-Q100) peak flow runoff
along the existing drainage ditches along Lake Park Drive, Lake Beach Drive and West Lakeshore
Drive. D&A will use Manning’s Equation (normal flow conditions) to determine Q2-Q100 peak flow
depths within the drainage ditches under existing conditions and proposed conditions.

D&A will complete an Environmental Assessment. D&A will propose a pavement design to be
approved by the County. D& A will prepare the required application, plans and documents per the
TCEQ requirements for Contributing Zone Plans (CZP) and will submit to the TCEQ for review.

Work Product 1. (50% Design) (60 Calendar Days)

Based on County’s scope of services description, Work Product 1 will consist of the following
documents:

• Preliminary Cover Sheet
• Preliminary Typical Section
• Preliminary Plan & Profile Sheets
• Preliminary Traffic Control Concept for entire project
• Preliminary Cross Sections
• Identify Limits of Construction
• Preliminary Easement Locations (if any)
• Preliminary “Sue Reports”
• Preliminary list of permits
• Complete Environmental Document
• Updated Design Schedule
• Preliminary Cost Estimate
• QA/QC Mark ups

D&A will conduct one (1) meeting with the County to discuss County review comments of draft 500!o
design completion Work Product 1.

Page 45 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

DA will perform Work Product 1 Project Management to include:

• QA/QC of work,
• Monthly progress report (with updated schedule if necessary) and invoice (3 anticipated),
• Coordination with County staff, including two (2) meetings.

Work Product 2 (90% Complete Design and permit set) in connection with the professional
engineering services to be performed by D&A under this Agreement upon receipt of County’s written
“Notice to Proceed” with this phase of services:

Based upon County review and approval of Work Product 1 (50% complete design documents), D&A
will develop 90% complete detailed designs, layouts details and drawings of the proposed sidewalk
and utility conflict relocations.

The 90% design completion documents will include:

• Cover Sheet
o Typical Sections
o General Notes
o Traffic Control Sheets
o Narrative Sequence of Constructions
o Plan & Profile Sheets
o Cross Sections
o Drainage Area Maps
o Standard Details
o Drainage Calculation Sheets
o Drainage Layouts Sheets

• Complete Specifications, including any Special Provisions
• QA/QC Mark ups
• Cost Estimate
• Final list of permits

D&A will meet with County and TxDOT to discuss 90% design of proposed Improvements.

Work Product 3 (Bid Phase

D&A will provide the following Work Product 3 (100Db complete design) in connection with the
professional engineering services to be performed by D&A under this Agreement upon receipt of
County’s “Notice to Proceed” with this phase of services:

Page 46 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

Based upon County, TxDOT, and utility company review and approval of Work Product 2 (90%
Complete Design documents), D&A will develop 100% complete detailed designs, layouts details and
drawings of the proposed roadway improvements.

Work Product 3 (Bid Phase) will include the following tasks:

• Final PS&E
• Bid Assistance
• Attend Pre-Bid
• Respond to Bidder Questions
• Prepare Addenda
• Evaluate Bids
• Recommend Award

ASSUMPTIONS

• This Scope of Services will not include landscaping or tree mitigation. D&A does not
anticipate tree mitigation for this Project because the improvements will be within the
existing right of way and roadway layout. However, if during the design phase D&A notice
any need for tree mitigation, D&A will coordinate with the issue at that time with the Travis
County Project Manager.

• The proposed fee includes attendance at a total of four meetings with the Travis County
Project Manager for coordination and only one public meeting if needed. D&A will take
meeting notes and minutes and will distribute actions items after the meeting.

• Travis County will provide final recommendations for the pavement section.
• Travis County will provide information on existing grades at the center line and edge of the

pavement, ditch line grades, grade at edge of right of way, culvert size and flow lines, and
trees within the right of way.

Specific Items to be provided by the County are:

• Width of right of way
• Location of all of the existing utilities and easements.
• Location of all the drainage structures and culverts with pipe size and flow line.
• Location and width of existing driveways.
• Travis County will provide all the previously approved plans in the vicinity of the project to

D&A.
o This includes construction plans for Deer Creek Subdivision and construction plans

for the existing lake at Lake Beach Drive.

Page 47 of 48



Contract No.: 4400001904

APPENDIX B
Organizational Chart with Key Personnel Identified

Syd Xinos, PE, RPLS

Shannon Dorsey (HES

Ron Blscboff

I
Legend
All Personnel D&A unless othecwlse noted

County I 3 1

Davood SaIelc, P

Architect
Donna CarterFAIA(CDA)

Mechanical Erijneer
David B. MitchelL PE (ENC)

Electrlcql Engineer

Civil Engineer
Davood Salek, PE
Structural Engineer
Au R. Khataw, PE ([NC)
Landscne Architecture

Jaime Castro, PE. LEED AR CEM ([NC) Mn Garrett-Coleman1RLA (COL)

Traffic Enginenrig
Scott Feldman, PE, PTOE (ATG)

Envkcnmentai’

Lisa Weston,AICF., RAS (AT(S)

Utility Relocation

Censtn,ction Adrn)n’istrotion

Geatec4’i)c&i Etnthieeflni
Machsouct Tahmoressl, PE(PAV)

Si-. ai’

ATG
CDA

i COL
ENC
HES

j PAV

i

- Alliance Transportation Group, lnc4(WBE)
- Carter Design Associates, Inc. MRF)
- coleman & Associates tWBEI Ca
- Encotech Engineering Consultants, bc (MEE) ‘4
- Horizon Environmental ervlces, Inc. (WBE)

PaveTex Engineering and Testing, Inc. (MBE)

Page 48 of 48





TRAVIS COUNTY
AUDITOR'S OFFICE

NICKI RILEY, CPA

COUNTYAUDITOR

TRAVIS COUNTYAUDITOR
700 Levece

P.O. Box 1748
AUSTIN, Tx78767

(512) 854-9125
FAx (512) 854-9164

CONTRACTOR:

TYPE OF GOODS/SERVICE:

FUNDS VERIF!ED:

FUNDS NOT VERIFIED;
CONTRACT NOT BINDING:

CONTRACT #:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

COUNTY AUDITOR VERIFIGATION FORM

Doucet & Associates

Engineering Services

1) Funds Reservation # 300000867 processed through the
Purchasing system to reserve funds.

2) Amount reserved: $ 72,690.00

Contract did not specify a total contract amount.

Goods/services to be provided on an "as needed basis" to be
invoiced in accordance with contracted unit price. Total amount
contracted not specified in contract.

4400001 904

Date:

Date:

//

*Contract funds are verified by the County Auditor fas Local Government Code sec. I I 1.093(c).







AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long 854 4850; Marvin Brice 854 
9765  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Awards for third party collections of 
fines and fees, RFS 1401-003-ML, to the two highest ranked proposers, 
Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP and Gila Corporation dba 
Municipal Services Bureau (MSB). 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

On February 12, 2014 a Request for Services No. 1401-003-ML, third 
party criminal fines and fee collection services for Justice Courts was 
issued and three responses were received on March 5, 2014. 

An evaluation team comprised of representatives from PBO, Tax Office, 
Auditors Office, and JP2, on behalf of the other four JP Offices, met to 
discuss and evaluate the proposals. 

As a result of the scoring, two offeror’s proposals were considered 
superior proposals as their scores were only 1.68 points difference out 
of 500.  

The Purchasing Agent requests approval for award of two contracts to 
be issued to both Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP and MSB 
for third party collections of fines and fees for justice courts.  

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: N/A    
Contract Type: Professional Services   
Contract Period: April 15, 2014 – April 14, 2016   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 20

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 36  Responses Received: 3  
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #:  
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: The Contractors fees will be paid from proceeds of   

monetary collections. 
 
 

 
 
 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us




Page 1 of 1

A

B

C
D
E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F

A

B

C

D

E

F Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 45.00 45.00 40.00

AVERAGE 57.50 55.00 55.83

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 50.00 50.00 50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 50.00 50.00 50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 50.00 50.00 50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 40.00 45.00 35.00

Proposed fee structure

50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 50.00 40.00 50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 50.00 50.00 50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points)

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 75.00 75.00 50.00

50.00 50.00 50.00

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 50.00 50.00

100.00 90.00

100.00 100.00 100.00Total Points (Maximum 100 points)

65.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 95.00 98.00 95.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 100.00 100.00

100.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 100.00 100.00 100.00

100.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 100.00

AVERAGE 92.50 93.33

AVERAGE

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 100.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 75.00 75.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 85.00 90.00

90.83

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 85.00 85.00

100.00

RFS No. 1401-003-ML, Criminal Court Fines and Fees Collection Services
EVALUATION CRITERIA MATRIX

MEMBER EVALUATION CRITERIA MSB Linebarger Pioneer

Total points (Maximum 200 points)

180.00 125.00160.00

185.00 65.00

200.00

170.00

200.00

200.00 120.00
190.00 135.00

Total points (Maximum 200 points) 95.00 95.00 95.00

AVERAGE

92.17

Reporting capacity

Computer network

Total Points (Maximum 50 points) 45.00 40.00 35.00

84.17

189.17

Total points (Maximum 200 points) 200.00

160.00

Offeror's qualifications, basic business considerations, legal 

considerations, size and scope of local office, collections 

expertise

Total points (Maximum 200 points)

Total points (Maximum 200 points)

$486.34

AVERAGE 55.83 56.67

$484.66GRAND TOTAL $403.33

54.17

Total points (Maximum 200 points) 178.00

70.00

75.00

123.33

85.83

188.00

Method of performing work

Total points (Maximum 200 points) 200.00 200.00 135.00

Total points (Maximum 200 points) 90.00 95.00 80.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 100.00 100.00 100.00

Total Points (Maximum 100 points) 100.00 100.00 100.00



Page 1 of 49 

 

CONTRACT FOR COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT FINES AND FEES 

BETWEEN 

LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP 

AND TRAVIS COUNTY 

  

 This Contract is entered into by the following parties:   

 

 Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas ("County")  

 

and 

  

Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP, a Texas limited partnership (“Contractor”) 

 

 

PART I 

RECITALS 

 

Travis County implemented a central collections program for the Justice Courts in April, 

2006.  The title of this program is Collection of Delinquent Criminal Fines and Fees for Travis 

County Justice Courts.  This program is implemented by Travis County Central Collections 

(“TCCC”), a special unit in the Tax Assessor-Collector’s Office.   

 

TCCC collects current cases with payment plans and delinquent cases for the Justices of 

the Peace. These cases include both adjudicated and non-adjudicated cases. For delinquent Class 

C misdemeanors, the cases are sent to the TCCC after:    

1) a Failure to Appear (FTA) has been issued, if appropriate, or violations of 

promise to appear  

2) they have been submitted to the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) 

under the Omni FTA Program, if appropriate,  

3) a warrant is issued, if appropriate, and  

4) the Constable’s Office has had an appropriate amount of time to serve any 

warrants issued.   

 

The purpose of this contract is to provide collection services for past due or delinquent 

accounts for criminal fines and fees for the Travis County Justice of the Peace Courts both from 

cases to which the Statutory Fee may be added and from cases to which the Statutory Fee may 

not be added after TCCC has completed its initial collection efforts. 

 

 To obtain these services, County has distributed RFS # 1401-003-ML Criminal Court Fine 

and Fee Collection Services.  The services provided under this agreement are considered personal or 

professional services. 

 

 Commissioners Court of County may exempt personal and professional services from 

complying with the competitive procurement process under TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE ANN., § 262 et 

seq.  Contractor will provide the professional services. 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
1 of 125



Page 2 of 49 

 

 

The parties agree to the terms and conditions stated in this contract. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

PART II 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

1.0 CONTRACT TERM 

 

1.1 The term of this contract begins March 7, 2014, and continues for two (2) years.   

1.2 Contractor grants County three (3) one (1) year options to extend the Contract. All 

terms and conditions including the fees payable but excluding the expiration date 

of the contract term remain unchanged and in full force.  The options, if 

exercised, may be unilaterally executed by County no sooner than ninety (90) 

Days prior to the expiration of this contract and no later than the final Day of the 

contract term.  Failure by County to exercise any of the above options to extend 

shall require this contract to expire at the end of the then current contract term.  

The total term of this contract, including all extensions as a result of exercised 

options, shall not exceed five (5) years. 

 

2.0  DISTRIBUTION OF CASES 

 

            2.1 Contractor acknowledges that County has contracted with more than one respondent 

to the Request for Services #1401-003-ML. Contractor acknowledges and expressly 

agrees that it is not possible to distribute the cases to be sent to a vendor for 

collection in a manner that will result in each respondent with which County 

contracts receiving exactly the same number of cases with exactly the same amount 

of funds to be collected on each case and that many details related to the cases and 

their collectability may differ.  Contractor further acknowledges and expressly 

agrees that because the factors to be considered in distributing the cases are applied 

to each batch of cases, it may not be possible to achieve all or even most of the goals 

in each batch.   

 

           2.2 Contractor expressly acknowledges that distributing the cases to be sent to a vendor 

for collection by means of a computer program that considers the following factors 

as goals for each batch distributed is an equitable way to distribute cases: 

 

            2.2.1 Each individual who has one or more cases to be sent to a vendor for 

collection is given a unique PID (personal identification number) and all 

cases for a single PID are referred to the same contractor for both efficiency 

of collections and good public relations. 

 

            2.2.2 Cases to be sent to a vendor for collection are distributed to each contractor 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
2 of 125



Page 3 of 49 

 

in each batch so that the total amount collectable from all cases distributed to 

each contractor is not significantly different from the amount collectable 

from cases distributed to other contractors. 

 

            2.2.3 To the extent possible based on the number of cases in each batch and 

amounts due on each case, after the amount collectable is considered, cases 

to be sent to a vendor for collection are distributed to each contractor in each 

batch so that the total number of cases distributed to each contractor is as 

similar as possible with a goal that the number not be significantly different. 

 

            2.2.4 To the extent possible based on the number of cases in each age category 

below that are in each batch and the amount due on each case, cases to be 

sent to a vendor for collection are distributed to each vendor in each batch so 

that the number of cases distributed to each contractor in each of the 

following age brackets and the amount due on each case is as similar as 

possible with a goal that the number and amount not be significantly 

different where age is determined by the date of the offense resulting in the 

fine or fee: 

 

2.2.4.1  less than 365 Days 

2.2.4.2  1 to 2 years 

2.2.4.3  2-3 years 

2.2.4.4  3-5 years 

2.2.4.5  cases more than 5 years  and after June 18, 2003  

2.2.4.6 cases before June 18, 2003 or to which the Statutory Fee does 

not apply 

 

            2.2.5 To the extent possible based on the number of cases to be sent to a vendor 

for collection by each justice court participating in the Collection of 

Delinquent Criminal Fines and Fees for Travis County Justice Courts 

program, the number of cases and amount collectable distributed to each 

contractor from each court is as similar as possible with a goal that the 

number and amount not be significantly different. 

 

            2.3 Contractor agrees not to object to any distribution that is accomplished based on a 

computer program that is consistent with the factors listed in 2.2. 

 

            2.4 Quarterly, TCCC shall review the distribution of cases to be sent to a vendor for 

collection that has been made in the previous quarter and, if there is evidence of 

statistically significant inequity in the cumulative distribution, TCCC shall make 

whatever adjustments to the distribution that it considers necessary and appropriate.   

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
3 of 125



Page 4 of 49 

 

3.0 LIAISON 

 

3.1 The Title of this Program is Collection of Delinquent Criminal Fines and Fees for 

Travis County Justice Courts.  County appoints TCCC to act as the liaison 

between the Justices of the Peace and the Contractor for conveying most 

directions under this contract.  

 

3.2 Appointment of Liaison.  County appoints TCCC to act as the liaison between the 

Justices of the Peace and the Contractor for conveying most directions under this 

contract. 

 

3.3 Request for Information.  Contractor may communicate all requests for direction 

and factual information relating to services performed pursuant to this contract to 

TCCC and may rely on all factual information supplied by TCCC in response to 

these requests.  However, TCCC shall not serve as the agent of Travis County or the 

Travis County Commissioners Court or any Travis County Justice of the Peace for 

any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

3.4 Questions.  Contractor shall be available to the Commisioners Court, the Travis 

County Judge and Commissioners, the Justices of the Peace, or their 

representatives at any time for questions about the services being performed under 

this Contract.   

 

4.0       ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR    
 

4.1 Contractor acknowledges that that the Justices of the Peace in Travis County have 

the sole and absolute authority to determine which cases and criminal complaints 

are referred to TCCC for collection and whether these cases and criminal 

complaints are later referred to Contractor. Contractor acknowledges that the 

Justices of the Peace in Travis County have the sole and absolute authority to 

determine which cases and criminal complaints are recalled from collection by 

Contractor and the cases and criminal complaints for which the duration of the 

collection services are extended. Contractor acknowledges that each court that 

county authorizes to participate in this Contract has absolute discretion as to what 

policies and procedures Contractor must follow in providing collection services.   

TCCC acts as the liaison between the Justices of the Peace and the Contractor for 

conveying most directions under this contract.   
 

5.0 CASE REFERRAL CRITERIA 

 

5.1 County makes no guarantee about the number, type, dollar amount, or 

collectability of fines and/or fees from cases that are referred to Contractor.  

TCCC may refer the following types of cases to Contractor for collection: 

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
4 of 125



Page 5 of 49 

 

5.1.1 Class C Criminal Misdemeanor cases which have been adjudicated and 

have delinquent fines and/or fees, and 

 

5.1.2 Class C Criminal Misdemeanor cases which have not been adjudicated 

which may include a charge of Failure to Appear or Violation of Promise 

to Appear. 

 

5.2 TCCC may refer cases to the Contractor on a daily basis, Monday-Friday, 

excluding County holidays. 

 

5.3 TCCC may at any time, and for any reason, recall a case or group of cases from 

Contractor.   

 

6.0 COLLECTION FEE  
 

6.1 The outstanding balance on cases referred to Contractor by TCCC will include the 

Statutory Fee of 30% when allowed by the Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 

103.0031.  
 

6.2 Contractor shall not increase the outstanding balance on cases referred to 

Contractor by TCCC when the Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031 does 

not authorize a collection fee for that case. 

 

6.3 Contractor shall comply with all statutes in effect at the time of collection that are 

related to services under this contract and Contractor shall not collect any fees on 

cases referred to Contractor by TCCC in excess of the fees allowed by all statutes 

in effect and related to services under this contract.   
 

7.0   ACTIVITY OF CONTRACTOR  
 

            7.1 Contractor shall facilitate locating defendants and obtaining payment of fines and 

fees within two years after the date on which the case is referred to Contractor.  If 

Contractor is unable to locate the defendants within two years, Contract shall 

continue to Contractor shall facilitate locating defendants and obtaining payment 

of Fines and Fees as long as the contract continues.  Contractor must correctly 

update each case from the daily transmission from TCCC. 

 

            7.2 Before correspondence is sent to any defendant, Contractor shall obtain approval 

of the format and language of all written correspondence regularly sent to 

defendants directly from the Justice of the Peace who referred the case and 

Contractor shall notify the Justice of the Peace who referred the case if issues 

arise in the correspondence with a defendant related to the Fair Debt Collection 

Practices Act. 
 

7.3 Contractor shall not initiate contact with the defendant in person outside of the 

Contractor’s place of business or County’s place of business or the Justice of the 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
5 of 125



Page 6 of 49 

 

Peace’s place of business. 

 

7.4 Contractor shall use due diligence, reasonable, and ethical collections methods, 

and employ only lawful means to collect the Fines and Fees referred to the 

Contractor by TCCC. 

 

7.5 If Contractor receives full payment of a case balance, Contractor shall notify 

TCCC of receipt of the full payment with all information necessary to identify the 

case by 6 a.m. on the first Working Day following receipt of the payment so that, 

if applicable, a DPS OMNI Program flag can be removed from the defendant’s 

driver’s license and an outstanding warrant can be recalled. 

 

7.6 If TCCC refers any cases to which the collection fee authorized under the Code of 

Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031 may not be added to the entire outstanding 

balance, Contractor shall not apply a collection fee to any portion of the 

outstanding balance in excess of fine balance outstanding.  Despite the limitation 

on the collection fee, Contractor shall collect the entire Fine and Fee balance. 

 

7.7 Contractor shall cease any and all written or telephone contacts with the defendant 

upon any of the following events: 

 

7.7.1 full payment of the Fines and Fees, 

 

7.7.2 the recall of a case from the Contractor by TCCC, 

 

7.7.3 the termination of this contract.  

 

7.8 Contractor shall maintain full electronic compatibility with County’s current 

computer systems and with any other system that County may implement during 

the term of this contract.  Contractor is responsible for and shall bear all financial 

costs of ensuring full electronic compatibility with County’s current systems and 

with any other system that County may implement during the term of this 

contract. 

 

7.9 Contractor shall make and maintain books, documents, and other relevant 

information pertaining to the collections carried out and the expenses incurred 

under this contract and make them available for inspection, audit or reproduction 

by any authorized representative of County or any external auditor representing 

County. 

 

7.10 Contractor shall pay all costs associated with all its collection efforts and 

activities under this contract and its collection efforts.  Contractor is responsible 

for costs and losses incurred as a result of any insufficient fund checks and credit 

card reversals.  Contractor may pursue collection of any dishonored payments and 

costs associated with these on its own behalf. 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
6 of 125



Page 7 of 49 

 

 

8.0 DEFENDANT PAYMENTS  
 

8.1 Initially, Contractor shall direct defendants to make all payments of Fines and 

Fees to TCCC. 

 

8.2 When, despite these directions, Contractor receives a payment from a defendant 

by any means, including in person, by mail, through a telephone credit card or 

through an EFT transaction, no later than the end of the first Working Day after 

receipt, Contractor shall pay County through TCCC by means of an Automated 

Clearing House transaction the full amount received without an offset for 

Statutory Fees payable to Contractor or any other deduction, and send TCCC a 

spreadsheet report to the current email address provided by TCCC with the 

following information for each defendant payment forwarded to TCCC that Day: 

 

 8.2.1 Amount to be applied to each case, 

 

 8.2.2 Case number, and 

 

 8.2.3 Name of defendant. 

 

8.3 If, at any time during the contract, County, at its sole discretion, determines that it 

is feasible or cost-effective or necessary as a result of either County’s case 

management and accounting systems or best practices for Contractor to become 

the primary recipient of payments on cases referred to Contractor by TCCC, and 

County gives Contractor at least 30 Days written notice of its determination, 

Contractor shall make all changes necessary to become the primary recipient of 

payments on cases referred to Contractor by TCCC after the thirtieth (30
th

) Day 

after receipt of the written notice, and direct defendants to make all subsequent 

payments of criminal Fines and Fees to TCCC.  

  

9.0 BUSINESS RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

            9.1 In this section, “Collection Records” includes at least receipts, copies of checks, 

money orders and other payments received, account receivable records, bank 

account records and other documents of business related to providing the collection 

services.   

  

9.2 Contractor must maintain Travis County Collection Records for each Day of 

collection period in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, a full, 

complete, and accurate permanent record and account of all collections and of all 

sums of money paid or payable for or on account or arising out of collections 

conducted on behalf of County.   

 

9.3 Contractor must preserve Collection Records and supporting documents for thirty-

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
7 of 125



Page 8 of 49 

 

six (36) months after the expiration of the contract or until an audit is completed and 

all requested questions arising from it are resolved, whichever occurs later. The 

records will be retained beyond the third year if an audit is in progress or the 

findings of a completed audit have not been resolved satisfactorily. 

 

9.4 Access.  At reasonable times and on reasonable notice, Contractor shall make 

available to County or its duly authorized representatives any information and 

documentation in Contractor’s possession or control, which directly pertains to 

Services for audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for as long as 

Contractor has access to the information and documentation. 

  

9.5 Duplication of information and documentation.  Contractor shall provide copies of 

information and documentation to County upon written request to Contractor at a 

cost based on the rates applicable to copies provided pursuant to the Texas Public 

Information Act. 

 

9.6 Inclusion of Provisions.  Contractor shall include provisions set forth in 9.0 of this 

contract in all subcontracts. 

 

10.0 INFORMATION IN CASE FILES OR USED IN COLLECTION OF CRIMINAL 

FINES AND FEES 

 

10.1 In 10.1 through 10.4, “Case Information” means all information about cases 

referred to Contractor by TCCC and contained in the court file of the Justice of 

the Peace, or otherwise supplied to the Contractor by the Justice of the Peace or 

TCCC. 

 

10.2 Contractor acknowledges that the Justice of the Peace from whose court a case 

originated has the sole authority under Texas Government Code, title 2, subtitle 

G, appendix B, Code of Judicial Conduct, Canon 3 (c)(5), Rule 12 to determine 

what Case Information may be released. 

 

10.3 Unless given express written consent by the Justice of the Peace who is currently 

presiding over the case Contractor shall: 

 

10.3.1  keep confidential all Case Information, 

 

10.3.2 not disclose any   to any person associated with Contractor or any third 

party who is not directly involved in providing the services under this 

contract, 

 

10.3.3 not include any Case Information in any data base that is shared with any 

third party or any person associated with Contractor who is not directly 

involved in providing the services under this contract, 

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
8 of 125



Page 9 of 49 

 

10.3.4 not use any Case Information for any purpose other than the collection of 

the delinquent criminal fines and fees,   

 

10.3.5 not sell, trade, or otherwise provide any Case Information in any data base 

that is shared with any entity not a party to this contract or any person 

associated with Contractor who is not directly involved in providing the 

services under this contract.   

 

10.4 Any unauthorized use or disclosure of Case Information is a breach of the 

contract and may result in the immediate termination of the contract. 

 

10.5 Required Provision for Subcontractors.  If a subcontractor provides services in 

relation to the contract, Contractor shall include provisions in its contract with the 

subcontractor that require the subcontractor to comply with the confidentiality 

provisions in this section 10.0 of this contract.     

 

11.0 CHANGES OF STATUS IN CASES: ACTIVE TO INACTIVE TO ACTIVE 

 

11.1 Contractor acknowledges that a case is no longer delinquent when any of the 

following actions occur: 

 

11.1.1 the Justice of the Peace orders a payment plan;  

 

11.1.2 the defendant posts a bond;  

 

11.1.3 the Justice of the Peace extends the defendant’s time to pay;  

 

11.1.4 the Justice of the Peace dismisses the case;  

 

11.1.5 the Justice of the Peace orders community service, restitution, or full 

credit for time served in lieu of payment; or  

 

11.1.6 the Justice of the Peace makes any order that in the interest of justice 

results in the case no longer being delinquent.  

 

11.2 Contractor acknowledges that a case may become delinquent when any of the 

following actions occur: 

 

11.2.1 the Justice of the Peace rescinds a payment plan;  

 

11.2.2 the Justice of the Peace revokes or forfeits a bond; 

 

11.2.3 an extension of the defendant’s time to pay has expired;  

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
9 of 125



Page 10 of 49 

 

 

11.2.4 the Justice of the Peace rescinds a defendant’s right to perform community 

service, or provide restitution for failure to conform to the terms of a court 

order; or for any other reason or  

 

11.2.5 the Justice of the Peace makes any order that in the interest of justice 

results in the case being delinquent.  

 

11.3 If information in the daily transmission from TCCC indicates that the delinquent 

status of any case referred to Contractor by TCCC has changed, Contractor shall 

correctly update each case based on the information in the daily transmission.  

Contractor shall initiate, deactivate, reactivate, or return cases to TCCC as 

appropriate based on the information provided in the daily transmission from 

TCCC.  

 

11.4 If information in the daily transmission from TCCC indicates that a case referred 

to Contractor by TCCC is no longer delinquent, Contractor shall cease all 

collection efforts as soon as Contractor receives the transmission from TCCC.  

 

11.5 If information in the daily transmission from TCCC indicates that a case referred 

to Contractor by TCCC again becomes delinquent, Contractor shall re-activate the 

case and provide the collection services under this contract. 

 

12.0 CONTRACTOR REPORTS 
 

12.1 Contractor shall provide a monthly report to each Justice of the Peace about the 

cases referred to Contractor that originated in the court of that Justice of the Peace 

no later than the 10
th

 of each month for the preceding calendar month.  The report 

shall be in paper format unless Contractor and the Justice of the Peace determine 

that there is an electronic format and delivery method that is acceptable to the 

Justice of the Peace and the County Information Technology staff responsible for 

network security.  If an acceptable electronic format and delivery method is 

confirmed in writing by Justice of the Peace and County, Contractor may 

commence reports in that manner.  This report to each Justice of the Peace shall 

include at least the following information about each case from the court of that 

Justice of the Peace: 

 

12.1.1 the total number of contacts attempted (written and telephonic) for each 

case,  

 

12.1.2 the total number of cases that have been deactivated, reactivated or 

returned to the Justice of the Peace since the previous report,  

 

12.1.3 the amount collected for each case,  

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
10 of 125



Page 11 of 49 

 

12.1.4 the outstanding balance for each case for which a payment was collected 

and remitted to TCCC, and 

 

12.1.5  if no collections are completed during any month, a negative collection 

report. 

 

12.2 Contractor shall provide monthly reports to TCCC about all cases referred to 

Contractor no later than the 10
th

 of each month for the preceding calendar month.  

This report shall include copies of the reports provided to each Justice of the 

Peace and a summary report of the combined totals for all cases referred to 

Contractor through TCCC including at least the following information: 

 

12.2.1 the total number of contacts attempted (written and telephonic) for each 

case for all cases referred by County,  

 

12.2.2 the total number of referred cases that have been deactivated, reactivated 

or returned to the County since the previous report,   

 

12.2.3 the amounts collected for each case for all cases referred by County,  

 

12.2.4 the outstanding balance for each case for which a payment was collected 

and remitted to TCCC for all cases referred by County, and  

 

12.2.5 if no collections are completed during any month, a negative collection 

report. 

 

12.3 Contractor shall provide a quarterly Collection Rate Summary Table to each 

Justice of the Peace about the cases referred to Contractor by TCCC for that 

Justice of the Peace no later than the 10
th

 of April, July, October, and January for 

the preceding calendar quarter.  The Collection Rate Summary Table shall be in 

the form in Attachment A.  The table shall include total collections for cases 

referred for each Justice of the Peace. 

 

12.4 Contractor shall provide a quarterly Collection Rate Summary Table to TCCC 

about all cases referred to Contractor by TCCC no later than the 10
th

 of April, 

July, October, and January for the preceding calendar quarter.  The Collection 

Rate Summary Table shall be in the form in Attachment A.  The table shall 

include total collections for all cases referred by TCCC. 

 

12.5 TCCC shall provide the daily transmission to Contractor in a County-selected 

electronic format.  

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
11 of 125



Page 12 of 49 

 

12.6     Addresses For Reports To Justices Of The Peace 

 

 12.6.1 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct One 

at the following address: 

Judge Yvonne M. Williams (or her successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct One 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.2 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Two 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Glenn Bass (or his successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Two 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.3 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Three 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Susan K. Steeg (or her successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Three 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.4 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Four 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Raừl Arturo González (or his successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Four 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.5 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Five 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Herb Evans (or his successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Five 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

   

 12.7  Address for Reports to TCCC.  Contractor shall submit the reports to TCCC at the 

following address: 

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
12 of 125



Page 13 of 49 

 

Travis County Tax Assessor Collector 

Travis County Centralized Collections  

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

12.8 Questions.  Contractor shall be available to the Commissioners Court, the Travis 

County Judge and Commissioners, the Justices of the Peace, or their representatives 

at any time for questions about the services being performed under this Contract. 

 

PART III 

GERNERAL PROVISIONS 

 

13.0     CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

13.1 Timeliness of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner. 

 

13.2 Cooperation and Coordination.  Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with 

County staff and other entities as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 

Project Manager. 

 

13.3 Personnel Used.  Contractor expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this 

Contract, County has relied on the representations of Contractor about the persons 

who will be performing the Services and their qualifications. Contractor shall ensure 

that all work done is done by the employees or members of Contractor that are 

presented as performing the Services in Contractor’s proposal. If County is 

dissatisfied with the performance of any person regularly assigned to work for 

County, this person will be replaced by a person acceptable to County.  Contractor 

shall not use any other person to provide Services unless, before providing Services, 

the Purchasing Agent approves the person at the request of Project Manager. 

 

13.4 Professional Qualifications.  At all times during Contract, Contractor shall maintain 

in good standing its professional license and accreditations applicable to Services. 

Contractor shall perform all acts reasonably necessary to maintain and improve its 

professional competence and training.  Contractor shall Notify County within two 

(2) Working Days if any adverse action related to its professional license and 

accreditations occurs. 

 

13.5 Right to Contractual Material.  All work products created or produced by Contractor 

as a result of Services, including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other 

appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related 

material are the property of the County at the time of creation. Any intellectual 

property rights granted to the County survive the termination of this Contract and 

endure for the useful life of the contractual material and other intellectual property 

rights provided. 

 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
13 of 125



Page 14 of 49 

 

            13.6 Rights to Contractor’s Work Products.  Upon full payment, Contractor assigns to 

County any and all rights, title and interest, including, without limitation, copyrights, 

trade secrets and proprietary rights to the work products developed or prepared 

specifically for County under this Contract.  The work products exclude all third 

party works and products whether or not included or embedded in the Contractor’s 

work products.  The work products are deemed to be “works made for hire” under 

the federal copyright laws.  Contractor shall give County reasonable assistance, at 

County's expense, to perfect this assignment of these rights, title and interest.  

However, if the work products include intellectual property owned or developed by 

Contractor before and independent from, its obligations under this Contract, 

Contractor retains all rights to that previous and independent product. In addition, 

Contractor retains the right to use its knowledge, experience, and know-how, 

including processes, ideas, concepts and techniques developed in the course of 

performing the Services. 

 

 13.7 Standard of Care.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, Contractor shall  

perform all Services using at least the standard of care that a reasonably prudent 

person in that profession in Travis County, Texas would use in similar 

circumstances. This Contract shall not be construed to relieve Contractor of this 

duty. 

 

 13.8 Possible Benefit to Contractor.  Contractor shall expressly advise Commissioners 

Court of any direct or indirect benefit to Contractor or any member or employee of 

Contractor that is likely to result from any actions recommended by Contractor. 

 

            13.9 Ethical Standards.  Contractor shall perform the Services and exercise all 

discretionary powers in a manner consistent with applicable standards of 

professional conduct and ethics and Contractor’s best professional judgment. 

 

            13.10  Civil Rights/ADA Compliance.  In relation to performing the Services, Contractor 

shall not discriminate against any applicant, employee, patient or other person on the 

basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or disability and provide all 

accommodations for disability required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 

            13.11 Return of County Equipment and Access Keys.  At the end of this Contract, 

Contractor shall return property of any kind, including all keys, access cards and 

other means of access to county buildings and other property that have been 

provided to it or its staff.  Contractor shall not permit its employees to take or retain 

any County property or any property of County employees. 

 

            13.12 Legal Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 

rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the performance of all Services. 

 

            13.13 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire.  If required by law, Contractor shall complete, file 

and update a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
14 of 125



Page 15 of 49 

 

the Texas Local Government Code. Contractor acknowledges that the law requires 

the County to provide access to this questionnaire on the official Travis County 

website. 

 

            13.14 Certification Regarding Debarment.  Contractor shall complete and update a 

Certification Regarding Debarment on the form in Contract Attachment C whenever 

there is a change in status. 

 

14.0   CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS & 

WARRANTIES  

   

            14.1 Limit of Authority of County Representatives.  Contractor acknowledges that no 

officer, agent, employee, or representative of County has any authority to change 

this Contract, to approve assignment of any part of it, or to waive any provision of it 

unless expressly granted that specific authority by Commissioners Court. 

 

             14.2 Independent Contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is an independent 

contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, 

obligations and liabilities applicable to it as an independent contractor.  Contractor 

acknowledges that neither it nor its employees are an employee of County, and 

Contractor and its employees do not gain any rights against County pursuant to the 

County personnel policies and procedures.    

 

             14.3 No Agency Relationship.  Contractor acknowledges that it does not have the 

authority to enter into any contract in the name of County or otherwise bind County 

in any way without the express written consent of County.   County does not have 

the authority to enter into any contract in the name of Contractor or otherwise bind 

Contractor in any way without the express written consent of Contractor.  

 

             14.4 Contractor Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.  Contractor represents that all 

applicable copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property 

rights which may exist on materials used in this Contract have been adhered to, and 

warrants that the County is not liable for any infringement of those rights. 

 

             14.5 Understanding of Requirements.  Contractor represents that it has thoroughly 

examined the technical requirements, performance parameters, instructions and all 

other contract documents.  Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be 

thoroughly informed regarding technical requirements, performance parameters for 

delivery of material, equipment and/or services as required by this contract. 

 

             14.6 Financial Status.  Contractor represents that it is a duly qualified, capable, and 

otherwise bondable business entity, that it is not in receivership or contemplates 

same, and has not filed for bankruptcy. It further certifies that the company, 

corporation or partnership is not currently delinquent with respect to payment of 

property taxes within County. 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
15 of 125



Page 16 of 49 

 

 

             14.7 Truth of Proposal.  Contractor warrants that all of the information provided in its 

proposal is true and correct and that Contractor will use its best efforts to provide 

quality service to County. 

 

             14.8 Compliance with Licensure Requirements.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is 

current in payment and in good standing under all licensure requirements applicable 

to its business and the Services to be provided under this contract pursuant to all 

federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. 

  

14.9   Performance of Professional Services.  The Contractor warrants that it will 

undertake no task for which a professional license or certificate is required, unless 

Contractor or someone under Contractor's direction is appropriately licensed. If 

such licensed individual's license expires, is revoked, or is cancelled, Contractor 

shall inform the County within five (5) working Days.  Contractor shall perform 

all services and responsibilities required of the Contractor under this contract in a 

professional manner at a standard acceptable for similar services in Travis County 

and in a prompt and efficient manner.  Nothing in this contract shall be construed 

to relieve the Contractor of this duty. 

 

             14.10 Payment of Property Taxes.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor-

Collector. 

 

             14.11 Commissions.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency has been 

retained to solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, 

brokerage, or contingent fee income, supplemental income, excepting bona fide 

employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by the 

Contractor to secure business. If Contractor violates this warranty, Contractor is 

subject to termination of this Contract without recourse or compensating County for 

the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee at 

County’s discretion. 

  

             14.12 Gratuities.  Contractor warrants that Contractor and any one acting on behalf of 

Contractor has not offered or given any gratuities of any kind including 

entertainment, or gifts to any County official or employee with a view toward 

securing favorable treatment with respect of this Contract. 

 

             14.13 Lobbying with Federal Funds.  Contractor warrants that Contractor has not paid and 

will not pay, and no one else has paid or will pay on behalf of Contractor, any 

federally appropriated funds  to any person for influencing or attempting to influence 

an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or 

employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 

awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
16 of 125



Page 17 of 49 

 

federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, 

continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 

loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

14.14 Covenant Against Contingent Fees.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling 

agency has been retained to solicit this contract upon an understanding for a 

commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide 

employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by 

the Contractor to secure business.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 

County may terminate this contract without liability, or in its discretion may, as 

applicable, add to or deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover, the full 

amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

 

15.0 RISK ALLOCATION 

 

15.1 Definition of Claim.  In sections 15.2 and 15.3, “Claim” means any negligence, 

cause of action, suit, proceeding before any administrative agency, loss, damages, or 

liability of any kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney’s 

fees. 

 

15.2 Indemnification. 

 

15.2.1 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless County, its officers, agents, 

and employees, from all Claims for injury to or death of any person, for any 

act or omission by Contractor, or for damage to any property, arising out of 

or in connection with the Services. 

 

15.2.2 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, 

agents, and employees from all Claims for damages to any person or 

property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 

existing patents, licenses, copyrights or other intellectual property rights 

applicable to materials used in and work products arising from this Contract. 

 

15.3 Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any Claim 

against Contractor or County, without regard to who brought it, Contractor shall give 

County Notice within three (3) Working Days after Contractor becomes aware of the 

Claim or threat of Claim. Unless otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish County 

copies of all pertinent papers received by Contractor regarding the Claim. 

Contractor’s Notice shall include: 

 

  15.3.1 a written description of the Claim; 

 

  15.3.2 the name and address of whoever made or threatened to make the Claim; 

 

  15.3.3 the basis of the Claim; 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
17 of 125



Page 18 of 49 

 

 

  15.3.4 the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the Claim was instituted;  

   and  

 

  15.3.5 the name of any other persons against whom this Claim is being made or  

   threatened. 

 

 15.4 Requirement for Insurance.  Contractor shall have and maintain at least the 

minimum types of insurance listed in 15.6 the term of this Contract.  Contractor’s 

insurance must be sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor pursuant to applicable 

generally accepted business standards related to the risks associated with providing 

the Services, but not less than the minimum coverage limits listed in Part II. 

Depending on Services provided by Contractor, supplemental insurance 

requirements or alternate insurance options may apply in addition to those listed in 

Part II.  If County authorizes Contractor to subcontract Services under this Contract, 

Contractor shall either maintain insurance that covers all subcontractors and 

complies with 15.5 throughout the term of the Contract or ensure that all 

subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the work related to the Services that 

is performed by them and that their insurance complies with sections 15.4 and 15.5 

while performing work related to the Services. 

 

 15.5 General Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall comply with the following 

requirements related to insurance: 

 

 15.5.1 Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in Texas 

that have an A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor wants to 

use surplus carriers, these carriers are subject to County approval. 

 

 15.5.2 Insurance that names Travis County as an additional insured is primary for 

all claims under it. 

 

 15.5.3 Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be 

interpreted to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor. 

 

 15.5.4 Before Contractor begins Services, Contractor shall have at least the required 

insurance in force.  Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled 

or lapse and shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or 

otherwise be reduced during this Contract. Contractor is responsible for all 

premiums, deductibles, and self-insured retention. 

 

 15.5.5 Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the state-

approved form and signed by the writing agent or the carrier to the 

Purchasing Agent within ten (10) Working Days after the earlier of 

execution of the Contract by both parties, or the effective date of the 

Contract. The Certificates of Insurance must include the Travis County 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
18 of 125



Page 19 of 49 

 

contract number, all deductibles and self-insured retention, and the following 

endorsements, if applicable: 

 

   15.5.5.1 an endorsement that names Travis County as additional  

     insured where County’s interest may lie, 

 

   15.5.5.2 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for all  

     claims, 

 

   15.5.5.3 a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement 

 

   15.5.5.4 a Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation endorsement 

 

 15.5.6 Contractor shall provide replacement Certificates of Insurance to the 

Purchasing Agent within ten (10) Days of the each renewal of insurance 

during the term of this contract in compliance with Part III. 

 

 15.5.7 On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of policies and 

endorsements at no additional expense to County. 

 

 15.5.8 Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance 

requirements during any term of the Contract and to require that Contractor 

make reasonable adjustments when the Services have changed or expanded. 

 

 15.6 Minimum Coverage. Minimum insurance coverage may be written as combined 

single limits or structured using primary and excess or umbrella coverage that 

follows the form of the primary policy. Contractor acknowledges and shall maintain 

the following standard minimum insurance coverage applicable to Contractor and 

any subcontractor performing work related to Services all in compliance with Part II, 

sections 17.4 and 17.5: 

 

 15.6.1 Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the 

following requirements: 

 

 15.6.2 Coverage that is consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas 

Workers’ Compensation Act, 

 

   15.6.3 Employers’ liability limits of: 

 

    $500,000 bodily injury each accident, 

    $500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 

    $500,000 policy limit. 

 

15.6.4 Policies that are subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the 

following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
19 of 125



Page 20 of 49 

 

 

     Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and 

     Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 

 

15.6.5 Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 

 

   15.6.5.1Minimum limits for coverage: 

 

$500,000 per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury and 

Property Damage,   

$500,000 per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury and 

Advertisement, and    

$1,000,000 policy aggregate. 

 

 15.6.5.2Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and contains 

the following coverage or is endorsed in favor of Travis County as 

follows: 

 

    Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 

    Independent Contractor Coverage, 

    Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 

    Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 

    Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 

 

 15.6.6 Business automobile liability insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 

 

15.6.6.1  As no transportation services of any type are provided for in 

this contract, and use of motor vehicles is strictly limited to 

travel to and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal 

Auto Policy coverage with limits of $100,000 / $300,000 / 

$50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile 

Liability Insurance. 

 

 15.6.6.2 Any Policy under section 15.6.6.1 must be subject to the laws 

of the State of Texas and include the following endorsements 

in favor of Travis County: 

 

      Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), and 

Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 

9901B). 

 

 15.6.7 Professional liability / E & O insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
20 of 125



Page 21 of 49 

 

 

 15.6.7.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, 

errors, or omissions and sexual harassment: 

 

       $1,000,000 per claim, and 

       $3,000,000 aggregate. 

 

 15.6.7.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and 

include the following endorsements in favor of Travis 

County: 

 

 Waiver of Subrogation (if including) in Commercial 

General insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent, 

and 

 

 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (if including) 

in Commercial General Insurance, Form CG 2404 or 

its equivalent. 

 

 

 15.6.7.3 If coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive 

date must be prior to the earlier of the date this Contract is 

signed or effective and include a three (3) year extended 

reporting period from the date this Contract ends.  The 

Certificate of Insurance must state whether the coverage is 

claims made and contain both the retroactive date of 

coverage and the extended reporting date. 

 

 15.6.7.4 Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s 

professional liability insurance shall provide Contractor with 

current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date 

of their insurance policy. 

 

  15.6.8 Blanket Crime Policy Insurance. 

 

15.6.8.1 Contractor shall provide a Blanket Crime Policy with a 

minimum coverage of $100,000.00. 

 

 15.6.8.2 If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive 

date shall be prior to the date Services begin under this 

Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever is 

earlier.  Coverage shall include a three-(3) year extended 

reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is 

terminated. The Certificate of Insurance shall clarify whether 

coverage is claims made and shall contain both the 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
21 of 125



Page 22 of 49 

 

retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting 

period date. 

 

    15.6.8.3 Additional insured status for Travis County is not required. 

 

15.7 Contractor must mail the Certificate of Insurance, and updates, submitted in 

compliance with Part IV to the following address: 

 

     Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

    Travis County Purchasing Agent 

    RFS # 1401-003-ML 

    P.O. Box 1748 

    Austin, Texas 78767 

 

16.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT   
 

16.1 Taxpayer Identification Number.  Contractor shall provide County with an Internal 

Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 

Certification that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and 

its rules and regulations before any Contract funds are payable.  

 

16.2 Posting Payments from Contractor.  Within two (2) Working Days after receipt of 

a payment and electronic spreadsheet in compliance with 8.0, TCCC shall post the 

receipts to the appropriate defendant account in the County computer system.   

 

16.3 Delayed Payment to Contractor Due to Outstanding Debt.  

 

 16.3.1  In section 16.4, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees owing to the 

 state or the County, and indebtedness arising from written agreements with 

 Texas or County for which a notice with evidence has been filed with the 

 County Auditor or Travis County Treasurer. 

 

 16.3.2  Section 154.045 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes County 

 not to draw a check on any County fund in favor of the Contractor, or its 

 agent or assignee until the Debt is paid after the Travis County Treasurer 

 notifies Contractor in writing that the Debt is outstanding.     

 

   16.3.3  If the Treasurer’s notice states that any amount owed by the County to 

 Contractor may be applied to reduce the outstanding Debt, County may 

 apply any amount County owes Contractor to the outstanding balance of the 

 Debt.   

 

 16.4 Unauthorized Invoicing.  County is not liable for any of the following:   

 

 16.4.1  Costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor before or after the 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
22 of 125



Page 23 of 49 

 

 Contract term,   

 

 16.4.2  Expenses not billed to County within the applicable time limits in this 

 Contract, or   

 

   16.4.3  Any costs for activities not included as Services.   

 

 16.5 Timing of Payment Due.   For cases to which the Statutory Fee can be applied and 

  funds are collected that include the Statutory Fee, County shall pay Contractor on  

  or before the tenth (10
th

) Working Day of the month for collections posted by  

  TCCC during the previous month for cases referred to Contractor through TCCC  

  regardless of whether payments are made to Contractor, the TCCC, any Justice of  

  the Peace, or any other elected official or office authorized to accept payment of  

  Fines and Fees in each of the following circumstances: 

 

16.5.1 the full Statutory Fee as full payments are remitted to County, 

 

16.5.2 as partial payments are remitted to County a pro-rata portion of the  

  Statutory Fee,  and  
 

 16.5.3 as partial payments are remitted as a result of a payment plan managed by  

  TCCC which results after the case was referred to Contractor for   

  collection and skip tracing and is active, a pro-rata portion of the Statutory 

  Fee. 

 

 16.6 Cases on Which No Fee is Due.  If no funds are collected on a case, no fee is due for 

  that case.  In addition, no fee is payable to Contractor on cases referred to   

  Contractor through TCCC if either of the following apply: 

 

16.6.1 Judicial decisions result in the County or the Justice of the Peace not  

  receiving payments on cases (such as credit for jail time served,   

  dismissals, waivers, community service, or administrative closure of cases  

  without payment). 

 

16.6.2 A bond is posted and the bond amount is not later converted to a payment  

  of criminal fines and fees. 

 

 16.7 Contractor’s Fee. "Gross Collections" means the total amount of money received  

  from the collection of Fines and Fees on cases to which the Statutory Fee can legally 

  be added.   

 

 16.8  Amount of Payment Due.  For the performance of collection services in relation to  

  cases to which the Statutory Fee can be legally added, County shall pay Contractor a 

  collection fee equal to 23.077% of the authenticated Gross Collections rounded up to 

  the nearest cent.  For the performance of collection services in relation to cases to  

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
23 of 125



Page 24 of 49 

 

  which the Statutory Fee can not be legally added, County shall not pay Contractor  

  any collection fee.  The Contractor is entitled only to the amount stated in this  

  paragraph as a fee for the performance of collection services under this contract.  

  Separate line item charges are not permitted for any purposes. Except for the   

  collection fee charged by the Contractor under this contract, County shall not be  

  responsible for any other charges associated with this contract.  These fees shall be  

  firm for the duration of this contract. 

 

16.9 Method and Timing of Payment.  Payment by County to Contractor shall be made 

  monthly on the 20
th

 of the month for the amount due for Fines and Fees received  

  in the preceding month by check or warrant. Payment shall be deemed to have  

  been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. 

 

 16.10 Obligation to Pay.  County's obligation to make any payment to Contractor is  

  dependent upon completion of the services in a timely, good and professional  

  manner and at a standard acceptable in the collection services in Austin, Texas.  

  County shall pay in compliance with this contract.  

 

 16.11 Limit of Liability.  County shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances  

  rendered by Contractor before or after the contract period. 

 

 16.12 Payment after Termination.  If this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the  

  services, compensation for the services performed before the termination will be  

  based on the actual collections performed and uncompensated at the date of   

  termination. 

 

 16.12 Return of Overpayment.  Contractor is liable to County if and when County 

determines that a payment has resulted in overpayment.  Contractor shall repay the 

overpayment to County within thirty (30) Days after County requests a repayment.  

If Contractor does not repay the overpayment within thirty (30) Days, County may 

offset the amount of any overpayment against the next amount payable to Contractor 

under this or any other contract.     

 

17.0 COUNTY TRANSMISSION REPORTS 

 

17.1  TCCC shall generate a report that is transmitted daily. This daily report shall: 

 

17.1.1 identify the cases being referred to Contractor for collection and the 

Justice of the Peace from which the case originated,  

 

17.1.2 identify cases to be deactivated by Contractor and the Justice of the Peace 

from which the case originated,  

 

17.1.3 identify cases to be reactivated by Contractor and the Justice of the Peace 

from which the case originated,   

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
24 of 125



Page 25 of 49 

 

 

17.1.4 identify cases recalled from Contractor and the Justice of the Peace from 

which the case originated,   

 

 17.1.5 provide a daily status file containing current demographic data, 

 assessments, payments and adjustments.  

 

  17.2 If available and permitted by law, TCCC shall provide the following information  

  about the case and the defendant on all cases referred to the Contractor for   

  collection: 

 

17.2.1   Case number 

 

17.2.2   Name of defendant 

 

17.2.3   Address(es) 

 

17.2.4   Phone number(s) 

 

17.2.5   Drivers license number  

 

17.2.6   State of drivers license 

 

17.2.7   Social Security number  

 

17.2.8    Date of birth 

 

17.2.9   Offense code 

 

17.2.10  Description of offense  

 

17.2.11  Date of offense 

 

17.2.12  Balance assessed 

 

17.2.13  Balance reductions to date including both monetary payments and credits 

   resulting from judicial actions 

 

17.2.14  Balance outstanding 

 

17.2.15  Status and number of warrant  

 

 

  17.3 TCCC shall provide the daily transmission to Contractor in a County-selected  

  electronic format.  File layout changes may occur annually. 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
25 of 125



Page 26 of 49 

 

 

 

18.0 CHANGES TO CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

 

18.1 Assignment.  The parties may not assign any rights or duties in this Contract 

without the prior written approval of the other party. Contractor may submit a 

written request for an assignment to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to Project 

Manager. The Purchasing Agent shall submit requests to the Commissioners 

Court for appropriate action.  If Contractor fails to obtain approval, County may 

delay payment or exercise other legal or equitable rights.  If Contractor assigns 

this Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and assigns.  If 

County assigns this Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this 

Contract are binding upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and 

assigns. 

 

18.2 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Contract, 

Contractor may not subcontract with any other person to perform any of the 

Services or other obligations under this Contract.  If a subcontract is approved, 

Contractor shall make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and reasonable 

steps to insure HUBs maximum opportunity to be subcontractors under this 

Agreement.  Contractor shall obtain county approval of all proposed HUB 

subcontractors through the Purchasing Agent.  If subcontracting is allowed, 

Contractor must provide for insurance for subcontracts as stated in section 5.4 and 

Part III and require subcontractors to complete and update a Certification 

Regarding Debarment on the form in Contract Attachment 3 whenever there is a 

change in status and provide the Purchasing Agent with copies of these 

certifications. 

 

 18.3 General.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any change to  

  this Contract must be in writing and signed by each party. 

 

 18.4 Requests for Changes.  Contractor shall submit requests for changes to this  

  Contract to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Project Manager. 

 

 18.5 Purchasing Agent Authority.  The Purchasing Agent has certain limited authority  

  to approve changes subject to Chapter 262 of the Texas Local Government Code  

  and County policy approved by the Commissioners Court.  Within that authority,  

  the Purchasing Agent may approve certain requests to change this Contract.  At  

  any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the Commissioners  

  Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing Agent to approve 

  the change. 

 

 18.6 Change of Name.  If Contractor’s actions require County to recognize a change of 

  Contractor’s name, Contractor must notify the Purchasing Agent immediately.   

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
26 of 125



Page 27 of 49 

 

  County does not recognize any change in its Contractor’s obligations until   

  Purchasing Agent approves the change. 

 

19.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

 19.1 Procedure. 

19.1.1 Correspondence In this section 19, “Correspondence” means any notice, 

document, letter, email, or other tangible transfer of information related to 

an issue and “Dispute Manager” means the Purchasing Agent or other 

representative authorized by Commissioners Court. 

  19.1.2 Notice of Dispute. If the Contractor and the Project Manager have been  

   unable to resolve any issue related to this Contract, Contractor may submit 

   a Notice of the dispute to the Dispute Manager.  The Notice should  

   contain specific details about the issues and Contractor’s preferred   

   resolution of the dispute, including mediation, if desired. The Contractor  

   may include any other relevant information. 

  19.1.3 Flow of Information. After the Dispute Manager receives the Contractor’s  

   Notice, the Dispute Manager represents the County in the administration  

   of the dispute. After this Notice, any additional Correspondence is not  

   effective unless it is directed to or sent by the Dispute Manager.  If   

   Contractor disagrees with any Correspondence issued by the Dispute  

   Manager, Contractor shall submit a written response detailing its reasons  

   for disagreement with the Correspondence to the Dispute Resolver and the 

   Project Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the Correspondence. 

  19.1.4 Proposed Resolution. Within thirty (30) Days after the Dispute Manager  

   receives Contractor’s response, the Dispute Manager must send a final  

   written proposal for resolution of the dispute to Contractor. 

  19.1.5 Appeal. If the final written proposal does not resolve the dispute to  

   Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written appeal to the  

   Commissioners Court through the Dispute Manager within ten (10) Days  

   after receipt of the unsatisfactory proposal. The Dispute Manager forwards 

   a copy of the appeal to the Project Manager for it to be placed on the  

   Commissioners Court agenda. The Commissioners Court hears the appeal.   

   Contractor may make a presentation at that hearing. 

 19.2 Mediation.  When mediation is acceptable to both parties, the parties may use a  

  mutually acceptable mediator, or a mediator appointed by a court of competent  

  jurisdiction. Mediation is conducted in compliance with Chapter 154 of the Texas  

  Civil Practice and Remedies Code. Unless both parties are satisfied with the  

  mediated resolution, the mediation is not a final and binding resolution of the  

  dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation must remain  

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
27 of 125



Page 28 of 49 

 

  confidential in compliance with section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and  

  Remedies Code, unless both parties agree in writing to waive confidentiality. 

 19.3 Suspension. After Notice to Contractor, County may suspend this Contract in  

  whole or in part and withhold further payments to Contractor until County and  

  Contractor resolve the issues causing the suspension. Contractor shall not incur  

  additional obligations of Contract funds after receipt of a Notice of suspension  

  until Contractor receives a Notice from County that the issues supporting   

  suspension are resolved to County’s satisfaction. 

 19.4 Non-Waiver of Default. County expressly reserves all its rights under this   

  Contract.  Any action that County takes to exercise any right or remedy shall not  

  be interpreted as a waiver of any other rights or remedies or preclude the exercise  

  of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law.  A payment,  

  act, or omission by County shall not impair or prejudice any of its rights or  

  remedies. 

19.5 Cumulative Remedies.  The rights and remedies of County under this contract are 

cumulative.  All rights of County under this contract are specifically reserved and 

any payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to 

County under it.  The exercise by County, in whole or in part, of any right or 

remedy under this contract shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or 

remedy under this contract or under any law, nor shall any right or remedy be 

deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

 

20.0 TERMINATION 

 

20.1 Termination For Convenience.  County may terminate this contract at any time by 

giving Contractor notice of termination at least sixty (60) Days before the 

effective date of the termination.  If County terminates this contract, County is not 

liable for any loss of profits anticipated by Contractor.  Contractor may terminate 

this contract on the anniversary of the contract by giving the County notice of 

termination at least one hundred and eighty (180) Days before the effective date 

of the termination. 

 

20.2 Termination for Default.  Any unauthorized use or disclosure of Case Information  

  is a breach of the contract that may result in the immediate termination of the  

 contract. Failure by a contractor or subcontractor to subcontract without 

 complying with the County HUB Procurement Program is a breach of contract.  

 Failure by either party to this contract to perform its obligations under this 

 contract is a breach of this contract.   Either party may terminate this Contract for 

 the failure of the other party to perform any specified breach or any other material 

 provision of this Contract by delivering Notice of termination for default. A party 

 may not terminate for default if the party was a contributing cause of the failure to 

 perform. The Contract terminates immediately when the defaulting party receives 

 that Notice. If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
28 of 125



Page 29 of 49 

 

 profits anticipated by Contractor. 

 

 20.3 Funding Out.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the   

  Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract during the budget  

  planning and adoption process for the next County fiscal year, County may   

  terminate this Contract after giving Contractor twenty (20) Days’ notice that this  

  contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

 

20.4 Gratuities.  County may terminate this contract if it is found that gratuities of any 

kind including entertainment or gifts were offered or given by the Contractor or 

any agent or representative of the Contractor, to any County official or employee 

with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect to this contract.  If 

this contract is terminated by the County pursuant to this provision, County shall 

be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover from the 

Contractor at least three times the cost incurred by Contractor in providing the 

gratuities. 

 

            20.5 Cancellation of Subcontractors.  Upon termination or receipt of notice to terminate, 

whichever occurs first, Contractor shall cancel, withdraw, or otherwise terminate 

any outstanding orders or subcontracts related solely to the performance of this 

contract, or the part of this contract to be terminated, and shall cease to incur costs 

under them.  County shall not be liable to Contractor or to Contractor's creditors for 

costs incurred after termination of this contract. 

 

21.0 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT BENEFITS    

  

21.1 In section 21.3 and Attachment D, “Is doing business” and “has done business” 

 mean: 

 

21.1.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing with a 

value of more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services 

or for the purchase of any property or property interest, either real or 

personal, either legal or equitable; or 

21.1.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money or goods, or otherwise creating or 

having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than 

$250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

21.1.3 but do not include: 

 

21.1.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key 

Contracting Person at a posted, published, or marked price 

available to the public, 

 

21.1.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
29 of 125



Page 30 of 49 

 

Person for personal, family, or household purposes in 

accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly 

situated individuals with similar risks as determined by 

Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

21.1.3.3 if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation, any 

transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made 

on behalf of Contractor by its agent, employee, or other 

representative who does not know and is not in a position that 

he or she should have known about the Contract. 

 

21.2 In section 23.3 and the Attachment D, “Key Contracting Person” means any person 

or business listed in Attachment A to the Ethics Affidavit.    

 

21.3 Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all 

performance by Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all 

consideration, paid to Contractor pursuant to this Contract if Contractor 

 

21.3.1 was doing business with a Key Contracting Person when this Contract was 

executed, 

 

21.3.2 had done business with a Key Contracting Person during the year 

immediately before execution of this Contract, 

 

21.3.3 or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after 

execution of this Contract and before full performance of it. 

 

21.4 Contractor shall give County notice if the Contractor does business with any Key 

Contracting Person at any time after execution of this Contract and before full 

performance of it within twenty (20) Days Contractor begins doing business. 

 

22.0 SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

22.1 Time is of the Essence.  Timing of performance of the Services and of delivery of 

all deliverables is of the essence.  If delivery or completion dates cannot be met, 

Contractor must inform the Project Manager immediately.  Providing this 

information does not change the delivery or completion dates unless this Contract 

is amended. 

 

 22.2 Force Majeure.  “Force Majeure” means any cause generally recognized under 

Texas law as constituting impossible conditions.  Neither party is financially liable 

to the other party for delays or failures in contract performance caused by Force 

Majeure.  These delays or failures to perform extend the period of performance for a 

period of time equal to the subsistence of the impossible conditions.  If Force 

Majeure conditions exist, the party affected by them shall give the other party notice 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
30 of 125



Page 31 of 49 

 

within five (5) Working Days after the conditions begin.  If timely Notice is 

impractical due to the Force Majeure conditions, then the party must provide Notice 

in as timely a manner as practicable.  If Notice is not provided timely, the party 

experiencing Force Majeure waives it as a defense. 

 

22.3 Retained Right of Management.  Nothing in this Contract is intended to or may 

operate as a bar to County’s continuing right to oversee the performance 

delegated in this contract in order to protect its interests in these matters.  This 

paragraph shall not reduce the compensation received by Contractor under this 

contract. 

 

22.4 Non-Exclusivity.  As a part of this contract, the parties understand that Contractor 

may provide services outside this contract as it sees fit at those times when 

Contractor is not obligated to County and there is no conflict with County 

interests.  The parties also understand that County is free to have more than one 

contractor providing the type of services included in this contract. 

 

22.5 Execution of Other Documents.  All parties shall promptly and duly execute and 

deliver to the other further documents and assurances and take actions that a party 

may reasonably request to more fully carry out the intent and purpose of this 

Contract.  

 

23.0 NOTICE 
 

23.1 Written Notice.  All notices between the parties and related to this contract shall 

be given to the other party in writing.  If a notice is delivered in person to the 

address in this section 23.2 for the party to whom the notice is given, that notice is 

deemed to have been given immediately.  If a notice is placed in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, 

addressed to the address in this section 23.2 for the party to whom the notice is 

given, that notice is deemed to have been given on the third (3
rd

) Working Day 

following mailing.  

 

 23.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes and notices under this  

  contract is: 

 

  Purchasing Agent: 

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor)  

Travis County Purchasing Agent  

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

With copies to (registered or certified mail, not required): 

 

Travis County Tax Assessor Collector  

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
31 of 125



Page 32 of 49 

 

Travis County Centralized Collections 

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 23.3 Contractor Address.  The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this 

contract and for all notices hereunder shall be: 

 

  Michael T. Vallandingham 

  The Terrace II 

  2700 Via Fortuna Drive, Suite 400   

  Austin, Texas 78746 

 

23.4 Change of Address.  Each party may change its address for notice by giving 

notice of the new address.  County and Contractor shall give notice to each other 

of any change in its address, including a change in the person to whom attention is 

directed, within fifteen (15) Days of the change. 

 

24.0 INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT 
 

 24.1 Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all 

obligations under this contract are performable in Travis County, Texas. 

 

 24.2 Survival of Provisions.  Conditions and covenants of this Contract which by their 

terms are performable after the termination of this Contract shall survive such 

termination and remain fully performable. 

 

 24.3 Interpretational Guidelines 

 

 24.3.1 Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses.  This contract shall not be 

interpreted to include anything that is effective as a waiver of sovereign 

immunity or any affirmative defenses available to County. 

 

 24.3.2 Entire Agreement.  This Contract which is composed of all Parts and the 

Contract Attachments listed in this subsection contains the entire agreement 

between County and Contractor related to the subject matter of this Contract.  

If County and Contractor made any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, 

or representations that County and Contractor have not expressly stated in 

this contract, those prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 

representations are null and void.  The attachments listed in this subsection 

are hereby made a part of this Contract and constitute promised 

performances by Contractor throughout this contract: 

 

   24.3.2.1 Attachment A – Collection Rate Summary Table    

 

 24.3.2.2 Attachment B – Description of Services, Schedules for 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
32 of 125



Page 33 of 49 

 

Completion and Report Deliverables, including parts of 

Proposal 

 

 24.3.2.3 Attachment C – Certification regarding Debarment, 

Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for 

Covered Contracts     

 

   24.3.2.4 Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 

 

 24.3.2.5 Order of Priority of Contract Attachments and Parts.  If there 

is a conflict between the parts or the attachments or both, the 

conflict is resolved as follows: 

 

 24.3.2.5.1 Part II overrides all Attachments and Part III. 

  

 24.3.2.5.2 Part III overrides all Attachments. 

   

 24.3.2.5.3 Attachment A overrides Attachments B,C, 

and D. 

 

 24.3.2 Severability. If any portion of this contract is ruled invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the contract shall remain valid and 

binding. 

 

 24.4 Number and Gender.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, words of any 

gender are construed to include the other two genders and words in singular and 

plural are construed to include the other. 

 

 24.5 Headings.  The headings and titles throughout this contract are included only to 

make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection and 

are not to be used in construing this contract. 

 

24.6 Computation of Time.  In computing a time period under this contract, exclude 

the first Day and include the last Day.  If the last Day does not occur on a 

Working Day, the period is extended until the next Working Day after the last 

Day.  Commissioners Court usually designates the following as holidays: 

 

New Year’s Day (January 1
st
 or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (3
rd

 Monday in January) 

President’s Day (3
rd

 Monday in February) 

Memorial Day (4
th

 Monday in May) 

Independence Day (July 4
th

 or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 

Labor Day (1
st
 Monday in September) 

Veteran’s Day (November 11
th

 or Monday after, if it falls on a weekend) 

Thanksgiving Day (4
th

 Thursday AND Friday in November) 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
33 of 125



Page 34 of 49 

 

Christmas Season (December 25
th

 AND either Day before or Day after 

whichever allows a four Day weekend, if possible) 

 

25.0   GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

    

25.1  "Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor or her designee.  

 

25.2  “Commissioners Court” means Travis County Commissioners Court.  

 

25.3  “County” means Travis County, Texas 

 

25.4 “County Building” means any County owned buildings and does not include 

buildings leased by County. 

 

25.5 “Day” means calendar day.  

 

25.6  “Fines and Fees” means the following:  

 

25.6.1 For any case referred to the Contractor to which a Statutory Fee applies, 

the outstanding balance of the following components: 

 

25.6.1.1 the fine for committing the offense,  

 

25.6.1.2 mandated/approved court costs/fees, and  

 

25.6.1.3 the collection fee, and   

 

25.6.2 For any case referred to the Contractor to which a Statutory Fee does not 

apply, the outstanding balance of the following components: 

 

25.6.2.1  the fine for committing the offense, and  

 

25.6.2.2  mandated/approved court costs/fees. 

 

25.7 “Historically Underutilized Business” or “HUB” means any entity or association  

formed to make a profit in which one (1) or more persons who are educationally or 

economically disadvantaged because of their identification as members of one of the 

following groups: African Americans, Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific 

Americans, Native Americans or Women of any ethnicity have the following rights: 

 

25.7.1 own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of shares or other 

equitable securities and have incidents of ownership, including an interest 

in profit and loss, equivalent to the percentage of capital, equipment or 

expertise contributed to the business where ownership is measured as 

though the community property interest of a spouse is the separate 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
34 of 125



Page 35 of 49 

 

property of that spouse, if both spouses certify in writing that the non-

participating spouse relinquishes control over his or her spouse, and his or 

her community property, and not as if it is subject to the community 

property interest of the other spouse;  and   

 

25.7.1 have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active participation in the 

control, operation and management of the business's affairs; where control 

means having recognized ultimate control over all day-to-day decisions 

affecting the business, and is be known to, and at least tacitly 

acknowledged in day-to-day operations by employees of the business and 

by those with whom business is conducted, and holding a title 

commensurate with that control.   

 

25.8 “Purchasing Agent” means the Travis County Purchasing Agent.  

 

25.9 “Statutory Fee” means the fee for collection authorized under Article 103.0031, 

Code of Criminal Procedure. 

 

25.10 “TCCC” means the Travis County Central Collections, a special unit in the Tax 

Assessor-Collector’s Office.  

 

25.11 “Working Day” means Monday through Friday except for Days that County has 

designed as holidays. 

 

25.0 EXEMPTION FROM COUNTY PURCHASING ACT 
 

 25.1 Pursuant to Section 262.024 of the Texas Local Government Code, the 

Commissioners Court hereby orders this contract exempt from the requirements 

established by Section 262.023 of the Texas Local Government Code because it is a 

contract for personal or professional services. 

 

26.0  DUPLICATE ORIGINALS.   

 

26.1 This contract will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed 

by both parties. 

  

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
35 of 125



Page 36 of 49 

 

 

27.0 LEGAL AUTHORITY   

 27.1 Those signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing him or her or 

themselves as signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor warrant and guarantee 

that he, she or they have been duly authorized by Contractor to sign this contract 

on behalf of Contractor and to bind Contractor validly and legally to all terms, 

performances, and provisions in this contract.  If Contractor later alleges that this 

person lacks such authority, County may immediately terminate this Contract. 

 

LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP 

 

 

By:                                               ______________ 

 Michael T. Vallandingham    Date 

 Its Duly Authorized Agent 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY               

 

 

By:                                               ______________ 

 Samuel T. Biscoe    Date 

 Travis County Judge 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY APPROVALS: 

 

 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

   

                                                                  

Assistant County Attorney    Date   

 

Funds Certified By: 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor   Date 

 

Compliance with Purchasing Law and Policy Confirmed:                                                 

 

____________________________________  ______________________________                                                                                 

Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent  Date:                                          

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
36 of 125



Page 37 of 49 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

PORTIONS OF CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL 

 

  

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
37 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
38 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
39 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
40 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
41 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
42 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
43 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
44 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
45 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
46 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
47 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
48 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
49 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
50 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
51 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
52 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
53 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
54 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
55 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
56 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
57 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
58 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
59 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
60 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
61 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
62 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
63 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
64 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
65 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
66 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
67 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
68 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
69 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
70 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
71 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
72 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
73 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
74 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
75 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
76 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
77 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
78 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
79 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
80 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
81 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
82 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
83 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
84 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
85 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
86 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
87 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
88 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
89 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
90 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
91 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
92 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
93 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
94 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
95 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
96 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
97 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
98 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
99 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
100 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
101 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
102 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
103 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
104 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
105 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
106 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
107 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
108 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
109 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
110 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
111 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
112 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
113 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
114 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
115 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
116 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
117 of 125



DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
118 of 125



Exhibit A: HUB Declaration & EEO Policies

ATTACHMENT 3
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND

VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential
contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal
regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered
contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to
both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the
following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this contract was entered into. If it is later determined that the potential [contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies,
including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this
certification is submitted if at any time the potential contractor learns that the certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,”
“person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this certification
have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal niles
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed
covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any subcontract with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency,
and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract?

XyF NO

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submittIng this certification that it will include this
certification titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts” without modification, in all covered
subcontracts; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred,
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its
covered subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

iIcJ)4rger (ogg’
1:& Saiiipsoii. I

Al ORAl ThAT LAW

L,P
8 Proposa’ for Travis County I RFS #1401 -003-ML Exhibit A

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
119 of 125



RFS #1401-003-ML

ATTACHMENT 1

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT
STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

Date:

__________________________________________________________

Name ofAffiant: Douglas Steven Bird
Title ofAffiant: Partner
Business Name of Offeror: Linebarger Gocigan Blair & Sampson, LLP
County of Offeror: Travis
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offerer.
2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.
3. Afliant can read the Englishlanguage.
4. Offeror has received the list ofkey contracting persons associated with this Request for

Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A.
5. Afliant has personally read Exhibit A to this Affidavit.
6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit A with whom Offeror

is doing business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the
date of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in Exhibit B.

Signature of Affiant

Ihe Terrace Il, 2700 Via Fortuna Drive, Suite 400
Austin, Texas 78746

Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by on 3 , 20

Notary Public, State of Texas

T ed or printed name of notary My commission expires:

PEGGY J. BARNE1T
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

June 1,2016

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
120 of 125



Page 40 of 49 

 

EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT D 

LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

April 17, 2008 

 
 Name of Individual Name of Business 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated 

 

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe MHMR 

Executive Assistant  Cheryl Brown 

Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant David Salazar 

Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis 

Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital 

Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez 

Executive Assistant Sue Spears 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd* 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant 

Executive Assistant  Sara Krause* 

Executive Assistant  Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant  Peter Einhorn 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty* 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charlyn Daugherty Consultant 

Executive Assistant Bob Moore* 

Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow* 

Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner* 

Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gómez 

Executive Assistant Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant Norma Guerra 

County Tax Assessor-Collector Nelda Wells Spears 

Chief Deputy Tax Assessor-Collector Dusty Knight 

County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter  

County Auditor  Nicki Riley 

County Executive, Administrative Vacant 

County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder  

County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby 

County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri Fleming 

County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.   

County Executive,  Justice & Public Safety,  Roger Jefferies 

Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.  

Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo 

Director, Records Mg’t & Communications Steven Broberg 

Travis County Attorney  David Escamilla 

First Assistant County Attorney  Steve Capelle 

Executive Assistant, Civil Division James Collins 

Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols 

Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
121 of 125



Page 41 of 49 

 

 Name of Individual Name of Business 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated   

 

Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Director, Transactions Division  John Hille 

Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford 

Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn  

Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt  

Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division Jennifer Kraber* 

Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 1 Judge Yvonne M. Williams 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 2 Judge Glenn Bass 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 3 Judge Susan Steeg 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4 Judge Raul Gonzalez 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 5 Judge Herb Evans 

Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry  

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villarreal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB  

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rebecca Gardner   

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis 

HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist Betty Chapa 

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
122 of 125



Page 42 of 49 

 

HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant 

 

FORMER EMPLOYEES 
       

 Name of Individual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration   

Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/31/14 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14 

Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14 

Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/14 

Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/14 

 

* Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

 

        

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
123 of 125



RFS #1401-003-ML

r

[
L

EXHIBIT B TO ATTACHMENT 1 r
DISCLOSURE -

L
Offeror acknowledges that Offeror is doing business or has done business during the 365 day
period immediately prior to the date on which this contract is made with the following key [contracting persons and warrants that these are the only such key contracting persons: -

Bruce Todd

Elizabeth Christian

If no one is listed above, Offeror warrants that Offeror is not doing business and has not done
business during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date on which this Request for
Services response is made with any key contracting person.

C
C

DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
124 of 125



 

 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

 

 

Collection Rate Summary:  
Summary based on amount collected, referred amount, age of case and time needed to collect payment. 

 

# Days from 

Offense Date to 

Referral Date 

to Contractor 

 

Days from the date the case is received by Contractor. 

 0 – 60 Days 0 - 120 Days 0 - 180 Days 0 - 365 Days 0 -730 Days >730 Days All Cases  

< 1 year Amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for 

these cases 

Cumulative 

amount collected 

for cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

Cumulative 

amount collected 

for cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

Cumulative 

amount collected 

for cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

Cumulative 

amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for 

these cases  

Cumulative 

amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for 

these cases  

Cumulative 

Amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

≥1 to <2 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

≥2 to <3 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

≥ 3 to < 5 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

≥ 5 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

All Cases Total % 

collected within 

0-60 Days 

Total % 

collected within 

120 Days 

Total % 

collected within 

180 Days 

Total % 

collected within 

one year 

Total % 

collected within 

two years 

Total % 

collected within 

two years 

Overall rate- 

Total collected 

divided by total 

referred balance DRAFT

4400002003 
 
 
4400002003 
125 of 125



 

 

CONTRACT FOR COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT FINES AND FEES 

BETWEEN 

GILA CORPORATION, 

DOING BUSINESS AS MUNICIPAL SERVICES BUREAU, 

AND TRAVIS COUNTY 
  

 This Contract is entered into by the following parties:   

 

 Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas ("County")  

 

and 

  

Gila Corporation, doing business as Municipal Services Bureau, a corporation in Texas 

("Contractor"). 

 

PART I 

RECITALS 

 

Travis County implemented a central collections program for the Justice Courts in April, 

2006.  The title of this program is Collection of Delinquent Criminal Fines and Fees for Travis 

County Justice Courts.  This program is implemented by Travis County Central Collections 

(“TCCC”), a special unit in the Tax Assessor-Collector’s Office.   

 

TCCC collects current cases with payment plans and delinquent cases for the Justices of 

the Peace. These cases include both adjudicated and non-adjudicated cases. For delinquent Class 

C misdemeanors, the cases are sent to the TCCC after:    

1) a Failure to Appear (FTA) has been issued, if appropriate, or violations of 

promise to appear  

2) they have been submitted to the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) 

under the Omni FTA Program, if appropriate,  

3) a warrant is issued, if appropriate, and  

4) the Constable’s Office has had an appropriate amount of time to serve any 

warrants issued.   

 

The purpose of this contract is to provide collection services for past due or delinquent 

accounts for criminal fines and fees for the Travis County Justice of the Peace Courts both from 

cases to which the Statutory Fee may be added and from cases to which the Statutory Fee may 

not be added after TCCC has completed its initial collection efforts. 

 

 To obtain these services, County has distributed RFS # 1401-003-ML Criminal Court Fine 

and Fee Collection Services.  The services provided under this agreement are considered personal or 

professional services. 

 

 Commissioners Court of County may exempt personal and professional services from 

complying with the competitive procurement process under TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE ANN., § 262 et 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
1 of 105



 

 

seq.  Contractor will provide the professional services. 

 

The parties agree to the terms and conditions stated in this contract. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

PART II 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

1.0 CONTRACT TERM 

 

1.1 The term of this contract begins March 7, 2014, and continues for two (2) years.   

1.2 Contractor grants County three (3) one (1) year options to extend the Contract. All 

terms and conditions including the fees payable but excluding the expiration date 

of the contract term remain unchanged and in full force.  The options, if 

exercised, may be unilaterally executed by County no sooner than ninety (90) 

Days prior to the expiration of this contract and no later than the final Day of the 

contract term.  Failure by County to exercise any of the above options to extend 

shall require this contract to expire at the end of the then current contract term.  

The total term of this contract, including all extensions as a result of exercised 

options, shall not exceed five (5) years. 

 

2.0  DISTRIBUTION OF CASES 

 

            2.1 Contractor acknowledges that County has contracted with more than one respondent 

to the Request for Services #1401-003-ML. Contractor acknowledges and expressly 

agrees that it is not possible to distribute the cases to be sent to a vendor for 

collection in a manner that will result in each respondent with which County 

contracts receiving exactly the same number of cases with exactly the same amount 

of funds to be collected on each case and that many details related to the cases and 

their collectability may differ.  Contractor further acknowledges and expressly 

agrees that because the factors to be considered in distributing the cases are applied 

to each batch of cases, it may not be possible to achieve all or even most of the goals 

in each batch.   

 

           2.2 Contractor expressly acknowledges that distributing the cases to be sent to a vendor 

for collection by means of a computer program that considers the following factors 

as goals for each batch distributed is an equitable way to distribute cases: 

 

            2.2.1 Each individual who has one or more cases to be sent to a vendor for 

collection is given a unique PID (personal identification number) and all 

cases for a single PID are referred to the same contractor for both efficiency 

of collections and good public relations. 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
2 of 105



 

 

            2.2.2 Cases to be sent to a vendor for collection are distributed to each contractor 

in each batch so that the total amount collectable from all cases distributed to 

each contractor is not significantly different from the amount collectable 

from cases distributed to other contractors. 

 

            2.2.3 To the extent possible based on the number of cases in each batch and 

amounts due on each case, after the amount collectable is considered, cases 

to be sent to a vendor for collection are distributed to each contractor in each 

batch so that the total number of cases distributed to each contractor is as 

similar as possible with a goal that the number not be significantly different. 

 

            2.2.4 To the extent possible based on the number of cases in each age category 

below that are in each batch and the amount due on each case, cases to be 

sent to a vendor for collection are distributed to each vendor in each batch so 

that the number of cases distributed to each contractor in each of the 

following age brackets and the amount due on each case is as similar as 

possible with a goal that the number and amount not be significantly 

different where age is determined by the date of the offense resulting in the 

fine or fee: 

 

2.2.4.1  less than 365 Days 

2.2.4.2  1 to 2 years 

2.2.4.3  2-3 years 

2.2.4.4  3-5 years 

2.2.4.5  cases more than 5 years  and after June 18, 2003  

2.2.4.6 cases before June 18, 2003 or to which the Statutory Fee does 

not apply 

 

            2.2.5 To the extent possible based on the number of cases to be sent to a vendor 

for collection by each justice court participating in the Collection of 

Delinquent Criminal Fines and Fees for Travis County Justice Courts 

program, the number of cases and amount collectable distributed to each 

contractor from each court is as similar as possible with a goal that the 

number and amount not be significantly different. 

 

            2.3 Contractor agrees not to object to any distribution that is accomplished based on a 

computer program that is consistent with the factors listed in 2.2. 

 

            2.4 Quarterly, TCCC shall review the distribution of cases to be sent to a vendor for 

collection that has been made in the previous quarter and, if there is evidence of 

statistically significant inequity in the cumulative distribution, TCCC shall make 

whatever adjustments to the distribution that it considers necessary and appropriate.   

 

 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
3 of 105



 

 

3.0 LIAISON 

 

3.1 The Title of this Program is Collection of Delinquent Criminal Fines and Fees for 

Travis County Justice Courts.  County appoints TCCC to act as the liaison 

between the Justices of the Peace and the Contractor for conveying most 

directions under this contract.  

 

3.2 Appointment of Liaison.  County appoints TCCC to act as the liaison between the 

Justices of the Peace and the Contractor for conveying most directions under this 

contract. 

 

3.3 Request for Information.  Contractor may communicate all requests for direction 

and factual information relating to services performed pursuant to this contract to 

TCCC and may rely on all factual information supplied by TCCC in response to 

these requests.  However, TCCC shall not serve as the agent of Travis County or the 

Travis County Commissioners Court or any Travis County Justice of the Peace for 

any other purpose than conveying factual information. 

 

3.4 Questions.  Contractor shall be available to the Commisioners Court, the Travis 

County Judge and Commissioners, the Justices of the Peace, or their 

representatives at any time for questions about the services being performed under 

this Contract.   

 

4.0       ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR    
 

4.1 Contractor acknowledges that that the Justices of the Peace in Travis County have 

the sole and absolute authority to determine which cases and criminal complaints 

are referred to TCCC for collection and whether these cases and criminal 

complaints are later referred to Contractor. Contractor acknowledges that the 

Justices of the Peace in Travis County have the sole and absolute authority to 

determine which cases and criminal complaints are recalled from collection by 

Contractor and the cases and criminal complaints for which the duration of the 

collection services are extended. Contractor acknowledges that each court that 

county authorizes to participate in this Contract has absolute discretion as to what 

policies and procedures Contractor must follow in providing collection services.   

TCCC acts as the liaison between the Justices of the Peace and the Contractor for 

conveying most directions under this contract.   
 

5.0 CASE REFERRAL CRITERIA 

 

5.1 County makes no guarantee about the number, type, dollar amount, or 

collectability of fines and/or fees from cases that are referred to Contractor.  

TCCC may refer the following types of cases to Contractor for collection: 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
4 of 105



 

 

5.1.1 Class C Criminal Misdemeanor cases which have been adjudicated and 

have delinquent fines and/or fees, and 

 

5.1.2 Class C Criminal Misdemeanor cases which have not been adjudicated 

which may include a charge of Failure to Appear or Violation of Promise 

to Appear. 

 

5.2 TCCC may refer cases to the Contractor on a daily basis, Monday-Friday, 

excluding County holidays. 

 

5.3 TCCC may at any time, and for any reason, recall a case or group of cases from 

Contractor.   

 

6.0 COLLECTION FEE  
 

6.1 The outstanding balance on cases referred to Contractor by TCCC will include the 

Statutory Fee of 30% when allowed by the Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 

103.0031.  
 

6.2 Contractor shall not increase the outstanding balance on cases referred to 

Contractor by TCCC when the Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031 does 

not authorize a collection fee for that case. 

 

6.3 Contractor shall comply with all statutes in effect at the time of collection that are 

related to services under this contract and Contractor shall not collect any fees on 

cases referred to Contractor by TCCC in excess of the fees allowed by all statutes 

in effect and related to services under this contract.   
 

7.0   ACTIVITY OF CONTRACTOR  
 

            7.1 Contractor shall facilitate locating defendants and obtaining payment of fines and 

fees within two years after the date on which the case is referred to Contractor.  If 

Contractor is unable to locate the defendants within two years, Contract shall 

continue to Contractor shall facilitate locating defendants and obtaining payment 

of Fines and Fees as long as the contract continues.  Contractor must correctly 

update each case from the daily transmission from TCCC. 

 

            7.2 Before correspondence is sent to any defendant, Contractor shall obtain approval 

of the format and language of all written correspondence regularly sent to 

defendants directly from the Justice of the Peace who referred the case and 

Contractor shall notify the Justice of the Peace who referred the case if issues 

arise in the correspondence with a defendant related to the Fair Debt Collection 

Practices Act. 
 

7.3 Contractor shall not initiate contact with the defendant in person outside of the 

Contractor’s place of business or County’s place of business or the Justice of the 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
5 of 105



 

 

Peace’s place of business. 

 

7.4 Contractor shall use due diligence, reasonable, and ethical collections methods, 

and employ only lawful means to collect the Fines and Fees referred to the 

Contractor by TCCC. 

 

7.5 If Contractor receives full payment of a case balance, Contractor shall notify 

TCCC of receipt of the full payment with all information necessary to identify the 

case by 6 a.m. on the first Working Day following receipt of the payment so that, 

if applicable, a DPS OMNI Program flag can be removed from the defendant’s 

driver’s license and an outstanding warrant can be recalled. 

 

7.6 If TCCC refers any cases to which the collection fee authorized under the Code of 

Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031 may not be added to the entire outstanding 

balance, Contractor shall not apply a collection fee to any portion of the 

outstanding balance in excess of fine balance outstanding.  Despite the limitation 

on the collection fee, Contractor shall collect the entire Fine and Fee balance. 

 

7.7 Contractor shall cease any and all written or telephone contacts with the defendant 

upon any of the following events: 

 

7.7.1 full payment of the Fines and Fees, 

 

7.7.2 the recall of a case from the Contractor by TCCC, 

 

7.7.3 the termination of this contract.  

 

7.8 Contractor shall maintain full electronic compatibility with County’s current 

computer systems and with any other system that County may implement during 

the term of this contract.  Contractor is responsible for and shall bear all financial 

costs of ensuring full electronic compatibility with County’s current systems and 

with any other system that County may implement during the term of this 

contract. 

 

7.9 Contractor shall make and maintain books, documents, and other relevant 

information pertaining to the collections carried out and the expenses incurred 

under this contract and make them available for inspection, audit or reproduction 

by any authorized representative of County or any external auditor representing 

County. 

 

7.10 Contractor shall pay all costs associated with all its collection efforts and 

activities under this contract and its collection efforts.  Contractor is responsible 

for costs and losses incurred as a result of any insufficient fund checks and credit 

card reversals.  Contractor may pursue collection of any dishonored payments and 

costs associated with these on its own behalf. 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
6 of 105



 

 

 

8.0 DEFENDANT PAYMENTS  
 

8.1 Initially, Contractor shall direct defendants to make all payments of Fines and 

Fees to TCCC. 

 

8.2 When, despite these directions, Contractor receives a payment from a defendant 

by any means, including in person, by mail, through a telephone credit card or 

through an EFT transaction, no later than the end of the first Working Day after 

receipt, Contractor shall pay County through TCCC by means of an Automated 

Clearing House transaction the full amount received without an offset for 

Statutory Fees payable to Contractor or any other deduction, and send TCCC a 

spreadsheet report to the current email address provided by TCCC with the 

following information for each defendant payment forwarded to TCCC that Day: 

 

 8.2.1 Amount to be applied to each case, 

 

 8.2.2 Case number, and 

 

 8.2.3 Name of defendant. 

 

8.3 If, at any time during the contract, County, at its sole discretion, determines that it 

is feasible or cost-effective or necessary as a result of either County’s case 

management and accounting systems or best practices for Contractor to become 

the primary recipient of payments on cases referred to Contractor by TCCC, and 

County gives Contractor at least 30 Days written notice of its determination, 

Contractor shall make all changes necessary to become the primary recipient of 

payments on cases referred to Contractor by TCCC after the thirtieth (30
th

) Day 

after receipt of the written notice, and direct defendants to make all subsequent 

payments of criminal Fines and Fees to TCCC.  

  

9.0 BUSINESS RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

            9.1 In this section, “Collection Records” includes at least receipts, copies of checks, 

money orders and other payments received, account receivable records, bank 

account records and other documents of business related to providing the collection 

services.   

  

9.2 Contractor must maintain Travis County Collection Records for each Day of 

collection period in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, a full, 

complete, and accurate permanent record and account of all collections and of all 

sums of money paid or payable for or on account or arising out of collections 

conducted on behalf of County.   

 

9.3 Contractor must preserve Collection Records and supporting documents for thirty-

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
7 of 105



 

 

six (36) months after the expiration of the contract or until an audit is completed and 

all requested questions arising from it are resolved, whichever occurs later. The 

records will be retained beyond the third year if an audit is in progress or the 

findings of a completed audit have not been resolved satisfactorily. 

 

9.4 Access.  At reasonable times and on reasonable notice, Contractor shall make 

available to County or its duly authorized representatives any information and 

documentation in Contractor’s possession or control, which directly pertains to 

Services for audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for as long as 

Contractor has access to the information and documentation. 

  

9.5 Duplication of information and documentation.  Contractor shall provide copies of 

information and documentation to County upon written request to Contractor at a 

cost based on the rates applicable to copies provided pursuant to the Texas Public 

Information Act. 

 

9.6 Inclusion of Provisions.  Contractor shall include provisions set forth in 9.0 of this 

contract in all subcontracts. 

 

10.0 INFORMATION IN CASE FILES OR USED IN COLLECTION OF CRIMINAL 

FINES AND FEES 

 

10.1 In 10.1 through 10.4, “Case Information” means all information about cases 

referred to Contractor by TCCC and contained in the court file of the Justice of 

the Peace, or otherwise supplied to the Contractor by the Justice of the Peace or 

TCCC. 

 

10.2 Contractor acknowledges that the Justice of the Peace from whose court a case 

originated has the sole authority under Texas Government Code, title 2, subtitle 

G, appendix B, Code of Judicial Conduct, Canon 3 (c)(5), Rule 12 to determine 

what Case Information may be released. 

 

10.3 Unless given express written consent by the Justice of the Peace who is currently 

presiding over the case Contractor shall: 

 

10.3.1  keep confidential all Case Information, 

 

10.3.2 not disclose any   to any person associated with Contractor or any third 

party who is not directly involved in providing the services under this 

contract, 

 

10.3.3 not include any Case Information in any data base that is shared with any 

third party or any person associated with Contractor who is not directly 

involved in providing the services under this contract, 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
8 of 105



 

 

10.3.4 not use any Case Information for any purpose other than the collection of 

the delinquent criminal fines and fees,   

 

10.3.5 not sell, trade, or otherwise provide any Case Information in any data base 

that is shared with any entity not a party to this contract or any person 

associated with Contractor who is not directly involved in providing the 

services under this contract.   

 

10.4 Any unauthorized use or disclosure of Case Information is a breach of the 

contract and may result in the immediate termination of the contract. 

 

10.5 Required Provision for Subcontractors.  If a subcontractor provides services in 

relation to the contract, Contractor shall include provisions in its contract with the 

subcontractor that require the subcontractor to comply with the confidentiality 

provisions in this section 10.0 of this contract.     

 

11.0 CHANGES OF STATUS IN CASES: ACTIVE TO INACTIVE TO ACTIVE 

 

11.1 Contractor acknowledges that a case is no longer delinquent when any of the 

following actions occur: 

 

11.1.1 the Justice of the Peace orders a payment plan;  

 

11.1.2 the defendant posts a bond;  

 

11.1.3 the Justice of the Peace extends the defendant’s time to pay;  

 

11.1.4 the Justice of the Peace dismisses the case;  

 

11.1.5 the Justice of the Peace orders community service, restitution, or full 

credit for time served in lieu of payment; or  

 

11.1.6 the Justice of the Peace makes any order that in the interest of justice 

results in the case no longer being delinquent.  

 

11.2 Contractor acknowledges that a case may become delinquent when any of the 

following actions occur: 

 

11.2.1 the Justice of the Peace rescinds a payment plan;  

 

11.2.2 the Justice of the Peace revokes or forfeits a bond; 

 

11.2.3 an extension of the defendant’s time to pay has expired;  

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
9 of 105



 

 

 

11.2.4 the Justice of the Peace rescinds a defendant’s right to perform community 

service, or provide restitution for failure to conform to the terms of a court 

order; or for any other reason or  

 

11.2.5 the Justice of the Peace makes any order that in the interest of justice 

results in the case being delinquent.  

 

11.3 If information in the daily transmission from TCCC indicates that the delinquent 

status of any case referred to Contractor by TCCC has changed, Contractor shall 

correctly update each case based on the information in the daily transmission.  

Contractor shall initiate, deactivate, reactivate, or return cases to TCCC as 

appropriate based on the information provided in the daily transmission from 

TCCC.  

 

11.4 If information in the daily transmission from TCCC indicates that a case referred 

to Contractor by TCCC is no longer delinquent, Contractor shall cease all 

collection efforts as soon as Contractor receives the transmission from TCCC.  

 

11.5 If information in the daily transmission from TCCC indicates that a case referred 

to Contractor by TCCC again becomes delinquent, Contractor shall re-activate the 

case and provide the collection services under this contract. 

 

12.0 CONTRACTOR REPORTS 
 

12.1 Contractor shall provide a monthly report to each Justice of the Peace about the 

cases referred to Contractor that originated in the court of that Justice of the Peace 

no later than the 10
th

 of each month for the preceding calendar month.  The report 

shall be in paper format unless Contractor and the Justice of the Peace determine 

that there is an electronic format and delivery method that is acceptable to the 

Justice of the Peace and the County Information Technology staff responsible for 

network security.  If an acceptable electronic format and delivery method is 

confirmed in writing by Justice of the Peace and County, Contractor may 

commence reports in that manner.  This report to each Justice of the Peace shall 

include at least the following information about each case from the court of that 

Justice of the Peace: 

 

12.1.1 the total number of contacts attempted (written and telephonic) for each 

case,  

 

12.1.2 the total number of cases that have been deactivated, reactivated or 

returned to the Justice of the Peace since the previous report,  

 

12.1.3 the amount collected for each case,  

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
10 of 105



 

 

12.1.4 the outstanding balance for each case for which a payment was collected 

and remitted to TCCC, and 

 

12.1.5  if no collections are completed during any month, a negative collection 

report. 

 

12.2 Contractor shall provide monthly reports to TCCC about all cases referred to 

Contractor no later than the 10
th

 of each month for the preceding calendar month.  

This report shall include copies of the reports provided to each Justice of the 

Peace and a summary report of the combined totals for all cases referred to 

Contractor through TCCC including at least the following information: 

 

12.2.1 the total number of contacts attempted (written and telephonic) for each 

case for all cases referred by County,  

 

12.2.2 the total number of referred cases that have been deactivated, reactivated 

or returned to the County since the previous report,   

 

12.2.3 the amounts collected for each case for all cases referred by County,  

 

12.2.4 the outstanding balance for each case for which a payment was collected 

and remitted to TCCC for all cases referred by County, and  

 

12.2.5 if no collections are completed during any month, a negative collection 

report. 

 

12.3 Contractor shall provide a quarterly Collection Rate Summary Table to each 

Justice of the Peace about the cases referred to Contractor by TCCC for that 

Justice of the Peace no later than the 10
th

 of April, July, October, and January for 

the preceding calendar quarter.  The Collection Rate Summary Table shall be in 

the form in Attachment A.  The table shall include total collections for cases 

referred for each Justice of the Peace. 

 

12.4 Contractor shall provide a quarterly Collection Rate Summary Table to TCCC 

about all cases referred to Contractor by TCCC no later than the 10
th

 of April, 

July, October, and January for the preceding calendar quarter.  The Collection 

Rate Summary Table shall be in the form in Attachment A.  The table shall 

include total collections for all cases referred by TCCC. 

 

12.5 TCCC shall provide the daily transmission to Contractor in a County-selected 

electronic format.  

 

12.6     Addresses For Reports To Justices Of The Peace 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
11 of 105



 

 

 12.6.1 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct One 

at the following address: 

Judge Yvonne M. Williams (or her successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct One 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.2 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Two 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Glenn Bass (or his successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Two 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.3 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Three 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Susan K. Steeg (or her successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Three 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.4 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Four 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Raừl Arturo González (or his successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Four 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 12.6.5 Contractor shall submit the reports to the Justice of the Peace, Precinct Five 

at the following address: 

 

Judge Herb Evans (or his successor in office) 

Justice of the Peace, Precinct Five 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

   

 12.7  Address for Reports to TCCC.  Contractor shall submit the reports to TCCC at the 

following address: 

 

Travis County Tax Assessor Collector 

Travis County Centralized Collections  

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
12 of 105



 

 

P.O. Box 1748   

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

12.8 Questions.  Contractor shall be available to the Commissioners Court, the Travis 

County Judge and Commissioners, the Justices of the Peace, or their representatives 

at any time for questions about the services being performed under this Contract. 

 

PART III 

GERNERAL PROVISIONS 

 

13.0     CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

13.1 Timeliness of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner. 

 

13.2 Cooperation and Coordination.  Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with 

County staff and other entities as reasonable and necessary and as required by the 

Project Manager. 

 

13.3 Personnel Used.  Contractor expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this 

Contract, County has relied on the representations of Contractor about the persons 

who will be performing the Services and their qualifications. Contractor shall ensure 

that all work done is done by the employees or members of Contractor that are 

presented as performing the Services in Contractor’s proposal. If County is 

dissatisfied with the performance of any person regularly assigned to work for 

County, this person will be replaced by a person acceptable to County.  Contractor 

shall not use any other person to provide Services unless, before providing Services, 

the Purchasing Agent approves the person at the request of Project Manager. 

 

13.4 Professional Qualifications.  At all times during Contract, Contractor shall maintain 

in good standing its professional license and accreditations applicable to Services. 

Contractor shall perform all acts reasonably necessary to maintain and improve its 

professional competence and training.  Contractor shall Notify County within two 

(2) Working Days if any adverse action related to its professional license and 

accreditations occurs. 

 

13.5 Right to Contractual Material.  All work products created or produced by Contractor 

as a result of Services, including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other 

appended documentation to any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related 

material are the property of the County at the time of creation. Any intellectual 

property rights granted to the County survive the termination of this Contract and 

endure for the useful life of the contractual material and other intellectual property 

rights provided. 

 

            13.6 Rights to Contractor’s Work Products.  Upon full payment, Contractor assigns to 

County any and all rights, title and interest, including, without limitation, copyrights, 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
13 of 105



 

 

trade secrets and proprietary rights to the work products developed or prepared 

specifically for County under this Contract.  The work products exclude all third 

party works and products whether or not included or embedded in the Contractor’s 

work products.  The work products are deemed to be “works made for hire” under 

the federal copyright laws.  Contractor shall give County reasonable assistance, at 

County's expense, to perfect this assignment of these rights, title and interest.  

However, if the work products include intellectual property owned or developed by 

Contractor before and independent from, its obligations under this Contract, 

Contractor retains all rights to that previous and independent product. In addition, 

Contractor retains the right to use its knowledge, experience, and know-how, 

including processes, ideas, concepts and techniques developed in the course of 

performing the Services. 

 

 13.7 Standard of Care.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, Contractor shall  

perform all Services using at least the standard of care that a reasonably prudent 

person in that profession in Travis County, Texas would use in similar 

circumstances. This Contract shall not be construed to relieve Contractor of this 

duty. 

 

 13.8 Possible Benefit to Contractor.  Contractor shall expressly advise Commissioners 

Court of any direct or indirect benefit to Contractor or any member or employee of 

Contractor that is likely to result from any actions recommended by Contractor. 

 

            13.9 Ethical Standards.  Contractor shall perform the Services and exercise all 

discretionary powers in a manner consistent with applicable standards of 

professional conduct and ethics and Contractor’s best professional judgment. 

 

            13.10  Civil Rights/ADA Compliance.  In relation to performing the Services, Contractor 

shall not discriminate against any applicant, employee, patient or other person on the 

basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or disability and provide all 

accommodations for disability required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 

            13.11 Return of County Equipment and Access Keys.  At the end of this Contract, 

Contractor shall return property of any kind, including all keys, access cards and 

other means of access to county buildings and other property that have been 

provided to it or its staff.  Contractor shall not permit its employees to take or retain 

any County property or any property of County employees. 

 

            13.12 Legal Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 

rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the performance of all Services. 

 

            13.13 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire.  If required by law, Contractor shall complete, file 

and update a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of 

the Texas Local Government Code. Contractor acknowledges that the law requires 

the County to provide access to this questionnaire on the official Travis County 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
14 of 105



 

 

website. 

 

            13.14 Certification Regarding Debarment.  Contractor shall complete and update a 

Certification Regarding Debarment on the form in Contract Attachment C whenever 

there is a change in status. 

 

14.0   CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS & 

WARRANTIES  

   

            14.1 Limit of Authority of County Representatives.  Contractor acknowledges that no 

officer, agent, employee, or representative of County has any authority to change 

this Contract, to approve assignment of any part of it, or to waive any provision of it 

unless expressly granted that specific authority by Commissioners Court. 

 

             14.2 Independent Contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is an independent 

contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, 

obligations and liabilities applicable to it as an independent contractor.  Contractor 

acknowledges that neither it nor its employees are an employee of County, and 

Contractor and its employees do not gain any rights against County pursuant to the 

County personnel policies and procedures.    

 

             14.3 No Agency Relationship.  Contractor acknowledges that it does not have the 

authority to enter into any contract in the name of County or otherwise bind County 

in any way without the express written consent of County.   County does not have 

the authority to enter into any contract in the name of Contractor or otherwise bind 

Contractor in any way without the express written consent of Contractor.  

 

             14.4 Contractor Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.  Contractor represents that all 

applicable copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property 

rights which may exist on materials used in this Contract have been adhered to, and 

warrants that the County is not liable for any infringement of those rights. 

 

             14.5 Understanding of Requirements.  Contractor represents that it has thoroughly 

examined the technical requirements, performance parameters, instructions and all 

other contract documents.  Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be 

thoroughly informed regarding technical requirements, performance parameters for 

delivery of material, equipment and/or services as required by this contract. 

 

             14.6 Financial Status.  Contractor represents that it is a duly qualified, capable, and 

otherwise bondable business entity, that it is not in receivership or contemplates 

same, and has not filed for bankruptcy. It further certifies that the company, 

corporation or partnership is not currently delinquent with respect to payment of 

property taxes within County. 

 

             14.7 Truth of Proposal.  Contractor warrants that all of the information provided in its 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
15 of 105



 

 

proposal is true and correct and that Contractor will use its best efforts to provide 

quality service to County. 

 

             14.8 Compliance with Licensure Requirements.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is 

current in payment and in good standing under all licensure requirements applicable 

to its business and the Services to be provided under this contract pursuant to all 

federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. 

  

14.9   Performance of Professional Services.  The Contractor warrants that it will 

undertake no task for which a professional license or certificate is required, unless 

Contractor or someone under Contractor's direction is appropriately licensed. If 

such licensed individual's license expires, is revoked, or is cancelled, Contractor 

shall inform the County within five (5) working Days.  Contractor shall perform 

all services and responsibilities required of the Contractor under this contract in a 

professional manner at a standard acceptable for similar services in Travis County 

and in a prompt and efficient manner.  Nothing in this contract shall be construed 

to relieve the Contractor of this duty. 

 

             14.10 Payment of Property Taxes.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor-

Collector. 

 

             14.11 Commissions.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency has been 

retained to solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, 

brokerage, or contingent fee income, supplemental income, excepting bona fide 

employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by the 

Contractor to secure business. If Contractor violates this warranty, Contractor is 

subject to termination of this Contract without recourse or compensating County for 

the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee at 

County’s discretion. 

  

             14.12 Gratuities.  Contractor warrants that Contractor and any one acting on behalf of 

Contractor has not offered or given any gratuities of any kind including 

entertainment, or gifts to any County official or employee with a view toward 

securing favorable treatment with respect of this Contract. 

 

             14.13 Lobbying with Federal Funds.  Contractor warrants that Contractor has not paid and 

will not pay, and no one else has paid or will pay on behalf of Contractor, any 

federally appropriated funds  to any person for influencing or attempting to influence 

an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or 

employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 

awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any 

federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, 

continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
16 of 105



 

 

loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

14.14 Covenant Against Contingent Fees.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling 

agency has been retained to solicit this contract upon an understanding for a 

commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide 

employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by 

the Contractor to secure business.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 

County may terminate this contract without liability, or in its discretion may, as 

applicable, add to or deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover, the full 

amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

 

15.0 RISK ALLOCATION 

 

15.1 Definition of Claim.  In sections 15.2 and 15.3, “Claim” means any negligence, 

cause of action, suit, proceeding before any administrative agency, loss, damages, or 

liability of any kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney’s 

fees. 

 

15.2 Indemnification. 

 

15.2.1 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless County, its officers, agents, 

and employees, from all Claims for injury to or death of any person, for any 

act or omission by Contractor, or for damage to any property, arising out of 

or in connection with the Services. 

 

15.2.2 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, 

agents, and employees from all Claims for damages to any person or 

property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 

existing patents, licenses, copyrights or other intellectual property rights 

applicable to materials used in and work products arising from this Contract. 

 

15.3 Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any Claim 

against Contractor or County, without regard to who brought it, Contractor shall give 

County Notice within three (3) Working Days after Contractor becomes aware of the 

Claim or threat of Claim. Unless otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish County 

copies of all pertinent papers received by Contractor regarding the Claim. 

Contractor’s Notice shall include: 

 

  15.3.1 a written description of the Claim; 

 

  15.3.2 the name and address of whoever made or threatened to make the Claim; 

 

  15.3.3 the basis of the Claim; 

 

  15.3.4 the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the Claim was instituted;  

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
17 of 105



 

 

   and  

 

  15.3.5 the name of any other persons against whom this Claim is being made or  

   threatened. 

 

 15.4 Requirement for Insurance.  Contractor shall have and maintain at least the 

minimum types of insurance listed in 15.6 the term of this Contract.  Contractor’s 

insurance must be sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor pursuant to applicable 

generally accepted business standards related to the risks associated with providing 

the Services, but not less than the minimum coverage limits listed in Part II. 

Depending on Services provided by Contractor, supplemental insurance 

requirements or alternate insurance options may apply in addition to those listed in 

Part II.  If County authorizes Contractor to subcontract Services under this Contract, 

Contractor shall either maintain insurance that covers all subcontractors and 

complies with 15.5 throughout the term of the Contract or ensure that all 

subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the work related to the Services that 

is performed by them and that their insurance complies with sections 15.4 and 15.5 

while performing work related to the Services. 

 

 15.5 General Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall comply with the following 

requirements related to insurance: 

 

 15.5.1 Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in Texas 

that have an A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor wants to 

use surplus carriers, these carriers are subject to County approval. 

 

 15.5.2 Insurance that names Travis County as an additional insured is primary for 

all claims under it. 

 

 15.5.3 Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be 

interpreted to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor. 

 

 15.5.4 Before Contractor begins Services, Contractor shall have at least the required 

insurance in force.  Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled 

or lapse and shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or 

otherwise be reduced during this Contract. Contractor is responsible for all 

premiums, deductibles, and self-insured retention. 

 

 15.5.5 Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the state-

approved form and signed by the writing agent or the carrier to the 

Purchasing Agent within ten (10) Working Days after the earlier of 

execution of the Contract by both parties, or the effective date of the 

Contract. The Certificates of Insurance must include the Travis County 

contract number, all deductibles and self-insured retention, and the following 

endorsements, if applicable: 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
18 of 105



 

 

 

   15.5.5.1 an endorsement that names Travis County as additional  

     insured where County’s interest may lie, 

 

   15.5.5.2 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for all  

     claims, 

 

   15.5.5.3 a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement 

 

   15.5.5.4 a Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation endorsement 

 

 15.5.6 Contractor shall provide replacement Certificates of Insurance to the 

Purchasing Agent within ten (10) Days of the each renewal of insurance 

during the term of this contract in compliance with Part III. 

 

 15.5.7 On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of policies and 

endorsements at no additional expense to County. 

 

 15.5.8 Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance 

requirements during any term of the Contract and to require that Contractor 

make reasonable adjustments when the Services have changed or expanded. 

 

 15.6 Minimum Coverage. Minimum insurance coverage may be written as combined 

single limits or structured using primary and excess or umbrella coverage that 

follows the form of the primary policy. Contractor acknowledges and shall maintain 

the following standard minimum insurance coverage applicable to Contractor and 

any subcontractor performing work related to Services all in compliance with Part II, 

sections 17.4 and 17.5: 

 

 15.6.1 Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the 

following requirements: 

 

 15.6.2 Coverage that is consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas 

Workers’ Compensation Act, 

 

   15.6.3 Employers’ liability limits of: 

 

    $500,000 bodily injury each accident, 

    $500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 

    $500,000 policy limit. 

 

15.6.4 Policies that are subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the 

following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

 

     Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
19 of 105



 

 

     Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 

 

15.6.5 Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 

 

   15.6.5.1Minimum limits for coverage: 

 

$500,000 per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury and 

Property Damage,   

$500,000 per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury and 

Advertisement, and    

$1,000,000 policy aggregate. 

 

 15.6.5.2Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and contains 

the following coverage or is endorsed in favor of Travis County as 

follows: 

 

    Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 

    Independent Contractor Coverage, 

    Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 

    Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 

    Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 

 

 15.6.6 Business automobile liability insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 

 

15.6.6.1  As no transportation services of any type are provided for in 

this contract, and use of motor vehicles is strictly limited to 

travel to and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal 

Auto Policy coverage with limits of $100,000 / $300,000 / 

$50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile 

Liability Insurance. 

 

 15.6.6.2 Any Policy under section 15.6.6.1 must be subject to the laws 

of the State of Texas and include the following endorsements 

in favor of Travis County: 

 

      Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), and 

Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 

9901B). 

 

 15.6.7 Professional liability / E & O insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 

 

 15.6.7.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
20 of 105



 

 

errors, or omissions and sexual harassment: 

 

       $1,000,000 per claim, and 

       $3,000,000 aggregate. 

 

 15.6.7.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and 

include the following endorsements in favor of Travis 

County: 

 

 Waiver of Subrogation (if including) in Commercial 

General insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent, 

and 

 

 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (if including) 

in Commercial General Insurance, Form CG 2404 or 

its equivalent. 

 

 

 15.6.7.3 If coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive 

date must be prior to the earlier of the date this Contract is 

signed or effective and include a three (3) year extended 

reporting period from the date this Contract ends.  The 

Certificate of Insurance must state whether the coverage is 

claims made and contain both the retroactive date of 

coverage and the extended reporting date. 

 

 15.6.7.4 Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s 

professional liability insurance shall provide Contractor with 

current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date 

of their insurance policy. 

 

  15.6.8 Blanket Crime Policy Insurance. 

 

15.6.8.1 Contractor shall provide a Blanket Crime Policy with a 

minimum coverage of $100,000.00. 

 

 15.6.8.2 If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive 

date shall be prior to the date Services begin under this 

Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever is 

earlier.  Coverage shall include a three-(3) year extended 

reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is 

terminated. The Certificate of Insurance shall clarify whether 

coverage is claims made and shall contain both the 

retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting 

period date. 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
21 of 105



 

 

 

    15.6.8.3 Additional insured status for Travis County is not required. 

 

15.7 Contractor must mail the Certificate of Insurance, and updates, submitted in 

compliance with Part IV to the following address: 

 

     Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

    Travis County Purchasing Agent 

    RFS # 1401-003-ML 

    P.O. Box 1748 

    Austin, Texas 78767 

 

16.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT   
 

16.1 Taxpayer Identification Number.  Contractor shall provide County with an Internal 

Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 

Certification that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and 

its rules and regulations before any Contract funds are payable.  

 

16.2 Posting Payments from Contractor.  Within two (2) Working Days after receipt of 

a payment and electronic spreadsheet in compliance with 8.0, TCCC shall post the 

receipts to the appropriate defendant account in the County computer system.   

 

16.3 Delayed Payment to Contractor Due to Outstanding Debt.  

 

 16.3.1  In section 16.4, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees owing to the 

 state or the County, and indebtedness arising from written agreements with 

 Texas or County for which a notice with evidence has been filed with the 

 County Auditor or Travis County Treasurer. 

 

 16.3.2  Section 154.045 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes County 

 not to draw a check on any County fund in favor of the Contractor, or its 

 agent or assignee until the Debt is paid after the Travis County Treasurer 

 notifies Contractor in writing that the Debt is outstanding.     

 

   16.3.3  If the Treasurer’s notice states that any amount owed by the County to 

 Contractor may be applied to reduce the outstanding Debt, County may 

 apply any amount County owes Contractor to the outstanding balance of the 

 Debt.   

 

 16.4 Unauthorized Invoicing.  County is not liable for any of the following:   

 

 16.4.1  Costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor before or after the 

 Contract term,   

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
22 of 105



 

 

 16.4.2  Expenses not billed to County within the applicable time limits in this 

 Contract, or   

 

   16.4.3  Any costs for activities not included as Services.   

 

 16.5 Timing of Payment Due.   For cases to which the Statutory Fee can be applied and 

  funds are collected that include the Statutory Fee, County shall pay Contractor on  

  or before the tenth (10
th

) Working Day of the month for collections posted by  

  TCCC during the previous month for cases referred to Contractor through TCCC  

  regardless of whether payments are made to Contractor, the TCCC, any Justice of  

  the Peace, or any other elected official or office authorized to accept payment of  

  Fines and Fees in each of the following circumstances: 

 

16.5.1 the full Statutory Fee as full payments are remitted to County, 

 

16.5.2 as partial payments are remitted to County a pro-rata portion of the  

  Statutory Fee,  and  
 

 16.5.3 as partial payments are remitted as a result of a payment plan managed by  

  TCCC which results after the case was referred to Contractor for   

  collection and skip tracing and is active, a pro-rata portion of the Statutory 

  Fee. 

 

 16.6 Cases on Which No Fee is Due.  If no funds are collected on a case, no fee is due for 

  that case.  In addition, no fee is payable to Contractor on cases referred to   

  Contractor through TCCC if either of the following apply: 

 

16.6.1 Judicial decisions result in the County or the Justice of the Peace not  

  receiving payments on cases (such as credit for jail time served,   

  dismissals, waivers, community service, or administrative closure of cases  

  without payment). 

 

16.6.2 A bond is posted and the bond amount is not later converted to a payment  

  of criminal fines and fees. 

 

 16.7 Contractor’s Fee. "Gross Collections" means the total amount of money received  

  from the collection of Fines and Fees on cases to which the Statutory Fee can legally 

  be added.   

 

 16.8  Amount of Payment Due.  For the performance of collection services in relation to  

  cases to which the Statutory Fee can be legally added, County shall pay Contractor a 

  collection fee equal to 23.077% of the authenticated Gross Collections rounded up to 

  the nearest cent.  For the performance of collection services in relation to cases to  

  which the Statutory Fee can not be legally added, County shall not pay Contractor  

  any collection fee.  The Contractor is entitled only to the amount stated in this  

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
23 of 105



 

 

  paragraph as a fee for the performance of collection services under this contract.  

  Separate line item charges are not permitted for any purposes. Except for the   

  collection fee charged by the Contractor under this contract, County shall not be  

  responsible for any other charges associated with this contract.  These fees shall be  

  firm for the duration of this contract. 

 

16.9 Method and Timing of Payment.  Payment by County to Contractor shall be made 

  monthly on the 20
th

 of the month for the amount due for Fines and Fees received  

  in the preceding month by check or warrant. Payment shall be deemed to have  

  been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. 

 

 16.10 Obligation to Pay.  County's obligation to make any payment to Contractor is  

  dependent upon completion of the services in a timely, good and professional  

  manner and at a standard acceptable in the collection services in Austin, Texas.  

  County shall pay in compliance with this contract.  

 

 16.11 Limit of Liability.  County shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances  

  rendered by Contractor before or after the contract period. 

 

 16.12 Payment after Termination.  If this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the  

  services, compensation for the services performed before the termination will be  

  based on the actual collections performed and uncompensated at the date of   

  termination. 

 

 16.12 Return of Overpayment.  Contractor is liable to County if and when County 

determines that a payment has resulted in overpayment.  Contractor shall repay the 

overpayment to County within thirty (30) Days after County requests a repayment.  

If Contractor does not repay the overpayment within thirty (30) Days, County may 

offset the amount of any overpayment against the next amount payable to Contractor 

under this or any other contract.     

 

17.0 COUNTY TRANSMISSION REPORTS 

 

17.1  TCCC shall generate a report that is transmitted daily. This daily report shall: 

 

17.1.1 identify the cases being referred to Contractor for collection and the 

Justice of the Peace from which the case originated,  

 

17.1.2 identify cases to be deactivated by Contractor and the Justice of the Peace 

from which the case originated,  

 

17.1.3 identify cases to be reactivated by Contractor and the Justice of the Peace 

from which the case originated,   

 

17.1.4 identify cases recalled from Contractor and the Justice of the Peace from 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
24 of 105



 

 

which the case originated,   

 

 17.1.5 provide a daily status file containing current demographic data, 

 assessments, payments and adjustments.  

 

  17.2 If available and permitted by law, TCCC shall provide the following information  

  about the case and the defendant on all cases referred to the Contractor for   

  collection: 

 

17.2.1   Case number 

 

17.2.2   Name of defendant 

 

17.2.3   Address(es) 

 

17.2.4   Phone number(s) 

 

17.2.5   Drivers license number  

 

17.2.6   State of drivers license 

 

17.2.7   Social Security number  

 

17.2.8    Date of birth 

 

17.2.9   Offense code 

 

17.2.10  Description of offense  

 

17.2.11  Date of offense 

 

17.2.12  Balance assessed 

 

17.2.13  Balance reductions to date including both monetary payments and credits 

   resulting from judicial actions 

 

17.2.14  Balance outstanding 

 

17.2.15  Status and number of warrant  

 

 

  17.3 TCCC shall provide the daily transmission to Contractor in a County-selected  

  electronic format.  File layout changes may occur annually. 

 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
25 of 105



 

 

18.0 CHANGES TO CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

 

18.1 Assignment.  The parties may not assign any rights or duties in this Contract 

without the prior written approval of the other party. Contractor may submit a 

written request for an assignment to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to Project 

Manager. The Purchasing Agent shall submit requests to the Commissioners 

Court for appropriate action.  If Contractor fails to obtain approval, County may 

delay payment or exercise other legal or equitable rights.  If Contractor assigns 

this Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and assigns.  If 

County assigns this Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this 

Contract are binding upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and 

assigns. 

 

18.2 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Contract, 

Contractor may not subcontract with any other person to perform any of the 

Services or other obligations under this Contract.  If a subcontract is approved, 

Contractor shall make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and reasonable 

steps to insure HUBs maximum opportunity to be subcontractors under this 

Agreement.  Contractor shall obtain county approval of all proposed HUB 

subcontractors through the Purchasing Agent.  If subcontracting is allowed, 

Contractor must provide for insurance for subcontracts as stated in section 5.4 and 

Part III and require subcontractors to complete and update a Certification 

Regarding Debarment on the form in Contract Attachment 3 whenever there is a 

change in status and provide the Purchasing Agent with copies of these 

certifications. 

 

 18.3 General.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any change to  

  this Contract must be in writing and signed by each party. 

 

 18.4 Requests for Changes.  Contractor shall submit requests for changes to this  

  Contract to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Project Manager. 

 

 18.5 Purchasing Agent Authority.  The Purchasing Agent has certain limited authority  

  to approve changes subject to Chapter 262 of the Texas Local Government Code  

  and County policy approved by the Commissioners Court.  Within that authority,  

  the Purchasing Agent may approve certain requests to change this Contract.  At  

  any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the Commissioners  

  Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing Agent to approve 

  the change. 

 

 18.6 Change of Name.  If Contractor’s actions require County to recognize a change of 

  Contractor’s name, Contractor must notify the Purchasing Agent immediately.   

  County does not recognize any change in its Contractor’s obligations until   

  Purchasing Agent approves the change. 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
26 of 105



 

 

 

19.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

 19.1 Procedure. 

19.1.1 Correspondence In this section 19, “Correspondence” means any notice, 

document, letter, email, or other tangible transfer of information related to 

an issue and “Dispute Manager” means the Purchasing Agent or other 

representative authorized by Commissioners Court. 

  19.1.2 Notice of Dispute. If the Contractor and the Project Manager have been  

   unable to resolve any issue related to this Contract, Contractor may submit 

   a Notice of the dispute to the Dispute Manager.  The Notice should  

   contain specific details about the issues and Contractor’s preferred   

   resolution of the dispute, including mediation, if desired. The Contractor  

   may include any other relevant information. 

  19.1.3 Flow of Information. After the Dispute Manager receives the Contractor’s  

   Notice, the Dispute Manager represents the County in the administration  

   of the dispute. After this Notice, any additional Correspondence is not  

   effective unless it is directed to or sent by the Dispute Manager.  If   

   Contractor disagrees with any Correspondence issued by the Dispute  

   Manager, Contractor shall submit a written response detailing its reasons  

   for disagreement with the Correspondence to the Dispute Resolver and the 

   Project Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the Correspondence. 

  19.1.4 Proposed Resolution. Within thirty (30) Days after the Dispute Manager  

   receives Contractor’s response, the Dispute Manager must send a final  

   written proposal for resolution of the dispute to Contractor. 

  19.1.5 Appeal. If the final written proposal does not resolve the dispute to  

   Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written appeal to the  

   Commissioners Court through the Dispute Manager within ten (10) Days  

   after receipt of the unsatisfactory proposal. The Dispute Manager forwards 

   a copy of the appeal to the Project Manager for it to be placed on the  

   Commissioners Court agenda. The Commissioners Court hears the appeal.   

   Contractor may make a presentation at that hearing. 

 19.2 Mediation.  When mediation is acceptable to both parties, the parties may use a  

  mutually acceptable mediator, or a mediator appointed by a court of competent  

  jurisdiction. Mediation is conducted in compliance with Chapter 154 of the Texas  

  Civil Practice and Remedies Code. Unless both parties are satisfied with the  

  mediated resolution, the mediation is not a final and binding resolution of the  

  dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation must remain  

  confidential in compliance with section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and  

  Remedies Code, unless both parties agree in writing to waive confidentiality. 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
27 of 105



 

 

 19.3 Suspension. After Notice to Contractor, County may suspend this Contract in  

  whole or in part and withhold further payments to Contractor until County and  

  Contractor resolve the issues causing the suspension. Contractor shall not incur  

  additional obligations of Contract funds after receipt of a Notice of suspension  

  until Contractor receives a Notice from County that the issues supporting   

  suspension are resolved to County’s satisfaction. 

 19.4 Non-Waiver of Default. County expressly reserves all its rights under this   

  Contract.  Any action that County takes to exercise any right or remedy shall not  

  be interpreted as a waiver of any other rights or remedies or preclude the exercise  

  of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law.  A payment,  

  act, or omission by County shall not impair or prejudice any of its rights or  

  remedies. 

19.5 Cumulative Remedies.  The rights and remedies of County under this contract are 

cumulative.  All rights of County under this contract are specifically reserved and 

any payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to 

County under it.  The exercise by County, in whole or in part, of any right or 

remedy under this contract shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or 

remedy under this contract or under any law, nor shall any right or remedy be 

deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

 

20.0 TERMINATION 

 

20.1 Termination For Convenience.  County may terminate this contract at any time by 

giving Contractor notice of termination at least sixty (60) Days before the 

effective date of the termination.  If County terminates this contract, County is not 

liable for any loss of profits anticipated by Contractor.  Contractor may terminate 

this contract on the anniversary of the contract by giving the County notice of 

termination at least one hundred and eighty (180) Days before the effective date 

of the termination. 

 

20.2 Termination for Default.  Any unauthorized use or disclosure of Case Information  

  is a breach of the contract that may result in the immediate termination of the  

 contract. Failure by a contractor or subcontractor to subcontract without 

 complying with the County HUB Procurement Program is a breach of contract.  

 Failure by either party to this contract to perform its obligations under this 

 contract is a breach of this contract.   Either party may terminate this Contract for 

 the failure of the other party to perform any specified breach or any other material 

 provision of this Contract by delivering Notice of termination for default. A party 

 may not terminate for default if the party was a contributing cause of the failure to 

 perform. The Contract terminates immediately when the defaulting party receives 

 that Notice. If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of 

 profits anticipated by Contractor. 

 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
28 of 105



 

 

 20.3 Funding Out.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the   

  Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract during the budget  

  planning and adoption process for the next County fiscal year, County may   

  terminate this Contract after giving Contractor twenty (20) Days’ notice that this  

  contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

 

20.4 Gratuities.  County may terminate this contract if it is found that gratuities of any 

kind including entertainment or gifts were offered or given by the Contractor or 

any agent or representative of the Contractor, to any County official or employee 

with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect to this contract.  If 

this contract is terminated by the County pursuant to this provision, County shall 

be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover from the 

Contractor at least three times the cost incurred by Contractor in providing the 

gratuities. 

 

            20.5 Cancellation of Subcontractors.  Upon termination or receipt of notice to terminate, 

whichever occurs first, Contractor shall cancel, withdraw, or otherwise terminate 

any outstanding orders or subcontracts related solely to the performance of this 

contract, or the part of this contract to be terminated, and shall cease to incur costs 

under them.  County shall not be liable to Contractor or to Contractor's creditors for 

costs incurred after termination of this contract. 

 

21.0 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT BENEFITS    

  

21.1 In section 21.3 and Attachment D, “Is doing business” and “has done business” 

 mean: 

 

21.1.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing with a 

value of more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services 

or for the purchase of any property or property interest, either real or 

personal, either legal or equitable; or 

21.1.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money or goods, or otherwise creating or 

having in existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than 

$250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

21.1.3 but do not include: 

 

21.1.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key 

Contracting Person at a posted, published, or marked price 

available to the public, 

 

21.1.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting 

Person for personal, family, or household purposes in 

accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
29 of 105



 

 

situated individuals with similar risks as determined by 

Contractor in the ordinary course of its business; and 

 

21.1.3.3 if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation, any 

transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made 

on behalf of Contractor by its agent, employee, or other 

representative who does not know and is not in a position that 

he or she should have known about the Contract. 

 

21.2 In section 23.3 and the Attachment D, “Key Contracting Person” means any person 

or business listed in Attachment A to the Ethics Affidavit.    

 

21.3 Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all 

performance by Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all 

consideration, paid to Contractor pursuant to this Contract if Contractor 

 

21.3.1 was doing business with a Key Contracting Person when this Contract was 

executed, 

 

21.3.2 had done business with a Key Contracting Person during the year 

immediately before execution of this Contract, 

 

21.3.3 or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after 

execution of this Contract and before full performance of it. 

 

21.4 Contractor shall give County notice if the Contractor does business with any Key 

Contracting Person at any time after execution of this Contract and before full 

performance of it within twenty (20) Days Contractor begins doing business. 

 

22.0 SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

22.1 Time is of the Essence.  Timing of performance of the Services and of delivery of 

all deliverables is of the essence.  If delivery or completion dates cannot be met, 

Contractor must inform the Project Manager immediately.  Providing this 

information does not change the delivery or completion dates unless this Contract 

is amended. 

 

 22.2 Force Majeure.  “Force Majeure” means any cause generally recognized under 

Texas law as constituting impossible conditions.  Neither party is financially liable 

to the other party for delays or failures in contract performance caused by Force 

Majeure.  These delays or failures to perform extend the period of performance for a 

period of time equal to the subsistence of the impossible conditions.  If Force 

Majeure conditions exist, the party affected by them shall give the other party notice 

within five (5) Working Days after the conditions begin.  If timely Notice is 

impractical due to the Force Majeure conditions, then the party must provide Notice 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
30 of 105



 

 

in as timely a manner as practicable.  If Notice is not provided timely, the party 

experiencing Force Majeure waives it as a defense. 

 

22.3 Retained Right of Management.  Nothing in this Contract is intended to or may 

operate as a bar to County’s continuing right to oversee the performance 

delegated in this contract in order to protect its interests in these matters.  This 

paragraph shall not reduce the compensation received by Contractor under this 

contract. 

 

22.4 Non-Exclusivity.  As a part of this contract, the parties understand that Contractor 

may provide services outside this contract as it sees fit at those times when 

Contractor is not obligated to County and there is no conflict with County 

interests.  The parties also understand that County is free to have more than one 

contractor providing the type of services included in this contract. 

 

22.5 Execution of Other Documents.  All parties shall promptly and duly execute and 

deliver to the other further documents and assurances and take actions that a party 

may reasonably request to more fully carry out the intent and purpose of this 

Contract.  

 

23.0 NOTICE 
 

23.1 Written Notice.  All notices between the parties and related to this contract shall 

be given to the other party in writing.  If a notice is delivered in person to the 

address in this section 23.2 for the party to whom the notice is given, that notice is 

deemed to have been given immediately.  If a notice is placed in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, 

addressed to the address in this section 23.2 for the party to whom the notice is 

given, that notice is deemed to have been given on the third (3
rd

) Working Day 

following mailing.  

 

 23.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes and notices under this  

  contract is: 

 

  Purchasing Agent: 

Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor)  

Travis County Purchasing Agent  

P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

With copies to (registered or certified mail, not required): 

 

Travis County Tax Assessor Collector  

Travis County Centralized Collections 

P.O. Box 1748 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
31 of 105



 

 

Austin, Texas 78767 

 

 23.3 Contractor Address.  The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this 

contract and for all notices hereunder shall be: 

 

  Bruce Cummings 

  Gila Corporation 

  8325 Tuscany Way, Building 4   

  Austin, Texas 78754 

 

23.4 Change of Address.  Each party may change its address for notice by giving 

notice of the new address.  County and Contractor shall give notice to each other 

of any change in its address, including a change in the person to whom attention is 

directed, within fifteen (15) Days of the change. 

 

24.0 INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT 
 

 24.1 Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all 

obligations under this contract are performable in Travis County, Texas. 

 

 24.2 Survival of Provisions.  Conditions and covenants of this Contract which by their 

terms are performable after the termination of this Contract shall survive such 

termination and remain fully performable. 

 

 24.3 Interpretational Guidelines 

 

 24.3.1 Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses.  This contract shall not be 

interpreted to include anything that is effective as a waiver of sovereign 

immunity or any affirmative defenses available to County. 

 

 24.3.2 Entire Agreement.  This Contract which is composed of all Parts and the 

Contract Attachments listed in this subsection contains the entire agreement 

between County and Contractor related to the subject matter of this Contract.  

If County and Contractor made any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, 

or representations that County and Contractor have not expressly stated in 

this contract, those prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 

representations are null and void.  The attachments listed in this subsection 

are hereby made a part of this Contract and constitute promised 

performances by Contractor throughout this contract: 

 

   24.3.2.1 Attachment A – Collection Rate Summary Table    

 

 24.3.2.2 Attachment B – Description of Services, Schedules for 

Completion and Report Deliverables, including parts of 

Proposal 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
32 of 105



 

 

 

 24.3.2.3 Attachment C – Certification regarding Debarment, 

Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for 

Covered Contracts     

 

   24.3.2.4 Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 

 

 24.3.2.5 Order of Priority of Contract Attachments and Parts.  If there 

is a conflict between the parts or the attachments or both, the 

conflict is resolved as follows: 

 

 24.3.2.5.1 Part II overrides all Attachments and Part III. 

  

 24.3.2.5.2 Part III overrides all Attachments. 

   

 24.3.2.5.3 Attachment A overrides Attachments B,C, 

and D. 

 

 24.3.2 Severability. If any portion of this contract is ruled invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the contract shall remain valid and 

binding. 

 

 24.4 Number and Gender.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, words of any 

gender are construed to include the other two genders and words in singular and 

plural are construed to include the other. 

 

 24.5 Headings.  The headings and titles throughout this contract are included only to 

make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection and 

are not to be used in construing this contract. 

 

24.6 Computation of Time.  In computing a time period under this contract, exclude 

the first Day and include the last Day.  If the last Day does not occur on a 

Working Day, the period is extended until the next Working Day after the last 

Day.  Commissioners Court usually designates the following as holidays: 

 

New Year’s Day (January 1
st
 or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (3
rd

 Monday in January) 

President’s Day (3
rd

 Monday in February) 

Memorial Day (4
th

 Monday in May) 

Independence Day (July 4
th

 or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 

Labor Day (1
st
 Monday in September) 

Veteran’s Day (November 11
th

 or Monday after, if it falls on a weekend) 

Thanksgiving Day (4
th

 Thursday AND Friday in November) 

Christmas Season (December 25
th

 AND either Day before or Day after 

whichever allows a four Day weekend, if possible) 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
33 of 105



 

 

 

25.0   GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

    

25.1  "Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor or her designee.  

 

25.2  “Commissioners Court” means Travis County Commissioners Court.  

 

25.3  “County” means Travis County, Texas 

 

25.4 “County Building” means any County owned buildings and does not include 

buildings leased by County. 

 

25.5 “Day” means calendar day.  

 

25.6  “Fines and Fees” means the following:  

 

25.6.1 For any case referred to the Contractor to which a Statutory Fee applies, 

the outstanding balance of the following components: 

 

25.6.1.1 the fine for committing the offense,  

 

25.6.1.2 mandated/approved court costs/fees, and  

 

25.6.1.3 the collection fee, and   

 

25.6.2 For any case referred to the Contractor to which a Statutory Fee does not 

apply, the outstanding balance of the following components: 

 

25.6.2.1  the fine for committing the offense, and  

 

25.6.2.2  mandated/approved court costs/fees. 

 

25.7 “Historically Underutilized Business” or “HUB” means any entity or association  

formed to make a profit in which one (1) or more persons who are educationally or 

economically disadvantaged because of their identification as members of one of the 

following groups: African Americans, Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific 

Americans, Native Americans or Women of any ethnicity have the following rights: 

 

25.7.1 own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of shares or other 

equitable securities and have incidents of ownership, including an interest 

in profit and loss, equivalent to the percentage of capital, equipment or 

expertise contributed to the business where ownership is measured as 

though the community property interest of a spouse is the separate 

property of that spouse, if both spouses certify in writing that the non-

participating spouse relinquishes control over his or her spouse, and his or 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
34 of 105



 

 

her community property, and not as if it is subject to the community 

property interest of the other spouse;  and   

 

25.7.1 have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active participation in the 

control, operation and management of the business's affairs; where control 

means having recognized ultimate control over all day-to-day decisions 

affecting the business, and is be known to, and at least tacitly 

acknowledged in day-to-day operations by employees of the business and 

by those with whom business is conducted, and holding a title 

commensurate with that control.   

 

25.8 “Purchasing Agent” means the Travis County Purchasing Agent.  

 

25.9 “Statutory Fee” means the fee for collection authorized under Article 103.0031, 

Code of Criminal Procedure. 

 

25.10 “TCCC” means the Travis County Central Collections, a special unit in the Tax 

Assessor-Collector’s Office.  

 

25.11 “Working Day” means Monday through Friday except for Days that County has 

designed as holidays. 

 

25.0 EXEMPTION FROM COUNTY PURCHASING ACT 
 

 25.1 Pursuant to Section 262.024 of the Texas Local Government Code, the 

Commissioners Court hereby orders this contract exempt from the requirements 

established by Section 262.023 of the Texas Local Government Code because it is a 

contract for personal or professional services. 

 

26.0  DUPLICATE ORIGINALS.   

 

26.1 This contract will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed 

by both parties. 

  

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
35 of 105



 

 

 

27.0 LEGAL AUTHORITY   

 27.1 Those signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing him or her or 

themselves as signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor warrant and guarantee 

that he, she or they have been duly authorized by Contractor to sign this contract 

on behalf of Contractor and to bind Contractor validly and legally to all terms, 

performances, and provisions in this contract.  If Contractor later alleges that this 

person lacks such authority, County may immediately terminate this Contract. 

 

GILA CORPORATION doing business as Municipal Services Bureau 

 

 

By:                                               ______________ 

 Bruce Cummings    Date 

 Its Duly Authorized Agent 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY               

 

 

By:                                               ______________ 

 Samuel T. Biscoe    Date 

 Travis County Judge 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY APPROVALS: 

 

 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

   

                                                                  

Assistant County Attorney    Date   

 

Funds Certified By: 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor   Date 

 

Compliance with Purchasing Law and Policy Confirmed:                                                 

 

____________________________________  ______________________________                                                                                 

Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent  Date:                                          

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
36 of 105



 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

PORTIONS OF CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL 

 

  

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
37 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
38 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
39 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
40 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
41 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
42 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
43 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
44 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
45 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
46 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
47 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
48 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
49 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
50 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
51 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
52 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
53 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
54 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
55 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
56 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
57 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
58 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
59 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
60 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
61 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
62 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
63 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
64 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
65 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
66 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
67 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
68 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
69 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
70 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
71 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
72 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
73 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
74 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
75 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
76 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
77 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
78 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
79 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
80 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
81 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
82 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
83 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
84 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
85 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
86 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
87 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
88 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
89 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
90 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
91 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
92 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
93 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
94 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
95 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
96 of 105



DRAFT

4400002002 
 
97 of 105



ATTACHMENT 3
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND

VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential
contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal
regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered
contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to
both contract and subcontract.

V.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the
following terms:

V
V

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this contract was entered into. If it is later determined that the potential
contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies,
mcluding suspension and/or debarment

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this
certification is submitted if at any time the potential contractor learns that the certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. - V V V V

VV
V V

V

V

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,”.
“person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this certification

V

have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549. V

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed
covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any subcontract with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency,
and/or Travis County, as applicable.

V

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract?

Y5XNO

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submittIng this certification that it will include this
certification titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts” without modification, in all covered
subcontracts; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred,
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its
covered subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

Page 61 of 62

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
98 of 105



7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this certification
document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered
contract knowingly enters into a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended,
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition
to other remedies available to the federal government any federal agency and/or Travis
County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS

-

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential
contractor:

., --S

SS . .rn .

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission ofthis certification, that
neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
meligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department
or agency, the State ofTexas, or Travis County

The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certify to one or more of the terms in this
certification. In this instance, the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for
each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the explanation(s) to
this certification

Name of Contractor Vendor ID or Social Security No

Gila a unicipal Services Bureau 74-2605908 .

3/4/2014 Bruce Cummings, CEO

Signa uthonzed Representative Date PrintedlTyped Name & Title of Authorized Representative

Page 62 of 62

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
99 of 105



RFS #1401-003-ME

ATACUMENT 1

ETHICS AFFIDAViT
STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

Date: 3/4/2014

Name ofAffiant: Bruce Cummings

Title ofAfflant: CEO

BusinessNameofOfferor Gila LLC d/b/a Municipal Services Bureau (MSB)
County of Offeror. Travis

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Alfiant is authorized by Offeror to make this affidavit for Offeror. •

2. Aflhant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.
3. Affiant can read the English language. -• -

4. Offeror has received the list ofkey contracting persons associated with this Request for
Services which is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A.

5. Afiuant has personally read Exhibit A to this Affidavit.
6. Afflant has no knowledge ofany key contiacting person on Exhibit A with whom Offerer

is doing business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the
date whose name is not disilosed in Exhibit B. =

Signa

8325 Tuscany Way

Austin, TX 78754

Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by Bruce Cummings March 4
, 2o

Notary Public, State ofTexas

My Commission Expires
MarCh01. 2017 -_J

Typed or printed name of notary - My conrn.ission expires: : - - -

NaiiaEte1Iaii

_____

Page 55 of 62

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
100 of 105



 

 

EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT D 

LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

April 2, 2014 

 
 Name of Individual Name of Business 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated 

 

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe MHMR 

Executive Assistant  Cheryl Brown 

Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez 

Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala 

Executive Assistant David Salazar 

Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis 

Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital 

Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite 

Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez 

Executive Assistant Sue Spears 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd* 

Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant 

Executive Assistant  Sara Krause* 

Executive Assistant  Joe Hon 

Executive Assistant  Peter Einhorn 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty* 

Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charlyn Daugherty Consultant 

Executive Assistant Bob Moore* 

Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow* 

Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner* 

Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gómez 

Executive Assistant Edith Moreida 

Executive Assistant Norma Guerra 

County Tax Assessor-Collector Nelda Wells Spears 

Chief Deputy Tax Assessor-Collector Dusty Knight 

County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter  

County Auditor  Nicki Riley 

County Executive, Administrative Vacant 

County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder  

County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby 

County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri Fleming 

County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.   

County Executive,  Justice & Public Safety,  Roger Jefferies 

Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.  

Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo 

Director, Records Mg’t & Communications Steven Broberg 

Travis County Attorney  David Escamilla 

First Assistant County Attorney  Steve Capelle 

Executive Assistant, Civil Division James Collins 

Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols 

Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
101 of 105



 

 

 Name of Individual Name of Business 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated   

 

Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 

Director, Transactions Division  John Hille 

Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford 

Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn  

Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt  

Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson 

Attorney, Transactions Division Jennifer Kraber* 

Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge 

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery 

Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 1 Judge Yvonne M. Williams 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 2 Judge Glenn Bass 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 3 Judge Susan Steeg 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4 Judge Raul Gonzalez 

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 5 Judge Herb Evans 

Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB 

Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry  

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villarreal 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB  

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rebecca Gardner   

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez 

Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback* 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen 

Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis 

HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez 

HUB Specialist Betty Chapa 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
102 of 105



 

 

HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero 

Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington 

Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant 

Justice of Peace Precinct 2 Joe Alvarado 

Auditors Office Beth Blankenship 

Tax Office Renea Deckard 

Tax Office Israel Osio 

PBO Alan Miller 

PBO Travis Gatlin 

 

FORMER EMPLOYEES 
       

 Name of Individual 

Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration   

Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/31/14 

Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14 

Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14 

Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/14 

Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/14 

 

* Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

 

        

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
103 of 105



RFS #1401-003-ML

EXHIBIT B TO ATTACHMENT 1
DISCLOSURE -

Offeror acknowledges that Offeror is doing business or has done business during the 365 day
period immediately prior to the date on which this conlmct is made with the following key
contracting persons and waffants that these are the only such key contracting persons: V

N/A
V

VV•V

Ifno one is listed above, Offeror warrants that Offeror is not doing business and has not done
business during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date on which this Request for
Services response is made with any key contracting person. V

V

V
V VV

V

V

Page 59 of62

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
104 of 105



 

 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

 

 

Collection Rate Summary:  
Summary based on amount collected, referred amount, age of case and time needed to collect payment. 

 

# Days from 

Offense Date to 

Referral Date 

to Contractor 

 

Days from the date the case is received by Contractor. 

 0 – 60 Days 0 - 120 Days 0 - 180 Days 0 - 365 Days 0 -730 Days >730 Days All Cases  

< 1 year Amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for 

these cases 

Cumulative 

amount collected 

for cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

Cumulative 

amount collected 

for cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

Cumulative 

amount collected 

for cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

Cumulative 

amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for 

these cases  

Cumulative 

amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for 

these cases  

Cumulative 

Amount 

collected for 

cases in this 

category during 

this period 

divided by the 

referred balance 

amount for these 

cases  

≥1 to <2 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

≥2 to <3 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

≥ 3 to < 5 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

≥ 5 years See above See above See above See above See above See above See above 

All Cases Total % 

collected within 

0-60 Days 

Total % 

collected within 

120 Days 

Total % 

collected within 

180 Days 

Total % 

collected within 

one year 

Total % 

collected within 

two years 

Total % 

collected within 

two years 

Overall rate- 

Total collected 

divided by total 

referred balance 

DRAFT

4400002002 
 
105 of 105



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  April 15, 2014   
Prepared By/Phone Number:  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Richard Moya Park 
Debris Removal, IFB B1401-011-LD, to the low bidder Austin Wood 
Recycling. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The contract will provide for Debris Removal at Richard Moya Park. 

IFB #B1401-011-LD was issued on February 23, 2014.  Ten bids were 
received on March 17, 2014.  TNR has reviewed the bids and 
recommends award to the low bidder, Austin Wood Recycling. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  Est. $72,993.50.   
Contract Type:  One time purchase.    

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:  49  Responses Received:  10  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  SAP cost center 1497760001 
  Comments:  Estimated quantity requirements contract. 

 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 21

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE

700 Lavaca St 5th Floor
Travis County Administration Building
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383
FAX (512) 854-4697

March 31, 2014

MEMORANDUM

TO: Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent
®,cr41c_— *-

FROM: STeven M. Manil1/P.E., County Executive

SUBJECT: Award of Bid, B 1401-01 1-LD— Richard Moya Park Flood Debris Clean up

TNR has reviewed the above referenced bid and recommends award to the lowest bidder, Austin Wood
Recycling.

The product category for these services is 70110000. The budgeted amount for these services is
$240,000.00. The appropriate cost center is 1497760001.

If you need additional information, please contact April Rodriguez at 854-7676.

JAR:SMM:ar
7 Contract File

-r m

-o
—



Bid #B1401-011-LD - Richard Moya Park Debris Removal

Creation Date  Jan 27, 2014 End Date Mar 20, 2014 10:00:00 AM CDT
Start Date Feb 25, 2014 9:02:12 AM CST Awarded Date  Not Yet Awarded

B1401-011-LD--01-01   Moya Park Debris Clean Up
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Austin Wood Recycling [Ad] First Offer -  $3.50     18141 / cubic yard $63,493.50   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: THREE DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS
Total Amount Text: SIXTY THREE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED 
NINETY THREE DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Certified Arbor Care Inc [Ad] First Offer -  $5.31     18141 / cubic yard $96,328.71   Y Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: five dollars and thirty one cents per cubic yard
Total Amount Text: ninety six thousand three hundred and twenty 
eight dollars and seventy one cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

TFR Enterprises, Inc [Ad] First Offer -  $5.88     18141 / cubic yard $106,669.08   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

The Davey Tree Expert Company [Ad] First Offer -  $6.409     18141 / cubic yard $116,265.669   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: One Hundred Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred 
Sixty
Total Amount Text: One Hundred Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred 
Sixty
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Green Constructors First Offer -  $12.10     18141 / cubic yard $219,506.10   Y Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twelve Dollars and ten cents
Total Amount Text: two hundred and nineteen thousand five 
hundred and six dollars and ten cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes: Haul off mulched material to type V facility 

DRC Emergency Services, LLC First Offer -  $15.00     18141 / cubic yard $272,115.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

QA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. [Ad] First Offer -  $17.21     18141 / cubic yard $312,206.61   Y Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Seventeen and twenty one
Total Amount Text: Three hundred twelve thousand two hundred 
six and sixty one
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

First Capital Environmental Services First Offer -  $19.11     18141 / cubic yard $346,674.51   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Unity Contractor Services, Inc. [Ad] First Offer -  $60.00     18141 / cubic yard $1,088,460.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Sixty Dollars and no Cents
Total Amount Text: One Million eighty eight thousonad four 
hundred and sixty dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: Debris Clean Up
Supplier Notes:

ApllundhTree Expert Co. First Offer -  $85.00     18141 / cubic yard $1,541,985.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Eighty Five Dollars and zero cents
Total Amount Text: one million five hundred fourty one thousand 
nine hundred eighty five dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Bid B1401-011-LDTravis County

BidSync3/20/2014 p. 2



B1401-011-LD--01-02   Cut and stack usable wood.
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
Austin Wood Recycling [Ad] First Offer -  $4.75     2000 / cubic yard $9,500.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: FOUR DOLLARS AND SEVENTY FIVE CENTS
Total Amount Text: NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Certified Arbor Care Inc [Ad] First Offer -  $5.84     2000 / cubic yard $11,680.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: five dollars and eighty four cents per cubic yard
Total Amount Text: eleven thousand six hundred and eighty dollars 
and no cents
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

TFR Enterprises, Inc [Ad] First Offer -  $5.88     2000 / cubic yard $11,760.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

The Davey Tree Expert Company [Ad] First Offer -  $6.8675     2000 / cubic yard $13,735.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty Five
Total Amount Text: Thirteen Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty Five
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Green Constructors First Offer -  $11.00     2000 / cubic yard $22,000.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: eleven dollars
Total Amount Text: Twenty Two Thousand Dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

DRC Emergency Services, LLC First Offer -  $12.00     2000 / cubic yard $24,000.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

First Capital Environmental Services First Offer -  $19.11     2000 / cubic yard $38,220.00   Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text:
Total Amount Text:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

QA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. [Ad] First Offer -  $25.00     2000 / cubic yard $50,000.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: Twenty five
Total Amount Text: Fifty thousand
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

ApllundhTree Expert Co. First Offer -  $110.00     2000 / cubic yard $220,000.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: One hundred ten dollars
Total Amount Text: two hundred twenty thousand dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Unity Contractor Services, Inc. [Ad] First Offer -  $150.00     2000 / cubic yard $300,000.00   Y
Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: One Hundred and Fifty Dollars and No Cents
Total Amount Text: three hundred thousand dollars
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: cut and stack wood
Supplier Notes:

Supplier Totals
  Austin Wood Recycling [Ad] $72,993.50    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Jerome Alder 

info@austinwoodrecycling.com
Ph 512-259-7430   

 Address 3875 E. Whitestone Blvd.
Cedar Park, TX 78613 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Certified Arbor Care Inc [Ad] $108,008.71    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Debbie Evans 

debbie@certifiedarbor.com
Ph 512-671-8733   

 Address P.O. Box 1868
Round Rock, TX 78642 

 Qualifications  HUB   WBE   

Bid B1401-011-LDTravis County

BidSync3/20/2014 p. 3



Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  TFR Enterprises, Inc [Ad] $118,429.08    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Tiffany Wilkes 

tiffanyw@tfrinc.com
Ph 512-260-3322 x200   

 Address 10731 E. Crystal Falls Pkwy
Leander, TX 78641 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  The Davey Tree Expert Company [Ad] $130,000.669    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Kimberly Ball 

kim.ball@davey.com
Ph 330-673-9511   
Fax 330-963-7089

 Address 1500 N. Mantua St.
Kent, OH 44240 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
  Green Constructors $241,506.10    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact KC Abood 

greenconstructorstx@gmail.com
Ph 512-565-5134   
Fax 888-545-1302

 Address 11937 Walton Hill Pass
Coupland, TX 78615 

 Bid Notes  HUB subcontractor 
read and accepted addendum's 1 and 2 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
HUB subcontractor 
read and accepted addendum's 1 and 2 

  DRC Emergency Services, LLC $296,115.00    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Tom Combs 

tom@tomcombs.net
Ph 281-989-6832   
Fax 251-343-5554

 Address 740 Museum Drive
Mobile, AL 36608 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  QA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. [Ad] $362,206.61    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact MARCOS GUTIERREZ 

mg@qasystems.com
Ph 512-637-6120   
Fax 512-637-8811

 Address 5811 Blue Bluff Road
AUSTIN, TX 78724 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
  First Capital Environmental Services $384,894.51    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Aaron ARBOGUST 

aaron.a@cesaustin.com
Ph 512-751-2763   

 Address 10211 FM 969
Austin, TX 78724 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  Unity Contractor Services, Inc. [Ad] $1,388,460.00    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact PATRICK CARTER 

unitedcs@swbell.net
Ph 512-926-8065   

 Address 6448 East Hwy 290 Suite 658
AUSTIN, TX 78723 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

  ApllundhTree Expert Co. $1,761,985.00    (2/2 items) 
 Bid Contact Gene Blount 

gblount@asplundh.com
Ph 713-824-5851   

 Address 15660 W. Hardy Rd.
Suite 150
Houston, TX 77060 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

**

Bid B1401-011-LDTravis County

BidSync3/20/2014 p. 4



ID #10657 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 

Agenda Language: Approve Modification No. 2, an Assignment of 
Contract No. 4400000578, from Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services to Fuller 
- Sheffield Funeral Services, Inc.  

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 
 
Sheffield Funeral Services entered into a written Contract for the 
provision of indigent burial services on April 25, 1995. 
 
Modification No. 2 will approve assignment of Contract 4400000578 to  
Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services, Inc. Fuller - Sheffield Funeral 
Services, Inc. accepts such assignment, and assumes and is bound by 
and shall perform all terms, conditions, covenants, obligations, and 
duties. 
 
Modification No. 1 approved changes to the schedule of reimbursement 
rates. 
 
Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $22,025 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 22

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


ID #10657 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: As Needed   
Contract Type: Professional Services  
Contract Period: April 25, 1995 – Auto renewal  

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:  N/A  
Modification Type:    Bilateral 
Modification Period:  Effective date: March 1, 2014 

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received: 
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor: 

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information:  N/A 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000578 — Indigent Burial Services Page 1 of 2
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Shannon Pleasant DATE PREPARED:
Travis County Purchasing Office TEL. NO: (512) 854-1181
P.O. Box 1748 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185 March 25, 2014
Austin, Texas 78767

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL
Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services CONTRACT:

2808 E. Martin Luther King Blvd. 2 April 25, 1995
Austin, TX 78702

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: April 25. 1995- October 1, 2020 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: Auto Renewal

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: As Needed Current Modified Amount: As Needed

- DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: The Contract is amended according to the terms of the attachment to this Modification, all of which is made a part of the Contract and
constitutes promised performances by the Contractor in accordance with all terms and conditions of the Contract, as amended.

1. The above referenced contract is hereby modified to reflect the following changes:

Effective March 1, 2014, the Contractor’s name on Contract No. 4400000578 is changed as follows:

Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services
2808 E. Martin Luther King Blvd.
Austin, TX 78702
Tax ID# 74-1752688
Vendor # 1000000211

Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services, Inc.
2808 E. Martin Luther King Blvd.
Austin, TX 78702
Tax ID# 76-0575294
Vendor# 1000019336

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
Note to Vendor:

XJ Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

tt DBA
LEGAL BUSISt ER/FF1ELD FUNERAL SERVICES INC. D CORPORATION

BY: 5 j OTHER

BY j i€. L IJt/f5 DATE:

PRINTNAE

TITLE: 1upcJ ) i (i // Mt
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:____________________________________
CYD . GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_______________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

to



ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

Contract No. 4400000578
Modification No. 2

Page 2 of 2

The parties to this Assignment of Contract (this “Assignment”) are Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services, Tax ID # 74-1752688 a corporation
duly authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (“Assignor”), and Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services, Inc., Tax ID # 76-
0575294, a corporation duly authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (“Assignee”).

Travis County and Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services entered into a written Contract for the provision of indigent burial
services (Contract No. 4400000578) on April 25, 1995, which is hereby incorporated by reference herein for all purposes as if
fully copied and set forth herein at length, (the “Contract”); and

B. Assignor desires by this Assignment to assign all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract to Assignee subject to the
terms of the Contract and this Assignment.

TERMS: In consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Assignment, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Assignor assigns, transfers and conveys to Assignee all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract effective as March 1,
2014 (the “Effective Date of Assignment”).

2. Assignee accepts such assignment, and assumes and is bound by and shall perform all terms, conditions, covenants, obligations,
and duties of Assignor under the Contract as of the Effective Date of Assignment.

3. Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that nothing in this Assignment waives or modifies any of the provisions of the Contract.

4. The provisions of this Assignment are binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of
the parties.

5. This Assignment shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any action
arising hereunder or connected herewith shall lie exclusively in Travis County, Texas.

6. All references in this Assignment to the Contract encompass the original Contract No. 4400000578.

By its signature below, Travis County signifies its
Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services, Inc.

consent to and approval of this Assignment from Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services to

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

By:
Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

RECITALS:
A.

Fuller -

By:

Attest:

Date:

Printed Name: iâ&jt. L L’’4 ffs

Title & Date: 1U4. L21 D ii’ /7iL4. Y2.ru/
- Attest:

Date:

Date:



 
 
Meeting Date:    April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING ITEMS REGARDING 
RECIPROCAL TRIP TO TAIWAN: 
 
A. TRIP TO TAIWAN AT ZERO COST TO TRAVIS COUNTY AND NO USE OF PUBLIC DOLLARS; 
 
B. IDENTITY OF TRAVIS COUNTY DELEGATION; AND 
 
C. PROCLAMATION IN SUPPORT OF FRIENDLY-COUNTY RELATIONSHIP AND TO 
ENCOURAGE PARTICIPATION IN THE TRANS-PACIFIC PARTNERSHIP TO EXPAND TRADE AND 
INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITIES BETWEEN TAIWAN AND TRAVIS COUNTY. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached document. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 23

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us






 
 
Meeting Date:    April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Hershel Lee 

Travis County Fire Marshal 
      512-854-4621 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING THE APPLICATION FOR A TEXAS 
MASS GATHERING ACT PERMIT UNDER CHAPTER 751 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
FROM THE ELECTRIC COMPANY FOR THE EUPHORIA MUSIC AND CAMPING FESTIVAL AND 
RELATED ISSUES. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached documents. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 24

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

The Electric Company 
1901 E. 51st St Stage 4 

Austin, TX 78723 

C: 512-680-1050 

E-Mail: Jason@ElectricCompanyLive.com  Web: 

www.ElectricCompanyLive.com 

 

Mass Gathering Permit Application Details: 
 
Event: Euphoria Music Festival  

Dates: April 25 & 26th, 2014 

Tentative Times: 
FRI 4/25 
- camping check-in starts at 8am 
- general festival doors at 12pm 
- workshops/yoga/first band on river stage at 12pm 
- first band on tent stage at 1:00 pm  
- first main stage band on at 2:00 pm 
- last band river stage, sound off at 12:00am  
- last band main stage, sound off at 1:30am 
- last band tent stage, sound off at 1:30am 
- general grounds cleared at 2:00 am 
 
SAT 4/26 
- camping activities start at 10am 
- general festival doors at 12pm 
- workshops/yoga/first band on at 12:00 pm (river stage) 
- first tent stage band on at 1:00pm 
- first main stage band on at 1:00pm 
- last band river stage, sound off at 12:00am 
- last band main stage, sound off at 1:30am 
- last band tent stage, sound off at 1:30 am 
- general grounds cleared at 2:00 am 
 
SUN 
- camping grounds cleared at 12:00 pm 
 

Location: Carson Creek Ranch 
 
Address: 9501 Sherman Rd – Austin, 78742 
 
Description: A scenic 58 acre ranch nestled on the banks of the Colorado River.  Area is mostly industrial or 
agricultural as it is in the low flight path of Bergstrom Airport.  There is a small number of residences the 
nearest being more a half mile away from the directions of the event’s PA system.  We received no noise 
complaints over the course of the event last year. 
 
 
County Liason/ Security Director: Scott Davidson (The Electric Company) – 1901 E. 51st St – Stage 4 - Austin, 
78723 
512-656-2184 
Event Production Manager: Ryan Miller 512-659-0104 rmiller205@me.com 



2 

Promoter: Euphoria Partners 2014, GP : 706 Rolling Brook Ln, Cedar Park TX 78613 

Land Owner: Joan Havard – 8801 Willowick Dr – Austin, TX 78759 – 512-758-9076 
 
Expected attendance: 5,000 per day.  Max attendance 5,000.  While it is not expected, no more than 5,000 
tickets will be issued for the event and we will publicize that the event is sold out.  We anticipate 1000-
1500 guests to camp on site in a secured area- if it appears this number may be exceeded we will notify the 
county promptly and will adjust accordingly.  

 
Scheduled to perform:  Bassjackers, Beats Antique, Bonobo (DJ Set),  Boombox, Borgore, 
Bro Safari, Earphunk Plays Daft Phunk, The Floozies, Gareth Emery, The Motet Plays 
Jamiraquai, Keys N Krates, Koan Sound, Lotus, Opiuo, Simon Patterson, TJR, Zeds Dead  
 
Nature of performances:  All performers will be playing music on one of 3 stages , roughly 
45 mins to 60 min sets.  The original statue from 1989 requests names and addresses of of  
performers and their agents.  This information is not shared with the promoters and with 
over 60 bands from all over the world, acquiring this information would prove very 
difficult.   
 
Sanitation Health:   We are plan to supply a minimum of 80 Port-o-potties provided a local 
vendor on site at the event with 15 ADA units.  All units will be serviced and pumped 
nightly. Adequate pump sinks will be provided and maintained with water and paper 
towels.  There will also be several  restroom trailers on site, each with running water.  
 
For food service and bar will have required sinks for hand washing . All food vendors are 
self-contained food trucks and trailers wi th county and city permitting. We have also 
arranged for onsite gray water, and grease trap storage maintained by a sanitation vendor .  
Vendors have been notified that no external gas tanks will be allowed on site.  We are 
expecting 12-15 food vendors.  
 
Traffic Control:  See Map Attached… Traffic Control is a high priority for the event 
producers.   
We look forward to discussions with TXDOT on how to improve the traffic plan from last 
year’s events at the site.  Until those meetings we will present the traffic plan from 
last year.   
We will be very specific with instructions to our attendees.   After meeting with TXDot, 
County, and city ROW officials, we agreed that my suggestion to have patrons heading 
eastbound on 183 and 71 both merge onto 71 and exit Spirit of Texas Dr. then loop under 
Hwy 71 to go westbound to access a a safe merging right turn on Old Bastrop Hwy.  From 
here they will turn Right on Dalton and proceed to the festival entrance at Giraffe Pen Rd.  
If deemed necessary, we plan to utilize message boards to relay event traffic t he safest 
route into the site.  
 
Message Boards will read:  
From 183- Phase 1 –  
Event  
Traf Use  
SH71 E  
Phase 2-  
Exit  
Spirit  
of TX  



3 

From 71/Ben White – Phase 1  
Event  
Traf Use  
SH 71 E  
Phase 2  
Exit  
Spirit  
Of TX  
ON 71 approaching Exit: Phase 1-  
Event  
Exit Rt  
Sprit  
Phase 2  
Of TX  
And Uturn  
On W71  
Event  
Exit  
Next Rt  

Our event site will have 2 separate entrances, one for local traffic, production, and 
emergency use only (Sherman Road) and one for public use Giraffe Pen Rd.  Dalton Rd will 
be our main point of entry and we have secured parking on land owned by Jimmy Eva ns 
Construction next to the event site.  There is .42 mile of road  on Giraffe Pen Road to 
accommodate cars queuing into the parking lot  and more if we line up cars from the 
furthest point from the road.  If deemed necessary, we will work  with Travis County 
Sherriff’s office to hire staff in patrol cars to be a presence at these vital points of entry.   

Directions to the site will be detailed and specific and guests will be strongly encouraged 
to follow the agreed upon routes. We feel the presence of Travis Co Sheriffs will  assist 
this along with ample legible approved signage that will guide event goers safely to and 
out of the site to main arteries and keeping traffic out of neighborhoods.  Parking at the 
site will be done quickly and payment for parking wi ll be done after the car is parked to 
minimize delays.  
 
Egress from the site would require a right turn onto Dalton Ln from Giraffe Pen Road 
Sheriffs on site can assist to keep traffic flowing for the out at the end of the night to 
expedite exit off the property.  Patrons will process left on Hergotz and Left on Thompson 
to the light at US 183 led by visible signage in plain view out of the ROW with property 
owner’s permission.  From this point patrons can go left or r ight onto the highway.  I will 
work with Brian Craig with the city of Austin to time this l ight during mass exit times to 
minimize backups at this location.   
 
Once off major arteries 30x30 directional signs will be placed along Dalton Ln for Ingress 
to let patrons know where to turn.  For Egre ss 30x30 signs will guide patrons from the 
event back to the highway and will be placed at each turn on the exit strategy.  Finally, 
TXDot has asked that plastic drums be places in front of a service pole near the turn for 
Dalton Lane.  We will comply with  this safety request.  

Medical: To provide medical care for patrons at our event we are contracting event 
specialist EMT group, Capital Medical Services. We will staff a minimum of 1 EMT and 1 
Paramedic 24 hours a day when patrons are on site  from a highly visible medical station . 
This staffing number will increase based on programming and ticket sales numbe rs. Capital 



4 

Medical Service will  also provide a standby ambulance service and the additional 
personnel to staff it during hours the festiv al grounds are open. Capital Medical Service 
will also util ize a stretcher -bearing ATV vehicle to patrol and transport patients within the 
grounds.  

Security: We have contracted with Vigilant Security and Event Services as our private 
security provider. Working under the direction of our Public Safety Director, Vigilant 
security will provide licensed, uniformed level 1 guards for access control, loss prevention 
and public safety 24 hours a day while patrons are on site. The will be a minimum of 20 
security officers staffed during peak hours. All security and event staff will be equipped 
with 2-way radios with established communications protocols and chain of command. In 
addition to those officers working traffic and cash -room roles, two peace-officers 
dedicated to internal security and crowd management will be retained during hours of 
operation of the festival grounds. Level 1 Security officers will maintain a 24 -hour 
presence within the camping and festival grounds.    

 Minors in Attendance: A legal guardian who is attending the festival with them must 
accompany all persons under the age of 18 or they will not be admitted.  All attendees 
over 21 who have verifiable proof of their age and who choose to drink will be issued a 
wristband to clearly differentiate from those underage and to prevent underage drinking.   
 
Tents on Premise:  Per request of Travis County, we have notified all tent providers that 
Flame Retardant Certificates must be permanently attached to any tent on the premises  
and they have confirmed that our requests can be fil led with such tents. Only one tent 
will be used for cooking in the backstage area and will not be accessible by the public.  
Exit signs and extinguishers will be provided at any tent in which it is deemed necessary.   
 
Power:   Power for the event will mostly be from onsite Diesel Generators , you will find 
the locations of the generators.  These are:  
1. Behind the main stage (175 KVA)  
2. Behind the Large Tent Stage (125 KVA)  
3. Next to General Store and campgrounds (95KVA)  
4. Behind Sponsor Tent (95 KVA)  
5. Near tent #6 at entry way (95KVA)  
6. Existing power will be used via a code compliant subpanel and distro located at power 
pole next to the pavilion.   
 
Whenever possible generators are placed behind fences out of the public view.  In the 
case of example 4 and 5, those generators will be fenced and scrimmed to keep public 
out.  Generators will arrive to the site fully fueled with the estimated amount neede d for 
the weekend.  Should refueling be required we will bring in a fuel truck from off site 
after event hours to replenish supplies.  The fuel truck will leave the premises following 
this action.  

 

 
 
 

 
 















































C:\Users\salazad\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\UUMQ6QN0\WRF - Posting Public Notice Signs 04_15_2014.docx p. 1 of 4 

WORK REQUEST FORM 
 
    Routing & Checkoff  
  Responsible. Item DATE INIT. 

  Dispatch WRF 
Nos. 282282 4/8/14 NH 

       
       
       
  Greear WRF Delivered to SMS   
  Powers Work Completed   
  Arroyo Update Database   
      
      

 
 

Date: 4/8/14 

Staff Contact: David Greear (854-7650) 

Requestor Name  

Request Category: 4115 – Signs 
 

General Location (Pct #): 4 

Facility ID (Rd. Index No.) Dalton Lane (G09700) 

Priority / Requested 
completion date 

Normal 

Short Description (street 
name & work type): 

Dalton Lane – Public Notice Signage 

Detailed Description:  
• Install three ”Notice of Public Hearing” signs per following sketch. Signs must be in place 

by Thursday, April 10, 2014.  
• E-mail digital photos of signs in place to David Greear by Friday, April 11, 2014 
• FAX signed Affidavit of Posting (attached) to David Greear by Friday, April 11, 2014 
• Remove the signs after Event on April 28, 2014. 

 

    

Qty. Sign No. Size Description/Text 

3   Notice of Public Hearing 
 



 

 

 

NOTICE OF  
PUBLIC HEARING 

PUBLIC HEARING 
ON APRIL 15, 2014, AT 9:00 AM. 

 
REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF A 

MASS GATHERING PERMIT FOR THE 
EUPHORIA MUSIC FESTIVAL ON 

GIRAFFE PEN DRIVE OFF  
DALTON LANE  

ON  
APRIL 25-27, 2014 

 
AT THE TRAVIS COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM 
700 LAVACA STREET 

(FIRST FLOOR), AUSTIN 
 

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CALL 854-7650 
 



 

 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES    
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

700 Lavaca Street-5th Floor 
Travis County Administration Building 
P.O. Box 1748  
Austin, Texas 78767 
Phone: (512) 854-9383 
Fax: (512) 854-4697 
 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 
 
 
 
TO: County Judge 
 County Commissioners 
 Travis County, Texas 
 
Public notices of Public Hearing regarding issuance of a Mass Gathering Permit were posted on   
 
  , 2014 at    locations on   
 (date) (count) (road name) 
   , 
 
each location being as near as practical to the area being affected. 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED THIS THE   DAY OF     APRIL           2014. 
 (date) (month) 
 
 
 SIGNATURE:   
 
 NAME (print):   
 
 TITLE:   
 
 





 
 
 
Date:  April 7, 2014 
 
To:  Travis County Judge Sam Biscoe 
         
From:  Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
 
RE:  Report regarding Mass Gathering – Euphoria Music Festival 
 
Euphoria Contact Information 
 County Liaison/Security Director 

 Scott Davidson (The Electric Company) 512-656-2184 
1901 E. 51st Street, Stage 4 
Austin, Texas 78723 

 
 Event Production Manager 
  Ryan Miller 512-659-0104 
 
 Promoter 
  Euphoria Partners 2014, GP 
  706 Rolling Brook Lane 
  Cedar Park, Texas 78613 
 
 Land Owner 
  Joan Havard 512-758-9076 
  8801 Willowick Drive 
  Austin, Texas 78759 
 
The Euphoria Music Festival is proposed to be held at Carson Creek Ranch, 9501 Sherman Road, 
Austin, Texas in Pct. 4.  This is the site used in 2013 for the Psych Fest.  This event will attract up to 
5,000 people on three consecutive days.  The music will begin at 12:00 Noon on April 25 and continue 
until 01:30 am the following morning.  The music will begin again at 12:00 Noon on April 26 and 
continue until 01:30 am the following morning.  All attendees should leave the property by 12:00 
Noon on Sunday April 26.  More detail surrounding daily schedule is included in the back up 
documentation. 
 
Persons under age 18 will not be admitted unless they are accompanied by a legal guardian.  Attendees 
who choose to drink must present a valid proof of age. 
 
Food and Drink vendors will be on site. 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

        T R AVIS  C O UN T Y  FI R E  M AR S H AL’S  O F F I C E   
HERSHEL LEE, FIRE MARSHAL 

P. O. BOX 1748, AUSTIN, TEXAS  78767 
(512) 854-4621, FAX (512) 854-6471 

 

 



Overnight campers will begin arriving at 07:30am on April 25.  The event promoter expects up to 
1,400 people to camp overnight at the site. 
 
A fire watch will be provided by Travis County Fire Marshal at the expense of the applicant. 
 
Travis County Fire Marshal Office has reviewed information submitted regarding this proposed event.  
This event is capable of meeting all life safety requirements.  Final approval by Travis County Fire 
Marshal will be subject to an on-site inspection after the structures, generators and vendors are in 
place.  
 
 
 
Hershel Lee 
Travis County Fire Marshal 
 
 
 





TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES    
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

700 Lavaca Street-5th Floor 
Travis County Administration Building 
P.O. Box 1748  
Austin, Texas 78767 
Phone: (512) 854-9383 
Fax: (512) 854-4697 
 
 
Date: April 8, 2014 
 
To:  Travis County Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
From:   Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive - TNR 
 
RE:  Report regarding Mass Gathering – Euphoria Music Festival 
 
 
The Euphoria event coordinators have submitted their traffic plan for routing their patrons to and 
from the Euphoria Music Festival to be held April 25-27, 2014.  TNR staff has reviewed the 
proposed traffic plan as seen in the attached back up documentation and approves of the plan. 
 
This plan is similar to the traffic plan used for a similar event held last year at this same location.  
All traffic coming to the event will be directed to SH71 which will proceed to exit Spirit of 
Texas Drive then loop under SH71 head westbound and turn right on Dalton Lane.  From there 
they will proceed north on Dalton and turn right on Giraffe Pen Road which leads them to the 
festival entrance.  Once exiting the event, traffic will be directed to turn north on Dalton and 
routed to Hergotz Lane then Thompson Lane at the traffic light on US183. 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
County Executive - TNR 
 
DG:dg 
attachment 

 
   





Item 25











T R A V I S  C O U N T Y  T A X  O F F I C E 
B R U C E  E L F A N T  

T A X  A S S E S S O R  A N D  C O L L E C T O R 
 
 

5501 AIRPORT BOULEVARD 
AUSTIN, TX 78751 

(512) 854-9473 

 
 
April 3, 2014 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE COUNTY JUDGE SAM BISCOE 
PRECINCT 1, COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS  
PRECINCT 2, COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD  
PRECINCT 3, COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY 
PRECINCT 4, COMMISSIONER MARGARET GÓMEZ 

 
 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor-Collector 
 
New Tax Assessment and Collection Agreement Between Travis 
County and Pilot Knob Municipal Utility District No. 3 

 
 
 
 

Dear Judge and Commissioners: 
 

The Agreement for Assessment and Collection Services attached hereto provides that 
the County Tax Assessor-Collector perform tax assessment and collection services 
for Pilot Knob Municipal Utility District No. 3, as requested by the entity to 
consolidate the assessment and collection of property taxes within the entity, which 
is located wholly in Travis County. 

 
If you should have any concerns or comments, please do not hesitate to call me at 4-7969. 

 
Attachment: Agreement for Assessment and Collection Services 

 
BE/VR 

 
cc:  Mary Lou Sheridan, Legal Assistant, Armbrust & Brown, PLLC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

Item 27



Travis Gounty Commissioners Gourt Agenda Request

Meeting Date: April 15,2014 ^ltJl'-Prepared By/Phone Number:-Nacki Riley - BS4-9125
Elected/Appointed official/Dept. Head: Nicki Riley, County Auditor
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Bruce Todd, Commissioner Precinct 2

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to change
the County's payroll cycle from semi-monthly to bi-weekly.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: FoT
many years now Travis county employees have been paid on a semi-
monthly basis. However with the implementation of SAP it has become
clear that the County would be better served to move to a biweekly pay
schedule. This would help employees reconcile their paycheck and help
managers control their overtime budgets.

STAFF REGOMMENDATIONS: We recommend approval of a change to
a bi-weekly payroll cycle and direct staff to return to Commissioners Court
with detailed implementation options for final approval.

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: Currently a customization is required in
SAP to correctly calculate overtime pay in certain scenarios in accordance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act that will cost approximately $40k;
however, this would be negated by a switch to bi-weekly payroll. Also with
a switch to bi-weekly payroll, the ability exists in SAP to accelerate the pay
period for all employees so that an extra week of pay is distributed to all
employees upon implementation, which is at no cost to the county.

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDTNG: N/A

REQU! RED AUTHORIZATIONS:
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive, planning and Budget
Debbie Maynor, Director, Human Resources Management Deparlment

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: Allagenda requests and supporting materiats must be submitted as a
pdf to Aqenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting.

Item 28



TRAVIS COUNTY
AUDITOR'S OFFICE

NICKI RILEY,CPA
COUNTY AUDITOR

TRAVIS COUNTY
ADⅣEINISTRATION BUILDING

700 LAVACA
P.O BOX 1748

AUSTIN,TX.78767
(512)854-9125

FAX:(512)854-9164

To: Members of Commissioners Court
I

From: t--$N/*, Ritey, County Auditor

Subject:

Date:

Request for Conversion to Bi-weekly Payroll

April 15,2014

For many years now Travis County employees have been paid on a semi-monthly basis,
the 1Sth and last business day of each month. ln 2011, the Court was asked to chahge the
payroll schedule to bi-weekly, which was not approved because the timing of the bi-weekly
pay dates and pay amounts would have resulted in negative cash flow for ieveral months at
a time for all employees. With the implementation of SAP, it is now possible to remedy this
situation.

Also, with a bi-weekly payroll schedule in SAP, employee pay could be accelerated by one
week so that all employees would only be paid one week in arrears (i.e., lag time would
decrease from one pay period to one week). This means that all employees would receive
an extra week of pay upon implementation of the bi-weekly payroll schedule, and this would
be at no additional cost to the County.

Currently the Counly..naVs employees two weeks in arrears. For example, a paycheck
received on March 1Sth is for the pay period February 16-28; a paycheck received on-March
31't is for the pay period of March 1-15, and so on. This can'be a problem, especially for
new hires, as they will not receive a full paycheck for at least a month.

Besides employees receiving an extra week of pay upon implementation, there are many
other advantages that come with a bi-weekly payroil schedule:

. Employees are paid more frequently and consistently (every other Friday).

. Employees receive overtime pay more quickly.

o Employees can calculate and verify their paycheck amounts easier.

. Payroll Liaisons and Managers can eliminate partialweek approvats.

o Man?gers can project, manage and analyze overtime pay easier.



Request for Conversion to Bi-weekly Payroll
April 15,2014
Page 2

. New employees will receive a full paycheck sooner.

o Eliminates expensive SAP customizations and extensive modifications.

. Negates need to maintain/test required semi-monthly payroll customizations for
future SAP upgrades.

o Pay period aligns with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) resulting in total
compliance with their standards.

Currently, the standard SAP configuration requires a manual process in the calculation of
overtime for certain situations. However, this manual process does not address alt
situations and is not a feasible process for the longterm. An SAP expert was contracted to
determine if a solution could be developed. They have concluded that a customization
would be necessary to fully automate the calculation of overtime at a cost of approximately
$40K. A switch to a bi-weekly payroll schedule would negate the need for this
customization.

Overall, a bi-weekly schedule would help resolve many issues that County employees,
managers and time administrators are all currently experiencing. Plus, it would help
alleviate the undue burden of future payroll customizations in SAp. 

-

cc: Leroy Nellis, Acting county Executive, Planning and Budget office
Debbie Maynor, Director, Human Resources Management Department



BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL PROPOSAL

Prepared by: 

Travis County Auditor’s Office

April 15, 2014



Bi-weekly Payroll Proposal
Current Payroll is Semi-monthly 

 Pay dates are the 15th and last business day of each month.

 24 pay checks are issued each year for each employee.

 A lag of one pay period (approximately two weeks) exists. 

2



Bi-weekly Payroll Proposal
What are the ISSUES with Semi-monthly Payroll?

1. The lag time in getting paid makes employees wait to receive 

the pay they’ve earned.

 Example: Pay date of March 15th is for pay period February 16-28.

 New employees wait up to a month for first paycheck.

Hire date March 1st First pay check March 31st

2.     Non-exempt employees wait 1 – 2 pay periods to receive OT.

3.     Paychecks are difficult to understand due to “smoothing.”

3



Bi-weekly Payroll Proposal
Proposed Payroll is Bi-weekly

 Pay dates are every other Friday.

 26 pay checks are issued each year for each employee.

 Every pay period is 80 hours. 

4



Bi-Weekly Payroll Proposal

What are the BENEFITS of Bi-weekly Payroll?

1. Employees are paid more frequently and consistently. 

• Every other Friday.

5



Benefit # 1:  Employees are Paid More Frequently

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31

30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

Fiscal Year 2015 Example (Semi-Monthly)

JANUARY 2015

OCTOBER 2014

MARCH 2015

NOVEMBER 2014 DECEMBER 2014

JUNE 2015

FEBRUARY 2015

MAY 2015

SEPTEMBER 2015

APRIL 2015

JULY 2015 AUGUST 2015

6



Benefit # 1:  Employees are Paid More Frequently

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31

30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

JULY 2015 AUGUST 2015 SEPTEMBER 2015

APRIL 2015 MAY 2015 JUNE 2015

JANUARY 2015 FEBRUARY 2015 MARCH 2015

Fiscal Year 2015 Example (Bi-Weekly)
OCTOBER 2014 NOVEMBER 2014 DECEMBER 2014

7



Bi-Weekly Payroll Proposal

What are the BENEFITS of Bi-weekly Payroll?

2. Employees receive overtime pay sooner. 

• Paid in the same pay period as earned.

• Checks are easy to understand.

8



S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

APRIL 2015

MAY 2015

Benefit # 2:  Employees receive Overtime pay sooner
Example: Employee works Overtime (OT) week of April 12-18, 2015:

 2 hours overtime earned on April 15th

 10 hours overtime earned from April 16-17

Bi-Weekly:  

All 12 hours OT paid

Semi-Monthly:

4/30:  2 hours OT paid
5/15:  10 hours OT paid 

Semi-Monthly:

4/30:  2 hours OT paid
5/15:  10 hours OT paid 

TOTAL SU 04/12 MO 04/13 TU 04/14 WE 04/15 TH 04/16 FR 04/17 SA 04/18

52 8 16 8 10 8 2 0

9

Week of April 12 - 18

Cumulative total:         8                     24                    32                     42                    50        52                   52     



Bi-Weekly Payroll Proposal

What are the BENEFITS of Bi-weekly Payroll?

3. New employees receive first paycheck earlier. 

• SAP allows bi-weekly pay period lag to be 

reduced to one week.

10



S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31

DECEMBER 2014

Benefit # 3:  New Employees receive first paycheck earlier
Example: Employee starts work December 1, 2014:

First Semi-Monthly 

Paycheck

11

First Bi-Weekly 

Paycheck for

Pay period 12/1 – 12/13



Bi-weekly Payroll Proposal

Question:  
How is this Proposal different 
from previous Proposals?

12



Bi-Weekly Payroll Proposal
PAY COMPARISON CUMULATIVE DIFFERENCE

BI-WEEKLY SEMI-MONTHLY BI-WEEKLY
SEMI-

MONTHLY

Paydate Gross Pay Paydate Gross Pay Pos (Neg) Pos (Neg)

01/27/12 1,154 01/31/12 1,250 ($96) $96 

02/10/12 1,154 02/15/12 1,250 ($192) $192 

02/24/12 1,154 02/29/12 1,250 ($288) $288 

03/09/12 1,154 03/15/12 1,250 ($385) $385 

03/23/12 1,154 03/30/12 1,250 ($481) $481 

04/06/12 1,154 04/13/12 1,250 ($577) $577 

04/20/12 1,154 04/30/12 1,250 ($673) $673

05/04/12 1,154 05/15/12 1,250 ($769) $769

05/18/12 1,154 05/31/12 1,250 ($865) $865

06/01/12 1,154 - - ($962) $962

06/15/12 1,154 06/15/12 1,250 $192 ($192)

06/29/12 1,154 06/29/12 1,250 $96 ($96)

07/13/12 1,154 07/13/12 1,250 $0 ($0)

07/27/12 1,154 07/31/12 1,250 ($96) $96 

08/10/12 1,154 08/15/12 1,250 ($192) $192 

08/24/12 1,154 08/31/12 1,250 ($288) $288 

09/07/12 1,154 09/14/12 1,250 ($385) $385 

09/21/12 1,154 09/28/12 1,250 ($481) $481 

10/05/12 1,154 10/15/12 1,250 ($577) $577 

10/19/12 1,154 10/31/12 1,250 ($673) $673

11/02/12 1,154 - - $481 ($481)

11/16/12 1,154 11/15/12 1,250 $385 ($385)

11/30/12 1,154 11/30/12 1,250 $289 ($289)

12/14/12 1,154 12/14/12 1,250 $192 ($192)

12/28/12 1,154 12/31/12 1,250 $96 ($96)

01/11/13 1,154 01/15/12 1,250 $0 ($0)

30,000 30,000 

Note: Actual amount of bi-weekly pay is $1,153.85.

Example: Annual Salary
of $30,000

Employees’ pay immediately
falls short because they 

stay on a two-week lag using
this method of implementation. 

2011 Proposal

13



Comparison:  Bi-Weekly vs Semi-Monthly ($30K salary)

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000
01

/3
1/

12

02
/1

4/
12

02
/2

8/
12

03
/1

3/
12

03
/2

7/
12

04
/1

0/
12

04
/2

4/
12

05
/0

8/
12

05
/2

2/
12

06
/0

5/
12

06
/1

9/
12

07
/0

3/
12

07
/1

7/
12

07
/3

1/
12

08
/1

4/
12

08
/2

8/
12

09
/1

1/
12

09
/2

5/
12

10
/0

9/
12

10
/2

3/
12

11
/0

6/
12

11
/2

0/
12

12
/0

4/
12

12
/1

8/
12

01
/0

1/
13

01
/1

5/
13

YTD Bi-Weekly YTD Semi-Monthly

2011 Proposal

Year-to-date bi-weekly payroll amount is “behind” semi-monthly year-to-date 

most of the time.

14



Bi-weekly Payroll Proposal

Example: Annual Salary
of $30,000

Employees’ pay will never
fall short because they will 
receive an extra week up 

front using this method
of implementation. 

PAY COMPARISON CUMULATIVE DIFFERENCE

BI-WEEKLY SEMI-MONTHLY BI-WEEKLY
SEMI-

MONTHLY

Paydate Gross Pay Paydate Gross Pay Pos (Neg) Pos (Neg)

04/10/15 1,731 04/15/15 1,250 $481 ($481)

04/24/15 1,154 04/30/15 1,250 $385 ($385)

05/08/15 1,154 05/15/15 1,250 $288 ($288)

05/22/15 1,154 05/29/15 1,250 $192 ($192)

06/05/15 1,154 06/15/15 1,250 $96 ($96)

06/19/15 1,154 06/30/15 1,250 $0 ($0)

07/03/15 1,154 - - $1,154 ($1,154)

07/17/15 1,154 07/15/15 1,250 $1,058 ($1,058)

07/31/15 1,154 07/31/15 1,250 $962 ($962)

08/14/15 1,154 08/14/15 1,250 $865 ($865)

08/28/15 1,154 08/31/15 1,250 $769 ($769)

09/10/15 1,154 09/15/15 1,250 $673 ($673)

09/25/15 1,154 09/30/15 1,250 $577 ($577)

10/09/15 1,154 10/15/15 1,250 $481 ($481)

10/23/15 1,154 10/30/15 1,250 $385 ($385)

11/06/15 1,154 11/13/15 1,250 $289 ($289)

11/20/15 1,154 11/30/15 1,250 $192 ($192)

12/04/15 1,154 12/15/15 1,250 $96 ($96)

12/18/15 1,154 12/31/15 1,250 $0 ($0)

12/31/15 1,154 - - $1,154 ($1,154)

01/15/16 1,154 01/15/16 1,250 $1,058 ($1,058)

01/31/16 1,154 01/29/16 1,250 $962 ($962)

02/12/16 1,154 02/15/16 1,250 $865 ($865)

02/26/16 1,154 02/29/16 1,250 $769 ($769)

03/11/16 1,154 03/15/16 1,250 $673 ($673)

03/25/16 1,154 03/31/16 1,250 $577 ($577)

30,577 30,000 

Note:  Actual amount of bi-weekly pay is $1,153.85 except first payment which is $1,730.78.

Current Proposal

15



Comparison:  Bi-Weekly vs Semi-Monthly ($30K salary)

Year-to-date bi-weekly payroll amount is never less than semi-monthly year-to-date.

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

04
/1

5/
15

04
/2

9/
15

05
/1

3/
15

05
/2

7/
15

06
/1

0/
15

06
/2

4/
15

07
/0

8/
15

07
/2

2/
15

08
/0

5/
15

08
/1

9/
15

09
/0

2/
15

09
/1

6/
15

09
/3

0/
15

10
/1

4/
15

10
/2

8/
15

11
/1

1/
15

11
/2

5/
15

12
/0

9/
15

12
/2

3/
15

01
/0

6/
16

01
/2

0/
16

02
/0

3/
16

02
/1

7/
16

03
/0

2/
16

03
/1

6/
16

03
/3

0/
16

Bi-Weekly YTD Semi-Monthly YTD

Current Proposal

16



Bi-Weekly Payroll Proposal

Questions?

17



Item 29































































AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, County Judge’s Office 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE BOND FOR MANUEL JIMENEZ JR. CHIEF DEPUTY 
CONSTABLE, PRECINCT FOUR. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Attached is the Bond. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Recommend approval. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Invoices for the bonds are paid from the Risk Management fund in HRMD. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Margie Solano, Risk Management, HRMD 
Maria Canchola, Travis County Constable, Precinct 4 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


hereby bind ourselves and our heirs, executors and administrators, jointly and severally, by these presents.

TEXAS OFFICIAL BOND AND OATH

THE STATE OF TEXAS
ss.

County of
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, , as Principal, and the
MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (Mutual), a corporation duly licensed to do business in the State of Texas, as Surety, are held and bound
unto , his successors in office, in the sum of

) DOLLARS, for the payment of which we(

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION is such, that, whereas, the above bounden Principal was on the
day of ,
to the office of

duly

in and for

County in the State of Texas, for a term beginning the day of , and ending the day of   ,                .

           Now, therefore, if the said Principal shall well and faithfully perform and discharge all the duties required of him by law as the aforesaid

officer, and shall

then this obligation to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

           PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that regardless of the number of years this bond may remain in force and the number of claims which may be made
against this bond, the liability of the Surety shall not be cumulative and the aggregate liability of the Surety for any and all claims, suits, or actions under
this bond shall not exceed the amount stated above.  Any revision of the bond amount shall not be cumulative.

             PROVIDED, FURTHER, that this bond may be canceled by the Surety by sending written notice to the party to whom this bond is payable stating
that, not less than thirty (30) days thereafter, the Surety's liability hereunder shall terminate as to subsequent acts of the Principal.

Dated this day of ,

MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (Mutual)

By:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRINCIPAL

THE STATE OF TEXAS

ss.County of

Before me, , a notary public, on this day personally appeared

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed.

Given under my hand and seal of office, at

this day of ,

SEAL

County, Texas.

,

PO 0123 TX (7/09)

Bond No.

AUSTIN OFFICE
P.O. BOX 26720

AUSTIN, TX 78755-0720
(512) 343-9033

(512) 343-8363 FAX

HOME OFFICE
2100  FLEUR DRIVE
DES MOINES, IA 50321-1158
(515) 243-8171
(515) 243-3854 FAX

Principal























































 
 
Meeting Date: April 15, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leroy Nellis, Acting County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
 
1.         Public Hearing regarding proposed issuance of Travis County 
Housing Finance Corporation Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (The 
Hampton Apartments), Series 2014. 
  
2.         Consider and take appropriate action on request to consider and 
approve Resolution approving a tax exempt bond financing to be 
undertaken by Travis County Housing Finance Corporation to finance the 
acquisition and rehabilitation of the Hampton Apartments, 1773 Wells 
Branch Parkway, Austin, Texas. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  See 
attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
 

Items 31 and 33



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 
 

 
 



Items 32 and 34



























Item 35





Judges’ 
Introduction and 

History of Request

1



Criminal Courts’ Proposal for
Managed Assigned Counsel 

Program
In Collaboration with Austin Criminal 

Defense Lawyers Association & 
Austin Bar Association

April 15, 2014



The Sixth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution 

“In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public 
trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been 
committed, which district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be 

informed of the nature and cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the 
witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his 

favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defence.” 3



.

What is Our History of Indigent 
Defense Representation?

2001
S.B. 7

Modeled after 
Travis County

Mandates all 
criminal courts in 
Texas to adopt 

formal procedures 
for providing 

appointed  lawyers 
to indigent 

defendants. 

1963
Gideon 

Decision

“Any person 
haled into court, 
who is too poor 
to hire a lawyer, 

cannot be 
assured a fair 

trial unless 
counsel is 

provided for him”

1980’s
Travis   
Leads

Utilizes attorney 
appointment 
“wheels” to 

ensure fairness 
in appointments 

and quality 
representation 

2011
New Option:
CCP Art. 26.047 (a)

Managed
Assigned

Counsel Program

CURRENT REQUEST

4



Current Process
1. Judges review attorney applications and approve 

for appropriate list.

2. Judges appoint attorneys from a public 
appointment list using a system of rotation.

3. Judges set the attorney fee schedule and approve 
all payment vouchers.

4. Judges conduct annual review of attorneys and 
require annual verification of CLE.

5



Defense function is independent of the judiciary

Consists of both a defender office and active participation of the private bar

Clients are screened  for eligibility and appointed as soon as possible

Defense counsel’s workload is controlled05

03

02

ABA Ten Principles of a Public Defense Delivery System

Defense counsel is provided sufficient time and space to meet with clients 04

01

Defense counsel’s ability, training and expertise match case complexity

Parity exists between defense and prosecution with respect to resources

Defense counsel is supervised and reviewed for quality and efficiency 10

08

07

Defense counsel is provided with and required to attend continuing legal education 09

06

The same attorney represents the client until case is complete

6



Concerns We Face

• Judiciary is not independent from the indigent 
defense system (ABA Principle 1).

• Current system lacks sufficient resources to 
thoroughly verify attorney qualifications (ABA 
Principle 6).

• Current system lacks sufficient resources to 
ensure proper oversight and mentoring of 
appointed attorneys (ABA Principle 10).

7



MAC

Independence – MAC Director appoints and approves invoices

Verification – MAC screens all applicants thoroughly

Oversight  – MAC supervises & mentors attorneys

Performance Measures – Evaluates attorney effectiveness

Consistency – Provides single point of review for vouchers

Benefits of the MAC Solution

Quality – Dedicated investigator & enhanced review of experts

8



What Steps Were Taken to Explore 
a MAC Program?

Fall 2012 Judges vote to explore MAC option

Jan 2013 - Mar  2014

May 2013

Oct. 2013

Mar. 2014

Nov. 2013

Mar. 2014

Collaborative meetings held with Judges, ACDLA & ABA (100+ meetings)

Site visit to Lubbock, TX to observe MAC

Site visit to San Mateo, CA to observe MAC

Judges unanimously vote to pursue MAC via grant proposal

Meeting w/ ABA to review space and staff resources

Letter of Intent submitted to Commission on Indigent
Defense for potential grant funding

9



Funding Opportunity

• TIDC FY15 Grant (funding begins October 1, 2014).

• Multi-year grant reimbursement rates are 80%-60%-40%-
20% for 4 years.  5th year 100% funded by Travis County.  

• Funding contingent upon meeting performance 
measures.

• Grant application due May 9, 2014

10



MAC PROPOSAL PRESENTED BY
ACDLA AND ABA

11



A  M A N A G E D  A S S I G N E D  C O U N S E L  O F F I C E

TRAVIS COUNTY 
PRIVATE DEFENDER



STRUCTURE
A NEW NON-PROF IT

13



TRAVIS COUNTY PRIVATE DEFENDER

The MAC will be a joint venture of:
• ACDLA (Austin Criminal Defense Attorneys Assoc.)
• Austin Bar Association
• Oversight by County Leadership

14



ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

Oversight 
Committee

Board of 
Directors

Review 
Committee Director

Assistant Director

Mentor Attorney

Investigator
Financial Anylst

Admin Staff 15



LEADERSHIP

• Board of Directors (“BOD”)
• 7 voting members
• 3 ex officio members (non-voting members)

• Oversight Committee
• County leadership

• Review Board
• Panel of experienced and respected attorneys

16



OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

Membership

1. Presiding District Court 
Judge

2. Presiding County Court 
Judge

3. Court Administrator
4. Criminal Justice Planning 

Chair
5. Commissioner
6. Director of Mental Health 

Public Defender
7. Director of Juvenile Public 

Defender

Function

• Annual contract review
• Quarterly meetings with BOD 

on state of organization
• Monthly reports of status of 

funds spent
• Annual report presented for 

review and comment before 
publishing

17



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Voting Membership

• 2 ACDLA Board Members
• 1 elected by membership
• 1 elected by ACDLA BOD

• 2 ABA Board Members
• 1 must be active in 

criminal defense

• 1 Selected by Oversight 
Committee (retired senior 
criminal judge)

• 2 non-practicing attorneys 
with fiduciary/business 
experience

Function

• Fiduciary responsibilities
• Financial disclosures
• Hires/fires director
• Approves budget
• Approves recommendations 

of Review Committee
• Meets with Oversight 

Committee

18



NON–VOTING BOARD MEMBERS

• 3 ex officio members
• Non-voting
• Must be on the court appointment list
• Provide guidance and expertise of the current functioning 

of the list

19



ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

Oversight 
Committee

Board of 
Directors

Review 
Committee Director

20



REVIEW COMMITTEE

• Structure
• Authorized by statute
• 3-11 members
• 10 years minimum criminal law experience
• 3 members sit on any case review and full panel on annual 

list review
• May add additional temporary members as approved by 

BOD to hear individual cases
• Cannot be on court appointment list
• Recruited/Nominated by Director and approved by BOD
• Serve 1 year renewable terms

21



REVIEW COMMITTEE

• Function 
• Final determination on qualified attorneys for list
• Final determination on level on list
• Hears appeals of MAC Director determination on vouchers 

(further appeals to per statute)
• Hears specific allegations of unsatisfactory performance 

based on subject matter area
• Hears any matter referred by the MAC Director for adverse 

action against panel member

22



FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
A COST  BREAKDOWN

23



STAFFING

Lubbock

• 10,000 cases
• 80 attorney list
• 3 million budget
• 1 Director

• 3 full time non-attorney 
employees

• Total personnel cost is 
$360,400

• Recently added a new full time attorney 
position for mentoring and training

San Mateo

• 15,000 cases
• 110 attorney list
• 16 million budget
• 1 Director

• 3 supervising attorneys
• ~12 staff members

• Total personnel cost is 
$1,796,000

24



FULLY PRIVATE VS. HYBRID MODEL

Lubbock and San Mateo

• Fully privatized all 
services including 
payment and 
individual appointment

• Entire indigent defense 
budget paid directly to 
organization

Travis County
• Hybrid model leaving 

many of the 
administrative functions in 
Court Administration

• Reduces complexity of 
implementation

• Reduces costs
• Retains integrated and 

highly effective support 
system

• Auditors office will 
continue to make 
individual payments for 
services

25



TRAVIS COUNTY MAC STAFFING

• 25,000 cases (current case load)
• 250 attorney list (current list size)

• Future list size is not determined
• 8.3 million budget (to allocate for individual 

services)
• Staff

• 1 Director
• 1 - 1st Assistant Director
• 1 - 2nd Assistant Director
• 1 Full time investigator 
• 1 Full time administrative staff member
• 1 Part time financial analyst

26



STAFFING BREAKDOWN

• Attorney Director - $140,000 to $160,000
• Salary Comparison

• District Attorney 1st Assistant - $133,996 to $214,399
• District Attorney Division Director - $109,380 to $175,009
• District Attorney VII - $95,524 to $152,828

• 1st Assistant Director - $110,000 to $130,000
• 2nd Assistant Director - $90,000 to $110,000
• Full time investigator - $60,000 to $80,000
• Administrative Assistant - $30,000 to $50,000
• Part time Financial Analyst- $25,000 to $35,000

• Benefits – up to $104,060
• Taxes – up to $38,434
• Total Cost – up to $707,494

27



OPERATIONAL COSTS
• Office Space*
• Mentorship Program
• IDA Software Maintenance*
• Training and Prof. Membership
• Office Supplies
• CPA Prof. Services (taxes)
• Prof. Liability Insurance
• Legal Research Subscriptions
• Moving Expenses*
• IT/Computer Maintenance
• Copier Service Agreement
• Telephone Service
• Bank Fees
• Web Hosting
• Postage
• Total 

• Capital Equipment (Software, office  
equipment, phones, furniture, etc.)

• 2% Indirect Cost for Grant

$48,000
$30,000
$13,200
$10,500
$  3,000
$  5,000
$  4,000
$  2,100
$  2,000
$  1,500
$  1,000
$     600
$     500
$     200
$     200
$121,800

$111,215 (one time cost)

$14,406
28*Will not incur this expense in year 1, but included is a placeholder for budget years 2-4



TOTAL ONGOING COST OF MAC OFFICE

• Total Ongoing Cost $829,294

• Grant available for 50% matching over 4 years.

• First year cost to county up to $188,102 to be paid internally by 
Texas Indigent Defense Commission (TIDC) Formula Grant.

29



KEY FEATURE OF MAC

• Independent review of performance and 
qualification

• Independent determination of payment amounts
• Formal mentorship and training program
• Peer-evaluation and assessment in question of 

fitness
• Full time positions dedicated to providing quality 

review of indigent defense services

30



LETTER OF SUPPORT AND 
STATUTE AUTHORIZING 

MAC

31















Item 36





Item 37



Item 38



Item 39



 
 
Meeting Date: 04/15/14 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Leslie W. Dippel, 854-9513 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Hon. Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: CONSULTATION WITH COUNTY ATTORNEY, 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION CONCERNING THE EXTENSION 
OF ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WITH PAY FOR COUNTY ATTORNEY EMPLOYEE, 
POSITION NUMBER 30000901.  (EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER GOV’T. CODE 
ANN. §551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY, AND §551.074, 
PERSONNEL EXCEPTION) 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 40



 
 
Meeting Date: April 15 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Sessions of March 18 & 25 and April 1, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, March 18, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on March 18, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León 
Zoila Vega, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Morris Priest, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
Andrea Shields, Manager, Travis County Corporations 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that the burn ban was lifted by the County Judge on Friday, 
March 14, 2014, and that by taking no action on this item, the prohibition against outdoor 
burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 3/25/2014 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. An interlocal agreement by the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority, Travis County 
and Hays County regarding State Highway 45 Southwest; and   

 
b. A reimbursement resolution committing Travis County to finance expenditures for the 

design and construction of State Highway 45 Southwest in the amount of $2,500,000 and 
to reimburse itself from state highway bonds. (Commissioner Daugherty) 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Mike Heiligenstein, Executive Director, Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA) 
Carlos Swonke, Director, Environmental Affairs Division, Texas Department of 

Transportation (TxDOT) 
David Foster, Clean Water Action 
Roy Waley, Conservation Chair, Austin Regional Group of the Sierra Club 
Ira Yates, Travis County resident 
Bill Aleshire, Travis County resident 
Beth Ann Ray, Vice President, Regional Infrastructure, Austin Chamber of Commerce 
Craig Nazor, Austin Sierra Club 
Jason Gómez, Travis County resident 
Zoila Vega, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Daniel Llanes, Travis County resident 
Bill Bunch, Executive Director, Save Our Springs Alliance (SOS) 
Dick Kellerman, Save Barton Springs Association 
Dick Perrone, Travis County resident 
Rick Perkins, Travis County resident 
Mary Anderson, Texans Against Tolls 
Bruce Burton, Travis County resident 
Jason Pattman, Travis County resident 
Robert Corbin, Travis County resident 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 2 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

 
MOTION: Approve Items 2.a and b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Ron Davis 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
3. Approve contract award for Travis County Correctional Complex Building 400 digital mixing 

valves and hot water boilers, IFB No. B1401-006-PS, to the low bidder, Hot Rod Mechanical, 
Inc. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

 
4. Reject bid for automotive storage batteries Bid # 1312-005-RF and rebid. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Approve Contract 4400001677, Terry M. Carvajal, for the provision of professional 

psychological/counseling services for the Collaborative Opportunities for Positive Experience 
Program (COPE). 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

6. Approve contract award for janitorial services at West Rural Community Center, Precinct 3 
Office Building and Ray Martinez Precinct 4 Office Building, IFB B1402-004-LD, to the low 
bidders:   

 
a. Group A – K B Contract Cleaning; and   
 
b. Group B – International Building Services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Approve contract award for public engagement services, RFS No. S1308-010-JW, to the most 

highly qualified firm, Concept Development & Planning, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use an alternative fiscal agreement for 

Avalon, Phase 11A in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with Askate Foundation for 

the purposes of having exclusive use of Northeast Metro Skate Park to host Autism Skateboard 
Day on April 6, 2014 between the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. (Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with West Travis County 

Public Utility Agency for Permit Number 13-2469, a site plan in Precinct Three. (Commissioner 
Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action to accept a donation from Bonanza Productions, Inc. in 

the amount of $750.00 for trail development in southeast Travis County. (Commissioner 
Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A policy for flood-prone commercial property buyouts; and   
 
b. Other flood related issues. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 
Melinda Mallia, Environmental Project Manager, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Marcia Zwilling, Travis County resident 
Tom Nuckols, Assistant County Attorney 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 12 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Next: 3/25/2014 9:00 AM 

 
 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Approve the amended and restated Parmer Lane Participation Agreement for the design 
and construction of Parmer Lane Extension; and   

 
b. Approve the first amendment to Parmer Lane Extension Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

with the City of Austin in Precinct One. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
14. Ratify request from Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service to make 

application to Capital Metro for bus passes to be used in accordance with the provisions of 
Capital Metro’s 2014 Basic Transportation Needs Fund. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
15. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Diana Ramirez, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 

Clerk's Note: Staff noted that New Budget Item N1 should indicate the District Attorney's Office 
instead of TNR and New Budget Item N2 should indicate Juvenile Probation instead of TNR. 

MOTION: Approve Item 15 with the corrections noted by staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: For this Item, N1 and N2 are references to numbered items in the supporting 
budget document. 

 
16. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. New application to the Disney Worldwide Conservation Fund for a National 4-H Council - 
Exploring Your Environment After-School Grant in Health and Human Services and 
Veterans Service Department; and   

 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

b. New contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division for a Prostitution 
Prevention Program – Planning Grant in Criminal Justice Planning Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,603,217.96 for the period of February 28 to March 6, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on Fiscal Year 2015 budget issues, including the Fiscal 

Year 2015 budget guidelines. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Option 1 -- the effective tax rate. 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
RESULT: DIED FOR LACK OF A SECOND 
 
MOTION: Approve the effective tax rate plus 1.5%. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on Travis County debt policy. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 3/25/2014 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on adoption of an order authorizing publication of notice of 

intent to issue certificates of obligation. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve the short- and long-term debt issuance in Item 21. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that this issuance of Certificates of Obligation covers short-
term projects in Facilities Management Department (FMD), Transportation and Natural 
Resources (TNR), Information Technology Services (ITS), Travis County Sheriff's Office 
(TCSO), and the Precinct 4 road project. 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action on the membership and charge for the Community Focus 

Committee for the proposed civil and family courthouse project. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, PBO 
Beverly Silas, President, Beverly Silas & Associates  

 
MOTION: Approve the current nominees to the Committee and increase the Hispanic 

representation by two persons, to reach a total of 30 members. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on license agreement to use the Old County Jail in the 

Heman Marion Sweatt Courthouse to shoot a student film on March 28, April 12 and 13, 2014, 
with makeup dates on April 18, 19 and 20, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on Travis County employee parking issues in the central 

business district:   
 

a. Expanding zoned parking to all County owned parking facilities in the central business 
district;   

 
b. Proposed Commute Options Benefit Program;   
 
c. Phasing out of parking waiting list and termination of any County leased parking lot 

agreements that become unnecessary due to zoned parking; and   
 
d. Amendments to Chapter 11 of the Travis County Code (Parking Policy). 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Mark Gilbert, Strategic Resource Planning, PBO 
Margaret Sifuentes, Legal Secretary, Travis County Attorney's Office 
Robin Osborn, Lieutenant, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) 
Alex Leo, Sergeant, TCSO, Vice President, Travis County Sheriff's Officers Association 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 
Elaine Casas, Assistant County Attorney 
Annalynn Cox, Assistant County Attorney 
Barbara Wilson, Assistant County Attorney 
Leticia Tapia-Ojeda, Legal Secretary, Travis County Attorney's Office 
Carol Guthrie, Business Manager, Local 1624, American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
Antoinette Nickler, Office Specialist, Travis County Attorney's Office 
Cheree Voigt, Travis County Treasurer's Office 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 
 
MOTION: Approve Items 24.a and c. 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner  
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 

 
FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: Conduct periodic audits for each garage facility; address concerns regarding 

elevators, lighting and parking for handicapped and physically challenged 
individuals; make carpooling easier and more attractive for employees and 
ensure that carpooling employees have spaces, before zoned parking is 
implemented. 

MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT ACCEPTED 
 
Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken.  
 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 2] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
NAYS: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
 
Clerk’s Note: Judge Biscoe suggested that the garage audits take place in the following order: 
Granger, San Antonio, 700 Lavaca, Executive Office Building (EOB), and surface lots in the 
vicinity. The Court directed staff to conduct the audits, gather the facts, put together a tailored 
remedy, discuss this with the managers and employees at each garage, collect relevant input 
and record location preferences of current parkers before allocation of parking. The garages 
should be treated as separate parking facilities, with remedies tailored to each one. 

MOTION: Approve Item 2.b and direct to staff to implement the program, effective 
October 1, 2014. 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 2] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
NAYS: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
 
Clerk’s Note: Item 24.d will be reposted at the appropriate time. 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Brian Ballena Raygon to the 

Emergency Services District Number 12 Board of Commissioners effective immediately through 
December 31, 2015. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action to fill vacancy on the Strategic Housing Finance 

Corporation Board of Directors. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Deece Eckstein, Intergovernmental Relations Officer, Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) 

 
MOTION: Appoint Wilmer Roberts. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
27. Receive briefing from County Attorney and/or take appropriate action in: Nueces County, Texas 

and Travis County, Texas, et al. vs. MERSCORP Holdings, Inc., et al.; Civil Action No. 2:12-CV-
00131.

 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the potential purchase of real estate in south 

Austin.
 1 and 2

 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

MOTION: Authorize staff to conduct an appropriate appraisal of the land in question. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
29. Receive briefing from County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding Rick Rogers v. 

Travis County, Texas, and Sheriff Greg Hamilton, in his official capacity, only; cause No. D1-
GN-12-003897; in the 419th Judicial District of Travis County, Texas.

 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 29 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Authorize the Travis County Attorney to appeal this matter. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Bruce Todd 

 
30. Accept resignation of County Executive for Planning and Budget, and consider choices for 

replacement and interim coverage of functional areas.
 3
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel 
Matters. 



 

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

MOTION: Accept the resignation. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that the Court received a briefing on possible interim 
assignments and will bring those back next week, Tuesday, March 25, 2014, for action by the 
Commissioners Court. 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C2 and Agenda Items 4, 5, 6.a–b, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 
13.a–b, 14, 16.a–b, 17, 18, 23, and 25. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, March 25, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on March 25, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments regarding a partial plat cancellation of Lots 1-9, Tract 9, resubdivision of 

(Tracts 5, 6, 8, and 9) – 15.305 acres, Lakehurst Subdivision; Lots 1-9 and Lots 21-29, a portion 
of Tract 8 – 7.199 acres, Lakehurst Subdivision; 9.121 acre portion of Lot 10, Lakehurst 
Subdivision; 27.468 acre (Tract 18), Lakehurst Subdivision; and two tracts a 2.51 acre tract and 
a 3.958 acre tract, identified as parts of unnamed right-of-way (Tract 10), Lakehurst Subdivision 
– (The Summit at Lake Travis condominiums – Crosswind Drive and Lakehurst Road, Lakeway 
ETJ – 150 units) in Precinct Three. (Action Item #22) (Commissioner Daugherty) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
Clint Jones, Developer 
Chris Gilmore, Assistant County Attorney 
Paul Quinn, Vice President, Vistas at Lake Travis 
Tim Hostetter, Vistas at Lake Travis 
Geri Brown, Crosswind Property Owners Association 
Mark Buffington, Travis County resident 
Meagan Crowe, Travis County resident 
Jim Eubank, Travis County resident 
Betsy Sapienza, President, Vistas of Lake Travis 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 
 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 1 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

 
2. Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate two 

five-foot wide public utility easements located along the common lot line of Lots 755 and 756 of 
Apache Shores, Section 3 Precinct Three. (Action Item #23) (Commissioner Daugherty) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, TNR 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
4. Approve proclamation recognizing the Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity from the Southwestern 

Province for cohosting the 78th annual Southwestern Province meeting in Austin, Texas on 
March 27, 2014. (Judge Biscoe) 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

 
Members of the Court heard from: 

Michael Winn, Director, Elections Division, Travis County Clerk's Office 
Eric Narcisse, Past President, Austin Alumni Chapter, Kappa Alpha Psi 

MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 4. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
5. Approve proclamation recognizing Congregation Agudas Achim’s history in Travis County and 

congratulating the congregation on its centennial year celebrations. (Commissioner Todd) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Joe Steinberg, Member, Congregation Agudas Achim 
Mike Miller, Member, Congregation Agudas Achim 

MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 5. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office 

MOTION: Approve Budget Items A1, A2, and O1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
 
MOTION: Approve Budget Item N1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: For this Item, A1, A2, N1, and O1 are references to numbered items in the 
supporting budget document. 

 
7. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Annual application to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division to continue the 
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program in the Juvenile Probation Department; 
and   

 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

b. Application to amend the contract with the Corporation for National and Community 
Service for enhancements to the Coming of Age program in the Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Service Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items from the Human Resources 

Management Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and    
 
b. Non-routine request from Travis County Sheriff’s Office for a variance to the Travis County 

Code, Section 10.03008, Promotion. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$688,786.64 for the period of March 7 to March 13, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action regarding addition of Constable Lieutenant title to POPS 

scale:   
 

a. Constable Lieutenant job description;   
 
b. Pay grade for Constable Lieutenant; and   
 
c. Revised POPS scale. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on whether to issue a call for recommendations to name 

the new Travis County District Attorney Office Building located at 416 West 11th Street, Austin, 
Texas. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
H. Alan Hill, Attorney 
Rosemary Lehmberg, Travis County District Attorney 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 

 
MOTION: Indicate the Court's intention to proceed with the naming of the building, and 

put the final steps in place on Tuesday, April 1, 2014. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the allocation of office space for the following:   
 

a. Drug Court to move to the Executive Office Building and to be allocated 5693 square feet 
on the fourth floor;   

 
b. Facilities Management Department Maintenance, Operations and Security Divisions to be 

temporarily assigned to the Rusk Building in September 2014;   
 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

c. Office of Parental Representation to move from 209 W. 9th Street and to be allocated 
space at the 3rd floor of the University Savings Building in October 2014; and   

 
d. Office of Child Representation to move from 209 W. 9th Street and to be allocated space at 

the 4th floor of the University Savings Building in July 2015. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, FMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 12. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
13. Ratify memorandum of agreement between Travis County and Texas Military Forces to allow a 

secure landing zone at Camp Mabry for Star Flight aircraft during rescue operations. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
14. Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 4400000876, Downtown Austin Transportation 

Management Association (DATMA), for the development of transportation management 
strategies to encourage efficient utilization of existing transportation investments. 

Clerk's Note: Commissioner Davis voted in favor of the Consent motion but abstained on Item 
14. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Approve Modification No. 4 to Contract No. 4400000072 (HTE Contract No. 10AE0198JE), 

AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for design services, Arterial “A”. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Approve Interlocal Agreement No. 4400001950 Capital Area Council of Governments, for 

orthoimagery services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Approve order exempting early childhood social services, as listed, from the competitive 

procurement process pursuant to Section 262.024 (a) (4) of the Texas Local Government Code:   
 

a. Childcare tuition subsidy payments;   
 
b. Early childhood intervention services; and   
 
c. Head Start services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

18. Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 26) to Contract No. 4400000009 (HTE 
Contract No. 02T00215OJ), Milliman USA, Inc., for actuarial services for the Travis County Self-
Funded Plan. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A policy for flood-prone commercial property buyouts; and   
 
b. Other flood related issues. 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 19 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. The use of an alternative fiscal agreement for Commons at Rowe Lane, Phase VII; and   
 
b. The use of a cash security agreement for the fiscal posting for Commons at Rowe Lane, 

Phase VII in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. Plat for recording: The Commons at Rowe Lane, Phase IV -4A-final plat (The Commons at 
Rowe Lane, Phase IV -4A – subdivision final plat – 66 single-family Lots and 1 drainage 
Lot – Windmill Ridge Street – City of Pflugerville ETJ); and   

 
b. Subdivision construction agreement for Commons at Rowe Lane, Phase IV -4A in Precinct 

One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A partial plat cancellation of Lots 1-9, Tract 9, resubdivision of (Tracts 5, 6,8, and 9) – 
15.305 acres, Lakehurst Subdivision; Lots 1-9 and Lots 21-29, a portion of Tract 8 – 7.199 
acres, Lakehurst Subdivision; 9.121 acre portion of Lot 10, Lakehurst Subdivision; 27.468 
acre (Tract 18), Lakehurst Subdivision; and two tracts a 2.51 acre tract and a 3.958 acre 
tract, identified as parts of unnamed right-of-way (Tract 10), Lakehurst Subdivision – (the 
Summit at Lake Travis condominiums Crosswind Drive and Lakehurst Road-Lakeway ETJ 
– 150 units);   

 
b. An exemption from platting requirements for The Summit at Lake Travis condominiums – 

150 single-family detached units; and   
 
c. A condominium construction agreement for The Summit at Lake Travis condominiums in 

Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 22 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to 

vacate two five-foot wide public utility easements located along the common lot line of Lots 755 
and 756 of Apache Shores, Section 3 in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Ridgeview Phase II final plat (long form final plat – 78 total Lots – U.S. 
Highway 290 West – City of Austin 2-mile ETJ); and   

 
b. A Travis County subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and Ashton 

Austin Residential, LLC, in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action regarding public review of the draft Land, Water, and 

Transportation Plan. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Randy Nicholson. Long Range Planning Manager, TNR 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of donated computers from the Atmos 

Energy Company for client use in the Travis County Community Center at Pflugerville. 
 
RESULT: PULLED 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of five (5) computers and workstations 

donated by AustinFree.net to Health & Human Services and Veterans Service Family Support 
Services Division for client use in the community centers. 
 
RESULT: PULLED 

Other Items 

 
28. Receive FY2013 Annual Report from Travis County Pretrial Services in accordance with the 

provisions of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action regarding an interlocal agreement with the City of Austin 

to conduct a market and feasibility study on future uses and improvements of the Travis County 
Exposition Center and adjacent Walter E. Long Metropolitan Park. 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
 

MOTION: Approve Item 29 and process the budget change as an automatic 
adjustment. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
30. Consider and take appropriate action regarding replacement of County Executive for Planning 

and Budget and interim coverage of functional areas.
 3 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel Matters. 

MOTION: Approve Judge Biscoe's memorandum, bring Leroy Nellis on board on a 
part-time basis as of April 1, 2014, and implement the other parts of the 
memo, and that the members of the Commissioners Court communicate with 
appropriate County staff regarding the content of the memo, as appropriate. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
31. Consider and take appropriate action on an offer to sell an approximately 1.1 acre tract of 

undeveloped land located between State Highway 130 and Harris Branch Parkway for inclusion 
in the Eastern Creeks Open Space Project as part of the 2011 bond program in Precinct One.

 2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 31 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real Property. 

MOTION: Purchase the land for $40,000.00, plus closing costs. The source of funding 
will be 2011 Open Space bond funds. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
32. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the offer to settle Travis County’s Workers 

Compensation lien on the claims of Guillermo Martinez; Subrogation.
 1
 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Reduce the lien and expenses by one-third, as required by law, with the 
County receiving a total of $61,015.13. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
33. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Franz Hutter.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 33 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Forgive the debt. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Samuel T. Biscoe 

 
34. Consider and take appropriate action on request to extend the lease/interlocal agreement with 

the City of Austin for use of and to authorize facility improvements to Travis County property in 
eastern Travis County. (Judge Biscoe)

 1 and 2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 34 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

MOTION: Extend the lease and interlocal agreement and continue the restriction that 
the facility be used for women and their children only, and that the City of 
Austin collaborate with the Facilities Management Department (FMD) as that 
construction is done; and authorize the County Judge to sign on behalf of the 
Commissioners Court. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
35. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action in Stacee Caseltine v. Travis 

County, EEOC Charge No: 451-2013-02880.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 35 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Authorize the County Attorney's Office to negotiate further with Ms. Caseltine 

and her representatives from AFSCME. Travis County's counter-offer is 
$20,000.00 plus COBRA for 6 months, which has the financial equivalent of 
roughly $7,500.00, and that the County give a deadline of April 1, 2014, to 
respond. This item will be reposted on the Commissioners Court agenda for 
April 1, 2014. The County will be expecting a full release. 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the voting sessions of February 25 and March 4 

and 11, 2014. 
 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, April 8, 2014 to receive comments regarding 

street name assignments to several private easements on Highland Lakes Camp and 
Conference Center in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 

 
C5. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, April 22, 2014 to receive comments regarding a 

revised plat of Lot 110, Block F, Estates at Wilbarger Creek, Section 3 - (Estates at Wilbarger 
Creek, Section 3 subdivision) (Ann Shower Drive – no ETJ – 2 lots) in Precinct One. 
(Commissioner Davis) 

 
C6. Consider and take appropriate action in scheduling a public hearing (in accordance with 

Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code) for April 29, 2014 to receive comments 
regarding the pending conveyance of a transmission line easement to the City of Austin on, 
over, and across 7.46 acres of land located within Northeast Metro Park in Precinct Two – for 
installation, operation, and maintenance of high-voltage electrical utility lines by Austin Energy – 
as set forth under an agreed final judgment in County Court at Law No.1, wherein the subject 
property is being obtained via condemnation under the Eminent Domain laws of the State of 
Texas. (Commissioner Todd) 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C6 and Agenda Items, 7.a–b, 8.a–b, 9, 10.a–c, 
13, 14, 15, 16, 17.a–c, 18, 20.a–b, 21.a–b, 23, 24.a–b, 28, A1, and A2. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: Commissioner Davis noted that he was voting in favor of the Consent motion but 
that he wished to abstain on Item 14. 

Added Items 

 
A1. Approve Interlocal Agreement No. 4400001960, City of Austin for fiscal impact analysis of 

economic development incentive projects. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 



 

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 11 
 

A2. Consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Philip P. Huang, M.D., M.P.H , as 
Health Authority and Designation of Paul Hinchey, M.D., Birch Duke Kimbrough, M.D., and Jose 
G. Cabanas, M.D., each individually, as an Alternate Health Authority for Austin/Travis County 
Health and Human Services Department, effective April 1, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
A3. Receive update regarding Travis County Tax Office budget and other issues and take 

appropriate action. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Bruce Elfant, Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector 
Tiffany Seward, Director of Communications and Training, Travis County Tax Assessor-

Collector's Office 
Dolores Lopez, Division Director, Collections, Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector's 

Office 
Renea Deckard, Associate Deputy, Collections, Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector's 

Office 
Tina Morton, Chief Deputy, Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector's Office 
Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
A4. Consider and take appropriate action on the membership for the Community Focus Committee 

for the proposed Civil and Family Courthouse project. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, PBO 
Beverly Silas, President, Beverly Silas & Associates  

 
MOTION: Accept the recommended nominations and consider the composition of the 

Focus Committee complete. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, April 1, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on April 1, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jean E. Crawford, Travis County resident 
Carlos León 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 
Don Bowne, Manager, Security Division, FMD 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
2. Approve resolution recognizing National Crime Victims' Rights Week from April 6 through April 

12, 2014 and honoring the statewide coalition for hosting the 30th annual event in Travis 
County. (Judge Biscoe) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Liza Friend, Director, Victim Witness Division, Travis County District Attorney's Office 
Laramie Gorbett, Victim Specialist Senior, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) 
Dr. Jenny Barr, Chair, Crime Victims Services Coalition 



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
3. Approve proclamation declaring the month of April 2014 as “Light of Hope – National Child 

Abuse Awareness Month” in Travis County. (Judge Biscoe) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carole Hurley, Board Chair, Travis County Child Protective Services (CPS) 
Julie Moody, Media Specialist, Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS), 

Region 7 
Sibyl McDade, Faith-Based Recruiter, CPS 
Deputy Zainab Banks, Community Outreach Section, TCSO 

 
MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted the 24-hour Child Abuse and Neglect hotline number -- 800-252-
5400 

 
4. Approve proclamation declaring April 2014 as “National County Government Month” in Travis 

County. (Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Debbie Maynor, Director, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 
Kris Nilsen, Staffing and Organizational Services, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 4. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
5. Approve resolution honoring Inocencio Vasquez on his retirement from Travis County Health 

and Human Services and Veterans Service Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
6. At 10:00 a.m.  Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A partial plat cancellation of the following in the Lakehurst subdivision:   
 

i. Lots 1-9, Tract 9, resubdivision of Tracts 5, 6, 8 and 9 – 15.305 acres;   
 
ii. Lots 1-9 and Lots 21-29, a portion of Tract 8 – 7.199 acres;   
 
iii. A portion of Lot 10 – 9.121 acres;   
 
iv. Tract 18 – 27.468 acres; and   



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

 
v. A 2.51 acre tract and a 3.958 acre tract, identified as parts of unnamed right-of-way, 

Tract 10;   
 

b. An exemption from platting requirements for the Summit at Lake Travis condominiums – 
150 single-family detached units; and   

 
c. A condominium construction agreement for the Summit at Lake Travis condominiums in 

Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
Tim Hostetter, Vistas at Lake Travis 
Clint Jones, Developer 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
Doug Young, representing Crosswind Property Owners Association 
Christy Mews, Travis County resident 
Mark Buffington, Travis County resident 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 6 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 4/8/2014 

 
7. Revised language:  Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with 

Gehan Homes for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane Phase 3B, Lot 4, Block FFF In 
Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Villages of Hidden Lake Phase 6B-2 final plat (long form final plat – 51 
total Lots – 13.79 acres – Hidden Lake Drive – City of Pflugerville 2-mile ETJ); and   

 
b. A Travis County subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and BLD 

VOHL 6Bb-2, LLC in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Gehan Homes, Ltd., 

for sidewalk fiscal for Avalon Phase 7B, Lot 13, Block O in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use an alternative fiscal agreement for 

Avalon Phase 8 in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Avalon Phase 6A (final plat – 51 Lots on 11.78 acres – Bridie Path – 
water and wastewater provided by the City of Pflugerville);   

 
b. A construction agreement for the public infrastructure; and   



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

 
c. A cash security agreement in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on cash security agreements for the following with 

Highland Homes, Ltd-Austin, for sidewalk fiscal:   
 

a. West Cypress Hills Phase 1, Section 2, Lot 5, Block 9;   
 
b. West Cypress Hills Phase 1, Section 3b, Lot 43, Block B; and    
 
c. West Cypress Hills Phase 1, Section 3b, Lot 54, Block B in Precinct Three. (Commissioner 

Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to the Travis County on-site 

sewage facility regulations to allow a second single family residence to be placed on less than 
two acres at 408 Dream Catcher Drive in Precinct Three.  (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Review and approve contract amendment to extend the 2010 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 

with the City of Austin in the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,597,535.37 for the period of March 14 to March 20, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on whether to issue a call for recommendations to name 

the new Travis County District Attorney Office Building located at 416 West 11th Street, Austin, 
Texas. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, FMD 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

MOTION: Approve the schedule, the call for recommendations, advertisement, and the 
four sources that are mentioned in the backup material. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action regarding an interlocal agreement for enforcement of the 

Travis County Fire Code between Travis County and the City of Jonestown. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
20. Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 4400000434, Harry M. Whittington (d/b/a Travis 

Properties), for office space at 205-209 West 9th Street. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Approve Contract No. 4400001580, Maximus Consulting Services, Inc., for development of an 

indirect cost allocation plan. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Approve Contract award for medical and surgical supplies, IFB 1311-005-SC, to the low 

bidders:  a. Central Texas medical equipment & supplies – primary; and  b. Henry Schein, 
Inc. – secondary. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Approve Modification No. 12 for promotional cost reduction for Contract No. 4500000031 

(H.T.E. Contract No. 07T00173VC), Securus Technologies, Inc., for inmate pay phone services. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Walter LaGrone, Information Technology Director, Information Technology Services (ITS) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 23. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
24. At 1:30 p.m.  Consider and take appropriate action on proposed strategy for new investments 

in social services. 



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Lawrence Lyman, Workforce Development Manager, TCHHS&VS 
Christy Moffett, Social Services Manager, TCHHS&VS 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

MOTION: Approve staff's recommendations on Item 24. The source of funding will be 
what has already been budgeted and an anticipated equal amount in the 
Fiscal Year 2015 budget. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action on briefing from the Sustainable Food Policy Board on the 

Board’s annual internal review for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Rhonda Rutledge, Chair, Joint City-County Sustainable Food Policy Board 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Other Items 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action on amending Chapter 38 of the Travis County Code, Law 

Library Policies. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steven Broberg, Director, Records Management and Communications Resources (RMCR) 
Carlos León 

MOTION: Approve the proposed policy. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Joe Lamoreux to the Emergency 

Services District Number Fourteen Board of Commissioners effective immediately until 
December 31, 2015. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Lessie Fitzpatrick to the Child 

Protective Services Board beginning immediately through the term expiration on July 31, 2016. 
(Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

29. Consider and take appropriate action on acceptance of a donation of $10,000 from the 
Downtown Austin Alliance for the District Attorney’s Office and to authorize approval of 
associated special budgets for the District Attorney’s Office. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
30. Receive briefing from County Attorney and take appropriate action on whether to intervene in 

Cause Number 2012V-091; Jose Hernandez, individually and next friend of Aldo Xavier Cruz v. 
Alan Jameson Cooper pending in Fayette County in order to obtain payment for Star Flight 
services provided to Aldo Xavier Cruz.

 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Authorize the Travis County Attorney to intervene in the case on Travis 
County's behalf. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the corrected Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Session of October 29, 

2013, Item 3.C. 
 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, April 22, 1014 to receive comments regarding a 

request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate two five-foot wide public utility 
easements located along the common lot line of Lots 884 and 885 of Apache Shores, Section 
Two in Precinct Three.  (Commissioner Daugherty) 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C4 and Agenda Items 5, 7, 8.a–b, 9, 10, 11.a–c, 
12.a–c, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19, 20, 21, 22.a–b, 27, 28, and 29. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 



April 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Added Items 

 
A1. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action in Stacee Caseltine v. Travis 

County, EEOC Charge No: 451-2013-02880. (This will be taken in Executive Session under 
the Consultation with Attorney and Personnel Matters exceptions) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item A1 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel 
Matters. 

MOTION: Make a final offer of $30,000.00, to expire on Friday, April 4, 2014. Travis 
County will waive all amounts in arrears and include separation from 
employment. This offer also includes dismissal of the EEOC charge. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



WS# _____

VS#  _____

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONER COURT

AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for: Voting Session ______________________________.

I. A. Request made by County Auditor's Office, telephone number 854-9125.

B. Requested text: Receive revenue and expenditure reports, and other statutorily required reports, for the month of 

February, 2014 from the County Auditor’s Office.  The reports are submitted electronically as allowed by local 

government code § 114.023 (a) and prescribed by the County Auditor.

C. Approved by: _____________________________________________________.
Signature of Commissioner or Judge.

II. A. Copies of reports emailed to Commissioners on Monday, April 07, 2014 .

B. Have the agencies affected by this request been invited to attend the work session?

Yes _____ No__ X__  Please list those contacted and their phone numbers :

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

III. PERSONNEL:

_____ A change in your department personnel. (Reclassifications, etc.)

IV. BUDGET REQUESTS:

If your request involves any of the following, please check appropriately:

_____ Additional funding for your department.

_____ Transfer of funds within your department budget.

_____ A change in your department's personnel.

The County Human Resource Management Department, and / or the Planning and Budget

Office mist be notified prior to the submission of this agenda request.

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINES

All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted to the County Judge's Office

in writing by 5 p.m. on Tuesdays for the following week's meeting.

N:\AP\PROCEDURES\B - SAP\Gen Ledger\Close\Comm Court Monthly Reports\Monthly Financial Reports Agenda Request (2).xlsx



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Northwest Travis County Road 
District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Minutes for the Voting Sessions of March 
18 & 25, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

 

NWRD Item 2



  

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, March 18, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on March 18, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

MOTION: Approve the claims in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



  

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, March 25, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on March 25, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
2. Approve the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) minutes for the 

Voting Sessions of February 25 and March 4, 2014. 

MOTION: Approve the minutes in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@.co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 

 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 15, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 
(Galleria) Minutes for the Voting Sessions of March 18 & 25, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

BCRD Item 2



  

March 18, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, March 18, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on March 18, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

MOTION: Approve the claims in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 
 
 



  

March 25, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, March 25, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on March 25, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
2. Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) minutes for the Voting Sessions of 

February 25 and March 4, 2014. 

MOTION: Approve the minutes in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 



 
 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 15, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leroy Nellis, Acting County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
 
1.  Take appropriate action to consider adoption of initial resolution, 
approval of Agreement to Issue Bonds and to file application with Texas 
Bond Review Board for issuance of bonds to finance residential 
development for MLVI HAMPTON APARTMENTS, LLC for the Hampton 
Apartments. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  See 
attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

 

HFC Item 1



 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 15 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leroy Nellis, Acting County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
 
Consider and approve a request to replace Spectrum Housing Corporation, 
the 501(c)(3) non-profit general partner of  TX Old Manor Housing, L.P. 
(the owner of the Rosemont at Hidden Creek multifamily apartment project) 
with Tarrant County Housing Partnership as the replacement general 
partner. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  See 
attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

 

HFC Item 2



April 17, 2014 

WS Item 1



 Despite successful programming and mental health dockets, 
bookings for individuals with mental illness continue to rise while 
overall bookings do not. 

  





 Psychiatrist/Psychologist Fees by Fiscal Year 
 2011 2012 2013 

 
 

Total Amount Spent 
 
 

 $ 296,360.75 
 
  

 $ 280,758.75  
 
 

 $ 395,665.00 
  
 

# of Reports 
Completed 

 
 

 
 

534 
 
 

570 
 
 

745 
 
 

• Competency to Stand Trial and Sanity 
• Forced Med applications in State Hospitals outside of Austin 
• Expert Witness Testimony on Psych Cases 
• Includes Both Felony and Misdemeanors                                                                                     



 Fall 2011:  Travis County received a BJA Planning 
Grant to create a strategic jail diversion plan for 
the mentally ill.  

 Spring/Summer 2012: Advisory Committee met 
for planning. 

 Sept. 2012: Phase I of the Strategic Plan 
completed. 

 February 2013: Advisory Committee has second 
round of planning meetings to do further 
planning without further funding from BJA. 

 May 2013:  Criminal Justice Officials join 
Psychiatric Services Stakeholders. 
 

 
 
 



 Psychiatric Services Stakeholders (PSS) Committee 
historically focused on community crisis and had 
limited involvement of key criminal justice 
stakeholders. 

 PSS new proposal: 
 3 Committees reporting to PSS 

 Crisis Intervention Committee (CIC):  Identify and address 
system level operations issues, build connections between new and 
existing services, monitor impact of new services, identify gaps in 
services. 

 Behavioral Health Advisory Committee (BHAC):  Develop and 
sustain a planning partnership to support persons with behavioral 
health needs and to promote public safety. 

 Substance Use Planning Group (SUPG):  Convene community 
partners to identify service gaps within substance use service 
continuum and act on opportunities to increase service access. 



 Sequential Intercept Model (SIM) is a 
nationally recognized model for mental 
health jail diversion planning.  

 Original SIM contains 5 Intercepts (stages) 
◦ Law Enforcement 
◦ Initial Detention/pretrial court hearings 
◦ Jails/Courts 
◦ Re-Entry 
◦ Community Supervision 

 BHAC added Intercept 0: Community Health 
 



 

   What We Have:  

 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 D
iv

er
si

on
 S

eq
ue

nt
ia

l I
nt

er
ce

pt
 P

oi
nt

s 
 • ATCIC Outpatient 

Behavioral Health 
• ATCIC Crisis 
• ATCIC Residential 
• OSAR Treatment 
• Caritas 
• Community Care 
• Seton 
• Lone Star Circle 
• ATCIC MCOT –CIT 

co-location. 
• MCOT-EMS 

collaboration 
 

• Crisis Intervention 
Team APD & TCSO 

• TCSO MH 
Assessment and 
Treatment in jail 

• Pre-Trial Bond MH 
Supervision 

• Downtown Austin 
Comm. Court 

• Misdemeanor & 
Felony MH Dockets 

• MH Public Defender 
& Wheel Attorneys 

• MH Prosecutors 
• Felony Support Ct 
• ATCIC Competency 

Restoration 
• Various jail-based 

programs 
• JRI Housing Project 

• MH PD Caseworkers 
• DACC Case Managers 
• TC CJP Transitional 

Housing 
• TC CJP Supportive 

Housing 
• DACC-Caritas 

Supportive Housing 
• ATCIC Supportive 

Housing 

• Probation MH Unit 
• Probation CORES 

program 
• ANEW program 
• Road to Recovery 

 

   Intercepts:  

 Intercept 0 
Community Services 

 
 
 
 

Intercept 1 
Law Enforcement 
• Booking 
• Magistration 
• MH Screening 

Intercept 2 
Initial Detention & 
Arrest 

 

Intercept 3 
Jail & Courts 

 

Intercept 4 
Reentry Employment 
& Progress 

 

Intercept 5 
Community 
Corrections 

(Probation) 

 

     Recommendations:  

 • Sobriety Center 
• Seton Psy ER 
• Extended Psy 

Observation 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• MCOT &CIT at 
booking to divert 
when possible. 

• Review of APD 
policy & training. 

• New Assessment 
Process using Crim. 
Risk, Behavioral 
Health Framework 
& ECHO Housing 
tool. 

• Assisted Outpatient 
Treatment in 
Probate Court 

• Residential 
Treatment beds 

• PSH Units 

• Residential 
Treatment beds 

• PSH Units 

 

  



The Council of State Governments (CSG)Justice 
Center Criminal Justice/Mental Health Consensus 
Project published 2 reports that inform the planning 
process: 
 Adults with Behavioral Health Needs Under Correctional 
Supervision:  A Shared Framework for Reducing Recidivism and 
Promoting Recovery (Sept. 2012) 
 Guidelines for Successful Transition of People with 
Behavioral Health Disorders from Jail and Prison (Nov. 2013) 



 Developed by Dr. Fred Osher, MD, Psychiatrist.  Dr. 
Osher works for CSG and helped the Travis County 
CSCD establish its integrated mental health unit.  He 
also advised TC when we were a mental health 
learning site in 2006. 
 

 Builds upon previous work done in the behavioral 
health field and adds a criminogenic risk assessment. 
 

 To be used as a way to think about collaboration and 
resource allocation among the three systems: 
criminal justice, mental health and substance use. 





 “The framework is a must-read for state administrators of 
mental health, substance abuse, and corrections. This 
collaboration is critical to ensure people with mental health 
and substance use issues are served with the most 
appropriate settings.” Robert Glover, Exec. Dir. National 
Assoc. of State Mental Health Program Directors 

 
 “The framework should not merely perpetuate a more 

coordinated business-as-usual approach.  This is a chance 
for all three systems—criminal justice, substance abuse, and 
mental health—to develop creative approaches for 
supervising and treating individuals in more effective ways.” 
Jennifer Skeem, Professor and MH/CJ Researcher, University 
of California-Irvine 



 Static: those that are unalterable such as a 
person’s demographics or age at first arrest. 

 Dynamic: those that change over time and are 
amenable to interventions.  
◦ Presence of Antisocial Behavior 
◦ Antisocial Personality Pattern 
◦ Antisocial Cognition 
◦ Antisocial Associates 
◦ Family and/or Marital 
◦ School and/or Work 
◦ Leisure and/or Recreation 
◦ Substance Abuse 



 Effective January 2015 Probation departments 
are mandated to use the T-RAS criminogenic 
Risk tool. 

 This will replace the Wisconsin Risk Tool 
historically used by Travis County Adult 
Probation. 

 T-RAS is an offspring of the Ohio Risk 
Assessment Tool – which is considered 
evidence based. 



10 Guidelines for the Successful Transition of People with Behavioral 
Health Disorders from Jail and Prison (summarized) 

1. Conduct universal screening as early in the booking/intake process as 
feasible. 

2. Follow up with comprehensive assessments to guide appropriate program 
placement and service delivery. 

3. Develop individual treatment and service plans using the risk and needs 
screening and assessment process. 

4. Develop collaborative responses between behavioral health and criminal 
justice. 

5. Anticipate that the periods following release are critical and identify 
appropriate interventions as part of transition planning practices. 

6. Develop policies and practices that facilitate continuity of care post release. 
7. Support adherence to treatment plans and supervision conditions through 

coordinated strategies. 
8. Develop mechanisms to share information across different points in the CJ 

system. 
9. Encourage and support cross training to facilitate collaboration between 

behavioral health and CJ workforces. 
10.Collect and analyze data to evaluate program performance, identify gaps in 

performance and plan for long-term sustainability. 
 



Housing Assessment - Expected Benefits 
Nationally & here in Travis County 

 Assesses all clients across the county the same way to 
determine the housing intervention needed 

 improved homeless client access to services and housing 
(meaningful referrals) 

 reduced administrative burden on clients and providers, 
 improved data quality using HMIS 
 generates waitlists and  leads to prioritization of clients for 

housing 
 

- all of which lead to greater system efficiency and effectiveness.     
 

 And, it’s HUD required to continue receiving $7M in 
housing/homeless services funds (COC & ESG) 
 
 



Framework for Housing Stability 

          

 

D
iv

er
t (

if 
po

ss
ib

le
) 

R
ef

er
 to

 S
he

lte
r, 

A
ss

ig
n 

to
 

Pe
rm

an
en

t H
ou

si
ng

 P
at

hw
ay

  

Permanent 
Supportive 

Housing 

 
Minimal 

Intervention 

 
Rapid  

Re-Housing 

Assessment & Referral Team Case Management/Housing Navigation 

inreach 

Ho
sp

ita
ls/

MH
 

 
Ja

ils
/C

ou
rts

 
 

inreach 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

inreach 

 

Subsidized 
Housing** 

 

Subsidized 
Housing* 

*Using progressive engagement, 
it may be determined that some 
households need a greater level 
of assistance to stabilize. 

**Subsidized units can be made 
available for PSH clients who no 
longer need intensive/ongoing 
services. 

 

A
ss

es
s 



• Pre Trial MH Bond Supervision Officers 
• TCSO Medical and Psychiatric Assessments 
• MH Public Defender 
• MH Misdemeanor and Felony dockets (including 

collaboration with TCSO counseling and ATCIC) 
• CSCD Cores Program and MH Integrated Services 
• MH Prosecution teams at Co. Atty and Dist. Atty. 
• Mobile Crisis Outreach 
• JRI Supportive Housing Grant 

 
 
 



  
 Funding: Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA); $565,345 (two year). 

 
 Positions funded: 1 Case Manager, 2 Counselors  

  
 Two year grant: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2014 

  
 Target population: High-risk felony probationers with co-occurring mental health disorder and 

drug dependence.  
 

◦ 1st priority - Female probationers  
◦ Limited basis - Medium-risk probationers with co-occurring disorders  
  

 Services:   
 

◦ Clients participate in pre-release (pre-treatment services provided while in jail) and post-release services 
(residential treatment and aftercare services provided after release from jail).   

◦ Recovery supportive housing provided for CORES clients as needed. 
◦  Funding also included for psychiatric medication support services.   

  
 

Co-occurring Re-entry Services (CORES)  



 Funding: Texas Department of Criminal Justice-Community Justice Assistance Division 
◦ $9,800 Cognitive Classes (Vendor) 
◦ $731,293 Probation Staff (Supervision Officers, Manager, Administrative Support) 

 
 Funding: Travis County 

◦ $89,511 Lease Space 
◦ $25,250 Security  

 
 Target Population: Individuals on probation or parole supervision with a mental health priority population 

diagnosis. 
 

 Services:  
 
◦ Travis County Adult Probation, State of Texas Parole and Austin Travis County Integral Care ANEW Staff co-located in a common 

location providing team-based supervision and case-management: 
 coordinated appointments,  
 treatment team reviews,  
 cross-trained staff, and  
 regular information sharing and decision making.  

 
◦ Uses a Recovery Model that includes the offender in the assessment process, setting of goals, and developing the treatment and 

supervision plans. 
 

◦ Courts are involved to help reduce probation revocations and to assist probationers to address needs and engage in treatment.  
  
 



 Funding: Texas Department of Criminal Justice-
Community Justice Assistance Division; $154,505 
 

 Target Population: Probationers who have been 
assessed with a co-occurring disorder 
 

 Services:  
◦ Pre-treatment readiness 
◦ 90 day residential treatment 
◦ Aftercare Services 
 

 Currently, only the 90 day residential treatment 
is operational. 
 



 Funding: Travis County 
◦  $186,791 Pretrial Staff (Case Management Officers,  Manager) 

 
 Target Population: Defendants on personal bond supervision with diagnosed mental 

illness. 
◦ 338 served in Fiscal Year 2013 
◦ 2079 served since program inception (FY2006) 
 

 Services: 
 
◦ Provide linkage to community services and resources to assist client in maintaining 

stability: treatment, housing, education, and employment. 
◦ Monitor court dates and bond conditions to assure court attendance and condition 

compliance. 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 



Justice Reinvestment Initiative (JRI) Permanent Supportive 
Housing and Case Management Pilot  
 Funding is provided by the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA, 

$300,000); The Laura and John Arnold Foundation ($69,012); and 
Housing Authority  of Travis County (housing vouchers valued at 
$82,800).   

 This is a two-year grant, running from May 2013 through April 
2015.  

 The pilot will serve 22 chronically homeless, mentally ill men and 
women who are frequent offenders in the county jail, as determined 
by a high Jail Impact Score (calculated using frequency of jail 
bookings and the number of jail bed days consumed).   

 This pilot program provides transitional and permanent supportive 
housing, along with intensive case management and ancillary 
services (substance abuse treatment, counseling, medication and 
medication management, access to a psychiatrist). Foundation 
Communities is our partner in this initiative, providing both the 
units of housing and the case management services.      

 



 

 In 2011, Travis County working group conducts a study of 
652 individuals who: 

• were booked in jail during calendar year 2011 
• diagnosed with a state-defined priority population 

mental health disorder 
• had a co-occurring dual diagnosed substance abuse 

disorder  
 

 In 2013, Criminal Justice Planning examined what happened 
to these people using a two-year follow-up period: 

• 311 people (48%) had 1+ new offense booking (1,157 
bookings) 

• Of 311, 55 people had 6+ new offenses (615 bookings) 
 

 Take away message: A smaller group offended at a higher 
rate during the two-year period : 

• These 55 people (8%) account for 615 (53%) of the new 
bookings (1,157 bookings) 

• New offenses mostly misdemeanors 
• Biggest offense categories: 

• Public intoxication enhanced 
• Public intoxication 
• Criminal trespass 

 
 



 MHPDO  began in April 2007 to serve the needs of persons with mental illness in the 
criminal justice system. The staff now includes three Attorneys and five Case Managers. 
 

 Overarching Objectives: 
• Minimize the number of days a person with mental illness spends in jail. 
• Reduce recidivism by providing intensive case management services. 
• Increase the number of dismissals among defendants with mental Illness. 
• Enhance legal representation by providing attorneys with specialized 

knowledge needed to defend persons with mental illness. 
 

 In a two part Cost-Benefit Evaluation Analysis, Justice and Public Safety concluded 
MHPDO has successfully achieved most of its original objectives including a reduction 
in jail bed days, an increase in dismissals, a reduction in recidivism, and enhanced 
knowledge about persons with mental illnesses. 
 

 



 The Travis County District Attorney’s Office 
has a an attorney VI assigned to handle both 
the adult (MHD)and juvenile (COPE) mental 
health dockets 
◦ The salary for this position without benefits is 

$92,680.66 w/ benefits $122,635.26 
◦ This position dedicates about 60% of their time to 

these cases 
 A paralegal is also assigned to work with the 

ADA 
◦ The salary without benefits is $45,467 w/ benefits 

$65,064.61 
 



• Clinical eligibility/qualifying diagnoses: 
• Schizophrenia 
• Schizoaffective disorder 
• Bipolar disorder 
• Major Depressive Disorder with a GAF of less than 50 
• Mental Retardation/Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD) 

• Criminal eligibility = cases are screened out for violent history or offense, 
extensive history, relation to the mental illness, etc.  Violent offenses are not 
accepted without judge’s, trial court prosecutor’s, and most importantly 
victim’s approval. 

• Held Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursdays with staff consisting of social 
services coordinator from the jail, an ATCIC representative, and a mental 
health probation officer. 

• There is no “program”.  Each case is assessed individually to determine what is 
the best course of action given all of the information from the staffing with the 
focus of providing mental health services and drug treatment. 
 



 The Travis County Attorney’s Office has a 
prosecutor, paralegal, a legal assistant, and a 
victim witness coordinator for the mental 
health docket, but the positions are also 
responsible for other court dockets such as 
Veteran’s Court. 



 All jail misdemeanor cases which receive a PSY in jail code are routed onto 
the misdemeanor MH docket 

 Cases are handled on an expedited basis in order to reduce the duration 
of incarceration time when inappropriate 

 Information regarding behavior and mental health status is gained 
through contact with jail counselling staff, ATCIC, and often family 
members 

 Prosecutor tries to emphasize problem solving, seeking to reduce 
recidivism and engage defendants in treatment while maintaining 
community safety. 

 Prosecutor utilizes mental health community supervision, supervised 
mental health bonds, transfers to probate for civil commitment, and 
incarceration as various tools to try to affect defendant behavior. 

 Prosecutor seeks to collaborate with other law enforcement agencies for 
better outcomes on cases that involve individuals with mental illness. 
 
 



Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal 
Justice Initiatives 
ATCIC provides outpatient psychiatric clinic and substance 
use treatment, counseling, case management and 
rehabilitative skills training to over 22,000 individuals in the 
Travis County community. These services leverage state, 
local and federal dollars. Criminal justice involvement is not 
a barrier to services.   

 

• TC HHS/VS has an Interlocal Agreement with ATCIC to purchase outpatient 
clinical services – amount of the contract is $1,058,291.  Total budget is 
$2,739,452.     

• As part of the FY14 SAMSO Agreement, TC HHS/VS contracts with ATCIC 
to manage substance use funds and contract with local providers to ensure 
Travis County residents obtain access to substance use treatment services 
– amount of the contract is $978,679.  Total budget $1,289,600.00. 



Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal 
Justice Initiatives 
 

ATCIC provides the following services specific to the adult 
criminal justice population: 
 
• ATCIC is co-located with and partners with Travis County CSCD to provide 

outpatient psychiatric treatment and case management to individuals on 
CSCD and Parole Mental Health Caseloads.  This project leverages state  
TCOOMI funds to ensure coordinated care and service delivery for this 
population. 

• ATCIC contracts with the Travis County Jail to provide 3 prescribers 
specialized in psychiatric care for Travis County jail inmates (fy14 
$523,194).  

• ATCIC contracts with Travis County Adult probation to provide 16 
hours/month psychiatric care for residents in the SMART program (fy14 

$37,800). 
 



Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal 
Justice Initiatives 
ATCIC proactively diverts individuals from the criminal justice system and 
provides alternatives to incarceration.  These services leverage state, local and 
federal dollars.  Travis County HHS/VS provided $1,000,000 to the Expanded 
Mobile Crisis Outreach Team (MCOT) in FY13 and has provided $400,000 
annually to the original or “classic” MCOT since 2005. 
• Expanded Mobile Crisis Outreach Team is co-located and partners with APD, TCSO 

and EMS to respond to individuals in crisis in the community (1115 Waiver Project 
and Travis County) 

• Mobile Crisis Outreach Team dispatched by ATCIC’s Hotline to respond to individuals 
and families in crisis in the community (DSHS and TC HHS/VS $400,000/annually) 

• Psychiatric Crisis Residential and Jail Alternative Project targeting individuals with co-
occurring substance use and mental health disorders (24 bed, 1115 Waiver Project) 

• A full time caseworker dedicated to the Mental Health Docket (DSHS funds) 
• Outpatient Competency Restoration Program (DSHS) 
• ATCIC is currently applying for a grant to fund a 16 bed Extended Observation Unit 

which could take voluntary and involuntary clients 

 



Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal 
Justice Initiatives 
ATCIC provides community and professional education 
about mental health and substance use to reduce stigma 
and ensure our community first responders achieve an 
increased level of mental health literacy. 

 
• Since 2012, ATCIC has provided mental health training to all APD new 

cadets, new CIT officers and refresher training for CIT officers at the APD 
Training Academy  

• ATCIC and TCSO have initiated plans to provide mental health CIT training 
to certify TCSO CIT officers beginning in spring 2014 

• ATCIC will provide Mental Health First Aid training to Travis County EMS 
cadets summer 2014 
 



 TCSO Counseling Staff FTEs:  5 additional 
senior counseling positions to increase 
coverage to 24/7 AND to add additional 
assessment tools including Criminogenic Risk 

 Criminal Courts: $25,000 increase in costs 
for Forced Medication Hearings hearings and 
$70,000 in Psychiatric Evaluations for District 
Courts. 



WS Item 2












































































	Item 01
	PH Euphoria Fest Mass Gathering Permit Agenda Request
	PH Euphoria Fest Permit Application
	PH Euphoria Fest Permit Application Packet
	Item 01
	PH Euphoria Fest Signs
	Routing & Checkoff 
	NOTICE OF
	PUBLIC HEARING
	PUBLIC HEARING

	TO: County Judge
	County Commissioners
	Travis County, Texas

	PH Euphoria Fest Mass HHS Report Memo April 2014
	PH Euphoria Fest Fire Marshal Report
	PH Euphoria Fest Certified Receipts
	PH Euphoria Fest TNR Memo
	PH Euphoria Traffic Plan


	Item 03
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	10627 : Cont. Award IFB 1401-007-RF_Transmission Repair
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Dept Memo_Transmission Repair Award Letter 2014
	Tabulation_Transmission


	Item 18
	10628 : Contract award, HOK - IR/CA Svcs. for DB Development of CFCH
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Recommendation for award letter 4-1-2014
	PSA No. 4400001900, IRCA, 4-3-14


	Item 19
	10629 : 4400001904 Deer Creek Substandard Road Improvement Project
	_00 Exec PAM 2014
	_01 Contractor Signed Agreement 4400001904
	_02 Dept Memo Only for 4400001904-Substandard Roads Improvements
	_03 Auditor Approval form-4400001904 Doucet
	_02a Dept Recmd Memo Revision 12Feb2014 Deer Crk Rd Prj


	Item 20
	10630 : Collections of FInes/Fees for JP
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Recommendation letter.docx
	Proposal tabulations REV
	CONTRACT FOR JUSTICE COURTS  COLLECTION OF FINES AND FEES  with LINEBARGER
	CONTRACT FOR JUSTICE COURTS  COLLECTION OF FINES AND FEES with MSB


	Item 21
	10632 : Approve Contract Award for Moya Park Debris Removal
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	TNR Moya Park Award Memo
	Tabulation Bid B1401-011-LD


	Item 22
	10657 : Assignment of Contract No. 4400000578 Fuller - Sheffield Funeral Services
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Modification No. 2 - Assignment of Contract


	Item 23
	Item 23
	Item 23 Memo

	Item 24
	Item 24
	Item 01
	PH Euphoria Fest Mass Gathering Permit Agenda Request
	PH Euphoria Fest Permit Application
	PH Euphoria Fest Permit Application Packet
	Item 01
	PH Euphoria Fest Signs
	Routing & Checkoff 
	NOTICE OF
	PUBLIC HEARING
	PUBLIC HEARING

	TO: County Judge
	County Commissioners
	Travis County, Texas

	PH Euphoria Fest Mass HHS Report Memo April 2014
	PH Euphoria Fest Fire Marshal Report
	PH Euphoria Fest Certified Receipts
	PH Euphoria Fest TNR Memo
	PH Euphoria Traffic Plan



	Item 25
	Item 27
	Item 28
	Agenda Request - Biweekly Payroll
	FINAL PP_Agenda Request for Bi-weekly Pay_04152014

	Item 29
	Item 30
	Items 31 and 33
	Items 32 and 34
	Item 35
	Item 36
	Item 37
	Item 38
	Item 39
	Item 40
	Item C3
	CC 0318, 25 & 0401 Ag Rq
	CC 0318
	CC 0325
	CC 0401

	Item C4
	NWRD Item 02
	Nw 0318 & 25 Ag Rq
	NW 0318
	NW 0325

	BCRD Item 02
	BC 0318 & 25 Ag Rq
	BC 0318
	BC 0325

	HFC Item 01
	HFC Item 02
	WS 0417 Item 01
	Travis County Commissioner’s Court �Work Session on �Mental Health Services, Strategies and Upcoming Initiatives
	Recent booking history 2011-13	
	Booking History 2006-13
	 Psychiatrist/Psychologist Fees by Fiscal Year�
	Recent History of Planning
	Combining Planning Efforts
	BHAC Sequential Intercept Model
	Slide Number 8
	Guidelines for Planning Process
	The Framework�(Criminogenic Risk and Behavioral Health Needs)	
	Criminogenic Risk and Behavioral Health Needs Framework
	What do other experts say about the Framework?
	Criminogenic Risk
	Texas Risk Assessment Tool
	Slide Number 15
	Housing Assessment - Expected Benefits�Nationally & here in Travis County
	Framework for Housing Stability
	Current Diversion Programs 
	�Travis County Community Supervision�
	Mental Health Integrated Services
	Substance Abuse Inpatient Continuum of Service
	Pretrial Services �Mental Health Program
	Travis County Criminal Justice Planning
	Justice and Mental Health Collaboration 
	Mental Health Public Defender Office (MHPDO)
	DA Mental Health Docket �Staff Positions
	Felony Mental Health Docket
	CA Mental Health Docket �Staff Positions
	Misdemeanor MH Docket
	Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal Justice Initiatives
	Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal Justice Initiatives
	Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal Justice Initiatives
	Austin Travis County Integral Care:  Criminal Justice Initiatives
	Budget Requests 2014-15	

	WS 0417 Item 02
	FMD WS North Campus REVISED Agenda Request
	FMD Work Session Agenda Item North Campus




